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Bonds may be made in book-entry form only, in Authorized Denominations. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest
in the Bonds purchased. Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be payable by wire transfer to DTC, which in turn is required to remit such
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Agreement and Obligation.

THE BONDS ARE A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE AUTHORITY, PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND SECURED BY A
PLEDGE AND ASSIGNMENT OF THE PENSION OBLIGATION BONDS ISSUED BY CERTAIN LOCAL AGENCIES AND
PAYMENTS WITH RESPECT THERETO, TO THE EXTENT PROVIDED IN THE TRUST AGREEMENT, SUBJECT TO THE
PROVISIONS OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT PERMITTING THE DISBURSEMENT THEREOF FOR OR TO THE PURPOSES
AND ON THE CONDITIONS AND TERMS SET FORTH THEREIN. THE BONDS ARE NOT A LIEN OR CHARGE UPON ANY
FUNDS OR PROPERTY OF THE AUTHORITY (EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT OF THE AFOREMENTIONED PLEDGE AND
ASSIGNMENT). THE BONDS ARE NOT A DEBT OF ANY LOCAL AGENCY OR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY AND NO
SUCH LOCAL AGENCY OR MEMBER IS LIABLE IN ANY MANNER FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF

Payment of principal of (o1, in the case of the Capital Appreciation Bonds, the accreted value) and interest on the Bonds when due will
be insured by an insurance policy for the Bonds (collectively, the “Insurance Policy”) to be issued concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds
by Ambac Assurance Corporation (the “Insurer”). See “The Insurance Policy and the Insurer” herein and APPENDIX E — “FORM OF
INSURANCE POLICY” altached hereto.

Ambac

THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR GENERAL REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS NOT INTENDED
AS A SUMMARY OF THE TRANSACTION. INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO
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MORGAN STANLEY RBC DAIN RAUSCHER INC.
E. J. DE LA ROSA & CO., INC.

Dated: June 15, 2004



Maturity Schedule

$178,555,000 Series A-1 Current Interest Bonds

CUSIP*t ISINT

Maturity Principal Interest Base No. Base No.

(June 1) Amount Rate Yield 130911 US130911
2005 $1,710,000 2.650% 2.650% WV 8 Wwvs83
2006 1,500,000 3.150 3.150 WW 6 WW66
2007 1,890,000 3.730 3.730 WX 4 WX40
2008 2,305,000 4.140 4.140 WY 2 WwY23
2009 2,790,000 4.510 4.510 WZ9 WZ97
2010 3,790,000 4.820 4.820 XA 3 XA38
2011 4,320,000 5.020 5.020 XB1 XB11
2012 4,900,000 5.180 5.180 XC9 XC93
2013 5,545,000 5.330 5.330 XD 7 XD76
2014 6,295,000 5.408 5.408 XE 5 XE59
2015 7,115,000 5.508 5.508 XF 2 XF25
2016 8,015,000 5.588 5.588 XG0 XG08

$95,480,000 5.896% Term Bonds due June 1, 2024 - Yield 5.896% CUSIP*{: 130911 XH 8 - ISINT: US130911XH80
$32,900,000 6.076% Term Bonds due June 1, 2034 - Yield 6.076% CUSIP*{: 130911 XJ 4 - ISINT: US130911XJ47

$18,529,194.85 Series A-2 Capital Appreciation Bonds

Initial CUSIP*f ISINT
Maturity Principal Accreted Value Yield to Base No. Base No.
(June 1) Amount at Maturity Maturity 130911 US130911

2007 $ 495,193.20 $ 555,000.00 3.940% XK1 XK10
2008 1,114,977.60 1,320,000.00 4.350 XL 9 X1.92
2009 1,088,903.40 1,370,000.00 4.720 XM 7 XM75
2010 1,058,009.65 1,415,000.00 4.970 XN 5 XN58
2011 1,027,574.10 1,470,000.00 5.240 XPO XP07
2012 999,273.60 1,530,000.00 5.450 XQ8 XQ89
2013 965,788.05 1,585,000.00 5.630 XR 6 XR62
2014 934,590.30 1,645,000.00 5.780 XS4 XS46
2015 899,626.20 1,705,000.00 5.940 XT 2 XT29
2016 866,662.80 1,770,000.00 6.080 XU9 XU91
2017 833,622.15 1,835,000.00 6.200 XV 17 XV174
2018 804,329.10 1,905,000.00 6.290 XW 5 XW57
2019 773,666.75 1,975,000.00 6.380 XX3 XX31
2020 747,876.15 2,055,000.00 6.450 XY1 XY14
2021 722,223.75 2,125,000.00 6.480 X7 8 X788
2022 697,044.60 2,205,000.00 6.530 YA 2 YA29
2023 676,611.90 2,295,000.00 6.560 YBO YBO02
2024 653,908.75 2,375,000.00 6.580 YC 8 YC84
2025 357,426.95 1,385,000.00 6.580 YD 6 YD67
2026 348,321.60 1,440,000.00 6.580 YE 4 YE41
2027 338,946.40 1,495,000.00 6.580 YF1 YF16
2028 329,390.50 1,550,000.00 6.580 YG9 YG98
2029 320,695.90 1,610,000.00 6.580 YH 7 YH71
2030 311,789.00 1,670,000.00 6.580 YJ 3 YJ38
2031 302,750.00 1,730,000.00 6.580 YK O YKO1
2032 294,433.85 1,795,000.00 6.580 YL 8 YL83
2033 286,725.10 1,865,000.00 6.580 YM 6 YM66
2034 278,833.50 1,935,000.00 6.580 YN 4 YN40

* Copyright 2003, American Bankers Association.
t CUSIP and ISIN data herein are set forth herein for convenience of reference only. Neither the Authority nor the Underwriters
assume responsibility for the accuracy of such information.



No broker, dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information
or to make any representations other than those contained in this Official Statement in
connection with the offering made hereby and, if given or made, such information or
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Authority, the Local
Agencies or the Underwriters. Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale
hereunder shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in
the affairs of the Authority or any Local Agency since the date hereof. This Official Statement
does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale
of the Bonds in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer,
solicitation or sale. The information contained in this Official Statement has been obtained from
the Local Agencies and other sources believed by the Authority and the Underwriters to be
reliable. The Underwriters have reviewed the information in the Official Statement in
accordance with, and as part of, their responsibility to investors under the federal securities law
as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not
guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the
Bonds. Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or
opinions, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to
be construed as a representation of facts.

In connection with this offering, the Underwriters may overallot or effect transactions
which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Bonds at a level above that which might
otherwise prevail in the open market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at
any time.

Other than with respect to information concerning Ambac Assurance Corporation (the
"Insurer") as the Insurer for the Bonds contained under the caption "SECURITY AND SOURCE
OF PAYMENT - The Insurance Policy" and "— The Insurer" and Appendix F attached hereto,
none of the information in this Official Statement has been supplied or verified by the Insurer
and the Insurer makes no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to (i) the accuracy or
completeness of such information; (i1) the validity of the Bonds; or (iii) the tax exempt status of
the interest on the Bonds.
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$197,084,194.85
CALIFORNIA STATEWIDE COMMUNITIES DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
TAXABLE PENSION OBLIGATION BONDS

$178,555,000.00 2004 Series A-1 Bonds (Current Interest Bonds)
$18,529,194.85 2004 Series A-2 Bonds (Capital Appreciation Bonds)

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, including the cover page and appendices hereto (the "Official
Statement"), sets forth certain information concerning the California Statewide Communities
Development Authority Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds, 2004 Series A-1 (Current Interest Bonds)
(the "Series A-1 Bonds" or "Current Interest Bonds") in the aggregate principal amount of
$178,555,000.00 and the California Statewide Communities Development Authority Taxable Pension
Obligation Bonds, 2004 Series A-2 (Capital Appreciation Bonds) (the "Series A-2 Bonds" or "Capital
Appreciation Bonds") in the aggregate principal amount of $18,529,194.85. The Series A-1 Bonds and
the Series A-2 Bonds are referred to collectively herein as the "Bonds." Pursuant to the California
Statewide Communities Development Authority Pension Obligation Bond Program (the "Program"), the
California Statewide Communities Development Authority (the "Authority") is issuing the Bonds
pursuant to the terms of a Trust Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2004 (the "Trust Agreement") by and
between the California Statewide Communities Development Authority (the "Authority") and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee").

The net proceeds of the Bonds will be used to purchase taxable pension obligation bonds (the
"Obligations") of participating counties and cities (collectively, the "Local Agencies") in the State of
California (the "State"). The Obligations purchased with the net proceeds of the Bonds will be assigned
to the Trustee for the benefit of the registered owners and the Insurer of the Bonds, and the payments on
such Obligations will be used for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds or the
reimbursement of drawings under or payments made pursuant to or from the Insurance Policy and the
Obligations shall not be used for any other purpose while any of the Bonds remain Outstanding. For
information on the Local Agencies, the Obligations of the Local Agencies and their allocation to the
Bonds, see Appendices A, B and C hereto.

The Obligation of each Local Agency is issued under the authority of Articles 10 and 11
(commencing with Section 53570) of Chapter 3 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the
State of California (the "Act") and pursuant to the terms of a Trust Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2004,
by and between each such Local Agency and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the "Local
Agency Trustee"), as trustee (each a "Local Agency Trust Agreement") and a resolution of issuance
adopted by the legislative body of each such Local Agency (each an "Obligation Resolution"). The
issuance of a Local Agency's Obligation will provide moneys to meet such Local Agency's obligation to
pay the Local Agency's unfunded accrued actuarial liability ("UAAL") to the California Public
Employees' Retirement System ("PERS"). The aggregate amount of Obligations issued in connection
with the Bonds will equal the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds. Each Local Agency's
Obligations are unconditional obligations of such Local Agency, payable from any legally available
source of funds. The full faith and credit of the Local Agencies are not pledged to the repayment of the
Obligations. See "SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT" herein.



Payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be insured by an insurance
policy (the "Insurance Policy") to be issued concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds by Ambac
Assurance Corporation (the "Insurer"). See "The Insurance Policy and the Insurer" herein and
APPENDIX H - "FORM OF INSURANCE POLICY" attached hereto.

THE BONDS ARE A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE AUTHORITY, PAYABLE SOLELY
FROM AND SECURED BY A PLEDGE AND ASSIGNMENT OF, THE PENSION OBLIGATION
BONDS ISSUED BY CERTAIN LOCAL AGENCIES AND PAYMENTS WITH RESPECT
THERETO, TO THE EXTENT PROVIDED IN THE TRUST AGREEMENT, SUBJECT TO THE
PROVISIONS OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT PERMITTING THE DISBURSEMENT THEREOF
FOR OR TO THE PURPOSES AND ON THE CONDITIONS AND TERMS SET FORTH THEREIN.
THE BONDS ARE NOT A LIEN OR CHARGE UPON ANY FUNDS OR PROPERTY OF THE
AUTHORITY (EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT OF THE AFOREMENTIONED PLEDGE AND
ASSIGNMENT). THE BONDS ARE NOT A DEBT OF ANY LOCAL AGENCY OR ANY
MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY AND NO SUCH LOCAL AGENCY OR MEMBER IS LIABLE IN
ANY MANNER FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF.

The audited 2002-03 Annual Financial Report for Kings County has been completed and is
attached hereto at Appendix D. The audited 2001-02 Annual Financial Report of Kings County and
unaudited financial information for fiscal year 2002-03 that were attached to the Preliminary Official
Statement dated June 4, 2004 have been removed.

Copies of the Trust Agreement and the standard form of the Local Agency Trust Agreement
summarized herein and the standard form of the Obligation Purchase Agreement (as defined herein) are
available upon request during the initial offering period from Wells Fargo Bank, National Association,
Corporate Trust Services, 117 Wilshire Blvd., 17" Floor, Los Angeles, California, 90017.

All capitalized words, unless otherwise defined herein, shall have the meanings set forth in
APPENDIX E - "DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS AND SUMMARY OF LOCAL AGENCY
TRUST AGREEMENTS AND SUMMARY OF TRUST AGREEMENT" or, if not defined therein, in
the Trust Agreement.

THE AUTHORITY AND THE PROGRAM
The Authority

The Authority is a public entity organized pursuant to an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise
of Powers Agreement among a number of California counties, cities, and special districts entered into
pursuant to the provisions relating to the joint exercise of powers contained in Chapter 5 of Division 7 of
Title 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of the California Government Code. The Authority is
authorized to issue bonds and to finance working capital for local agencies within the State of California
pursuant to the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, constituting Article 4 (commencing with
Section 6584) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code.

The Authority has sold and delivered obligations other than the Bonds, which other obligations
are and will be secured by instruments separate and apart from the Trust Agreement and the Obligations.
The holders of such obligations of the Authority have no claim on the security of the Bonds, and the



Owners of the Bonds will have no claim on the security of such other obligations issued by the
Authority.

The Program

The Authority's Pension Obligation Bond Program (the "Program") began in 2004. The Program
provides unfunded pension obligation refinancing for California counties, cities and other local agencies
meeting certain criteria.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS
Denominations; Payment of Principal and Interest

The Bonds will be prepared in fully registered form and, when issued, will be registered in the
name of CEDE & Co., as registered Owner of the Bonds and nominee of The Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York ("DTC"). DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.
Individual purchases may be made in book-entry form only in denominations (a) with respect to Current
Interest Bonds, $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple thereof; and (b) with respect to Capital
Appreciation Bonds, $5,000 Maturity Amount or any integral multiple thereof ("Authorized
Denominations"). Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds
purchased. So long as CEDE & Co. is the registered Owner of the Bonds, as nominee of DTC,
references herein to the Owners of the Bonds shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the actual
purchasers (the "Beneficial Owners") of the Bonds.

The Bonds will be dated the date of initial delivery and execution thereof and mature on the
dates set forth on the inside front cover. Interest on the Current Interest Bonds is payable on June 1 and
December 1, commencing December 1, 2004. The Current Interest Bonds will bear interest at the rates
set forth on the inside front cover. The Capital Appreciation Bonds will not pay periodic interest.
Interest on the Capital Appreciation Bonds will accrete in value at the rates set forth on the inside front
cover. So long as Cede & Co. is the registered Owner of the Bonds, the principal of and interest on the
Bonds will be payable by wire transfer by the Trustee to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, which is
expected, in turn, to remit such amounts to DTC Participants (as defined herein) for subsequent
disbursement to the Beneficial Owners. See APPENDIX G - "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM AND
GLOBAL CLEARANCE PROCEDURES" Interest payable on the Bonds will be calculated on the
basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

Registration and Transfer of Bonds

So long as the Bonds are subject to the DTC book-entry system, they will be registered, and may
be transferred, as described in APPENDIX G — "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM AND GLOBAL
CLEARANCE PROCEDURES."

Redemption of Current Interest Bonds

Optional Redemption. The Current Interest Bonds maturing on or before June 1, 2016 will not
be subject to optional redemption.



The Series A-1 Term Bonds maturing on June 1, 2024 (the "2024 Term Bonds") and the Series
A-1 Term Bonds maturing on June 1, 2034 (the "2034 Term Bonds" and collectively with the 2024
Term Bonds, the "Term Bonds") are subject to optional redemption prior to their maturity at the option
of the Authority, in whole or in part (and if in part, pro rata as described below) on any date, at a
redemption price equal to the greater of: (1) 100 percent of the principal amount of the Term Bonds to
be redeemed; or (2) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and
interest on the Term Bonds to be redeemed (exclusive of interest accrued to the date fixed for
redemption) discounted to the date of redemption on a semiannual basis (assuming a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate (defined below) plus 10.0 basis points for the
2024 Term Bonds or plus 12.5 basis points for the 2034 Term Bonds, plus in each case, accrued and
unpaid interest on the Term Bonds being redeemed to the date fixed for redemption.

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means, with respect to any redemption date for a particular
Current Interest Term Bond, the US Treasury security or securities selected by the Independent
Investment Banker which has an actual or interpolated maturity comparable to the remaining average
life of the Current Interest Bond to be redeemed, and that would be utilized in accordance with
customary financial practice in pricing new issues of debt securities of comparable maturity to the
remaining average life of the Current Interest Term Bond to be redeemed.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any redemption date for a particular
Current Interest Bond, (1) the average of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such redemption
date, after excluding the highest and lowest Reference Treasury Deal Quotations, or (2) if the Trustee
obtains fewer than four such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all such quotations.

"Independent Investment Banker" means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers
appointed by the Trustee in consultation with the Authority.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means each of the dealers designated in the Trust
Agreement and their respective successors and three other firms, specified by the Authority from time to
time, that are primary U.S. Government securities dealers in the City of New York (each a "Primary
Treasury Dealer"); provided, however, that if any of them ceases to be a Primary Treasury Dealer, the
Authority will substitute another Primary Treasury Dealer.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury
Dealer and any redemption date for a Current Interest Bond, the average, as determined by the Trustee,
of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of
its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Trustee by such Reference Treasury Dealer at 3:30 p.m.,
New York City time, on the third business date preceding such redemption date.

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any redemption date for a Current Interest Bond,
the rate per annum equal to the semiannual equivalent yield to maturity or interpolated maturity of the
Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming that the Comparable Treasury Issue is purchased on the
redemption date for a price equal to the Comparable Treasury Price.

No Optional Redemption for Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Capital Appreciation Bonds will
not be subject to optional redemption.



Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The 2024 Term Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking
fund redemption on the dates and in the amounts designated below, upon notice pursuant to the Trust
Agreement.

Redemption Date Principal
(June 1) Amount
2017 $ 8,985,000
2018 10,060,000
2019 11,225,000
2020 12,480,000
2021 13,830,000
2022 15,285,000
2023 16,855,000
2024%* 6,760,000
* Maturity.

Giving effect to the mandatory redemption set forth above, the average life of the 2024 Term
Bonds calculated from the date of delivery is 16.589 years.

The 2034 Term Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on the dates and in the
amounts designated below, upon notice pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

Redemption Date Principal
(June 1) Amount
2025 $2,055,000

2026 2,280,000

2027 2,520,000

2028 2,775,000

2029 3,050,000

2030 3,350,000

2031 3,670,000

2032 4,020,000

2033 4,390,000
2034* 4,790,000

* Maturity.

Giving effect to the mandatory redemption set forth above, the average life of the 2034 Term
Bonds calculated from the date of delivery is 26.180 years.

Selection of Bonds for Redemption. Redemption payments on the Current Interest Bonds, being
redeemed in part will be made on a pro rata basis to each holder in whose name such Current Interest
Bonds are registered at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month immediately
preceding the redemption date (DTC so long as the book-entry System with DTC is in effect). "Pro
rata" means, in connection with any mandatory sinking fund redemption or any optional redemption in



part, with respect to the allocation of amounts to be redeemed, the application to such amounts of a
fraction, the numerator of which is equal to the amount of the specific maturity of Current Interest
Bonds held by a holder of such Current Interest Bonds, and the denominator of which is equal to the
total amount of such maturity of Current Interest Bonds, then Outstanding. So long as there is a
securities depository for the Current Interest Bonds, there will be only one registered owner and neither
the Authority nor the Trustee will have responsibility for prorating partial redemptions among beneficial
owners of the Current Interest Bonds.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption shall be mailed by first-class mail by the Trustee,
not less than thirty (30) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date to (i) the respective
Holders of the Current Interest Bonds designated for redemption at their addresses appearing on the
registration books of the Trustee, (ii) the Securities Depositories and (iii) one or more Information
Services. Notice of redemption to the Securities Depositories and the Information Services shall be
given by registered mail or overnight delivery or facsimile transmission. Each notice of redemption
shall state the date of such notice, the redemption price, if any, (including the name and appropriate
address of the Trustee), the CUSIP number (if any) of the maturity or maturities, and, if less than all of
any such maturity is to be redeemed, the distinctive certificate numbers of the Current Interest Bonds of
such maturity, to be redeemed and, in the case of Current Interest Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the
respective portions of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Each such notice shall also state that
on said date there will become due and payable on each of said Current Interest Bonds the redemption
price, if any, thereof and in the case of a Current Interest Bond to be redeemed in part only, the specified
portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, together with interest accrued thereon to the
redemption date, and that from and after such redemption date interest thereon shall cease to accrue, and
shall require that such Current Interest Bonds be then surrendered at the address of the Trustee specified
in the redemption notice. Failure to receive such notice or any defect therein shall not invalidate any of
the proceedings taken in connection with such redemption.

In the event of redemption of Current Interest Bonds (other than sinking fund redemptions), the
Trustee shall mail a notice of redemption upon receipt of a Written Request of the Authority but only
after the Authority shall file a Certificate of the Authority with the Trustee that on or before the date set
for redemption, the Authority shall have deposited with or otherwise made available to the Trustee for
deposit in the Principal Account the money required for payment of the redemption price, including
accrued interest, of all Current Interest Bonds then to be called for redemption (or the Trustee
determines that money will be deposited with or otherwise made available to it in sufficient time for
such purpose), together with the estimated expense of giving such notice.

If notice of redemption has been duly given as aforesaid and money for the payment of the
redemption price of the Current Interest Bonds called for redemption is held by the Trustee, then on the
redemption date designated in such notice Current Interest Bonds so called for redemption shall become
due and payable, and from and after the date so designated interest on such Current Interest Bonds shall
cease to accrue, and the Holders of such Current Interest Bonds shall have no rights in respect thereof
except to receive payment of the redemption price thereof.



ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF BOND PROCEEDS

The table below sets forth the estimated sources and uses of the proceeds of the Bonds and other
amounts.

Series A-1 Series A-2 Total
Sources
Principal Amount $178.555,000.00 $18,529,194.85  $197,084.194.85
Total Sources 178,555,000.00 18,529,194.85  $197,084,194.85
Uses
Deposit to Proceeds Fund $175,463,419.00 $17,975,874.00  $193,439,293.00
Costs of Issuance'” 3,091.581.00 553,320.85 3,644.901.85
Total Uses $178.,555,000.00 $18,529,194.85  $197,084,194.85

) Includes, among other things, Underwriters' discount and Insurance Policy premium.
SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT
General

Each Obligation of a Local Agency will be purchased with proceeds of the Bonds and deposited
with the Trustee, pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The Obligations are unconditional obligations of the
Local Agencies payable from legally available funds. The Obligations are not voter-approved debt
backed by the taxing power of the Local Agencies and the full faith and credit of the Local Agencies are
not pledged to the repayment of the Obligations. The Local Agencies have other obligations payable
from their General Funds. The Local Agency Trust Agreements impose no limits on the amount of
General Fund obligations that the Local Agencies may incur. See Appendix A hereto for a listing of
each Local Agency, the estimated principal amount of the Obligations and the allocation of each
Obligation with respect to the Bonds.

Under the Trust Agreement, the Obligations and all right, title and interest of the Authority
therein and to all payments thereon, are irrevocably assigned and pledged and transferred to the Trustee
for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds and the payments on the Obligations shall be used for the
punctual payment of the interest on and principal of the Bonds and the Obligations shall not be used for
any other purpose while any of the Bonds remain Outstanding. This assignment, transfer and pledge
shall constitute a first lien on the principal and interest payments of and all other rights under the
Obligations for the foregoing purpose in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement.

All principal and interest payments on the Obligations shall be paid directly by each Local
Agency Trustee to the Trustee. All principal and interest payments on the Obligations received by the
Trustee shall be held in trust by the Trustee under the terms of the Trust Agreement and shall be
deposited by it, as and when received, in the Bond Fund, and all money in such fund shall be held in
trust by the Trustee for the benefit and security of the Owners. If the Trustee receives Obligation
repayments from a Local Agency Trustee which, together with other amounts on deposit in the Bond
Fund allocable to such Local Agency, are in excess of the amounts required to pay the principal of and
interest due on such Obligation, such excess amounts shall remain in the Bond Fund, and shall be
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transferred to such Local Agency following payment of the amount of Bonds corresponding to such
Obligation.

Moneys received by the Trustee attributable to a Local Agency shall not be used in any
manner (directly or indirectly) to make up any deficiency in repayment of any other Local
Agency's Obligation.

Flow of Funds under the Trust Agreement

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Trustee shall deposit the money contained in the Bond
Fund at the following respective times in the following respective accounts in the manner and priority
provided in the Trust Agreement, and the money in each of such funds shall be disbursed only for the
purposes and uses authorized in the Trust Agreement:

(a) Interest Account. The Trustee, on the Interest Payment Date, shall
deposit in the Interest Account that amount of money representing the interest due
and payable on the Bonds on such date; and such money shall be used by the
Trustee solely for the purpose of paying interest on the Bonds on such date.

(b) Principal Account. The Trustee, on the Principal Payment Date, shall
deposit in the Principal Account that amount of money representing the principal
becoming due and payable on the Bonds on such Principal Payment Date. All
moneys in the Principal Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee
solely for the purpose of paying the principal of the Bonds on the Principal
Payment Date.

Moneys held in the Bond Fund, the Principal Account or the Interest Account on each Interest
Payment Date after the payment by the Trustee of all of the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall
be (1) returned by the Trustee to each Local Agency (other than a Local Agency which is in default in
the payment of the principal of and interest on its Obligation) by check in an amount equal to the
proportion of the amount initially received from each Local Agency and deposited in the Bond Fund
over all amounts received from all Local Agencies and deposited in the Bond Fund multiplied by the
remaining balance in the Bond Fund, or (i1) applied by the Trustee as otherwise directed by the
Authority.

Flow of Funds under the Local Agency Trust Agreements

The Local Agency Trust Agreements each provide that in order to meet each Local Agency's
obligations, each Local Agency shall deposit or cause to be deposited with the Local Agency Trustee on
or before August 1 of each Fiscal Year (or such other date as provided in a Supplemental Local Agency
Trust Agreement) the amount which, together with moneys transferred pursuant to the related Local
Agency Trust Agreement, is sufficient to pay such Local Agency's debt service obligations on the
Obligations payable during such Fiscal Year.

All amounts payable by each Local Agency will be promptly deposited by the Local Agency
Trustee upon receipt thereof in a special fund designated as the "Local Agency Bond Fund".



Interest Account. On or before each Interest Payment Date, the Local Agency Trustee shall set
aside from the Bond Fund and deposit in the Interest Account that amount of money which is equal to
the amount of interest becoming due and payable on all Outstanding Obligations on such Interest
Payment Date.

No deposit need be made in the Interest Account if the amount contained therein is at least equal
to the aggregate amount of interest becoming due and payable on all Outstanding Obligations on such
Interest Payment Date.

All money in the Interest Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local Agency Trustee for
the purpose of paying the interest on the Obligations as it shall become due and payable (including
accrued interest on any Obligations purchased or redeemed prior to maturity).

Principal Account. On or before each Principal Payment Date, the Local Agency Trustee shall
set aside from the Local Agency Bond Fund and deposit in the Principal Account an amount of money
equal to the amount of all sinking fund payments required to be made on such Principal Payment Date
into the respective sinking fund accounts for all Outstanding Term Obligations and the principal amount
or Accreted Value of all Outstanding Serial Obligations maturing on such Principal Payment Date.

No deposit need be made in the Principal Account if the amount contained therein is at least
equal to the aggregate amount of the principal or Accreted Value of all Outstanding Serial Obligations
maturing by their terms on such Principal Payment Date plus the aggregate amount of all sinking fund
payments required to be made on such Principal Payment Date for all Outstanding Term Obligations.

The Local Agency Trustee shall establish and maintain within the Principal Account a separate
subaccount for the Term Obligations of each series and maturity, designated as the "Sinking Account"
(the "Sinking Account"), inserting therein the series and maturity (if more than one such account is
established for such series) designation of such Obligations. With respect to each Sinking Account, on
each mandatory sinking account payment date established for such Sinking Account, the Local Agency
Trustee shall apply the mandatory sinking account payment required on that date to the redemption (or
payment at maturity, as the case may be) of Term Obligations of the series and maturity for which such
Sinking Account was established, upon the notice and in the manner provided in the Local Agency Trust
Agreement; provided that, at any time prior to giving such notice of such redemption, the Local Agency
Trustee may upon the Written Request of the related Local Agency, apply moneys in such Sinking
Account to the purchase for cancellation of Term Obligations of such series and maturity at public or
private sale, as and when and at such prices (including brokerage and other charges, but excluding
accrued interest, which is payable from the Interest Account), as may be directed by the Local Agency,
except that the purchase price (excluding accrued interest) shall not exceed the redemption price that
would be payable for such Obligations upon redemption by application of such Mandatory Sinking
Account Payment. If, during the twelve-month period immediately preceding said mandatory sinking
account payment date, the Local Agency Trustee has purchased Term Obligations of such series and
maturity with moneys in such Sinking Account, such Obligations so purchased shall be applied, to the
extent of the full principal amount to reduce said mandatory sinking account payment.

All money in the Principal Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local Agency Trustee
solely for the purpose of paying the principal or Accreted Value of the Obligations, as applicable, as
they shall become due and payable, whether at maturity or redemption, except that any money in any



sinking fund account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local Agency Trustee only to purchase or to
redeem or to pay Term Obligations for which such sinking fund account was created.

Surplus Account. On the Business Day following the last Interest Payment Date of each Fiscal
Year, or on such other date as provided in a Supplemental Local Agency Trust Agreement, any moneys
remaining in the Bond Fund shall be deposited by the Local Agency Trustee in the Surplus Account. So
long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, moneys deposited in the Surplus Account
shall be transferred by the Local Agency Trustee to or upon the order of the Local Agency, as specified
in a Written Request of the Local Agency.

Issuance of Additional Bonds under the Local Agency Trust Agreements

Under the Local Agency Trust Agreements, each Local Agency may at any time issue Additional
Bonds on a parity with the Obligations, but only subject to the following conditions:

(a) The Local Agency shall be in compliance with all agreements and covenants
contained in the Local Agency Trust Agreement.

(b) The issuance of such Additional Obligations shall have been authorized pursuant to
the Act and shall have been provided for by a Supplemental Local Agency Trust Agreement which shall
specify the following:

(1) The purpose for which such Additional Obligations are to be issued; provided
that such Additional Obligations shall be applied solely for (i) the purpose of satisfying any
obligation of the Local Agency to make payments to PERS relating to pension benefits accruing
to PERS's members, and/or for payment of all costs incidental to or connected with the issuance
of Additional Obligations for such purpose, and/or (ii) the purpose of refunding any Obligations
then Outstanding, including payment of all costs incidental to or connected with such refunding;

(2) Whether such Obligations are current interest fixed rate bonds, listed
securities, index bonds, auction rate securities, variable rate bonds, tender option bonds, capital
appreciation bonds or bonds bearing interest at such other interest rate modes as may be set forth
in a Supplemental Local Agency Trust Agreement;

(3) The authorized principal amount and designation of such Additional
Obligations;

(4) The date and the maturity dates of and the sinking fund payment dates, if any,
for such Additional Obligations;

(5) The interest payment dates for such Additional Obligations;

(6) The denomination or denominations of and method of numbering such
Additional Obligations;

(7) The redemption premiums, if any, and the redemption terms, if any, for such
Additional Obligations;
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(8) The amount, if any, to be deposited from the proceeds of sale of such
Additional Obligations in the Interest Account hereinafter referred to; and

(9) Such other provisions (including the requirements of a book-entry bond
registration system, if any) as are necessary or appropriate and not inconsistent herewith.

At any time after the sale of any Additional Obligations in accordance with the Act, the
Local Agency shall execute such Additional Obligations for issuance pursuant to the Local Agency
Trust Agreement and shall deliver them to the Local Agency Trustee, and thereupon such Additional
Obligations shall be delivered by the Local Agency Trustee to the purchaser thereof upon the Written
Request of the Local Agency, but only upon receipt by the Local Agency Trustee of the following
documents or money or securities, all of such documents dated or certified, as the case may be, as of the
date of delivery of such Additional Obligations by the Local Agency Trustee:

(a) An executed copy of the Supplemental Local Agency Trust Agreement authorizing
the issuance of such Additional Obligations;

(b) A Written Request of the Local Agency as to the delivery of such Additional
Obligations;

(c) An Opinion of Counsel to the effect that (1) the Local Agency has executed and
delivered the Supplemental Local Agency Trust Agreement, and the Supplemental Local Agency Trust
Agreement is valid and binding upon the Local Agency and (2) such Additional Obligations are valid
and binding obligations of the Local Agency;

(d) A Certificate of the Local Agency stating that all requirements of the provisions
related to Additional Obligations with the Local Agency Trust Agreement have been complied with and
containing any other such statements as may be reasonably necessary to show compliance with the
conditions for the issuance of such Additional Obligations contained in the related Local Agency Trust
Agreement; and

(e) Such further documents, money or securities as are required by the provisions of the
Supplemental Local Agency Trust Agreement providing for the issuance of such Additional Obligations.

Other Obligations of the Local Agencies

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds and on July 1, 2004, Butte County and Kings
County will be issuing other obligations that are payable from their respective general fund (the "Other
Obligations"). Such Other Obligations are being issued by Butte County in the total aggregate principal
amount of approximately $28.2 million and by Kings County in the total aggregate principal amount of
approximately $6.9 million. The Other Obligations are being privately placed with a single purchaser.
In addition, all of the Local Agencies have other obligations payable from their respective general funds.
See APPENDIX D — "FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE LOCAL AGENCIES."

11



THE INSURANCE POLICY AND THE INSURER
Payment Pursuant to Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy

Ambac Assurance has made a commitment to issue a financial guaranty insurance policy (the
"Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy") relating to the Bonds effective as of the date of issuance of the
Bonds. Under the terms of the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, Ambac Assurance will pay to The
Bank of New York, in New York, New York or any successor thereto (the "Insurance Trustee") that
portion of the principal of and interest on the Bonds which shall become Due for Payment but shall be
unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by the Obligor (as such terms are defined in the Financial Guaranty
Insurance Policy). Ambac Assurance will make such payments to the Insurance Trustee on the later of
the date on which such principal and interest becomes Due for Payment or within one business day
following the date on which Ambac Assurance shall have received notice of Nonpayment from the
Trustee. The insurance will extend for the term of the Bonds and, once issued, cannot be canceled by
Ambac Assurance.

The Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy will insure payment only on stated maturity dates and
on mandatory sinking fund installment dates, in the case of principal, and on stated dates for payment, in
the case of interest. If the Bonds become subject to mandatory redemption and insufficient funds are
available for redemption of all outstanding Bonds, Ambac Assurance will remain obligated to pay
principal of and interest on outstanding Bonds on the originally scheduled interest and principal payment
dates including mandatory sinking fund redemption dates. In the event of any acceleration of the
principal of the Bonds, the insured payments will be made at such times and in such amounts as would
have been made had there not been an acceleration.

In the event the Trustee has notice that any payment of principal of or interest on a Bond which
has become Due for Payment and which is made to a Holder by or on behalf of the Obligor has been
deemed a preferential transfer and theretofore recovered from its registered owner pursuant to the United
States Bankruptcy Code in accordance with a final, nonappealable order of a court of competent
jurisdiction, such registered owner will be entitled to payment from Ambac Assurance to the extent of
such recovery if sufficient funds are not otherwise available.

The Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy does not insure any risk other than Nonpayment, as
defined in the Policy. Specifically, the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy does not cover:

1. payment on acceleration, as a result of a call for redemption (other than mandatory
sinking fund redemption) or as a result of any other advancement of maturity.

2. payment of any redemption, prepayment or acceleration premium.

3. nonpayment of principal or interest caused by the insolvency or negligence of any
Trustee, Trustee, Paying Agent or Bond Registrar, if any.

If it becomes necessary to call upon the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy, payment of
principal requires surrender of Bonds to the Insurance Trustee together with an appropriate instrument of
assignment so as to permit ownership of such Bonds to be registered in the name of Ambac Assurance to
the extent of the payment under the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy. Payment of interest pursuant
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to the Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy requires proof of Holder entitlement to interest payments and
an appropriate assignment of the Holder's right to payment to Ambac Assurance.

Upon payment of the insurance benefits, Ambac Assurance will become the owner of the Bond,
appurtenant coupon, if any, or right to payment of principal or interest on such Bond and will be fully
subrogated to the surrendering Holder's rights to payment.

In the event that Ambac Assurance were to become insolvent, any claims arising under the
Policy would be excluded from coverage by the California Insurance Guaranty Association, established
pursuant to the laws of the State of California.

Ambac Assurance Corporation

Ambac Assurance Corporation ("Ambac Assurance") is a Wisconsin-domiciled stock insurance
corporation regulated by the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Wisconsin and
licensed to do business in 50 states, the District of Columbia, the Territory of Guam, the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands, with admitted assets of approximately $7,670,000,000
(unaudited) and statutory capital of approximately $4,683,000,000 (unaudited) as of March 31, 2004.
Statutory capital consists of Ambac Assurance's policyholders' surplus and statutory contingency
reserve. Standard & Poor's Credit Markets Services, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies,
Moody's Investors Service and Fitch Ratings have each assigned a triple-A financial strength rating to
Ambac Assurance.

Ambac Assurance has obtained a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service to the effect that the
insuring of a bond by Ambac Assurance will not affect the treatment for federal income tax purposes of
interest on such bond and that insurance proceeds representing maturing interest paid by Ambac
Assurance under policy provisions substantially identical to those contained in its financial guaranty
insurance policy shall be treated for federal income tax purposes in the same manner as if such payments
were made by the Obligor of the Bonds.

Ambac Assurance makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing
in the Bonds and makes no representation regarding, nor has it participated in the preparation of, the
Official Statement other than the information supplied by Ambac Assurance and presented under the
heading "BOND INSURANCE".

Available Information

The parent company of Ambac Assurance, Ambac Financial Group, Inc. (the "Company"), is
subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and in accordance therewith files reports, proxy statements and other information with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). These reports, proxy statements and other
information can be read and copied at the SEC's public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.-W.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public
reference room. The SEC maintains an internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy
and information statements and other information regarding companies that file electronically with the
SEC, including the Company . These reports, proxy statements and other information can also be read
at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (the "NYSE"), 20 Broad Street, New York, New
York 10005.
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Copies of Ambac Assurance's financial statements prepared in accordance with statutory
accounting standards are available from Ambac Assurance. The address of Ambac Assurance's
administrative offices and its telephone number are One State Street Plaza, 19th Floor, New York, New
York 10004 and (212) 668-0340.

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference

The following documents filed by the Company with the SEC (File No. 1-10777) are
incorporated by reference in this Official Statement:

1. The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2003 and filed on March 15, 2004;

2. The Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 21, 2004 and filed on April 22,
2004; and

3. The Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarterly period ended
March 31, 2004 and filed on May 10, 2004.

All documents subsequently filed by the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange
Act after the date of this Official Statement will be available for inspection in the same manner as
described above in "Available Information".

RISK FACTORS

In evaluating a purchase of the Bonds, potential investors should consider the following factors,
together with all other information in this Official Statement.

Limited Obligations of the Authority

The Bonds are a limited obligation of the Authority, payable solely from and secured by a pledge
and assignment of, the pension obligation bonds issued by certain Local Agencies and payments with
respect thereto, to the extent provided in the Trust Agreement, subject to the provisions of the Trust
Agreement permitting the disbursement thereof for or to the purposes and on the conditions and terms
set forth therein. The Bonds are not a lien or charge upon any funds or property of the Authority (except
to the extent of the aforementioned pledge and assignment). The Bonds are not a debt of any Local
Agency or any member of the Authority and no such Local Agency or member is liable in any manner
for the payment thereof.

Bankruptcy

The filing of bankruptcy by the Authority or one or more of the Local Agencies could delay or
impair the payment of the Bonds. Further, the opinion of Bond Counsel as to the enforceability of the
Bonds is expressly qualified by the declaration of bankruptcy.
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No Joint Obligation

The obligation of a Local Agency to make payments on or in respect to its Obligation is a several
and not a joint obligation and is strictly limited to such Local Agency's repayment obligation under its
Local Agency Trust Agreement and its Obligation.

Risk of State or Local Legislation

The Local Agencies rely on a number of revenue sources that could be reduced or eliminated by
State or local legislation, including, among others, sales and use taxes, license and permit fees, fines and
penalties, and motor vehicle license fees. There can be no assurance that the State or local government
will not adopt legislation to reduce or eliminate one or more of these revenue sources. See "State
Budget Finances" below.

In addition, a number of statutes and constitutional amendments have been adopted as measures
that qualified for the ballot through California's initiative process as described under
"CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY LIMITATIONS ON TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS."
There can be no assurance that other initiative measures will not be adopted affecting the revenues of the
Local Agencies.

State Budget Finances

The following information concerning the State of California budgets has been obtained from
publicly available information that the Local Agencies believe to be reliable; however, the Local
Agencies take no responsibility as to the accuracy or completeness thereof and have not independently
verified such information.

State Budget for Fiscal Year 2003-04. On August 2, 2003, then-Governor Davis signed the
2003-04 Budget Act (the "2003-04 Budget Act") into law. The 2003-04 Budget Act projected that State
General Fund (the "State General Fund") revenues would increase from $70.9 billion for Fiscal Year
2002-03, excluding the proceeds of any fiscal recovery bonds, to $72.8 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04,
an increase of 2.8 percent. State General Fund expenditures were projected to decrease from $78.1
billion in Fiscal Year 2002-03 to $70.8 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04, or 10 percent. A significant
portion of this 10 percent decrease was attributable to the Vehicle License Fee ("VLF") increase which
eliminated the need for the State to backfill local governments, new federal funds, borrowings to cover
the State's 2003-04 pension obligations, and the Medi-Cal accounting shift from an accrual to a cash
basis.

The 2003-04 Budget Act contained various reductions in local revenues provided by the State,
including a reduction in VLF revenues of approximately $825 million during the period between the
elimination of the State's VLF backfill and the increase in the VLF rate on October 1, 2003. The
2003-04 Budget Act assumed that the VLF rate would increase from the rate of 0.65 percent to
2.0 percent beginning October 1, 2003. During the approximately 90 day period between the date when
the State backfill ended on July 1, 2003, and the date when the VLF rate increased, local governments
would only receive revenues based on the 0.65 percent VLF rate. The 2003-04 Budget Act and related
legislation required the State to repay the $825 million VLF "gap" loss to local governments no later
than August 15, 2006. Governor Schwarzenegger subsequently rescinded the VLF rate increase
retroactive to October 1, 2003. See "Governor's Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05" below.
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The 2003-04 Budget Act identified a budget shortfall of $38.2 billion between expenditures and
revenues and attempted to close this shortfall through a combination of program savings, borrowing,
new revenues, funding shifts, and deferrals. Program savings were primarily achieved in the 2003-04
Budget Act through significant reductions in spending for certain programs. Some reductions in
program spending were to be offset by higher fees. The year-end reserve was projected to be
approximately $2 billion and reflected the issuance of $10.7 billion in fiscal recovery bonds to eliminate
the Fiscal Year 2002-03 deficit and the issuance of a second series of tobacco securitization bonds.
Governor Schwarzenegger subsequently proposed, and the State Legislature approved, placing a bond
measure on the March 2, 2004 ballot authorizing the issuance of up to $15 billion of economic recovery
bonds to replace the fiscal recovery bonds. The voters approved this measure on March 2, 2004. See
"Governor's Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05" below.

Certain of the features of 2003-04 Budget Act affecting counties included the following:

1. The Senate budget package required redevelopment agencies to shift $250 million of
redevelopment agency funds to the Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (the "ERAF") in Fiscal
Year 2003-04. The Assembly version of the budget also required such a one-time shift to the ERAF but
set the amount at $135 million.

2. The 2003-04 Budget Act repealed six mandates and suspended local government
requirements to implement 37 other mandates in Fiscal Year 2003-04. The 2003-04 Budget Act
deferred (to an unspecified date) State funding to reimburse local agencies for: (1) implementing 40
active mandates in Fiscal Year 2003-04 (about $200 million) and (2) unpaid prior-year mandate claims
(about $700 million).

3. The 2003-04 Budget Act reduced funding for the Citizens' Option for Public Safety and
Juvenile Crime Prevention Grants program by $32.6 million (leaving $200 million to be divided equally
between the two programs).

4. The Senate budget package eliminated the $38 million continuous appropriation for local
government booking fees and county authority to charge local agencies fees for booking people into
county jail. The Assembly budget package, in contrast, maintained the continuous appropriation and
county fee authority.

Governor's Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05. On January 9, 2004, Governor
Schwarzenegger (the "Governor") released his proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05 (the
"Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget"). The Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget projects the State
General Fund revenues for Fiscal Year 2004-05 to be $76.4 billion, an increase over the current fiscal
year of 2.4 percent, and State General Fund expenditures to be $76.1 billion, a decrease over the current
fiscal year of 2.4 percent.

The revenue increases forecasted by the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget include significant
gains in the personal income tax, sales tax and corporation tax. Personal income tax revenues are
forecasted to be $35.1 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and $38 billion in Fiscal Year 2004-05. This
forecast assumes that moderate growth will resume in Fiscal Year 2003-04. Sales and use tax revenue is
forecasted at $23.7 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and $25 billion in Fiscal Year 2004-05. This forecast
assumes a 2.3 percent increase in taxable sales for Fiscal Year 2003-04 and that taxable sales increase at
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a faster rate in Fiscal Year 2004-05 and Fiscal Year 2005-06 due to the improving economy, increasing
by 5.8 percent and 5.4 percent, respectively. Corporate tax revenues are expected to total approximately
$7.5 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and approximately $7.6 billion in 2004-05. The Governor's 2004-05
Proposed Budget also forecasts $500 million in additional revenue from a 25 percent share of tribal
gaming operations annual income.

Certain of the features of the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget affecting counties include the
following:

1. The Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget includes provisions for full reimbursement to
local governments, including counties, for the VLF offset program in Fiscal Year 2004-05, resulting in
payments estimated at $4.1 billion in such fiscal year.

2. The Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget includes a $1.3 billion shift of local property
taxes that would have been payable to certain local governments, including counties, to the ERAF,
resulting in a decrease in payments of such taxes to such local governments of approximately 10
percent.

3. The Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget includes a provision to reduce and, by October
2004, eliminate federal Temporary Assistance to Needy Families ("TANF") funds used to support
counties' juvenile probation services, including prevention, intervention, supervision, treatment, and
incarceration programs for at-risk youth and juvenile offenders.

4. The Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget includes a provision to eliminate State
reimbursement of jail booking fees that would have been payable to counties.

5. The Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget proposes major reform in the health and
human services area, including, with respect to the Medi-Cal program, realigning eligibility standards,
requiring co-payments, implementing a tiered benefit structure and conforming basic optional benefits to
those offered under private plans, and with respect to the CalWORKSs program, increasing work
incentives and reducing services and assistance payments thereunder. The Governor's 2004-05
Proposed Budget proposes budgeting $31.2 billion for the Medi-Cal program in Fiscal Year 2004-05.
The State General Fund increase of 16.2 percent reflects the costs of using one-time savings in Fiscal
Year 2003-04 because of a change in the Medi-Cal program from accrual accounting to cash accounting
and Federal Medical Assistance Program amounts received in Fiscal Year 2003-04.

6. The Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget assumes implementation of the 2003-04 Mid-
Year Spending Reduction Proposals to achieve State General Fund savings of $206.9 million in Fiscal
Year 2003-04 and $479.4 million in Fiscal Year 2004-05.

The Governor's Proposed 2004-05 Budget identifies an existing deficit of more than $22 billion,
which includes an accumulated deficit through Fiscal Year 2002-03 of $9.3 billion and a pre-existing
operating deficit in Fiscal Year 2003-04 of $3.0 billion. The Governor's Proposed 2004-05 Budget
assumes the issuance of up to $15 billion in economic recovery bonds (the "Economic Recovery
Bonds") to finance the State General Fund reserve and other State obligations incurred prior to June 30,
2004. The voters approved issuance of the Economic Recovery Bonds on March 2, 2004. In connection
therewith, the Governor's Proposed 2004-05 Budget also includes a provision for the creation of a deficit
recovery fund to finance what would otherwise be the State General Fund's costs of the existing debt.
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The amount of Economic Recovery Bond proceeds received but not used to finance the accumulated
budget deficit through Fiscal Year 2002-03 will be transferred into this new fund. The new fund is to be
used in Fiscal Year 2004-05 to finance outstanding State obligations due in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and
Fiscal Year 2004-05. The Economic Recovery Bonds are general obligations of the State and secured
by a pledge of revenues available under the Triple Flip. The "Triple Flip" is designed to trade 0.5% of
the local Bradley-Burns sales tax for an equal share of property taxes from the ERAF. The legislation
creating the Triple Flip becomes operative on July 1, 2004. In general, the legislation provides for the
Triple Flip to sunset when the Economic Recovery Bonds are no longer outstanding.

Governor's May Revision to 2004-05 Proposed State Budget. On May 13, 2004, the Governor
released the May Revision to the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget (the "May Revision"). The May
Revision assumes an approximate $3.6 billion increase in revenues from tax shelter amnesty proceeds
($1.3 billion), accounting changes resulting in accrual of additional revenues ($1 billion) and increases
in revenue forecasts for fiscal years 2003-04 and 2004-05 ($1.3 billion). The net effect is an increase in
the reserve at the end of fiscal year 2004-05, from the $635 million projected in the Governor's 2004-05
Proposed Budget to the $998 million projected in the May Revision. However, pressures on the General
Fund have also increased primarily due to caseload increases in certain State programs, an increase in
the Proposition 98 guarantee, and court cases, resulting in a continuing structural budget problem that
will require additional ongoing budget solutions.

The May Revision projects the State General Fund revenues for Fiscal Year 2004-05 to be
approximately $76.7 billion, an increase over the current fiscal year of 2.8 percent and State General
Fund expenditures to be approximately $77.6 billion, a decrease over the current fiscal year of 0.1
percent.

Personal income tax revenue forecasts have increased by $949 million in Fiscal Year 2003-04
from the $35.1 billion forecast in the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget and increased by $559
million in Fiscal Year 2004-05 from the $38 billion forecast in the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed
Budget. This forecast is due, in part, to the stock market recovery that began in mid-2003. Sales and
use tax revenue forecasts are reduced by $105 million in Fiscal Year 2003-04 from the $23.7 billion
forecast in the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget and by $417 million in Fiscal Year 2004-05 from
the $25 billion forecasted in the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget. The $417 million reduction
forecasted is due, in part, to an increased transfer to the Public Transportation Account and a reduced
expectation of taxable sales growth in Fiscal Years 2004-05 and 2005-06 than assumed in the
Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget. Corporate tax revenues are expected to decrease by $173 million
in Fiscal Year 2003-04 from the $7.5 billion forecasted in the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget and
increase by $358 million in Fiscal Year 2004-05 from the $7.6 billion forecasted in the Governor's 2004-
05 Proposed Budget.

The Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget identified an operating deficit of $14 billion and a
projected year-end deficit of over $26 billion. On March 2, 2004, California voters approved
Proposition 57, a bond act authorizing issuance of up to $15 billion of Economic Recovery Bonds to
fund the accumulated State budget deficit. To eliminate the deficit and create a small reserve, the
Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget proposed $12.3 billion in proceeds from Economic Recovery
Bonds and $14.6 billion in various other solutions.

Certain of the features of the May Revision include the following:
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1. The estimated General Fund contribution to the Proposition 98 guarantee for schools
Fiscal Year 2004-05 is approximately $4.3 billion higher than the $29.7 billion estimated in the
Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget.

2. Annual fixed increases in base State General Fund support of the University of California
and the California State University systems in the amount of 3% in Fiscal Years 2005-06 and 2006-07,
increasing to 4% in Fiscal Years 2007-08, and then to 5% in Fiscal Years 2008-09 through 2010-11.

3. Total Medi-Cal expenditures of $28.7 billion, a decrease of $491 million from the
Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget. General Fund expenditures for Medi-Cal have increased by
$181.9 million, or 2 percent. The estimate of the number of persons eligible for Medi-Cal in Fiscal Year
2003-04 is expected to decrease by 59,000 to 6,561,000, representing a decrease of 0.9% below the level
projected in the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget. The net General Fund increase includes the
following adjustments: $282.2 million increase due to erosions of the Mid-Year Spending Reduction
Proposals as a result of caseload adjustments, legislative delays in enacting certain proposals, legal
challenges, and the Administration's rescission of certain proposals; $20.3 million decrease in fiscal
intermediary expenditures; and $19.9 million decrease in county administration expenditures.

4. An increase of $1.7 million to provide increased oversight and policy direction to
departments under supervision of the Youth and Adult Correctional Agency. Funding for this proposal
is provided through corresponding reductions to the California Department of Corrections ($1.5 million)
and the California Department of the Youth Authority ($200,000).

The Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05 (the "Final Budget") must be implemented by the
adoption of appropriations bills. It cannot be predicted how these future actions may affect the spending
plan represented by the Final Budget bill adopted by the Legislature and signed by the Governor.
Further, it cannot be predicted what actions will be taken in the future by the State Legislature and the
Governor to deal with changing State revenues and expenditures, what the Final Budget will include or
the affect of national and state economic conditions on future State budgets.

LAO Report. On May 17, 2004, the State's Legislative Analyst's Office (the "LAO") released its
analysis report of the May Revision (the "LAO Report"), which is available on the LAO website at
www.lao.ca.gov. Information on such website is not incorporated herein by reference.

The LAO Report states that the State's short-term fiscal outlook has improved significantly since
the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget as a result of an improved revenue outlook and the one-time
receipt of certain funds. Specifically, the LAO Report notes that the May Revision relies on the State's
receipt of approximately $3.6 billion in new resources comprised of (i) approximately $1.3 billion
associated with greater-than-expected receipts from a previously enacted tax shelter amnesty program,
(ii) approximately $1.3 billion related to an increase in the administration's forecast of tax collections in
2003-04 and 2004-05 combined and (iii) $1 billion from an accounting adjustment, which results in the
accrual of tax revenues attributable to prior-year liabilities. However, the LAO Report cautions that
while this accounting adjustment improves the State's budget condition, there is no actual effect on cash
received by the State. The LAO Report also notes that the May Revision relies on the State's receipt of
approximately $5 billion in one-time receipt of funds comprised of (i) the use of $2 billion in
Proposition 57 bond proceeds, (ii) $1 billion in pension obligation bond proceeds, (iii) $1.2 billion
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related to the loan of Proposition 42 funds from transportation special funds and (iv) a variety of one-
time savings from delayed Medi-Cal checkwrites, special fund loans, and other funding shifts.

However, the LAO Report also concludes that the State's long-term fiscal outlook relative to the
Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget has worsened and that the State continues to have a structural
budget problem. The LAO Report contributes this negative outlook to the May Revision's reliance on
less ongoing savings than the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget and the May Revision's addition of
future spending commitments of the State.

The LAO Report agrees with the May Revision's assumption that growth in employment and
personal income in the State will be more restrained than forecasted in the Governor's 2004-05 Proposed
Budget. However, the LAO Report projects that sales taxes will be stronger and corporation taxes will
be weaker than assumed in the May Revision.

Continuing State Budget Shortfall. The Local Agencies cannot predict whether the State will
continue to encounter budgetary problems in this or in any future fiscal years, and if it were to do so, it
is unknown what measures would be taken by the State to balance its budget, as required by law.
Accordingly, the Local Agencies cannot predict the final outcome of future State budget negotiations,
the impact that such budgets will have on its finances and operations or what actions will be taken in the
future by the State Legislature and Governor to deal with changing State revenues and expenditures.
Current and future State budgets will be affected by national and State economic conditions and other
factors, including the current economic downturn, over which the Local Agencies have no control.

The Local Government Agreement

The May Revision relies on a proposed "agreement" with representatives from local government
(the "Local Government Agreement"). The Local Government Agreement replaces the proposal in the
Governor's 2004-05 Proposed Budget to permanently shift $1.3 billon in local property taxes from
counties cities, special districts and redevelopment agencies to the Education Revenue Augmentation
Fund ("ERAF"). The proposed $1.3 billion shift will be replaced by a Vehicle License Fee
("VLF")/property tax swap. Specifically, the Local Government Agreement reduces the VLF rate from
2 percent to 0.65 percent. This reduction in VLF to cities and counties will be replaced by an equivalent
increase in the amount of property tax received by the cities and counties. However, in Fiscal Years
2004-05 and 2005-06, the State will not provide the full amount of these property taxes to the cities and
counties. Under the Local Government Agreement, the State will retain $700 million, comprised of
$350 million from counties and $350 million from cities in Fiscal Years 2004-05 and 2005-06.

Further, in Fiscal Years 2004-05 and 2005-06, the Local Government Agreement provides that
special districts will contribute $350 million in property taxes and redevelopment agencies will
contribute $250 million in property tax revenues.

The counties' $350 million reduction will be allocated based on each county's proportional share
of non-realignment VLF. The cities' allocation consists of an amount based one-third on sales tax
revenues, one-third on property tax revenues, and one-third on VLF revenues. City reductions are
limited to no more than 4 percent of their general-purpose revenues and no less than 2 percent of their
general-purpose revenues. Redevelopment agencies' property tax reductions will be allocated in a
manner similar to that contained in last year's budget. The special districts' $350 million reduction will
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based upon the respective special district's allocation of property taxes. Enterprise special districts will
collectively contribute $200 million and non-enterprise special districts will collectively contribute $150
million. For enterprise special districts, the reduction will equate to 40% of each special district's net
allocation of property taxes. For non-enterprise special districts, the reduction will equate to 25% of
each special district's net allocation of property taxes. Certain public safety districts, community
services districts and healthcare districts will also be affected but not on as large a scale. These special
districts will each contribute 3% of their net property tax allocation if such allocation exceeds $1
million. These special districts with a property tax allocation of $1 million or less will be exempt from
the reduction. Further, the Local Government Agreement provides that fire districts will be exempt
from contributing property taxes.

The table below shows the estimated net impact of the proposed VLF/property tax swap to Fiscal
Year 2004-05 revenues for each Local Agency.

Fiscal Year 2004-05
Estimated Net Impact of Proposed

VLF/Property Tax Swap"

Counties

Butte County $1,968,640
Kings County 1,409,501
Cities

City of Daly City 1,069,890

City of Merced 666,764

City of Millbrae 266,248

City of Monterey Park 545,157

City of Riverside 2,713,954

' Source: League of California Cities, State General Fund: City Contributions Breakdown, dated as of May
27,2004. For more information see http://www.californiacityfinance.com. Information on such website is
not incorporated herein by reference.

If VLF revenues are significantly reduced or eliminated without a corresponding increase in
other offsetting revenues to cities and counties, loss of the VLF revenue will have a significant adverse
impact on the revenues available to the Local Agencies. See Appendix B for more information.

Realignment

In 1991, the State shifted responsibility for a number of mental health, social services, and health
programs to counties. This shift is known as "Realignment" and resulted in the creation of two
dedicated funding streams to pay for the services shifted by Realignment. The first is a ¥2 cent sales tax
and the second is a change in the depreciation schedule for vehicles which resulted in a 24.33% increase
in VLF revenues collected by the State.

Certain features of the Realignment program adversely impact certain county revenues. Some
counties receive a smaller share of revenues than other counties based on population and estimated
poverty population. Revenue distributions among counties were determined by expenditures in the
programs that were transferred by the State just prior to the adoption of Realignment. In connection
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with Realignment, the State attempted to address the inequity issue between counties. Revenue
increases are distributed based on existing sharing arrangements between the counties.

The State anticipated that some of the problems with Realignment could result in litigation or
unfunded mandate claims and, therefore, the legislation creating Realignment contained three "poison
pill" triggers that would make certain revenue transfers under Realignment inoperative. These triggers
are: (1) a successful unfunded mandate claim by a county with respect to realigned programs, (2) a
constitutional challenge regarding Realignment's treatment of VLF revenues or a finding that exclusion
of Realignment revenue from Proposition 98 education funding calculations is unconstitutional, and (3)
an appellate court determination that 1982 legislation shifting responsibility for medically indigent
adults to counties is reimbursable as an unfunded mandate.

The County of San Diego was recently successful in court in seeking additional funds from the
State for medically indigent adults. This court action triggered the third poison pill provision (discussed
above) and resulted in the immediate cessation of Realignment VLF payments to counties by the State.
The State Legislature has passed a measure to temporarily revoke the poison pill provisions and make
the counties whole for funds lost as a result of the San Diego decision; however, this measure only
resolves the problem until July 15, 2004. Further resolution of the Realignment issue is being
considered as part of the State's Fiscal Year 2004-05 budget process. Delays in the adoption of a final
State budget may result in a monthly loss to certain counties.

Security

Military conflicts and terrorist activities may adversely impact the operation of the Local
Agencies. In addition, the Local Agencies may experience a decrease with respect to their revenues
because of any change in economic circumstances as a result of future military conflicts or terrorist
activities. Such a reduction in revenues may include, but is not limited to, a decline in airport, transient
occupancy tax, parking tax, business tax and sales tax revenues.

The Local Agencies are subject to safety and security measures and inspections on a continuing
basis. The Local Agencies do not represent that any existing or additional safety and security measures
will be adequate in the event that terrorist activities are directed against any of the Local Agencies or
that costs of security measures will not be greater than presently anticipated.

Recent Litigation Regarding Increase in Assessed Valuation

On November 2, 2001, the Orange County, California Superior Court issued a Minute Order in
the case of County of Orange v. County of Orange County Assessment Appeals Board No. 3. The case
involved the assessed value of a property that exceeded the prior year's assessed value by more than 2
percent. The increase of a property's assessed value by more than 2 percent is a common practice
among California assessors when the prior year value of the property is less than the base year value of
the property (the value assigned upon change of ownership or new construction) and the current year,
market value of property is equal to or higher than the computed base year value for the current year.
Such instances occur when the prior year value of the property was determined by a Proposition 8
appeal and the condition causing reduction (e.g., recession in the real estate market) has ceased to
influence the value of property.
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The court ruled that the California Constitution and the California Revenue and Taxation Code
limit the year to year change in value of property to 2 percent except in situations described in law. The
court also found that the California Constitution does not authorize a temporary decline in the base value
of property that can be restored at a rate higher than 2 percent. Some of the Local Agencies follow
similar procedures regarding increases in assessed values as practiced by Orange County.

On March 26, 2004, the California Court of Appeal reversed the judgment of the trial court in the
County of Orange case favor of the county. The Court of Appeals decided that the base on which the
2% inflation adjustment should be figured is the original purchase price (or an assessment at time of a
genuine new construction), and not a prior year's reduced (or level) base due to a decline in property
values or natural disaster.

On May 5, 2004, the Respondent filed a petition to the California Supreme Court for a review of
the decision published by the Court of Appeal on March 26, 2004. The California Supreme Court is
expected to issue its decision to accept or deny this petition for review within 60 to 90 days.

Pension Benefit Liability

Many factors influence the amount of each Local Agency's pension benefit liability, including,
without limitation, inflationary factors, changes in statutory provisions of applicable retirement system
laws, changes in the levels of benefits provided or in the contribution rates of such Local Agency,
increases or decreases in the number of covered employees, changes in actuarial assumptions or
methods, and differences between actual and anticipated investment experience of each Local Agency's
respective pension system. Any of these factors could give rise to additional liability of a Local Agency
to its pension system as a result of which the Local Agency would be obligated to make additional
payments to its pension system over the amortization schedule for full funding of such Local Agency's
obligation to its pension system.
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PARTICIPATING LOCAL AGENCIES INFORMATION
General

There are two types of Local Agencies participating in the Program: counties and cities.
Following are brief summaries of each such type of Local Agency.

Counties are political subdivisions of the State and are governed by elected boards of
supervisors. Counties generally provide for the health, safety and welfare of their residents. County
revenues are generally comprised of property and other taxes, aid from other government agencies,
license, permit and use fees, and fines, forfeitures and penalties. A substantial portion of county
revenues is derived from the State.

Cities are either general law cities, established under California statutes, or charter cities,
established under the California Constitution and their voter approved charters. Cities generally provide
for the health, safety and welfare of their residents. Cities are governed by elected city councils. City
revenues are generally composed of property taxes, other taxes, license, permit and use fees, and fines,
forfeitures and penalties. Other taxes may include some or all of sales taxes, utility user taxes, business
taxes, State motor vehicle license fees, transient occupancy taxes, State cigarette taxes, real property
transfer taxes and other miscellaneous taxes.

Certain information regarding the individual Local Agencies participating in the Program is
included in the appendices hereto. A table listing the participating Local Agencies, the principal amount
of the Obligation being issued by each such Local Agency and the principal amount of the Obligation of
such Local Agency as a percentage of the principal amount of Bonds and the debt service schedule for
such Obligations is set forth in APPENDIX A - "DEBT SERVICE BY LOCAL AGENCY AND UAAL
BY LOCAL AGENCY." Certain general information and a summary of certain budget and financial
information for each Local Agency are set forth in APPENDIXB - "LOCAL AGENCY
INFORMATION" and APPENDIX C - "SUMMARY HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION."

The information contained herein regarding each Local Agency has been derived from
information provided by such Local Agency. The Authority and the Underwriters have no reason to
believe that any such information is incorrect; however, they have not verified the accuracy of such
information and take no responsibility therefor. Each Local Agency has represented that the information
relating to such Local Agency included herein does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements about such Local Agency contained
herein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

The information regarding the Local Agencies contained in the Appendices hereto is essential to
making an informed investment decision with respect to the Bonds. Investors are advised to thoroughly
and carefully review such information.

The audited 2002-03 Annual Financial Report for Kings County has been completed and is
attached hereto at Appendix D. The audited 2001-02 Annual Financial Report of Kings County and
unaudited financial information for fiscal year 2002-03 that were attached to the Preliminary Official
Statement dated June 4, 2004 have been removed.
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PERS Pension Plans

The following information concerning the California Public Employees' Retirement System
("PERS") is excerpted from publicly available sources, which the Local Agencies believe to be accurate.
PERS is not obligated in any manner for payment of debt service on the Series 2004 Bonds, and the
assets of PERS are not available for such payment. PERS should be contacted directly at CalPERS,
Lincoln Plaza, 400 P Street Sacramento, California 95814 or (888) 225-7377 for other information,
including information relating to its financial position and investments.

Each Local Agency provides retirement benefits to certain of their employees through contracts
with PERS, a multiple-employer public sector employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to PERS
members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within the State. PERS is a contributory plan deriving funds from employee
contributions as well as from employer contributions and earnings from investments.

PERS may maintain more than one pension plan (each, a "PERS Plan") for each Local Agency
based on type of employee (i.e. a Local Agency may have a PERS Plan for "Safety Employees" and a
separate PERS Plan for "Miscellaneous Employees"). Each Local Agency contributes to PERS amounts
equal to the recommended rates for the PERS Plans multiplied by the payroll of those employees of the
Local Agency who are eligible under PERS.

The staff actuaries at PERS prepare annually an actuarial valuation which covers a Fiscal Year
ending approximately 15 months before the actuarial valuation is prepared (thus, the actuarial valuation
delivered to each Local Agency in September 2003 covered PERS' Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2002).
The actuarial valuations express each Local Agency's required contribution rates in percentages of
payroll, which percentages each Local Agency must contribute in the Fiscal Year immediately following
the Fiscal Year in which the actuarial valuation is prepared (thus, each Local Agency's contribution rate
derived from the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2002, that were prepared in September 2003, will
affect such Local Agency's Fiscal Year 2004-05). PERS rules require the PERS Local Agencies to
implement the actuary's recommended rates.

In calculating the annual actuarially recommended contribution rates, the PERS actuary
calculates on the basis of certain assumptions the actuarial present value of benefits that PERS will fund
under the PERS Plans, which includes two components, the normal cost and the UAAL. The normal
cost represents the actuarial present value of benefits that PERS will fund under the PERS Plans that are
attributed to the current year, and the UAAL represents the actuarial present value of benefits that PERS
will fund that are attributed to past years. The UAAL represents an estimate of the actuarial shortfall
between assets on deposit at PERS and the present value of the benefits that PERS will pay under the
PERS Plans to retirees and active employees upon their retirement. The UAAL, is based on several
assumptions such as, among others, the rate of investment return, average life expectancy, average age
of retirement, inflation, salary increases and occurrences of disabilities. In addition, the UAAL includes
certain actuarial adjustments such as, among others, the actuarial practice of smoothing losses and gains
over multiple years (which is described in more detail below). As a result, the UAAL may be
considered an estimate of the unfunded actuarial present value of the benefits that PERS will fund under
the PERS Plans to retirees and active employees upon their retirement and not as a fixed expression of
the liability the PERS Local Agencies owe to PERS under their respective PERS Plans.
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In each actuarial valuation, the PERS actuary estimates the actuarial value of the assets (the
"Actuarial Value") of the PERS Plans at the end of the Fiscal Year (which assumes, among other things,
that the rate of return during that Fiscal Year equaled the assumed rate of return of 8.25%). The PERS
actuary uses a smoothing technique to determine Actuarial Value that generally only recognizes one
third of the gain or loss realized in a given Fiscal Year. However, PERS does not allow the Actuarial
Value to be less than 90% or more than 110% of the Market Value.

On April 21, 2004, the PERS Board approved a change in the inflation assumption used in the
actuarial valuations that set employer contribution rates. The inflation assumption was changed from
3.5 percent to 3 percent. The change impacted the inflation component of the annual investment return
assumption, the long term payroll growth assumption and the individual salary increase assumptions as
follows:

. The annual assumed investment return has decreased from 8.25 percent to 7.75 percent.

. The long term salary increase assumption has decreased from 3.75 percent to 3.25
percent.

. The inflation component of individual salary scales has decreased from 3.75 percent to

3.25 percent.

The change to the inflation assumption also impacted the cost of living adjustments and
purchasing power protection allowances assumed in the actuarial valuations. The new assumptions will
be used to determine the Local Agency 2005-06 employer contribution rates. For complete updated
inflation and actuarial assumptions, please contact PERS at the above-referenced address.

Included in the PERS pension plans for Butte County and Kings County employees are State
trial court employees. The State is obligated to reimburse the County for the share of PERS costs
associated with the trial court employees, but the County remains primarily liable for such costs to
PERS.

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY LIMITATIONS ON
TAXES AND APPROPRIATIONS

Article XIITIA of the California Constitution

In 1978, California voters approved Proposition 13, adding Article XIIIA to the California
Constitution. Article XIIIA was subsequently amended in 1986, as discussed below. Article XIIIA
limits the amount of any ad valorem tax on real property to 1% of the full cash value thereof, except that
additional ad valorem taxes may be levied to pay debt service on indebtedness approved by the voters
prior to July 1, 1978 and on bonded indebtedness for the acquisition or improvement of real property
which has been approved on or after July 1, 1978 by two-thirds of the voters voting on such
indebtedness. Article XIIIA defines full cash value to mean "the county assessor's valuation of real
property as shown on the Fiscal Year 1975-76 tax bill under 'full cash' or thereafter, the appraised value
of real property when purchased, newly constructed, or a change in ownership have occurred after the
1975 assessment." This full cash value may be increased at a rate not to exceed 2% per year to account
for inflation.
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Article XIITA has subsequently been amended to permit reduction of the "full cash value" base in
the event of declining property values caused by damage, destruction or other factors, to provide that
there would be no increase in the "full cash value" base in the event of reconstruction of property
damaged or destroyed in a disaster.

Legislation has been enacted and amended a number of times since 1978 to implement Article
XIITA. Under current law, local agencies are no longer permitted to levy directly any property tax
(except to pay voter-approved indebtedness). The 1% property tax is automatically levied by the county
and distributed according to a formula among taxing agencies. The formula apportions the tax roughly
in proportion to the relative shares of taxes levied prior to 1979.

Increases of assessed valuation resulting from reappraisals of property due to new construction,
change in ownership or from the 2% annual adjustment are allocated among the various jurisdictions in
the "taxing area" based upon their respective "situs." Any such allocation made to a local agency
continues as part of its allocation in future years.

Article XIIIB of the California Constitution

On November 6, 1979, California voters approved Proposition 4, known as the Gann Initiative,
which added Article XIIIB to the California Constitution. Propositions 98 and 111, approved by the
California voters in 1988 and 1990, respectively, substantially modified Article XIIIB. The principal
effect of Article XIIIB is to limit the annual appropriations of the State and any city, county, school
district, authority, or other political subdivision of the State to the level of appropriations for the prior
fiscal year, as adjusted for changes in the cost of living and population. The initial version of Article
XIIIB provided that the "base year" for establishing an appropriations limit was the 1978-79 Fiscal Year,
which was then adjusted annually to reflect changes in population, consumer prices and certain increases
in the cost of services provided by these public agencies. Proposition 111 revised the method for
making annual adjustments to the appropriations limit by redefining changes in the cost of living and in
population. It also required that beginning in Fiscal Year 1990-91, each appropriations limit must be
recalculated using the actual 1986-87 appropriations limit and making the applicable annual adjustments
as if the provisions of Proposition 111 had been in effect.

Appropriations subject to limitation of a local government under Article XIIIB include generally
any authorization to expend during a fiscal year the proceeds of taxes levied by or for that entity and the
proceeds of certain State subventions to that entity, exclusive of refunds of taxes. Proceeds of taxes
include, but are not limited to, all tax revenues plus the proceeds to an entity of government from (1)
regulatory licenses, user charges and user fees (but only to the extent such proceeds exceed the cost of
providing the service or regulation), (2) the investment of tax revenues, and (3) certain subventions
received from the State. Article XIIIB permits any government entity to change the appropriations limit
by a vote of the electors in conformity with statutory and constitutional voting effective for a maximum
of four years.

As amended by Proposition 111, Article XIIIB provides for testing of appropriations limits over
consecutive two-year periods. If an entity's revenues in any two-year period exceed the amounts
permitted to be spent over such period, the excess has to be returned by revising tax rates or fee
schedules over the subsequent two years. As amended by Proposition 98, Article XIIIB provides for the
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payment of a portion of any excess revenues to a fund established to assist in financing certain school
needs.

Unitary Property

AB 454 (Chapter 921, Statutes of 1986) provides that revenues derived from most utility
property assessed by the State Board of Equalization ("Unitary Property"), commencing with the Fiscal
Year 1988-89, will be allocated as follows: (i) each jurisdiction will receive up to 102% of its prior year
State-assessed revenue; and (i1) if county-wide revenues generated from Unitary Property are less than
the previous year's revenues or greater than 102% of the previous year's revenues, each jurisdiction will
share the burden of the shortfall or excess revenues by a specified formula. This provision applies to all
Unitary Property except railroads, the valuation of which continues to be allocated to individual tax rate
areas.

The provisions of AB 454 do not constitute an elimination of the assessment of any State-
assessed properties nor a revision of the methods of assessing utilities by the State Board of
Equalization. Generally, AB 454 allows valuation growth or decline of Unitary Property to be shared by
all jurisdictions in a county.

Proposition 218

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, known as the "Right to
Vote on Taxes Act." Proposition 218 adds Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the California Constitution and
contains a number of interrelated provisions affecting the ability of local agencies to levy and collect
both existing and future taxes, assessments, fees and charges. The interpretation and application of
Proposition 218 will ultimately be determined by the courts with respect to a number of the matters
discussed below, and it is not possible at this time to predict with certainty the outcome of such
determination.

Proposition 218 (Article XIIIC) requires that all new local taxes be submitted to the electorate
before they become effective. Taxes for general governmental purposes of a Local Agency require a
majority vote and taxes for specific purposes, even if deposited in such Local Agency's General Fund,
require a two-thirds vote. Further, any general purpose tax which a Local Agency imposed, extended or
increased without voter approval after December 31, 1994 may continue to be imposed only if approved
by a majority vote in an election which must be held within two years of November 5, 1996.

Proposition 218 (Article XIIID) also adds several provisions making it generally more difficult
for local agencies to levy and maintain fees, charges, and assessments for municipal services and
programs. These provisions include, among other things, (i) a prohibition against assessments which
exceed the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on a parcel, (i1) a requirement
that assessments must confer a "special benefit," as defined in Article XIIID, over and above any general
benefits conferred, (iii) a majority protest procedure for assessments which involves the mailing of
notice and a ballot to the record owner of each affected parcel, a public hearing and the tabulation of
ballots weighted according to the proportional financial obligation of the affected party, and (iv) a
prohibition against fees and charges which are used for general governmental services, including police,
fire or library services where the service is available to the public at large in substantially the same
manner as it is to property owners.
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Proposition 218 (Article XIIIC) also removes limitations on the initiative power in matters of
reducing or repealing local taxes, assessments, fees or charges. No assurance can be given that the
voters of any Local Agency will not, in the future, approve an initiative or initiatives which reduce or
repeal local taxes, assessments, fees or charges currently comprising a substantial part of such Local
Agency's General Fund.

In connection with the sale of the Bonds, each Local Agency, subject to one exception described
below, has represented that Proposition 218 will not materially impact any existing or future taxes, fees
and assessments collected by the Local Agency and that no revenues collected by the Local Agency
have been challenged as a result of Proposition 218. The City of Riverside has indicated that a taxpayer
group challenged the City's Street Light Assessment District revenues under Proposition 218. The City
prevailed in defending the challenge and the assessments were upheld by the Court of Appeals. See
Appendix B for more information.

Proposition 62

Proposition 62, a statutory initiative that was adopted by the voters voting in the State at the
November 4, 1986 general election, (a) requires that any new or higher taxes for general governmental
purposes imposed by local governmental entities be approved by a majority vote of the voters of the
governmental entity voting in an election on the tax, (b) requires that any special tax (defined as taxes
levied for other than general governmental purposes) imposed by a local governmental entity be
approved by a two-thirds vote of the voters of the governmental entity voting in an election on the tax,
(c) restricts the use of revenues from a special tax to the purposes or for the service for which the special
tax was imposed, (d) prohibits the imposition of ad valorem taxes on real property by local
governmental entities except as permitted by Article XIIIA of the California Constitution, (e) prohibits
the imposition of transaction taxes and sales taxes on the sale of real property by local governmental
entities, (f) required that any tax imposed by a local governmental entity on or after August 1, 1985 be
ratified by a majority vote of the voters voting in an election on the tax within two years of November 5,
1986 or be terminated by November 15, 1988, and (g) requires a reduction of ad valorem property taxes
allocable to the jurisdiction imposing a tax not in compliance with its provisions equal to one dollar for
each dollar of revenue attributable to the invalid tax, for each year that the tax is collected.

Following its adoption by the voters, various provisions of Proposition 62 were declared
unconstitutional at the appellate court level. For example, in City of Woodlake v. Logan, 230
Cal.App.3d 1058 (1991) (the "Woodlake Case"), the Court of Appeal held portions of Proposition 62
unconstitutional as a referendum on taxes prohibited by the California Constitution. In reliance on the
Woodlake Case, numerous taxes were imposed or increased after the adoption of Proposition 62 without
satisfying the voter approval requirements of Proposition 62.

On September 28, 1995, the California Supreme Court, in Santa Clara County Local
Transportation Authority v. Guardino, 11 Cal. 4th 220 (1995) (the "Santa Clara Case"), upheld the
constitutionality of the portion of Proposition 62 requiring a two-thirds vote in order for a local
government or district to impose a special tax, and, by implication, upheld a parallel provision requiring
a majority vote in order for a local government or district to impose any general tax. In deciding the
Santa Clara Case on Proposition 62 grounds, the Court disapproved the decision in the Woodlake Case.
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The decision in the Santa Clara Case did not address the question of whether it should be applied
retroactively. On June 4, 2001, the California Supreme Court released Howard Jarvis Taxpayers
Association v. City of La Habra, et al. ("La Habra"). In this decision, the court held that a public
agency's continued imposition and collection of a tax is an ongoing violation, upon which the statute of
limitations period begins anew with each collection. The court also held that, unless another statute or
constitutional rule provided differently, the statute of limitations for challenges to taxes subject to
Proposition 62 is three years. Accordingly, a challenge to a tax subject to Proposition 62 may only be
made for those taxes received within three years of the date the action is brought.

In connection with the sale of the Bonds, each Local Agency, has represented that Proposition 62
will not materially impact any existing or future taxes, fees and assessments collected by the Local
Agency and that no revenues collected by the Local Agency have been challenged as a result of
Proposition 62. See Appendix B for more information.

Future Initiatives

Article XIITA, Article XIIIB, Proposition 218 and Proposition 62 were each adopted as measures
that qualified for the ballot through California's initiative process. From time to time other initiative
measures could be adopted, further affecting Local Agency revenues.

TAX MATTERS

Interest on the Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under
Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"). In the opinion of Orrick, Herrington &
Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income
taxes. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other federal or state tax consequences relating
to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. The proposed form
of opinion of Bond Counsel is contained in Appendix F — "PROPOSED FORM OF BOND COUNSEL
OPINION."

The following is a summary of certain of the United States federal income tax consequences of
the ownership of the Bonds as of the date hereof. Each prospective investor should consult with its own
tax advisor regarding the application of United States federal income tax laws, as well as any state, local,
foreign or other tax laws, to its particular situation.

This summary is based on the Code, as well as Treasury regulations and administrative and
judicial rulings and practice. Legislative, judicial and administrative changes may occur, possibly with
retroactive effect, that could alter or modify the continued validity of the statements and conclusions set
forth herein. This summary is intended as a general explanatory discussion of the consequences of
holding the Bonds generally and does not purport to furnish information in the level of detail or with the
investor's specific tax circumstances that would be provided by an investor's own tax advisor. For
example, it generally is addressed only to original purchasers of the Bonds that are "U.S. holders" (as
defined below), deals only with Bonds held as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the
Code and does not address tax consequences to holders that may be relevant to investors subject to
special rules, such as individuals, trusts, estates, tax-exempt investors, foreign investors, cash method
taxpayers, dealers in securities, currencies or commodities, banks, thrifts, insurance companies, electing
large partnerships, mutual funds, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, FASITs,
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S corporations, persons that hold Bonds as part of a straddle, hedge, integrated or conversion
transaction, and persons whose "functional currency"” is not the U.S. dollar. In addition, this summary
does not address alternative minimum tax issues or the indirect consequences to a holder of an equity
interest in a holder of Bonds.

As used herein, a "U.S. holder" is a "U.S. person" that is a beneficial owner of a Bond. A "non-
U.S. investor" is a holder (or beneficial owner) of a Bond that is not a U.S. Person. For these purposes,
a "U.S. person" is a citizen or resident of the United States, a corporation or partnership created or
organized in or under the laws of the United States or any political subdivision thereof (except, in the
case of a partnership, to the extent otherwise provided in Treasury regulations), an estate the income of
which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of its source or a trust if (i) a United
States court is able to exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and (ii) one or more
United States persons have the authority to control all of the trust's substantial decisions.

Tax Status of the Bonds

The Bonds will be treated, for federal income tax purposes, as a debt instrument. Accordingly,
interest will be included in the income of the holder as it is paid (or, if the holder is an accrual method
taxpayer, as it is accrued) as interest.

Holders of the Bonds that allocate (which generally will include all initial holders of the Bonds)
a basis in the Bonds that is greater than the principal amount of the Bonds should consult their own tax
advisors with respect to whether or not they should elect to amortize such premium under section 171 of
the Code.

If a holder purchases the Bonds for an amount that is less than the principal amount of the
Bonds, and such difference is not considered to be de minimis, then such discount will represent market
discount that ultimately will constitute ordinary income (and not capital gain). Further, absent an
election to accrue market discount currently, upon a sale or exchange of a Bond, a portion of any gain
will be ordinary income to the extent it represents the amount of any such market discount that was
accrued through the date of sale. In addition, absent an election to accrue market discount currently, the
portion of any interest expense incurred or continued to carry a market discount bond that does not
exceed the accrued market discount for any taxable year, will be deferred.

Although the Bonds are expected to trade "flat," that is, without a specific allocation to accrued
interest, for federal income tax purposes, a portion of the amount realized on sale attributed to the Bonds
will be treated as accrued interest and thus will be taxed as ordinary income to the seller (and will not be
subject to tax in the hands of the buyer).

Sale and Exchange of Bonds

Upon a sale or exchange of a Bond, a holder generally will recognize gain or loss on the
Bonds equal to the difference between the amount realized on the sale and its adjusted tax basis in such
Bond. Such gain or loss generally will be capital gain (although any gain attributable to accrued market
discount of the Bond not yet taken into income will be ordinary). The adjusted basis of the holder in a
Bond will (in general) equal its original purchase price and decreased by any payments received on the
Bond. In general, if the Bond is held for longer than one year, any gain or loss would be long term
capital gain or loss, and capital losses are subject to certain limitations.
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Defeasance

Defeasance of any Bond may result in a reissuance thereof, in which event a holder will
recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized from the sale,
exchange or retirement (less any accrued qualified stated interest which will be taxable as such) and the
holder's adjusted tax basis in the Bond.

Foreign Investors

Distributions on the Bonds to a non-U.S. holder that has no connection with the United States
other than holding its Bond generally will be made free of withholding tax, as long as that the holder has
complied with certain tax identification and certification requirements.

ERISA CONSIDERATIONS

Section 406 of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA")
and Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code"), prohibit employee benefit plans ("Plans")
subject to ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code from engaging in certain transactions involving "plan
assets" with persons that are "parties in interest” under ERISA or "disqualified persons" under the Code
(collectively, "Parties in Interest") with respect to the Plan. ERISA also imposes certain duties on
persons who are fiduciaries of Plans subject to ERISA. Under ERISA, any person who exercises any
authority or control respecting the management or disposition of the assets of a Plan is considered to be
a fiduciary of such Plan (subject to certain exceptions not relevant here). A violation of these
"prohibited transaction" rules may generate excise tax and other liabilities under ERISA and the Code
for fiduciaries and Parties in Interest.

The Underwriters, as a result of their own activities or because of the activities of an affiliate,
may be considered Parties in Interest, with respect to certain plans. Prohibited transactions may arise
under Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code if Bonds are acquired by a Plan with respect
to which the Underwriters or any of their affiliates are Parties in Interest. Certain exemptions from the
prohibited transaction rules could be applicable, however, depending in part upon the type of Plan
fiduciary making the decision to acquire a Bond and the circumstances under which such decision is
made. Included among these exemptions are those transactions regarding securities purchased during
the existence of an underwriting, investments by insurance company pooled separate accounts,
investments by insurance company general accounts, investments by bank collective investment funds,
transactions effected by "qualified professional asset managers," and transactions affected by certain "in-
house asset managers." Even if the conditions specified in one or more of these exemptions are met, the
scope of the relief provided by these exemptions might or might not cover all acts which might be
construed as prohibited transactions. In order to ensure that no prohibited transaction under ERISA or
Section 4975 of the Code will take place in connection with the acquisition of a Bond by or on behalf of
a Plan, each prospective purchaser of a Bond that is a Plan or is acquiring on behalf of a Plan will be
required to represent that either (i) no prohibited transactions under ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code
will occur in connection with the acquisition of such Bond or (ii) the acquisition of such Bond is subject
to a statutory or administrative exemption.

Any Plan fiduciary who proposes to cause a Plan to purchase Bonds should (i) consult with its
counsel with respect to the potential applicability of ERISA and the Code to such investments and
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whether any exemption would be applicable and (ii) determine on its own whether all conditions have
been satisfied. Moreover, each Plan fiduciary should determine whether, under the general fiduciary
standards of investment prudence and diversification, an investment in the Bonds is appropriate for the
Plan, taking into account the overall investment policy of the Plan and the composition of the Plan's
investment portfolio.

ABSENCE OF LITIGATION

There is no action, suit or proceeding known to be pending or threatened, restraining or enjoining
the execution or delivery of the Bonds, the Trust Agreement or in any way contesting or affecting the
validity of the foregoing, or any action of the Authority taken with respect to any of the foregoing.

There is no litigation pending or, to the knowledge of the Authority, threatened, questioning the
existence of the Authority, or the title of the officers of the Authority to their respective offices, or the
power and authority of the Authority to issue the Bonds.

Each Local Agency will certify to the effect that, other than as described in the Official
Statement, including all appendices hereto, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation,
at law or in equity, before or by any court, regulatory agency, public board or body pending or, to the
best knowledge of the Local Agency, threatened (i) in any way questioning the existence of the Local
Agency or the titles of the officers of the Local Agency to their respective offices; (ii) in any way
contesting or affecting the validity of the legal documents relating to the Obligations entered into by the
Local Agency or the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, (iii) which may result in
any material adverse change relating to the finances or operations of the Local Agency; or (iv)
contesting the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement
or any supplement or amendment thereto or asserting that the Preliminary Official Statement or the
Official Statement contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. See Appendix B for certain information
related to any litigation affecting the Participants.

For information on litigation concerning the Local Agencies, see Appendix B attached hereto.
For information on the judicial validation of the proceedings and transactions related to the issuance of
the Obligations, see "VALIDATION" herein.

RATINGS

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor's Rating Services have assigned the ratings
of "Aaa" and "AAA", respectively, to the Bonds. The ratings on the Bonds are conditioned on the
issuance of the Insurance Policy. See "SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT - The Insurance
Policy" herein. The Authority and the Local Agencies supplied certain information to the rating
agencies to be considered in evaluating the Bonds. Each rating reflects only the views of the rating
agency issuing such rating, and any explanation of the significance of such rating on the Bonds should
be obtained from such rating agency. There is no assurance that any rating will be retained for any
given period of time or that the same will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating
agency issuing such rating if, in its judgment, circumstances so warrant. The Authority undertakes no
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responsibility to oppose any downward revision or withdrawal of any rating. Any such downward
revision or withdrawal of any rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

UNDERWRITING

The Authority and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, as representative of the underwriters
(the "Underwriters"), have entered into a Bond Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Bonds are to
be purchased by the Underwriters at a discount of $1,430,364.55 from the offering price of the Bonds
stated on the the cover hereof (the "Bond Purchase Agreement"). The Bond Purchase Agreement
provides that the Underwriters will purchase all of the Bonds if any are purchased, the obligations to
make such purchase being subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Purchase
Agreement, the approval of certain legal matters by counsel and certain other conditions.

The Underwriters may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers and others at a price lower than
the offering prices stated on the cover hereof. The Underwriters may change the offering prices from
time to time.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Local Agencies have covenanted in Continuing Disclosure Certificates for the benefit of the
holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds to provide certain financial information and operating data
relating to Local Agencies by not later than the 210 days following the end of the fiscal year (currently
their fiscal years end on June 30) (the "Local Agencies Annual Reports"), commencing with the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2004, and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if
material.

The Authority has covenanted in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the benefit of the
holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated
events, if material.

The Local Agencies Annual Reports and the notices of material events will be filed by the
Trustee as Dissemination Agent with each Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information
Repository. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Reports and the notice
of material events is set forth in APPENDIX J—"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
CERTIFICATES" hereto. These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in
complying with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

At the time of the delivery of the Bonds, Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLLP, Bond Counsel, will
deliver its final approving opinion in the form set forth in Appendix F. A copy of such approving will
be available for delivery with each Bond. Bond Counsel has undertaken no responsibility for the
completeness or fairness or accuracy of this Official Statement.

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by their counsel,
Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, San Francisco, California.
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VALIDATION

Each Local Agency, acting pursuant to the provisions of Sections 860 et seq. of the California
Code of Civil Procedure, has filed a complaint in the Superior Court of the State of California for such
Local Agency seeking judicial validation of the proceedings and transactions relating to the adoption of
the Obligation Resolution, the issuance of the Obligations, the execution and delivery of the Local
Agency Trust Agreement and certain other matters. Each court has entered a default judgment to the
effect, among other things, that the Local Agency Trust Agreement and the Obligations are valid, legal
and binding obligations of such Local Agency and that the Obligations are valid and in conformity with
all applicable provisions of law. In issuing the opinion as to the validity of the Obligations and the
Bonds, Bond Counsel has relied upon the entry of the foregoing default judgments. The last day of the
appeal periods for the Local Agencies was June 12, 2004. No appeals were filed prior to the last day of
the appeal periods.

AUTHORIZATION AND APPROVAL

This Official Statement, and its distribution and use by the Underwriters, have been duly
authorized and approved by the Authority.

CALIFORNIA STATEWIDE COMMUNITIES
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By: /s/ Norma Lammers
Member of the Commission of the Authority
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APPENDIX A

DEBT SERVICE BY LOCAL AGENCY AND UAAL BY LOCAL AGENCY

DEBT SERVICE TABLES
Following is a table listing the debt service payable by each Local Agency for each Series
of Bonds.
County of Butte
Series A-1 Series A-2
Fiscal
Year
Ending Compounded Total Debt
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

2005 - 1,559,470.22 - - 1,559,470.22
2006 - 1,690,991.80 - - 1,690,991.80
2007 - 1,690,991.80 - - 1,690,991.80
2008 - 1,690,991.80 - - 1,690,991.80
2009 - 1,690,991.80 - - 1,690,991.80
2010 - 1,690,991.80 - - 1,690,991.80
2011 - 1,690,991.80 - - 1,690,991.80
2012 - 1,690,991.80 - - 1,690,991.80
2013 - 1,690,991.80 - - 1,690,991.80
2014 55,000.00 1,690,991.80 - - 1,745,991.80
2015 125,000.00 1,688,017.40 - - 1,813,017.40
2016 200,000.00 1,681,132.40 - - 1,881,132.40
2017 280,000.00 1,669,956.40 - - 1,949,956.40
2018 370,000.00 1,653,447.60 - - 2,023,447.60
2019 470,000.00 1,631,632.40 - - 2,101,632.40
2020 575,000.00 1,603,921.20 - - 2,178,921.20
2021 690,000.00 1,570,019.20 - - 2,260,019.20
2022 815,000.00 1,529,336.80 - - 2,344,336.80
2023 950,000.00 1,481,284.40 - - 2,431,284.40
2024 1,100,000.00 1,425,272.40 - - 2,525,272.40
2025 1,260,000.00 1,360,416.40 - - 2,620,416.40
2026 1,435,000.00 1,283,858.80 - - 2,718,858.80
2027 1,625,000.00 1,196,668.20 - - 2,821,668.20
2028 1,825,000.00 1,097,933.20 - - 2,922,933.20
2029 2,045,000.00 987,046.20 - - 3,032,046.20
2030 2,285,000.00 862,792.00 - - 3,147,792.00
2031 2,540,000.00 723,955.40 - - 3,263,955.40
2032 2,820,000.00 569,625.00 - - 3,389,625.00
2033 3,115,000.00 398,281.80 - - 3,513,281.80
2034 3,440,000.00 209,014.40 - - 3,649,014.40
TOTAL  28,020,000.00  41,402,008.02 - - 69,422,008.02



County of Kings

Series A-1 Series A-2
Fiscal
Year
Ending Compounded Total Debt
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Service
2005 - - - -
2006 - - - -
2007 - 495,193.20 59,806.80 555,000.00
2008 - 489,914.40 90,085.60 580,000.00
2009 - 476,892.00 123,108.00 600,000.00
2010 - 463,580.20 156,419.80 620,000.00
2011 - 450,874.35 194,125.65 645,000.00
2012 - 437,590.40 232,409.60 670,000.00
2013 - 423,484.35 271,515.65 695,000.00
2014 - 409,060.80 310,939.20 720,000.00
2015 - 393,091.80 351,908.20 745,000.00
2016 - 379,471.00 395,529.00 775,000.00
2017 - 365,703.45 439,296.55 805,000.00
2018 - 352,553.70 482,446.30 835,000.00
2019 - 338,846.45 526,153.55 865,000.00
2020 - 327,537.00 572,463.00 900,000.00
2021 - 316,079.10 613,920.90 930,000.00
2022 - 305,055.80 659,944.20 965,000.00
2023 - 296,294.10 708,705.90 1,005,000.00
2024 - 286,343.20 753,656.80 1,040,000.00
2025 - - - -
2026 - - - -
2027 - - - -
2028 - - - -
2029 - - - -
2030 - - - -
2031 - - - -
2032 - - - -
2033 - - - -
2034 - - - -
TOTAL - 7,007,565.30 6,942,434.70  13,950,000.00
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City of Daly City

Series A-1 Series A-2
Fiscal
Year
Ending Compounded Total Debt
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Service
2005 400,000.00 1,877,355.79 - - 2,277,355.79
2006 335,000.00 2,025,087.00 - - 2,360,087.00
2007 435,000.00 2,014,534.50 - - 2,449,534.50
2008 545,000.00 1,998,309.00 - - 2,543,309.00
2009 660,000.00 1,975,746.00 - - 2,635,746.00
2010 790,000.00 1,945,980.00 - - 2,735,980.00
2011 930,000.00 1,907,902.00 - - 2,837,902.00
2012 1,080,000.00 1,861,216.00 - - 2,941,216.00
2013 1,250,000.00 1,805,272.00 - - 3,055,272.00
2014 1,430,000.00 1,738,647.00 - - 3,168,647.00
2015 1,625,000.00 1,661,312.60 - - 3,286,312.60
2016 1,840,000.00 1,571,807.60 - - 3,411,807.60
2017 2,070,000.00 1,468,988.40 - - 3,538,988.40
2018 2,325,000.00 1,346,941.20 - - 3,671,941.20
2019 2,600,000.00 1,209,859.20 - - 3,809,859.20
2020 2,895,000.00 1,056,563.20 - - 3,951,563.20
2021 3,215,000.00 885,874.00 - - 4,100,874.00
2022 3,560,000.00 696,317.60 - - 4,256,317.60
2023 3,925,000.00 486,420.00 - - 4,411,420.00
2024 4,325,000.00 255,002.00 - - 4,580,002.00
2025 - - - - -
2026 - - - - -
2027 - - - - -
2028 - - - - -
2029 - - - - -
2030 - - - - -
2031 - - - - -
2032 - - - - -
2033 - - - - -
2034 - - - - -
TOTAL 36,235,000.00  29,789,135.09 - - 66,024,135.09
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City of Merced

Series A-1 Series A-2
Fiscal
Year
Ending Compounded Total Debt
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Service
2005 50,000.00 384,362.03 - 434,362.03
2006 40,000.00 415,453.10 - 455,453.10
2007 65,000.00 414,193.10 - 479,193.10
2008 85,000.00 411,768.60 - 496,768.60
2009 115,000.00 408,249.60 - 523,249.60
2010 140,000.00 403,063.10 - 543,063.10
2011 170,000.00 396,315.10 - 566,315.10
2012 205,000.00 387,781.10 - 592,781.10
2013 245,000.00 377,162.10 - 622,162.10
2014 285,000.00 364,103.60 - 649,103.60
2015 325,000.00 348,690.80 - 673,690.80
2016 375,000.00 330,789.80 - 705,789.80
2017 425,000.00 309,834.80 - 734,834.80
2018 480,000.00 284,776.80 - 764,776.80
2019 540,000.00 256,476.00 - 796,476.00
2020 610,000.00 224,637.60 - 834,637.60
2021 680,000.00 188,672.00 - 868,672.00
2022 755,000.00 148,579.20 - 903,579.20
2023 840,000.00 104,064.40 - 944,064.40
2024 925,000.00 54,538.00 - 979,538.00
2025 - - - -
2026 - - - -
2027 - - - -
2028 - - - -
2029 - - - -
2030 - - - -
2031 - - - -
2032 - - - -
2033 - - - -
2034 - - - -
TOTAL 7,355,000.00 6,213,510.83 - 13,568,510.83
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City of Millbrae

Series A-1 Series A-2
Fiscal
Year
Ending Compounded Total Debt
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Service
2005 - - - -
2006 - - - -
2007 - - - -
2008 - 625,063.20 114,936.80 740,000.00
2009 - 612,011.40 157,988.60 770,000.00
2010 - 594,429.45 200,570.55 795,000.00
2011 - 576,699.75 248,300.25 825,000.00
2012 - 561,683.20 298,316.80 860,000.00
2013 - 542,303.70 347,696.30 890,000.00
2014 - 525,529.50 399,470.50 925,000.00
2015 - 506,534.40 453,465.60 960,000.00
2016 - 487,191.80 507,808.20 995,000.00
2017 - 467,918.70 562,081.30 1,030,000.00
2018 - 451,775.40 618,224.60 1,070,000.00
2019 - 434,820.30 675,179.70 1,110,000.00
2020 - 420,339.15 734,660.85 1,155,000.00
2021 - 406,144.65 788,855.35 1,195,000.00
2022 - 391,988.80 848,011.20 1,240,000.00
2023 - 380,317.80 909,682.20 1,290,000.00
2024 - 367,565.55 967,434.45 1,335,000.00
2025 - 357,426.95 1,027,573.05 1,385,000.00
2026 - 348,321.60 1,091,678.40 1,440,000.00
2027 - 338,946.40 1,156,053.60 1,495,000.00
2028 - 329,390.50 1,220,609.50 1,550,000.00
2029 - 320,695.90 1,289,304.10 1,610,000.00
2030 - 311,789.00 1,358,211.00 1,670,000.00
2031 - 302,750.00 1,427,250.00 1,730,000.00
2032 - 294,433.85 1,500,566.15 1,795,000.00
2033 - 286,725.10 1,578,274.90 1,865,000.00
2034 - 278,833.50 1,656,166.50 1,935,000.00
TOTAL 11,521,629.55 22,138,370.45  33,660,000.00
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City of Monterey Park

Series A-1 Series A-2

Fiscal

Year

Ending Compounded Total Debt
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Service

2005 - 943,286.52 - 943,286.52
2006 - 1,022,840.80 - 1,022,840.80
2007 - 1,022,840.80 - 1,022,840.80
2008 - 1,022,840.80 - 1,022,840.80
2009 25,000.00 1,022,840.80 - 1,047,840.80
2010 525,000.00 1,021,713.30 - 1,546,713.30
2011 510,000.00 996,408.30 - 1,506,408.30
2012 495,000.00 970,806.30 - 1,465,806.30
2013 485,000.00 945,165.30 - 1,430,165.30
2014 475,000.00 919,314.80 - 1,394,314.80
2015 465,000.00 893,626.80 - 1,358,626.80
2016 455,000.00 868,014.60 - 1,323,014.60
2017 450,000.00 842,589.20 - 1,292,589.20
2018 445,000.00 816,057.20 - 1,261,057.20
2019 440,000.00 789,820.00 - 1,229,820.00
2020 435,000.00 763,877.60 - 1,198,877.60
2021 430,000.00 738,230.00 - 1,168,230.00
2022 425,000.00 712,877.20 - 1,137,877.20
2023 425,000.00 687,819.20 - 1,112,819.20
2024 410,000.00 662,761.20 - 1,072,761.20
2025 795,000.00 638,587.60 - 1,433,587.60
2026 845,000.00 590,283.40 - 1,435,283.40
2027 895,000.00 538,941.20 - 1,433,941.20
2028 950,000.00 484,561.00 - 1,434,561.00
2029 1,005,000.00 426,839.00 - 1,431,839.00
2030 1,065,000.00 365,775.20 - 1,430,775.20
2031 1,130,000.00 301,065.80 - 1,431,065.80
2032 1,200,000.00 232,407.00 - 1,432,407.00
2033 1,275,000.00 159,495.00 - 1,434,495.00
2034 1,350,000.00 82,026.00 - 1,432,026.00
TOTAL 17,405,000.00  21,483,711.92 - 38,888,711.92
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City of Riverside

Series A-1 Series A-2
Fiscal
Year
Ending Compounded Total Debt
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Service
2005 1,260,000.00 4,588,647.25 - - 5,848,647.25
2006 1,125,000.00 4,942.251.60 - - 6,067,251.60
2007 1,390,000.00 4,906,814.10 - - 6,296,814.10
2008 1,675,000.00 4,854,967.10 - - 6,529,967.10
2009 1,990,000.00 4,785,622.10 - - 6,775,622.10
2010 2,335,000.00 4,695,873.10 - - 7,030,873.10
2011 2,710,000.00 4,583,326.10 - - 7,293,326.10
2012 3,120,000.00 4,447,284.10 - - 7,567,284.10
2013 3,565,000.00 4,285,668.10 - - 7,850,668.10
2014 4,050,000.00 4,095,653.60 - - 8,145,653.60
2015 4,575,000.00 3,876,629.60 - - 8,451,629.60
2016 5,145,000.00 3,624,638.60 - - 8,769,638.60
2017 5,760,000.00 3,337,136.00 - - 9,097,136.00
2018 6,440,000.00 2,997,526.40 - - 9,437,526.40
2019 7,175,000.00 2,617,824.00 - - 9,792,824.00
2020 7,965,000.00 2,194,786.00 - - 10,159,786.00
2021 8,815,000.00 1,725,169.60 - - 10,540,169.60
2022 9,730,000.00 1,205,437.20 - - 10,935,437.20
2023 10,715,000.00 631,756.40 - - 11,346,756.40
2024 - - - - -
2025 - - - - -
2026 - - - - -
2027 - - - - -
2028 - - - - -
2029 - - - - -
2030 - - - - -
2031 - - - - -
2032 - - - - -
2033 - - - - -
2034 - - - - -
TOTAL 89,540,000.00  68,397,010.95 - - 157,937,010.95
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UNFUNDED ACCRUED ACTUARIAL LIABILITY TABLE

Following is a table listing the accrued liability, actuarial value of assets and rolled forward unfunded liability for each Local
Agency's pension plan. See "PARTICIPATING LOCAL AGENCIES INFORMATION — PERS Pension Plans" in the Official Statement.

City of
County City of Monterey City of
County of Butte of Kings City of Daly City Merced City of Millbrae Park Riverside
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Safety Miscellaneous

Safety Plan Plan Safety Plan Safety Plan Plan Safety Plan Plan Plan Safety Plan Safety Plan
Entry Age Normal
Accrued Liability
(6/30/02) 51,872,187 | 228,722,348 85,432,196 | 129,247,025 100,554,045 54,441,620 | 38,704,016 22,898,788 84,836,349 | 381,310,978
Actuarial Value of
Assets (6/30/02) 43,919,098 | 216,691,430 76,538,512 | 122,601,881 93,213,436 48,694,355 | 33,432,123 22,476,784 69,904,508 | 328,395,034
Unfunded Accrued
Liability (6/30/02) 7,953,089 12,030,918 8,893,684 6,645,144 7,340,609 5,747,265 | 5,271,893 422,004 14,931,841 52,915,944
6/30/2004 Rolled
Forward Unfunded
Liability 9,160,991 23,978,723 13,551,748 11,710,811 12,474,265 7,138,378 | 6,354,783 1,361,764 17,012,841 67,343,907
Certified Unfunded
Actuarial Liability
(6/29/04) 11,900,000 35,200,000%* 18,300,000 18,300,000 17,300,000 10,200,000 | 8,500,000 2,700,000 21,500,000 88,300,000

* Does not include Superior Court employees.

Source: CalPERS Annual Actuarial Valuations - June 30, 2002; Bartel Associates, LLC for " Certified Unfunded Actuarial Liability."




APPENDIX B
LOCAL AGENCY INFORMATION

This Appendix contains certain information on each Local Agency. Such information is
intended to be reviewed in conjunction with the audited financial statements of each Local
Agency in Appendix D and the summary financial information in Appendix C. The financial
statements for each Local Agency are presented in Appendix D should be read in their entirety.

Local Agency Certifications and Additional Information

In response to a written due diligence questionnaire, each Local Agency has certified,
subject to certain exceptions noted by such Local Agency described herein, that the
following statements are true and correct to the best knowledge of an officer of such Local
Agency. See "Exceptions and Additional Information" below. Each Local Agency's Fiscal Year
ends on June 30.

e The Local Agency has not defaulted on a lease or debt obligation in the last 10 years.

e The Local Agency has never failed to comply with any disclosure obligation with
respect to securities, including any obligations under SEC Rule 15(¢c)(2)(12) or a
written undertaking.

e There has been no material adverse change in the Local Agency's financial condition
since June 30, 2003.

e The Local Agency does not have any sales tax or property tax payers which
contribute in excess of 10% of the sales tax or property tax received by the Local
Agency during the 2003-04 Fiscal Year.

e Proposition 218 and 62 cannot materially impact any existing or future taxes, fees and
assessments collected by the Local Agency.

e No revenues collected by the Local Agency have been challenged under Proposition
218 or 62.

e The Local Agency does not have any funds invested in derivates or reverse
repurchase agreements and does not have a leveraged portfolio.

e No major taxpayers are currently delinquent, or expected to be delinquent, in the
payment of property taxes, franchise taxes or other taxes to the Local Agency.

e Over the last ten years, the Local Agency has not experienced any significant losses,

realized or unrealized, in its investment portfolio as a result of a ratings downgrade,
bankruptcy or decline in market value relating to such investments.
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e The Local Agency has not recently adopted, and does not plan to adopt, any
significant changes in accounting practices that may have a material adverse impact
on its finances or the presentation of its finances in its financial statements.

e The Local Agency does not have any major ongoing or expected challenges to
assessed property valuations within its boundaries (including any challenges to annual
increases in assessed valuation in excess of 2%).

e Since June 30, 2003, the Local Agency has not entered into any long-term lease
obligations or issued any debt.

e The loss of motor vehicle license fee revenues, or any proposed item in the State's FY
2004-05 budget, would not result in a significant reduction (greater than 5%) in the
Local Agency's discretionary revenues.

e No other conditions or events, including but not limited to labor disputes, litigation or
hazardous materials, exist which may adversely affect the finances of the Local
Agency.

e The Local Agency does not have any other information which is necessary to make
the above statements, in the light of the circumstances under which such statements
are made, not misleading.

e The Local Agency has not failed in the last ten (10) years to make its allocated
pension funding obligation.

e The Local Agency does not anticipate any significant increase in its liabilities related
to post-employment benefits other than pension benefits, including healthcare and life
insurance ("OPEB") as a result of GASB's recent proposal to require Local Agencies
to (1) recognize the cost of OPEB during the periods employees render the services
and (ii) provide relevant information about OPEB obligations.

Exceptions and Additional Information. Certain of the Local Agencies have reported
exceptions and additional information in connection with the matters described above. Such
exceptions and additional information is described under the Local Agency sections below under
the headings "Other Information."
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THE COUNTY OF BUTTE

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the County of Butte ("Butte
County" or the "County"). Such information was provided by the County except as otherwise
indicated.

General

Butte County is located in north central California and encompasses approximately 1,665
square miles in the northern portion of the Sacramento Valley. The County is surrounded by the
counties of Plumas to the northeast, Tehama to the northwest and Glenn to the west, with Sutter,
Yuba and Colusa counties bordering to the south.

Butte County was created in 1850, one of California's original twenty-seven counties, and
incorporated as a county in 1865. The City of Oroville serves as the county seat. Butte County
is a chartered county divided into five supervisorial districts on the basis of registered voters and
population. The County is governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors who serve four-
year terms. The Chairman is elected by and from members of the Board.

A Chief Administrative Officer, appointed by the Board of Supervisors, administers
county affairs. Other elected county officials include the Assessor, Auditor-Controller, Clerk-
Recorder, District Attorney, Sheriff-Coroner, Treasurer-Tax Collector, and Superintendent of
Schools.

Assessed Valuation

The following table sets forth the assessed valuation by category and property type for
Fiscal Year 1999-00 through Fiscal Year 2003-04.

County of Butte
Assessed Valuation History By Category And Property Type"”
Fiscal Years 1999-00 Through 2003-04

Total Before Unitary

Secured Utility Unsecured Rdyv. Increment Utility
1999-00 $ 9,049,396,442 $20,077,633 $523,536,374 $ 9,593,010,449 $648,454,447
2000-01 9,507,581,525 19,591,858 572,349,506 10,099,522,889 585,521,735
2001-02 9,974,228,528 20,289,420 596,850,004 10,591,367,952 524,383,116
2002-03 10,659,245,938 18,939,397 623,191,997 11,301,377,332 571,973,306
2003-04 11,387,731,654 18,939,909 635,802,768 12,042,474,331 529,503,014

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Top Twenty Property Taxpayers

The following table shows the total tax levied against the twenty largest property
taxpayers in Butte County for Fiscal Year 2003-04.

County of Butte
Twenty Largest Local Secured Taxpayers
2003-04
2003-04
Primary Land Assessed Percent of
Property Owner Use Valuation Total "
Farmland Reserve Inc. Agricultural $35,295,633 0.31%
Chico Mall Partners LP Shopping Center 30,792,980 0.27
California Water Service Water Service 23,476,652 0.21
Sierra Sunrise Senior Village of Chico Retirement Home 23,372,302 0.21
Western Investment Real Estate Trust Commercial Store 23,305,584 0.20
Pacific Realty Associates LP Commercial Store 20,733,934 0.18
Pan Pacific Development LLC Commercial Store 19,256,395 0.17
Safeway Inc. Commercial Store 19,222,584 0.17
Evergreen Orchard LLC Commercial Store 17,731,680 0.16
M&H Realty Partners IV LP Commercial Store 17,714,243 0.16
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust Commercial Store 15,347,501 0.13
Merle A. Webb & Sons Apartments 14,304,705 0.13
Lowes HIW Inc. Commercial Store 14,232,060 0.12
Gregory L. and Joan R. Webb Apartments 13,158,821 0.12
Ed and Mary Wittmeier Commercial Store 12,789,491 0.11
1661 Forest Avenue Investors Apartments 12,448,167 0.11
Parrott Investment Co. Inc. Agricultural 12,248,347 0.11
A&L of Chico LLC Professional Buildings 10,777,146 0.09
Ceres Plaza Apartments LLC Apartments 10,634,800 0.09
Paradise Retirement Residence LLC Retirement Home 10,353,371 0.09
$357,196,396 3.14%

M 2003-04 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $11,387,731,654.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Population

As of January 1, 2004, the population of Butte County was estimated to be 212,700, an
increase of 4.7% over the 2000 population of 203,100. The following table shows the population

for Butte County for the years 2000 to 2004.

County of Butte
Population

As of January 1
2000 203,100
2001 206,100
2002 208,600
2003 210,800
2004 212,700

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.

Labor Market and Unemployment Rate

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in Butte County reached an estimated 92,300.
This is an increase of 6.5% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of 86,700. The
annual average unemployment rate increased from 7.0% to 8.9% during the same period. The
table below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative unemployment rates for the

years 2000 to March 2004.

Butte County
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment
Annual Average”

2000
Labor Force 86,700
Employment 80,600
Unemployment 6,100
Unemployment Rate 7.0%

() Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.

2001 2002
88,000 90,100
81,800 83,100
6,200 7,000
7.1% 7.7%

Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.
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91,800
84,600
7,200
7.8%

2004?

92,300
84,100
8,200
8.9%



Major Employers

The following table sets forth the major employers in Butte County.

Butte County
Major Employers
As of April 2004
Employer Location
Aero Union Corp Chico
Butte Community College Oroville
Butte County Government Multiple
California State University - Chico Chico
Enloe Medical Center Chico
Feather Falls Casino Oroville
Gold Country Casino Oroville
Paradise Post Paradise
Pro Pacific Fresh Durham
Roplast Industries Inc. Oroville

Source: California Employment Development Department.

Agriculture and Industry

The economy of the County relies heavily on agricultural production and its fertile land
supports a variety of cash crops, including rice, almonds, walnuts, dried prunes and timber. The
County's industry employers include government, trade, transportation and utilities, and
educational and health services. Government is the largest employment sector in the County and
trade, transportation and utilities is the second largest. Financial activities has become one of the
County's fastest growing industries along with natural resources, mining and construction,

growing 35% and 24% respectively since 1998.
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Type of Business

Aircraft & Parts

Colleges & Universities

Government

Colleges & Universities

Hospitals

Misc. Amusement, Recreation Services
Misc. Amusement, Recreation Services
Advertising

Groceries & Related Products

Plastics Materials & Synthetics



The value of agricultural production in the County for 1998 through 2002 is presented in
the following table.

County of Butte
Value of Agricultural Production
(in 000's)
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Field Crops $ 86,730 $120,435 $127,540 $106,642 $112,987
Seed Crops 5,708 10,190 7,5553 5,755 6,877
Vegetable Crops 550 575 570 505 490
Fruit & Nut Crops 105,521 112,620 138,634 121,991 149,687
Nursery Stock 3,610 6,400 5,961 8,555 7,178
Apiary Products 2,404 2,277 2,515 2,377 2,260
Livestock, all 8,797 9,330 8,573 8,800 8,018
Timber 33,360 29,484 33,484 32,878 18,056
Grand Total $246,990 $291,311 $324,829 $287,503 $305,553

Source: Butte County Agricultural Commissioner's Office - 2002 Agricultural Crop Report.

Litigation

Butte County is a defendant in various lawsuits and is a party to various claims. The
County Counsel estimates that the potential claims against Butte County resulting from such
litigation would not materially affect the financial condition of Butte County.

Plans for Future Borrowing

Butte County anticipates issuing approximately $20 million in tax and revenue
anticipation notes for the 2004-05 Fiscal Year.

Butte County is in the process of installing 997 kw of photovoltaic cells at a cost of $8.4
million. The first $4.2 million is funded from a grant from PG&E. The remaining $4.2 million
is funded through a loan from the California Energy Commission and an internal loan of $1.2
million from the County Treasury. The loans are expected to be paid from the reduction in
utility costs resulting from the project over the next 12.5 years. The cells are guaranteed for a 25
year life. Butte County is also considering issuing bonds to advance fund workers compensation
in order to move from an insured to a self-insured approach. Butte County has indicated that it
does not have current plans for issuing any general obligation debt or certificates of participation
or bonds payable from the general fund.

Butte County also anticipates issuing other obligations in the total aggregate principal
amount of approximately $28.2 million payable from its general fund around the same time as
the Bonds are issued. See "SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT - Other Obligations of
the Local Agencies" in the Official Statement.
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Other Information

Butte County reports that general fund revenue has been reduced by $2,146,243 or 1.4%
of general fund revenues resulting from a loss of vehicle license fee ("VLF") revenue for Fiscal
Year 2003-04. However, the County has budgeted for this loss of funds for Fiscal Year 2004-05
and anticipates repayment of these funds by the State in Fiscal Year 2006-07. See "Risk Factors
— The Local Government Agreement" in the Official Statement.
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THE COUNTY OF KINGS

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the County of Kings ("Kings
County" or the "County"). Such information was provided by the County except as otherwise
indicated.

General

Kings County was created in 1893 from a section of Tulare County. In 1908, one
hundred square miles of territory were added to Kings County from Fresno County, bringing
Kings County total area to approximately 1,390 square miles. Kings County is bordered by
Fresno County to the north, Kern County to the south, Monterey County to the west and Tulare
County to the east. There are four incorporated cities in Kings County: Hanford, Lemoore,
Corcoran and Avenal.

Kings County is a general law county divided into five supervisorial districts on the basis
of registered voters and population. Kings County is governed by a five-member Board of
Supervisors, elected by district. Members serve staggered four-year terms, and the chairman is
elected by the Board members. Kings County administration includes appointed and elected
officials, boards, commissions and committees which assist the Board of Supervisors.

Kings County provides a wide range of services to residents, including public protection,
medical and health services, education, library services and public assistance programs.

Kings County is located in the central San Joaquin Valley approximately half way
between Los Angeles and San Francisco. The county is served by two major highway systems,
Hwy 99 on the east side and Interstate 5 on the west side. Both passenger and freight rail service
is available to the area.

Assessed Valuation

The following table sets forth the assessed valuation by category and property type for
Fiscal Year 1999-00 through Fiscal Year 2003-04.

Kings County
Assessed Valuation History By Category And Property Type(l)
Fiscal Years 1999-00 Through 2003-04

Non-Unitary Total Before Total After Unitary
Local Secured Utility Unsecured Rdyv. Increment Rdyv. Increment Utility

1999-00 $3,972,705,669 $ 7,642,268  $169,573,943  $4,149,921,880  $3,751,746,631 $203,367,432
2000-01  4,193,898,902 7,476,663 179,442,883 4,380,818,448 3,961,200,562 188,935,000
2001-02  4,361,636,990 7,916,830 190,230,838 4,559,784,658 4,115,094,828 170,479,608
2002-03  4,524,292,941 7,221,351 204,290,156 4,735,804,448 4,176,142,657 186,686,341
2003-04  4,936,822,607 167,766,696 219,125,112 5,323,714,415 4,547,754,158 189,232,027

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Top Twenty Property Taxpayers

The following table shows the total tax levied against the twenty largest property
taxpayers in Kings County for Fiscal Year 2003-04.

County of Kings
Twenty Largest Local Secured Taxpayers
2003-04

2003-04 Percent of
Property Owner Assessed Valuation Total"

Leprino Foods Company $287,716,501 5.83%
J.G. Boswell Co. 190,618,728 3.86
Del Monte Corporation 103,713,584 2.10
SK Foods LP 47,970,744 0.97
Hanford Mall Partners LP 39,682,527 0.80
Sandridge Partners 34,672,660 0.70
Waste Management Holdings Inc. 34,494,589 0.70
Wasatch Pool Holdings LL.C 24,557,761 0.50
Chevron USA Inc. 19,695,707 0.40
International Paper 19,435,205 0.39
Exopack LLC 17,740,090 0.36
Hanford Medical Plaza 15,139,788 0.31
William J. Warmerdam 14,366,235 0.29
CAG 45 Inc. 12,972,468 0.26
Penney Newman Milling LCL 12,903,139 0.26
Centennial Capital LP 12,800,000 0.26
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust 11,880,658 0.24
Calcot Ltd. 11,380,542 0.23
DeJong Investment Group 11,118,508 0.23
Valley View Farms 10,943,700 _0.22

$933,803,134 18.92%

M 2003-04 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $4,936,822,607
Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Population

As of January 1, 2004, the population of Kings County was estimated to be 141,400, an
increase of 9.8% over the 2000 population of 128,000. The following table shows the population

of Kings County for the years 2000 to 2004.

County of Kings
Population
As of January 1

2000 128,800
2001 131,600
2002 134,300
2003 137,400
2004 141,400

Source: State of California, Department of Finance

Labor Market and Unemployment Rate

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in Kings County reached an estimated 49,690.
This is an increase of 9% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of 45,600. The
annual average unemployment rate increased from 14% to 17.1% for the same period. The table
below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative unemployment rates for the years

2000 to March 2004.

County of Kings

Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment

Annual Average”

2000 2001 2002
Labor Force 45,600 46,100 47,300
Employment 39,200 39,700 40,400
Unemployment 6,400 6,400 6,970
Unemployment Rate 14% 13.8% 14.6%

() Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.
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49,200
42,000
7,200
14.6%

2004?

49,690
41,200
8,490
17.1%



Major Employers

The following table lists the major employers in Kings County and their type of business, as of
April 2004.

County of Kings
Major Employers
As of April 2004
Employer Location Type of Business

California State Prison Corcoran Government
Central Valley General Hospital Hanford Healthcare
Del Monte Corporation Hanford Preserved Fruits and Vegetables
Double L Contracting Lemoore Personnel Supply Services
Hanford Community Medical Center Hanford Healthcare
Hanford Joint High School District Hanford Education
Palace Bingo Lemoore Amusement & Recreation
US Naval Air Station Lemoore Government
Wal-Mart Hanford Retail Merchandising
Warmerdam Packing Hanford Wholesale Groceries & Related Products

Source: State of California Employment Development Department.



Agriculture and Industry

Kings County's largest industry employers include government, agriculture and trade,
transportation and utilities. Government positions currently account for more than 34% of total
employment in Kings County. In agriculture, the second largest industry employment sector,
Kings County currently ranks twelfth in the state in terms of agricultural production value. The
Tulare Lake Basin area supports extensive cotton and tomato farming operations, and the top
five crops by value were milk, cotton and cottonseed, cattle, alfalfa hay and turkeys. In recent
years, Kings County has successfully diversified its economy by building upon this strong
agricultural base by expanding into the food processing industry with the processing of onions,
garlic, cotton, tomatoes and cheese. Jobs in the trade, transportation and utilities employment
sector provided approximately 12% of all employment in Kings County, particularly in the area
of retail trade.

The following table shows the value of agricultural production for the leading
commodities in Kings County for 1999 through 2003.

County of Kings

Value of Agricultural Production
(in Thousands)

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003

Milk $317,473 $293,313 $361,839 $303,507 $325,412
Cotton 211,477 232,100 205,707 205,353 200,071
Cattle and Calves 51,073 62,617 66,958 66,544 103,683
Alfalfa, Hay 30,907 33,928 39,028 50,186 45,807
Turkeys 46,067 30,449 36,966 33,388 30,117
Alfalfa, Seed 26,085 - - - -
Pistachios 21,442 - 18,271 32,237 37,744
Tomatoes 20,538 21,899 19,610 29,045 26,495
Wheat - 28,993 36,146 29,039 22,525
Peaches - 15,559 15,687 26,848 22,121
Corn Silage 20,840 15,556 17,801 23,709 26,460
Grapes 20,523 15,533 - - -

Total $766,425 $749,947 $818,013 $799,856 $840.,435

Source: Kings County Agricultural Commissioner, Annual Crop Reports.
Litigation

Kings County's County Counsel has determined that there are no significant lawsuits or
potential claims against Kings County that would materially affect the financial condition of
Kings County.

Plans for Future Borrowing
The County reports that it anticipates issuing certificates of participation by the end of
2004 in an amount not to exceed $8 million for the construction of a new jail facility. The

certificates are expected to be repaid by revenues from court penalty assessments, although if the
court penalty assessments are insufficient, the Kings County may pay the certificates from
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moneys in its general fund. Kings County also anticipates issuing municipal lease obligations
during the 2003-04 fiscal year in the amount of $2.4 million for energy retrofitting of Kings
County buildings.

Kings County also anticipates issuing other obligations in the total aggregate principal
amount of approximately $6.9 million payable from its general fund around the same time as the
Bonds are issued. See "SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT - Other Obligations of the
Local Agencies" in the Official Statement.

Other Information

Kings County has recently implemented GASB 34 and has indicated that this accounting
standard will change the presentation of its financial statements, but will not have a material
adverse impact on its financials.

The County's general fund revenue has been reduced by approximately $1.8 million
resulting from the loss of vehicle license fee revenue for Fiscal Year 2003-04. The County has
budgeted for this reduction and does not expect it to affect its operations for the 2004-05 fiscal
year. Kings County anticipates repayment by the State of the VLF reduction in Fiscal Year
2006-07. See "Risk Factors — The Local Government Agreement" in the Official Statement.

Since the last actuarial valuation on June 30, 2002, Kings County has contracted for
minor pension benefits enhancements for its fire safety employees.

The audited 2002-03 Annual Financial Report for Kings County has been completed and
is attached hereto at Appendix D. The audited 2001-02 Annual Financial Report of Kings
County and unaudited financial information for fiscal year 2002-03 that were attached to the
Preliminary Official Statement dated June 4, 2004 have been removed.



CITY OF DALY CITY

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the City of Daly City ("Daly City"
or the "City"). Such information was provided by Daly City except as otherwise indicated.

General

The Daly City is a general law city which was incorporated in 1911. Daly City is located
in the north area of San Mateo County, adjacent to the southern boundary of the City and County
of San Francisco and 45 miles north of San Jose. There are approximately 7.6 square miles of
land included in the Daly City's boundary. Daly City is served by the Bay Area Rapid Transit
("BART") system and is accessible by Interstate 280, U.S. 101 and several state highways. Daly
City's BART stations are important transfer points for commuters en route to San Francisco from
Peninsula locations and local neighborhoods. Daly City is located within close proximity to the
San Francisco International Airport and the Ports of San Francisco and Redwood City. Daly
City is also served by the Municipal Railway (MUNI) of San Francisco and the San Mateo
County Transit District (SAMTRANS).

Daly City operates under a Council-Manager form of government, whereby policies of
the City Council are administered by a City Manager, who is appointed by the City Council. All
municipal departments operate under the supervision of the City Manager. The Council consists
of five members who are elected at large for four-year overlapping terms. The Council elects one
of the Council members to serve as Mayor each year. Municipal services provided by Daly City
include police, fire, public works, general government, parks and recreation, sanitary sewer,
water, community development, planning, and library.

Daly City is part of the highly urbanized Peninsula, which consists of San Francisco, San
Mateo, and Santa Clara counties. Less than 10% of the population is retired, and overall labor
force participation is 52%.

Daly City is a significant retail shopping area in San Mateo County. Daly City draws its
shoppers from San Francisco and the neighboring communities of North San Mateo County.
Two of the most successful regional and community shopping centers in the Bay Area,
Serramonte Shopping Center and Westlake Shopping Center, are located in Daly City.

Serramonte Center, an 860,000 square foot regional shopping center located on Interstate
280, was constructed in the early 1970's by Suburban Realty Company. Serramonte Center is
anchored by Macy's, Target, Mervyn's and the Good Guys, and has over 140 other retail tenants.
Serramonte Plaza, which is adjacent to Serramonte Center, is a mixed-use, office/retail project
with Circuit City, Office Depot, Sportmart and Hollywood Video as tenants.

Westlake Shopping Center has over 620,000 square feet of commercial space. This
discount center is anchored by Safeway, Walgreen's, Burlington Coat Factory, Hollywood
Video, and Trader Joe's.
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Assessed Valuation

The following table shows the assessed valuations for Daly City for fiscal years 1999-00

to 2003-04.
City of Daly City
Assessed Valuations
Total Before
Secured Unsecured Rdy. Increment
1999-00 $4,316,612,527 $122,918,796 $4,439,531,323
2000-01 4,638,518,217 132,857,473 4,771,375,690
2001-02 5,033,633,048 132,101,446 5,165,734,494
2002-03 5,482,283,726 148,807,194 5,631,090,920
2003-04 5,990,705,974 169,352,103 6,160,058,077

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

Top Twenty Property Taxpayers

The following table shows the total tax levied against the twenty largest

taxpayers in Daly City for Fiscal Year 2003-04.

City of Daly City

Total After

Rdy. Increment
$4,353,061,708
4,635,562,764
4,983,352,568
5,275,370,770
5,732,350,266

Twenty Largest Local Secured Taxpayers

Property Owner

HPMC Pacific Plaza LLC

Daly City Serramonte Center LLC
Kimco Westlake LP

John Daly Blvd. Associates LP
Seton Medical Center (2)

Sky Line Heights Apartments LLC
Daly City Partners II LP

Linc Franciscan LP

Serramonte Corporate Center LLC
Target Corporation, Lessee
Serramonte Medical, Lessee
Seagate Buchanan Associates LLC
Bay Apartment Communities Inc.
American Store Properties Inc.

JS Group LLC

First American Tax Valuation
Citizens S&L Association, Lessee

California State Automobile Association

Shurgard Inc.
Shyam Lodging Group LLC

2003-04

Primary Land
Use

Office Building
Shopping Center
Shopping Center
Apartments
Medical Buildings
Apartments
Commercial Stores
Mobile Home Park
Office Building
Shopping Center
Medical Buildings
Office Building
Apartments
Supermarket
Office Building
Apartments

Office Building
Office Building
Industrial

Hotel

" 2003-04 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $5,990,705,974

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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2003-04
Assessed
Valuation

$122,455,621
115,461,354
80,000,000
56,812,318
56,071,438
34,262,346
28,089,485
27,317,587
21,100,000
18,515,422
18,437,795
18,333,157
15,300,346
12,989,184
10,949,612
9,812,151
9,711,855
9,348,467
8,267,743
8.141.105
$681,376,986

property

Percent of
Total ¥

2.04%
1.93
1.34
0.95
0.94
0.57
0.47
0.46
0.35
0.31
0.31
0.31
0.26
0.22
0.18
0.16
0.16
0.16
0.14
_0.14
11.37%



Population

As of January 1, 2004, Daly City's population was estimated to be 103,300, a decrease of
.3% from the 2000 population of 103,600. The following table shows the population for Daly
City for the years 2000 to 2004.

City of Daly City
Population
As of January 1

2000 103,600
2001 103,600
2002 103,300
2003 103,000
2004 103,300

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.
Labor Market and Unemployment Rate

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in Daly City reached an estimated 51,310.
This is a decrease of 7.5% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of 55,470. The
annual average unemployment rate increased from 2.1% to 5.8% over the same period. The

table below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative unemployment rates for the
years 2000 to March 2004.

City of Daly City
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment
Annual Average”

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004%
Labor Force 55,470 54,740 53,290 51,930 51,310
Employment 54,290 52,660 49,840 48,530 48,360
Unemployment 1,180 2,080 3,450 3,400 2,950
Unemployment Rate 2.1% 3.8% 6.5% 6.5% 5.8%

() Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.
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Major Employers

The following table shows the major employers in Daly City.

City of Daly City
Major Employers
2004
Number of
Company Employees
Seton Medical Center 1,580
Jefferson School District 1,418
City of Daly City 775
Target Serramonte 610
U.S. Postal Service 584
Genesys Telecommunications Lab 380

Source: City of Daly City web site: www.ci.daly-city.ca.us.
Litigation

Daly City is a defendant in various lawsuits and is a party to various claims. The City
Attorney estimates that the potential claims against Daly City resulting from such litigation
would not materially affect the financial condition of Daly City.

Plans for Future Borrowing

The City expects to issue certificates of participation in June 2004 in an amount not to
exceed $10.8 million for the purpose of financing other water utility improvements. Payment of
the certificates of participation will be secured by future water utility revenues.

Other Information

The City has received a loan from the State Water Resources Control Board State
Revolving Fund in the Amount of $4,437,040 to finance capital improvements to the Tertiary
Water Treatment Project of the North San Mateo County Sanitation District (the "District"). The
loan is secured from sewer service revenues of the District.

Total vehicle license fees revenues constitute approximately 12% of the City's general
fund revenues. The loss of vehicle license fees under the State's current budget proposal would
not exceed 5% of the City's general fund revenues.
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CITY OF MERCED

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the City of Merced ("Merced" or the
"City"). Such information was provided by Merced except as otherwise indicated.

General

Merced was incorporated in 1889 and operates as a charter city. Merced is located in the
County of Merced (the "Merced County") approximately 131 miles southeast of San Francisco
and 275 miles northwest of Los Angeles. Merced is a full service city operating under a council-
manager form of government.

Merced has long been a Central California transportation hub. The town was born when
the Central Pacific Railroad established a station in 1871, and rail service still plays an important
role. With Highway 99 running through the City of Merced, and Interstate 5 on the West side of
the county, a substantial portion of all north/south traffic in the state passes through the Merced
County. Merced's prime location in the California heartland ensures manufacturers and suppliers
rapid and cost-effective access to the West's major markets, via truck, mainline rail, or air
service.

Merced's largest industry employment sectors are government, agriculture,
manufacturing and retail trade. These four sectors combined provide 71% of the Merced's jobs.
Employment in these sectors is expected to grow, especially in the retail trade sector. Industrial
expansion is progressing with the sale of over thirty (30) acres in the Airport Industrial Park to
several users. Recent industrial developments include the Western Industrial Park, Airport
Industrial Park and University Industrial Park. Major tenants include Safeway Food Processing,
Quebecor and Malibu Boats.

Merced is also the home of a new campus of the University of California. Merced was
selected after an exhaustive seven-year, 80-city site search by university officials. Construction
of the new $600 million educational facilities began in 2002 and is targeted for completion in
2005. The new campus will encompass over 500,000 square feet and will house 2,000 students,
faculty and staff at its opening. The UC-Merced campus development will provide a major
stimulus for the local economy. The new academic community is expected to increase demand
for housing in Merced and surrounding areas, and housing starts are currently double the average
rate experienced during the 1990's. The addition of the campus will create 3,000 new local jobs
by the year 2010, and create an economic benefit of $434 million annually by the time the
campus reaches 10,000 students. The University of California will help to make Merced the
educational and cultural center of the San Joaquin Valley. Campus theatrical productions,
concerts, lectures, exhibits, dances, and workshops, as well as visiting artists and speakers, will
benefit the local community. The availability of undergraduate and post-graduate courses will
insure that opportunities for continuing education are available to our workforce, and will be of
major assistance in attracting new industry and economic growth to the area.
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Assessed Valuation

The following table shows the assessed valuations for Merced for fiscal years 1999-00 to

City of Merced
Assessed Valuations

2003-04.
Secured Utility
1999-00 $2,019,662,932 $7,060,887
2000-01 2,123,171,394 7,011,952
2001-02 2,201,131,642 6,673,878
2002-03 2,410,877,512 5,889,898
2003-04 2,613,362,863 5,836,087

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

Top Twenty Property Taxpayers

Unsecured

Total Before
Rdyv. Increment

Total After
Rdyv. Increment

$160,305,537
154,853,138
162,524,826
223,179,317
228,667,521

$2,187,029,356

2,285,036,484
2,370,330,346
2,639,946,727
2,847,866,471

$1,802,847,949

1,892,169,720
1,953,334,599
2,170,472,906
2,362,250,572

The following table shows the total property tax levied against the twenty largest
property taxpayers in Merced for Fiscal Year 2003-04.

City of Merced

Twenty Largest Local Secured Taxpayers

Property Owner

Quebecor World

Conopco Inc.

Safeway Inc.

Scholle Corporation

Merced Mall Ltd.

California Rental Properties LLC

Lyons Investments, a Partnership

Costco Wholesale Corporation

McLane Company Inc.

Timothy F. and Billie K. Razzari, Co-Trust
Clifford A. and Judith G. Zachman, Trustees
HD Development of Maryland Inc.

Village Landing Partnership

Don and Thelma Irene Gragnani

Dayton Hudson Corporation

Merced Medical Investment Group
Merced Retirement Residence

Jon J. Campisi

Merced Commons Partnership

James E. and Joyce Raley Teel, Trustees

2003-04

Primary Land

Use

Industrial
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial
Commercial
Apartments
Industrial
Commercial
Industrial
Commercial
Apartments
Commercial
Apartments
Agricultural
Commercial
Commercial
Apartments
Commercial
Apartments
Commercial

' 2003-04 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $2,613,362,863

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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2003-04
Assessed
Valuation

$113,266,964
45,844,418
30,188,416
26,659,769
13,526,990
12,985,447
12,607,214
11,960,000
10,713,063
10,661,964
10,253,058
9,637,849
9,500,000
8,842,744
8,229,367
7,660,680
7,003,159
7,000,000
6,693,931
6.479,973
$369,715,006

Percent of
Total ¥

4.33%
1.75
1.16
1.02
0.52
0.50
0.48
0.46
0.41
0.41
0.39
0.37
0.36
0.34
0.31
0.29
0.27
0.27
0.26
_0.25
14.15%



Population

As of January 1, 2004, Merced's population was estimated to be 69,800, a 9.9% increase
over the 2000 population of 63,500. The following table shows the population for Merced for

the years 2000 to 2004.

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004

City of Merced
Population
As of January 1

63,500
64,500
66,500
68,200
69,800

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.

Labor Market and Unemployment Rate

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in Merced reached an estimated 28,360. This
is an increase of 10.8% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of 25,590. The annual
average unemployment rate increased from 14.4% to 18.2% over the same period. The table
below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative unemployment rates for the years

2000 to March 2004.

City of Merced

Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment

2000
Labor Force 25,590
Employment 21,910
Unemployment 3,680
Unemployment Rate 14.4%

Annual Average(1

2001

25,350
21,790

3,560
14.0%

) Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.

@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.

Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.
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2002

26,600
22,780

3,820
14.3%

2003

27,260
23,260
4,000
14.7%

2004?

28,360
23,210

5,150
18.2%



Major Employers

The following table shows the major employers in the City of Merced.

City of Merced
Major Manufacturing and Processing Employers
2004
Company Location Industry
Quebecor World Western Industrial Park Commercial Printing
Malibu Boats Airport Industrial Park Ski/Wakeboard Boats
Werner Company Airport Industrial Park Ladders
Wellmade University Industrial Park Lighting Fixtures
Scholle Corporation Western Industrial Park Food Packing

Source: City of Merced.
Litigation

Merced is a defendant in various lawsuits and is a party to various claims. The City
Attorney estimates that the potential claims against Merced resulting from such litigation would
not materially affect the financial condition of Merced.

Other Information

Merced has issued revenue bonds in June 2004 in the aggregate principal amount of
$21,000,000 and $8,755,000 in connection with its wastewater system and water system,
respectively. These bonds are payable from wastewater system and water system revenues and
will not be secured by a pledge on general fund revenues. Additionally, the City has a
construction loan with County Bank, the proceeds of which are being used for the installation of
water and sewer services to the new University of California - Merced campus. Upon
completion of the project, the financing will be converted to permanent financing with the
University of California as the obligor.

Based on the Governor's May proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05, Merced could
experience a potential loss of revenue of approximately $667,000 which is approximately 2.7%
of the City's General Fund revenues.

The City currently pays post-employment health benefits for 153 retirees at an
approximate annual cost of $600,000. Current contract commitments require that the City
provide heath care insurance for another 420 employees upon their retirement. The City will not
have an obligation to provide post-employment health insurance benefits for police officers and
sergeants hired after December 31, 2002, white collar workers who are part of AFSCME and
hired after December 31, 2003 and members of the Teamsters hired after December 31, 2004.
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CITY OF MILLBRAE

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the City of Millbrae ("Millbrae" or
the "City"). Such information was provided by Millbrae except as otherwise indicated.

General

Millbrae was incorporated in 1948 and operates as a General Law City. The City is
located in the County of San Mateo (the "San Mateo County") approximately 15 miles south of
San Francisco, 35 miles north of San Jose and adjacent to the San Francisco International Airport
("SFO"). Millbrae is served by the Bay Area Rapid Transit ("BART") system and is accessible
by Interstate 280, U.S. 101 and several state highways. Millbrae's BART station is an important
inter-modal transfer point with the Caltrain system for commuters en route to SFO from local
neighborhoods as well as locations from San Francisco, the Peninsula and the entire Bay Area.
Millbrae is located within close proximity to the Ports of San Francisco and Redwood City.
Millbrae is a full service city operating under a council-administrator form of government.

Assessed Valuation

The following table shows the assessed valuations for Millbrae for fiscal years 1999-00
to 2003-04.

City of Millbrae
Assessed Valuations
Total Before Rdyv.
Secured Utility Unsecured Increment
1999-00 $1,759,025,348 $7,492,088 $50,653,981 $1,817,171,417
2000-01 1,869,470,464 6,638,136 50,169,539 1,926,278,139
2001-02 2,011,836,711 8,338,765 56,459,257 2,076,634,733
2002-03 2,107,215,515 8,309,812 52,356,002 2,167,881,329
2003-04 2,279,863,221 7,105,108 54,399,015 2,341,367,344

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Top Twenty Property Taxpayers

The following table shows the total property tax levied against the twenty largest

property taxpayers in the City of Millbrae for Fiscal Year 2003-04.

City of Millbrae

Twenty Largest Local Secured Taxpayers

2003-04

Primary Land

Property Owner Use
Westin Bay Hotel Company Hotel
SLT Realty LP Hotel
Magnolia of Millbrae Inc. Senior Assisted Living
Marymount Greenhills LLC Apartments
Glenborough Pauls Millbrae LLC Recreational
Williams Portfolio I Condominiums
Townsquare Associates Apartments
American Store Properties Inc. Commercial
John and Susan C. Wilms Hotel
Millbrae Hotels Suites LLC Hotel

Green Hills Country Club

Golf Course/Country Club

World Journal Inc. Industrial
Raymond Denardi Apartments
EMIP Partners LP Hotel

Millbrae Square Company Shopping Center
Ramkabir LLC Hotel

Paul D. and Nancy Jean Wright Commercial
Integrated Storage Properties III LLC Industrial

Poplar Apartments LLC Apartments
California Lucky Man Enterprises Commercial

M 2003-04 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $2,279,863,221.

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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2003-04
Assessed
Valuation

$ 40,535,625
31,500,000
24,227,458
18,969,093
12,483,759
11,916,256

9,961,255
9,735,187
8,182,963
7,269,389
6,905,335
6,223,606
6,187,430
5,772,163
5,756,566
5,537,432
4,968,362
4,551,579
4,463,384
4,416,680
$229,563,522

Percent of
Total V

1.78%
1.38
1.06
0.83
0.55
0.52
0.44
0.43
0.36
0.32
0.30
0.27
0.27
0.25
0.25
0.24
0.22
0.20
0.20
_0.19
10.07%



Population

As of January 1, 2004, the City of Millbrae's population was estimated to be 20,450, a
decrease of 1.2% from the 2000 population of 20,700. The following table shows the population
for the City of Millbrae for the years 2000 to 2004.

City of Millbrae
Population
As of January 1

2000 20,700
2001 20,700
2002 20,600
2003 20,450
2004 20,450

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.

As of January 1, 2004 the population for the County of San Mateo was 712,400, a .9%
increase over the 2000 population level of 706,300. The following table shows the population
for the County of San Mateo for the years 2000 to 2004.

County of San Mateo
Population
As of January 1

2000 706,300
2001 709,100
2002 709,900
2003 709,200
2004 712,400

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.
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Labor Market and Unemployment Rate

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in the City of Millbrae reached an estimated
10,380. This is a decrease of 9.0% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of 11,410.
The annual average unemployment rate increased from 1.2% to 3.4% over the same period. The
table below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative unemployment rates for the
years 2000 to March 2004.

City of Millbrae
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment
Annual Average”

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Labor Force 11,410 11,180 10,750 10,470 10,380
Employment 11,270 10,930 10,340 10,070 10,030
Unemployment 140 250 410 400 350
Unemployment Rate 1.2% 2.2% 3.8% 3.9% 3.4%

) Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in the County of San Mateo reached an
estimated 366,800. This is a decrease of 8.3% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force
of 400,100. The annual average unemployment rate increased from 1.6% to 4.4% over the same
period. The table below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative employment
level and unemployment rates for the years 2000 to March 2004.

County of San Mateo
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment
Annual Average”

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Labor Force 400,100 393,200 380,300 370,600 366,800
Employment 393,600 381,700 361,300 351,800 350,500
Unemployment 6,500 11,500 19,000 18,800 16,300
Unemployment Rate 1.6% 2.9% 5.0% 5.1% 4.4%

) Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.
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Major Employers

The City of Millbrae is a "bedroom" community, and the majority of its residents
commute by car, rail or bus to workplaces outside of Millbrae. Millbrae's economic community
is a mix of retail, shopping, restaurants, service businesses, hotels and public services.
According to the Millbrae Chamber of Commerce, the three largest employers in Millbrae are
the Westin Hotel and the Clarion Hotel, both owned by the Starwood Hotel Group, and the El
Rancho Inn and Suites. The Westin and the Clarion each employ approximately 100 people and
the El Rancho employs between 50-100 people. In addition, there are over 800 licensed
businesses in Millbrae and the vast majority of these businesses consist of small retail stores and
shops employing less than five people.

The major employers in the County of San Mateo are listed below.

County of San Mateo
Major Employers
As of April 2004
Employer Location Type of Business
Applied Biosystems Group Foster City Professional & Commercial Equipment

DPR Construction Inc. Redwood City Nonresidential Building Construction

Electronic Arts Inc Redwood City Computer Programming, Data
Processing, and Other Computer Related
Services

Franklin Templeton San Mateo Security Brokers & Dealers

Genentech Inc. South San Francisco Drugs, Proprietaries & Sundries

Mills-Peninsula Medical Center Burlingame Hospitals

Oracle Corp Redwood City Computer Programming, Data Processing
and Other computer Related Services

Raychem Corp Menlo Park Electronic components & Accessories

Sequoia Hospital Redwood City Hospitals

Seton Medical Center Daly City Hospitals

Siebel Systems Inc. San Mateo Computer Programming, Data Processing
and Other Computer Related Services

SRI International Menlo Park Research & Testing Services

United Airlines
UPS
Visa International

South San Francisco
South San Francisco
Foster City

Source: California Employment Development Department.

Litigation

Air Transportation
Freight Transportation
Business Credit Institutions

Millbrae is a defendant in various lawsuits and is a party to various claims. The City

Attorney estimates that the potential claims against Millbrae resulting from such litigation would
not materially affect the financial condition of Millbrae.

Plans for Future Borrowing

Millbrae has indicated that it does not have any current plans for future borrowings.

B-27



Other Information

The City reports that general fund revenues have been reduced by an estimated $300,000
for Fiscal Year 2003-04 and by an estimated $200,000 for Fiscal Year 2004-05. The City has
budgeted for this reduction and has taken steps to reduce expenses.
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CITY OF MONTEREY PARK

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the City of Monterey Park
("Monterey Park" or the "City"). Such information was provided by Monterey Park except as
otherwise indicated.

General

Monterey Park was incorporated in 1916 and operates as a General Law City under the
Council-Manager form of municipal government. Monterey Park is located in the County of Los
Angeles (the "Los Angeles County") approximately 8 miles east of the City of Los Angeles. The
City is a full-service municipal government, offering its residents police, fire and emergency
medical protection, water, sewer and refuse collections, public infrastructure improvements, and
culture and leisure programming. Striving to blend residence and commerce, Monterey Park
maintains 60% of its space for residential living, 11% for industrial, 14% for commercial and
retail use, and 15% for schooling and recreational facilities.

Assessed Valuation

The following table shows the assessed valuations for Monterey Park for fiscal years
1999-00 to 2003-04.

City of Monterey Park
Assessed Valuations
Total Before Total After
Local Secured Utility Unsecured Rdyv. Increment Rdyv. Increment
1999-00 $2,913,616,911 $244,321 $101,623,205 $3,015,484,437 $2,623,218,394
2000-01 $3,037,523,828 $530,721 $99,766,072 $3,137,820,621 $2,716,446,812
2001-02 $3,212,893,652 $530,721 $119,504,643 $3,332,929,016 $2,874,292,759
2002-03 $3,394,267,023 $370,275 $125,783,288 $3,520,420,586 $3,031,984,699
2003-04 $3,636,302,376 $362,530 $95,328,794 $3,731,993,700 $3,215,190,263

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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Top Twenty Property Taxpayers

The following table shows the total property tax levied against the twenty largest
property taxpayers in Monterey Park for Fiscal Year 2003-04.

City of Monterey Park
Twenty Largest Local Secured Taxpayers
2003-04
2003-04 Percent
Assessed of
Property Owner Primary Land Use Valuation Total ¥
Arden Realty Finance Partnership Office Building $ 47,119,016 1.30%
Union Bank Office Building 38,408,140 1.06
Garfield Medical Center Inc. Medical Buildings 38,329,903 1.06
GMS Five LLC Shopping Center 38,065,635 1.05
Lloyds Bank of California Office Building 30,906,000 0.85
Monterey Park Hospital Hospital 22,883,077 0.63
Mar Investment Commercial 18,174,615 0.50
Real Estate Investors 1984 1 et. al. Industrial 16,110,000 0.44
NNN 901 Corporate Center LLC Commercial 13,983,111 0.38
TSL Development Inc. Commercial 12,024,310 0.33
Monterey Atlantic Place Partnership Shopping Center 11,938,723 0.33
Lincoln Plaza Garden Restaurant Commercial 11,050,823 0.30
Fu Jen Company LLC Office Building 10,710,000 0.29
Lyte Optronics Inc. Industrial 10,072,065 0.28
Aespace America Inc. Commercial 9,800,000 0.27
BCTC Development Corporation Commercial 6,988,000 0.19
Miller Brothers Coral Circle LLC Commercial 6,866,638 0.19
Monterey Park Village Associates Commercial 6,786,151 0.19
Energy First Credit Union Office Building 6,692,106 0.18
A HA S Inc. Commercial 6,331,661 0.17
$363,239,974 9.99%

) 2003-04 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $3,636,302,376.
Source: Los Angeles County Assessor 2003-04 Secured Tax Rolls.
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Population

As of January 1, 2004, Monterey Park's population was estimated to be 63,900, an
increase of 6.7% from the 2000 population of 59,900. The following table shows the population
for Monterey Park for the years 2000 to 2004.

City of Monterey Park
Population
As of January 1

2000 59,900
2001 61,400
2002 62,600
2003 63,300
2004 63,900

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.

As of January 1, 2004, the population for Los Angeles County was estimated at
10,103,100, a 6.5% increase over the 2000 population level of 9,487,400. The following table
shows the population for Los Angeles County for the years 2000 to 2004.

Los Angeles County
Population
As of January 1

2000 9,487,400
2001 9,661,800
2002 9,822,600
2003 9,966,200
2004 10,103,000

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.
Labor Market and Unemployment Rate

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in Monterey Park reached an estimated
30,340. This is an increase of 2.1% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of 29,720.
The annual average unemployment rate increased from 4.4% to 5.1% over the same period. The
table below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative unemployment rates for the
years 2000 to March 2004.
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City of Monterey Park
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment

Annual Average”

2000 2001
Labor Force 29,720 30,380
Employment 27,700 28,950
Unemployment 1,320 1,430
Unemployment Rate 4.4% 4.7%

) Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.

2002 2003

30,400 30,370

26,680 28,590
1,720 1,780
5.6% 5.9%

2004?

30,340
28,800
1,540
5.1%

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in Los Angeles County reached an estimated
4,774,700. This is an increase of 2.2% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of
4,671,800. The annual average unemployment rate increased from 5.3% to 6.1% over the same
period. The table below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative unemployment

rates for the years 2000 to March 2004.

Los Angeles County
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment

Annual Average”

2000 2001
Labor Force 4,671,800 4,777,000
Employment 4,421,900 4,506,900
Unemployment 249,900 270,100
Unemployment Rate 5.3% 5.7%

() Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.

Major Employers

2002 2003
4,789,800 4,788,800
4,465,600 4,451,700

324,200 337,100
6.8% 7.0%

The major employers in the City of Monterey Park are listed below.

City of Monterey Park
Major Employers
2004
Employer Number of Employees

East Los Angeles Community College
Union Bank Processing Center

United California Bank Processing Center
Garfield Medical Center

Los Angeles County Sheriff's Dept.

Los Angeles County Children's Court
Community Development Commission
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Employer Number of Employees

City of Monterey Park 500
Monterey Park Hospital 374
Southern California Gas Company 290
Pacific Bell 281
A T & T Communications 233
Chinese Daily News 166
Ralph's Grocery Store (2 Locations) 143
California Highway Patrol 131
La Colonial Tortilla Products, Inc. (2 Loc) 131
Sav-On Drugs (2 locations) 120
Heritage Manor Healthcare 96
Southern California Edison Company 87
Monterey Park Convalescent Hospital 84
Shun Fat Supermarket 82

Source: City of Monterey Park
Litigation

Monterey Park is a defendant in various lawsuits and is a party to various claims. The
City believes that the potential claims against Monterey Park resulting from such litigation
would not materially affect the financial condition of Monterey Park.

Plans for Future Borrowing

Monterey Park is considering entering into certain lease/purchase agreements for water
system improvements and the purchase of major equipment.

Other Information

In March, 2004, Monterey Park entered into a five-year lease/purchase agreement for
$770,000 with LaSalle Bank National Association for the purchase of City vehicles. Additional
debt may be issued to fund water system improvements for major equipment purchases.

Monterey Park receives $3,600,000 in vehicle license fees ("VLF") annually which
amount to 13.5% of the City's general fund revenues. The estimated loss to Monterey Park for
2004-05 is approximately $546,000, or 2% of the General Fund budget. Monterey Park
anticipates repayment by the State of the VLF reduction in Fiscal Year 2006-07. See "Risk
Factors — The Local Government Agreement” in the Official Statement.

Monterey Park has indicated that its voters had previously approved certain special
retirement property taxes which are available to pay for Monterey Park's pension costs. The
special tax will be available to pay debt service on the Bonds. For 2004-05, the projected
retirement tax is $3 million.

Monterey Park has one local business taxpayer (an auto dealership) which contributes in

excess of 17% of the City's sales tax (it represents a 2.9% General Fund budget) received by the
City during the 2003-04 Fiscal Year.
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Monterey Park currently pays post-employment health benefits for 189 retirees at an
approximate annual cost of $776,000. Current contract commitments require that the City
provide healthcare insurance for another 347 full-time employees upon their retirement. The
cost of providing benefits to these retirees in the near term is not expected to be significant; the
long-term costs of providing benefits to retirees is not presently known.

Proposition 218 and 62 cannot materially impact any existing taxes, fees and assessments
collected by the City or the future collection of such taxes at their current rates. They may
impact taxes adopted in the future and future increases in taxes.

Monterey Park is currently a party to litigation involving hazardous materials, however,
the City does not anticipate any adverse financial effects as a result of this litigation.

Based on historic results and assuming the continued viability of the Court of Appeal
decision in County of Orange v. County of Orange County Assessment Appeals Board No. 2 (the
"Orange County Case"), the City does not expect any ongoing or expected challenges to assessed
property valuations to have a significant effect on the City’s finances. No evaluation has been
made concerning the effect on the City's finances if the Orange County Case is overturned on
appeal. See "RISK FACTORS - Recent Litigation Regarding Increase in Assessed Valuation"
in the Official Statement for a description of the Orange County Case.
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CITY OF RIVERSIDE

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the City of Riverside ("Riverside"
or the "City"). Such information was provided by Riverside except as otherwise indicated.

General

The City of Riverside is a charter city founded in 1883 and operates under a Council-
Manager form of government. Riverside is located in the County of Riverside (the "Riverside
County") approximately 60 miles from Los Angeles. The City of Riverside provides is a full
range of services to citizens including sewer, water, electric, refuse, police, fire, recreation,
parks, airport, museum, libraries and street services.

Assessed Valuation

The following table shows the assessed valuations for Riverside for fiscal years 1999-00
to 2003-04.

City of Riverside
Assessed Valuations
Secured Utility Unsecured Total
1999-00 $10,063,942,547 $ 19,303,745 $ 630,052,109 $10,713,298,401
2000-01 10,733,676,024 19,124,138 682,809,430 11,435,609,592
2001-02 11,618,309,751 19,366,272 795,333,567 12,433,009,590
2002-03 12,525,074,163 18,111,595 972,883,427 13,516,069,185
2003-04 13,620,166,707 12,843,594 835,370,922 14,468,381,223

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
Top Twenty Property Taxpayers

The following table shows the total property tax levied against the twenty largest
property taxpayers in the City of Riverside for Fiscal Year 2003-04.

City of Riverside
Twenty Largest Local Secured Taxpayers
2003-04
2003-04
Primary Land Assessed Percent of

Property Owner Use Valuation Total "
Tyler Mall LP Shopping Center/Mall $ 142,410,201 1.05%
State Street Bank & Trust Company of Warehouse 94,846,282 0.70
California
Riverside Healthcare System Hospital 94,669,360 0.70
Charter Communications Entertainment II Communications 60,178,663 0.44
Rohr, Inc. Industrial 56,706,464 0.42
Lyon Corona Pointe Apartments 55,799,880 0.41
California State Teachers Retirement System Apartments 54,359,183 0.40
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Property Owner
Pepsi Bottling Group LLC

Press Enterprise Co.

Mission Grove Park Apartments
Metal Container Corp.

Bryan H. Richter

Ralphs Grocery Co.

University Village

Nordstrom Inc.

Kilroy Realty Square Partnership
Windemere at Sycamore Highlands
Mission Grove Plaza LP

Historic Mission Inn Corp.

Dow Jones & Co. Inc.

Primary Land

Use
Industrial
Industrial
Apartments
Industrial
Apartments
Industrial
Commercial
Department Store
Office Building
Apartments
Shopping Center
Hotel
Industrial

M 2003-04 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $13,620,166,707
Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

Population

2003-04
Assessed
Valuation

48,587,342
45,263,011
43,567,461
41,423,449
36,771,000
35,406,339
32,904,086
30,670,307
28,777,390
28,440,000
27,990,091
26,426,884
25,569,296
$1,010,766,689

Percent of

Total V
0.36
0.33
0.32
0.30
0.27
0.26
0.24
0.23
0.21
0.21
0.21
0.19
0.19
7.42%

As of January 1, 2004, the population for the City of Riverside was estimated to be
277,000, an increase of 9.1% over the 1999 population of 253,800. The following table shows

City of Riverside
Population
As of January 1

the population for the City of Riverside for the years 2000 to 2004.

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004

253,800
261,700
270,100
276,300
277,000

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.

As of January 1, 2004, the population for Riverside County was 1,776,700, a 15.8%

increase over the 2000 population level of 1,533,800. The following table shows the population
for Riverside County for the years 2000 to 2004.

Riverside County
Population
As of January 1

2000 1,533,800
2001 1,586,900
2002 1,648,800
2003 1,719,000
2004 1,776,700

Source: State of California, Department of Finance.
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Labor Market and Unemployment Rate

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in the City of Riverside reached an estimated
177,340. This is an increase of 15.7% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of
153,230. The table below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative
unemployment rates for the years 2000 to March 2004.

City of Riverside
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment
Annual Average”

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004%
Labor Force 153,230 159,490 168,920 173,840 177,340
Employment 144,840 151,190 158,740 163,400 167,250
Unemployment 8,390 8,300 10,180 10,440 10,090
Unemployment Rate 5.5% 5.2% 6.0% 6.0% 5.7%

() Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.

As of March 2004, the civilian labor force in Riverside County reached an estimated
834,000. This is an increase of 15.7% from the 2000 annual average civilian labor force of
720,700. The table below lists figures for the civilian labor force and comparative
unemployment rates for the years 2000 to March 2004.

Riverside County
Civilian Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment
Annual Average”

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Labor Force 720,700 750,000 794,500 817,600 834,000
Employment 680,900 710,700 746,200 768,100 786,200
Unemployment 39,800 39,300 48,300 49,500 47,800
Unemployment Rate 5.5% 5.2% 6.1% 6.1% 5.7%

) Benchmark March 2003; data not seasonally adjusted.
@ Preliminary data as of March 2004.
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department.
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Major Employers

The following table shows the major employers in the City of Riverside.

City of Riverside
Major Employers
2004
Number of
Company Employees
Riverside County Sheriff's Department 3,000
Riverside Unified School District 3,000
Kaiser Permanente Medical Center 1,600
Alvord Unified School District 1,269
Press-Enterprise Company 1,200
Riverside Community College 918
Riverside Community Hospital 900
Goodrich 750
Market Broiler Management Inc. 600
Riverside City Police Department 550
Luxfer Gas Cylinders 540
Fleetwood Enterprises 500
Johnson Machinery 500
Pepsi Cola Bottling Group 500
Riverside County Office of Education 500
Riverside Medical Clinic 500
Riverside Public Utilities 500
SBC 500
The Historic Mission Inn 400
Taco Bell/ET Tacos Inc. 400

Source: Greater Riverside Chamber of Commerce, May 2004.
Litigation

Riverside is a defendant in various lawsuits and is a party to various claims. The City
Attorney estimates that the potential claims against Riverside resulting from such litigation
would not materially affect the financial condition of Riverside.

Plans for Future Borrowing

Riverside indicates that two new assessment districts are in the process of formation and
will issue bonds upon formation and that another assessment district is in the process of
refunding its bonds. These bonds will not be secured by a pledge on general fund revenues.

Other Information

In December 2003, Riverside completed a $53 million certificate of participation
financing to finance various municipal construction and acquisition projects, including a fire
station, park improvements, a parking structure, sewer improvements, a police station and a
library. These certificates of participation mature in 2033. In early 2004, Riverside completed
two bank financings in the aggregate amount of $3.8 in connection with a software project.
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Furthermore, voters have also approved general obligation bonds to construct certain fire
facilities.

In June 2004, Riverside issued $110 million of Electric Revenue Bonds for generation
and distribution facilities. Riverside's Redevelopment Agency recently issued Tax Allocation
Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $7.5 million. These bonds are not secured by a
pledge on general fund revenues.

Riverside's Street Light Assessment District revenues were challenged by the Howard
Jarvis Tax Payers' Association. Riverside has prevailed with respect to this challenge.

The City reports that the loss of the backfill for reduced motor vehicle license fee
revenues could result in a reduction of approximately $11 million or 7% of general fund
revenues. See "Risk Factors — The Local Government Agreement" in the Official Statement.
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INCOME STATEMENT
Total Revenues
Total Expenditures
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Income
Beginning Fund Balance
Adjustments + Transfers
Ending Fund Balance
BALANCE SHEET
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Total Fund Equity
Total Liabilities + Fund Equity

INCOME STATEMENT
Total Revenues
Total Expenditures
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Income
Beginning Fund Balance
Adjustments + Transfers
Ending Fund Balance
BALANCE SHEET
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Total Fund Equity
Total Liabilities + Fund Equity

INCOME STATEMENT
Total Revenues
Total Expenditures
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Income
Beginning Fund Balance
Adjustments + Transfers
Ending Fund Balance
BALANCE SHEET
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Total Fund Equity
Total Liabilities + Fund Equity

Butte, County of Daly, City of Kings, County of
06/30/01 06/30/02 06/30/03 06/30/04 06/30/01 06/30/02 06/30/03 06/30/04 06/30/01 06/30/02 06/30/03 06/30/04
Audited Audited Audited Estimated Audited Audited Audited Estimated Audited Audited Audited Estimated
116,607,893 121,282,126 126,667,394 134,488,351 47,539,148 47,503,230 48,656,357 57,626,274 95,875,562 104,325,086 107,459,166 121,300,000
102,841,203 108,996,401 119,992,559 150,584,454 41,966,887 46,653,688 49,762,228 57,275,920 94,479,877 104,387,207 105,314,546 121,300,000
(7,046,309) (5,471,288) (490,410) (2,575,697) (979,743) 1,393,465 (506,121) (526,000) 13,571
6,720,381 6,814,437 6,184,425 (16,096,103) 2,996,564 (130,201) 287,594 350,354 889,564 (588,121) 2,158,191
14,991,204 21,711,585 42,489,825 48,674,325 29,305,069 32,301,633 32,171,432 32,247,392 11,054,250 12,054,354 11,466,233 15,165,662
13,963,803 75 (211,634) 110,540 1,541,238
21,711,585 42,489,825 48,674,325 32,578,222 32,301,633 32,171,432 32,247,392 32,597,746 12,054,354 11,466,233 15,165,662 15,165,662
31,965,071 52,367,858 58,117,965 46,677,991 47,381,516 48,855,431 12,940,410 12,569,592 16,763,488
10,253,486 9,878,033 9,443,640 14,376,358 15,210,084 16,608,039 880,056 1,103,359 1,597,826
21,711,585 42,489,825 48,674,325 32,301,633 32,171,432 32,247,392 12,054,354 11,466,233 15,165,662
31,965,071 52,367,858 58,117,965 46,677,991 47,381,516 48,855,431 12,940,410 12,569,592 16,763,488
Merced, City of Millbrae, City of Monterey Park, City of
06/30/01 06/30/02 06/30/03 06/30/04 06/30/01 06/30/02 06/30/03 06/30/04 06/30/01 06/30/02 06/30/03 06/30/04
Audited Audited Audited Estimated Audited Audited Audited Estimated Audited Audited Audited Estimated
22,990,736 24,289,323 26,560,958 30,928,378 12,931,929 11,006,671 10,680,424 13,312,357 24,893,366 24,709,683 25,306,407 25,686,001
19,666,226 20,824,621 22,908,931 30,928,378 12,447,075 12,651,857 11,803,163 15,121,739 23,034,647 23,748,632 24,471,464 25,546,471
(1,461,807) (1,752,787) (2,494,271) (694,418) 27,014 648,584 (150,000) (156,007)
1,862,703 1,711,915 1,157,756 (209,564) (1,618,172) (474,155) (1,809,382)] 1,708,719 805,044 834,943 139,530
10,236,108 12,098,811 13,807,362 14,816,933 3,602,589 3,393,025 1,774,853 1,300,698 7,063,765 8,772,484 9,577,528 10,412,471
(3,364) (148,185)
12,098,811 13,807,362 14,816,933 14,816,933 3,393,025 1,774,853 1,300,698 (508,684) 8,772,484 9,577,528 10,412,471 10,552,001
12,718,790 14,502,381 15,747,691 4,292,142 2,453,111 2,027,499 10,206,832 11,114,862 12,258,201
619,979 695,019 930,758 899,117 678,258 726,801 1,434,348 1,537,334 1,845,730
12,098,811 13,807,362 14,816,933 3,393,025 1,774,853 1,300,698 8,772,484 9,577,528 10,412,471
12,718,790 14,502,381 15,747,691 4,292,142 2,453,111 2,027,499 10,206,832 11,114,862 12,258,201
Riverside, City of
06/30/01 06/30/02 06/30/03 06/30/04
Audited Audited Audited Estimated
125,917,000 125,495,000 129,287,000 122,062,571
130,474,000 135,994,000 145,163,000 148,600,423
30,505,000 15,138,000 18,060,000
25,948,000 4,639,000 2,184,000 (26,537,852)
44,189,000 70,137,000 74,776,000 81,738,000
4,778,000
70,137,000 74,776,000 81,738,000 55,200,148
100,928,000 111,999,000 121,367,000
30,791,000 37,223,000 39,629,000
70,137,000 74,776,000 81,738,000
100,928,000 111,999,000 121,367,000
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FINANCTAL SECTION

Gilbert Associates, Inc.
CPAs and Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors and Grand Jury
County of Butte
Oroville, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the government activities, the business-type
activities, each major find, and the aggregate remaining find information of the County of Butie,
California, (the County), as of and for the vear ended June 30, 2003, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents, These finaneial statements are the
responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit,

* We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial zudits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
migstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial staternents., An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
#nd sipnificant estimates made by msanagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides 4 ressonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the government activities, the business-type activitics, each major find,
and the zggregate remaining fund information of the County as of June 30, 2003, and the respective
changes in financial position and eash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 21,
2003, on our consideration of the County’s internsl control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Atditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audiz,

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and schedulss of funding progress and budgetary
comparison inforration on pages 2 through 11 and 49 through 52, respectively, are not a reguired part of
the financial statements but are supplementary information required by the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain Emited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and pregentation
of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and €Xpress no opinion on

it.
0. '
Mﬂyu&t‘ OUA-O ocalro ) v
GILBERT ASSOCIATES, INC.
November 21, 2003

2880 Gageway Oaks Dr. » Suite 160 4 Sacramento, CA %5833
Phone 916.646.6404 * Fax 916.641.2727 .
http:/ /www. gilbertcpa.com



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

In this section of the County of Butte’s (County) annual financial report, the County
management discusses financial results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, It should
be read in conjunction with the County’s financial statements following this section. All
dollar amounts are expressed jn thousands in the text and tables unless otherwise
indicated,

L FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

*  The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fissal
year by $427,675 (net assets). Of this amount, $32,421 (unrestricted net assefs) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors,

®  The government’s total net assets decreased by $8,104 during the year.

*  Ag of June 30, 2003, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $75,999, a net increase of $2,589 in coinparison with the prior
year. This net increase represents an increase of $3,848 in reserved fund bafances
and a decrease of $1,259 in unreserved fiund balances, which may be used to meet
the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

- e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the

general find was $16,079 or 13.4% of total general fund expenditures.

¢ The County’s total long-term obligations as of June 30, 2003 increased by §4,329
over the prior period. A key factor in the increase was the issuance of the 2003
COPS bonds to refinance the 1993 Justice Facility COPS and the fire trucks capital
leases, but the old debt totaling $5,222 was not due and payable until July, 2003, 5o
is still showing as outstanding long-term debt as of June 34, 2003, Other key factors
affecting the long-term debt were a capital equipment lease for the Neal Road
Landfill for $2,258, and a decrease in the Landfill Closure/Post-Closure calculated
liahility of $2,954.

II. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘A. GASB 34 Financial Report Model

The County of Butte has adopted a financial reporting model that is designed to
demonstrate government accountability by presenting both a long-term and a near-term
view of its finances, This model is prescribed by Staterment Number 34 of. the
Government Accounting Standard Board (GASB 34). This model is comprised of three
parts: 1) Management Discussion and Analysis which provides the financial highlights;
2) The County’s basic financial statements, which consist of the Government-Wide
financial statements; the Fund financial statements and the Notes to the financial
statements; 3} Required Supplementary Information.

B. Gaovernment-Wide Financial Statements

The govemmeni—wide financial statements provide an overview of the County’s finances,
in a manner similar to a private-sector business, that is, using the accrual basis of
accounting. They demhonstrate accountability of Butte County by showing the extent to



ch it has met operating objectives efficiently and effectively, using all resources
available, and whether it can continue to do sq.

The statement of met assets presents information on all of the County’s assets and
Kabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,
increases or decreases in nef assets may serve as & usefn! indicator of whether the
financial position of the County is improving or deferiorating.

The statement of activities presents information on expenses and revenues 1o show how
the government's net assets changed during the fiscal yedr. All changes in net assets are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues are reported as soon as eamoed and
expenses are reporied as soon as incurred even though the related cash flows may not
take place until fiture fiscal periods (e.g., earned byt unused vacation leave),

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (govermmnental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities) The governmental
activities of the County include general government, public protection, public ways and
facilities, health and sanitation, public assistarice, education and recreation. The
business-type activities of the Counly include the Butte County Landfill and Butte
County Transit Funds.

Certain component units such as county service areas ere cssentially part of ‘County
operations and their financial data are blended in with operational funds of the County.

€. ' Fund Financial Statements

The fimd financial statemenis provide evidence of accounizbility by demonstrating
compliance with budgetary decisions made in public forum. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that are used to maintain comtrol over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or purposes stipulated by laws, regulations or policies,
The funds of the County are divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary,

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same finctions reported as
governmental aciivities in the govemment-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the govermment-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements,

The County maintains 142 individual governmental finds. On the financial statements
for povernmental funds information is presented separately for three major funds: the
General Fund, the Welfare Fund and the Road Fund. Data from the other governmental
funds are aggregated into a single colurmn,

Proprietary funds are of two types. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its central landfill and transit
operations. Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs intermnally
among the County’s various funictions. The County uses intermnal service funds to account
for a variety of services including telephone services, fleat services, insurance,
information systems, duplicaling, utilities and facilities maintenance. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they
have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary funds statements provide the same type of information as the part of
government-wids financial statements pertaining to business-type activitics, only in more
detgil. - The County’s internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements

Fiduciary fands are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
staternent because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s
programs. n the fiduciary fund category, the County maintains hoth agencies fiunds and
investment trust funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that i essential to
a full understanding of the information provided in the financial statements,

D. Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements, this report presents Required Supplementgry
Information that includes budgetary comparisons for the General Fund and the major
funds and combining statements for the aggregated non-major finds.



M.  FINANCIAL ANALYSES COUNTY-WIDE

The following table presents the activities that accounted for the changes in net aasets,

County of Butte's Net Assets
Governmental Business-type TFotal
actlvities aclivities
02-03 01-02 02-03 01-02 02-03 01-02
ICurrent and other asseks 92,588 90,904 15418 15445 {08,007 106,349
Capltal assets 358,584 368,490 6,652 3,716 365,238 372206
Total assels 451,172 459,394 22071 18,161 473,243 478,555
ICurrent and cther liabiities 13,487 14,643 942 1,342 14,438 15,985
Long-term liabilities 23,701 18,675 7428 8,116 31,129 26,791
Total Hiabilities 37,198 33,318 8,370 9458 45568 - 42,77
Net assats: 413,874 428,075 13,701 9,708 427,675 435,779
et assets: .
Invested in capilal essets, net of
related debt 348,873 361,052 4,390 3,716 351,263 364,768
Restricted 43,991 50,628 1] 0 43,991 50,628
Unrestricted ' 23,110 14,396 8311 5,987 32,421 20,383
Total net assets - 413,974 426,076 13,701 9,703 427,675 436,779
l

Investment in capital assets net of related debt reflects the County’s investment in capital
assets (i.e. its Jand, structures and improvements, infrastructure and equipment), The
County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Restricted net assets represent resonrces that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used.

Linrestricted net assets represent 7,6% of the total net assets and may be used to meet the
County’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. .

Beside the amount invested in capital assets, there are externally imposed debt service
Teserve and statutory constraints on the use of 100% of the restricted net assets,

County of Butte's Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type Total
acfivities aclivitles
0203 01-02 02-03 01-02 02-03 01-02
Revenues:
IProgram Revenues:
Charges for services 29,861 27,358 4,863 4,399 34,729 31,757
Grants & contributions 207,823 208,812 2,097 1,600 * 209,920 210,412
General Revenues: 1] D
Property taxes 17,799 14,269 17,789 14,269
Othar taxes 6,184 6,068 6,164 6,868
Other revenues 21,645 22832 651 868 22206 23,520
[Total revenies: o 283,292 280,039 7,618 8,887 290,908 286.825
Expenses: _
General government 13,404 12,673 13,404 :12.073
Public protection 67.876 61,186 67,876 61,196
Public ways and facilities 28,483 27,580 28463 27,590
Heaith and sanitation 55,005 49,121 55,095 49,121
Public Assistance 127,800 123,119 127,600 123,119
Education 2,522 2,454 2,522 2,454
Culture and racreation 534 430 534 430
GCentrat landfill 1,426 4,781 1426 4,181
Translt enterprise 2,192 1,796 2,182 1,796
Total expenses: 205,394 275,983 3,618 8,577 208,012 282560
Increase {decrease) in net assets {12,102) 4,056 3,098 310 (8,104) 4,36
Beglnning net assels 426,076 422,020 9,703 9393 435779 431,413
jEndIng net assets 413,874 426,076 13701 9,703 427675 435,779

The following highlights significant factors that affected the governmental and business
activities and contributed to the decrease in net assets:

s Governmental Activities accounted for a decrease in net assets of $12,102. This
decrease is due primarily from current year depreciation expense of the County’s
infrastructure (roads and bridges) capital assets excesding the cument vear capital
outlays for infrastructure by a total of $14,966,



Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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IV,  FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF FUNDS

A§ noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with budgetary and legal requirements.

Governmental funds, The general government functions are included in the General,
Special Revenue, and Capital Project Funds. Included in these funds are the special
districts governed by the Board of Supervisors. The focus of the County’s governmental
funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful ir assessing the County’s financing
requircments. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
the County’s net resources available for spending at the cnd of the fiscal year.

At fune 30, 2003, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $75,999. Approximately 39.7% of this total amount ($30,185) constitutes
unreserved fund balance, which may be used to meet the County's ongoing general

obligations to citizens and creditors. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to
indicate that it is not available for general obligations because it has been committed in
the form of prior year obligations (encumbrances), inventories, debt service reserves or
the funds have statutory restrictions.

The general fund is the main operating fund of the County. Ai June 30, 2003, unreserved
fund balance of the gensral fund was $18,581 while total fund balance reached $48,674.
As measures of the peneral fund’s liquidity, it is useful to note that wnreserved fund
balance represents 15.5% percent of fotal fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 40.6% percent of that same amount.

The foliowing table presents the revenues from various sources as well as increases or
decreases from the prior year in the governmental funds.

. County of Butie
Revenues in the Governmental Funds
FY 2003 FY 2002 Change
Revenne Sources Amount Swoftotal Amonnt % oftotal Arount % ofcl
Taxes 5 22,754 8.1% § 21,238 7.5% § 1,516 7.1%
Licenses and permits 3,989 1.4% 3,398 1.2% 591 17.4%
Fines, forfeifures and penalties 2,255 0.8% 2,115 0.7% 140 6.6%
Use of money and property 3,053 1.1% 3,533 1.3% (480) -13.6%
Intergovernmental 223,632 79.2% 214,680 79.6% {1,048) -0.5%
Charges for services 22,705 8.0% 20,092 1.1% 2,613 13.0%
Qther 3,913 1.4% 5,638 2.0% {1,725 -30.6%
Total $ 282,301 100% § 280,694 99% § 1,607 0.6%

Significant changes for major revenue sources are explained below.

e Taxes — Tax revenucs include sales taxes and property taxes. The increase in tax
revenues 1s due to primarily to increased property taxes as well as smaller increases in
sales tax and property transfer tax revenues.

s Licenses and Permits - Increased franchise fee revenues as well as increased revenues
from consiruction permits and planning application fees account for most of the
increase noted in this revenue category.

¢ Use of money and property — Reflects decreased market interest rates available.
Pooled investment interest earnings for the quarter ended 6/30/03 were 3.79% versus
a 4.56% return for the same petiod one year ago (a decrease of 16.9%}

a  Charges for services — The increased charges for services revenues reflects increases
from a wide variety of sources. Two significant increases were due to increased
services agreements with the Butte County Children’s and Families Commission
($600) and increased court — related fees ($400).



Other — Grants and contributions from private funding sources for the South Oroville
Community Center accounted for $1 ,270 of the FY 2002 revenues. Since construction
was completed in that year, there were no comparable revenues in the current year.

The following table presents expenditures by furciion compared to prior year’s amounts
in the governmental funds.

County of Butte
Expenditures in the Governmentzl Funds
FY 2003 EY 2007 Change
Functicn Amount %oftotal  Amount  %ofiotal  Amount % of change
General governmment 8 13,565 48% § 13,294 47% § 271 2.0%
Public protection 12,319 254% 68,904 24.2% 3,415 5.0%
Public ways and facilides 13,942 4.9% 14,798 3.2% (856) -5.8%
Health and sanitation 24,706 19.2% 48,967 17.2% 5,739 11.7%
Public assistancs 127,326 44.7% 122,399 42.9% 4,921 4.0%
Education 2,596 0.9% 2324 0.8% 272 E1.7%
Culiure and recreation 630 0.2% 4,066 1.4% (3,436) -84.5%
Total § 285078 100% § 274752 26% § 10326 3.8%

Significant changes for mejor functions are explained below.

¢ Health and sanitation — Behavioral Health expenditures increased by $4,100 and
Public Health expenditures by $1,600. :

» Culture and recreation — The decrease in this fimetion is due to the completion of the
construgtion of the South Oroville Community Center in FY 2002,

Proprictary funds. The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. These funds
include the enterprise funds: Butte County Transit Funds and the County Centra] Landfifl
funds; and the internal service funds which are presented in aggregate,

V. GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Pi&'erences between the original budget and the final amended budget were $4,164 of
increased appropristions funded primarily by additional grant revenues received from
State and Federal programs ($3,195) as well as increased charges for services ($1,028).

During the year, actual revenues were less than budgetary estimates by $2,675. Actual
expenditures and transfers were less than budpetary estimates by $29, 297, The net effect
of under-realization of tevenues and under-utilization of appropriations resulied in a
favorable variance of $26,622, Although a significant portion of the variance, $6,184,

reflected increases to reserved fund balances, the amount of available general fund
balance at fiscal year-end increased by $156 from the prior period, to $18,581.

VL. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
A, Capital Assefs

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of June 30, 2003, amounts to $365,236 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, structares and improvements, equipment,
construction-in-progress, and some infrastructure. The total decrease in the County’s net
investment in capital assets for the current petiod was 61.9% . The decrease resulted from
infrastructure depreciation exceeding infrastructure assets acquired by $14,966.

Key events affecting capital assets during the fiseal year included the following:

+ GASB 34 requires the County to record infrastructure costs as capital assets.
Infrastructure includes the County’s road network, bridges, drainage ditches, and
sewer syslems, if any. As provided for in Statement 34, the County is phasing in the
historical costs related to it's infrastracture. Currently, only the roads network
includes historical costs and related depreciation. All current year acquisition costs
identified for infrastructure have been included. Current year infrastructure
acquisitions totaled $4,362 while depreciation was $19,328. Tnformation on other
exigting infrastructure assets will be provided in the next four fiscal years, as
permitted by Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34,

* For government-wide financial statement presentation, all depreciable capital assets
were depreciated from acquisition date to the end.of the current fiscal year. Fund
financial statements record capital asset purchases as expenditures.

County of Butie's Capital Assets

{Net of Depreciation)
Governmental getjvities | Business-type activities Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Land 1,680 1,215 488 438 2,168 1,703
Structures & improvements 31,853 32415 548 517 32,401 32,932
Equipment 11,188 1,158 4,984 2,711 16,172 12,869
Infrastructure 301,304 316,270 301,304 316,270
Construction in progress 12,558 8,433 632 13,190 8,431
Total 358,583 368,491 6,652 3716 1 365235 372007

B. Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2003, the County had total long-terma debt outstanding of $15,021 consisting
of $9,345 in Certificates of Participation, capital lease obligations of $4,624, bonds
payable of 81,052. Additional long-term liabilities inelude compensated leave payable of

10




40, actuarial claims liability of $1,324 for the general insurance ISF, and landfill
closure/post closure care lighility of $5,145.

Additional information on the County’s long-term labilities can be found in the Notes Lo
the Financial Statements section of this report.

YII.  Fiscal Qutlook

The County adopted it's fiscal year 2003-2004 Final Budget in the total amount of
$318,905, with a General Fund Contingency Appropriation of $6,023, While this
represents inereased financing requirements of $23,771 from the prier year, the General
Fund Contingency Appropriation decreased by $1,281. The County is facing a difficult
fiscal challenge in the shori-term. Although the most critical fiscal uncertainty facing the
County continues to be the impact on local government from actions the State of
California may take in addressing it's own fiscal problems, large increases in employee
benefit and worker's compensation insurance costs will also impact the ability of the
County to maintain current service levels. :

YIO. Request for Infermation

This financial report is designed to demonstrate aceountability by the Butte County
government by providing both a long-term and near-term views of the County's finances.
Questions or colments regarding any of the information presented in this report or
tequesls for additional finencial mformation should be addressed io the Auditor-
Controller, 25 County Center Drive, Oroville, CA 95965,
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COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Net {Expense} Revenue and
Propramm Revenves Chanpes in Net Assets
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Fenctions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Frimary governmeng:
Governmental activities: N .
General government § 134063744 § 5563714 3 810,692 3 (7,029,338} 5 (7,029,338)
Public protection 67,875,626 13,731,788 19,832,185 $ 944,672 (33,366,981) (33,366,981)
Public ways and facilities 28,463,533 2,631,921 10,887,733 1,260,654 (13,683,225) (13,683,225)
Healtk and sanitation 55,045,207 6,391,541 48,759,180 55,514 55,514
Public assistance 127,560,579 Li57.862 124,167,910 (2,174,807) (2,174,807)
Education 2,522,005 327,068 712,109 (1,482,828) (1,AR2,828)
Culture and reercation 533,602 57,256 9,162 438,603 {28,581 (28,581)
Total povernmental activities 295,394,296 29.861,150 205,178,971 2,643,929 {57,710,246) (57,710,246}
Business-type activities:
Sanitation 1,423,942 4,553,286 511,827 5 3,639,171 3,639,171
Transit 2,192,068 314,320 1,585,564 (292,184 {252,184}
Total business-type activities 3,618,010 4,867,606 2097,39 3,346,987 3,346,987
“Fotal Burme County $ 299012306 3 34728756 5 207,276,362 $ 263909 {37.710.246) 3,346,987 {54,363.259)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes 17,795,624 17,798,624
Sales taxes 3,517,481 3.517.481
Special assessments 292,941 262,941
Othar taxes and related revenues 2,353,498 2,353,498
Grants and contributions niot restricted to specific programs 15,056,401 15,056,40%
Unrestricted investment camings 1,587,619 632,463 2,220,082
Miseeltaneous 5,008,578 18,362 5,027,440
Transfers (6,906} (6.906)
Total general revennes and transfers 45,608,236 631,325 46,259,561
Changs in net assets (12,102,010} 3,998,312 (8,103,698)
Net assers--beginning of year 426,075,956 9,703,054 435,779,010
Met assetsw-ending of year S 413973946  § 13,701,366 § 427675312
—_ E
u
- ~® 2ccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemetts,



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA,

BALANCE SHEET
GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2003
Other Total
General Welfare Road Governmental Governmentad
Fund Fund Fund Funis Fungs
ASSETS
Cash and investments § 44,766,365 3 3592229 $ 7671203 $ 11,608,412 ] 67,644,209
Restricted cash with fiscal agent 481127 £,163,180 5,974,454
Emprest cash 44,270 100 5,265 49,635
Dwe from ather funds 2,194,292 250,432 131,304 2,794 243 3,370,271
Accounts recgivable 43,995 627 4,078 2,597 51,297
Due from ather governments £251,685 2,344,274 1477151 916,529 10,989,639
Prepaid items 2,564 11,140 14,724
Deposits from others 2,500 297 1797
Inventary 118,333 119,333
Loans receivable 3 134481 3,634,460
Totz assets $ 354,117,955 3 6187 gﬁZ § 9 409=169 H l9g635!124 - 3 93,350,820
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES '
Liabilities:
Due from other Einds $ 2940625 $  1,184365 $ 20,687 s 315,608 3 4,479,285
Accrued interest 133476 450 133,926
Accounts payable and aceursd liabilities 2,944 054 536,829 1,001,662 1,186,073 5,668,518
Salaries and bensfits payable: 1,513,570 491,480 118,849 193,184 2,317,083
Deferred reveni 1,902,915 2801453 48 48847 4,753273
- Total liabilities 9443 640 5,014,137 1,150,246 1,744,152 17,352,185
Fund balances:
Reservered for:
Encumbtzances 7,257,572 1,274 877 2,573,001 3,456,499 14,561,949
Imgurest cash 44270 160 5,265 49,635
Deposits with others 2,500 2,500
Loan receivables 3,134,461 3,134 461
General restrictions 18,132,280 2,639,377 1,367,051 22,138,708
Debt service 4,656,265 1,150,916 5,807,181
112,333 119,333
Unraserved:
Desipnated 2,502,727 65,426 548,033 4,9814T3 8,097,662
{Genernl find 16,078,711 16,078,711
Special revenue funds {166,881) 2375079 5,127,644 7339342
Canpital project funds (1,331,347 (1,331,347}
Total fund balances 48 674 325 1,573,425 8,258,523 17,891,962 75,958,633
Tota! liabilities and fund balances $ 358 ll‘I!%S $ 6187562 L) 409!I69 E] 19 636!]24 % 93 350,820
The accompanying notss are an integral part of these financial stalements. 14



COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENBED JUNE 30, 2003

COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2003

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of tet assets are different becanse:

Fund bolance-fotal gavernmental funds

Capital assets used In governmental activities are not financizl resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. These assets consist of

Land
Construction jn progress
Infrestructure, net of $276,101,722 accumuated depreciation
Buildings and improvements, net of $12,997,326 accunclated depreciation
Equipment, net of $23,236,688 accumulated depreciation
Tolul capital assets

Internal service funds are used by the county o charge ths cost of liability,
malpractice, and worker's compensation insurance to individual funds, The
agsets and Habilitics of the internal servise funds are included in governmertal
activities in the statement of net assets,

Long-term liabitities applicabl to the County's povernmentz! activitics are nat
due and payablc in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund
liabilities. Interest on long-terma debit is not acerued in governmental funds, but
rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All lgbilifles are reparted in the
statement of net assets, Balances as of June 30, 2003 are;

Certificates of participation
Bonds payzble
Capital leases
Compensated absences
Claims and judgments

Total [ong-term lishilities

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1,679,979
12,556,230
301,303,860
31,852,298

11,188,400

{9,345,000)
(1,051,620}
{2,365,795)
(5,615,024)
(1,524,000

$ 75,998,633

358,583,767

3,092,983

(23,701,439)

§ 413,973,946
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REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and pumiits
Fines, forfeits and penzlties
Revenues from uses of money and propeny
Atd from other povemments
Charges for services
Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Gerrnal government
Public profection
Public ways and facilities
Health and sanitation
Public assistnce
Education
Recreation and cultaral services
Tatal expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditrgs

‘OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (1ISES):
Sales of fixed asset
Operating transfers in
‘Opemting transfer out
Capitalized |eages
Totat ather financing sources (nses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund batance-beginning of year
Equity fransters

Fuand balance-ending of year

Dther Toial
General Wellure Road Governmental Governmental
Fuad Fund Fund Fundy Funds
§ E5318,304 5 7,435,489 H 22,753,793
3,478,678 5 242,289 267,572 3,988,539
2,094,173 160,956 2,255,129
1,675,543 5 38,296 252,512 1,086,818 3,053,170
82,198,075 115,029,397 12,148,388 14,256,473 223,632,528
18,599,335 691,233 1,561,261 1,853,411 22,705,240
3,303,288 76,498 134275 308414 3912473
126,667,304 115,835,61% 14,338,726 25.459.133 282,300.872
12,030,003 1,534,582 13,564,592
54,239,020 285,069 17,794,690 72,318,719
13644213 298,E36 13,942,349
52713286 1,993,136 34,706,422
552,312 117,258,407 9,509,328 127,320,047
198,343 2,397,502 2,595,937
259,503 - 370,151 629,744
119,992,558 117,543,476 13,644 213 33,897,622 285077870
6,574,835 {1,707.651) 694,513 {8,438 439) 176,998
20,528 5,858 14,339 15,224 55,049
819,863 5,845 5,749 458 6,628,970
(5219459} {1,138,430) {6,358,889)
3,888,638 1,151,361 5,020,019
{490.4L0) 65,507 14,339 5.776,613 5366045
6,184,425 (1,642,350 708,852 (2,561,876} 2,589,651
42,389,825 2,815,775 7,550,071 20553913 73,409,584
75 {75) 0
S s umas 3 masmy 3 UBLSE 8 500k

The accompanying notes are an intzgral part of these financial statements,
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COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALTFORNIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND FROE TRy puns
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE ’
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES . o
OVErnen
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003 Busi Typs Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
Internsl
Service
Transit Landfiil Total Funds
Amounts reported for goveramental activities in the ASSETS R
statements of activities are different because: ' Cash and investments $ 365536 $ 14,386,013 5 14,751,549 3 3,007,615
Imprest eash 1,000 1,000 5;2%
Net change to fund balance-total governmental funds $ 2,589,051 5::0:’::’ ;1:1;1“5‘1;111:5 I:L;;;’ :32:33% ggg:g?g 103:236
. . Inventory 228289
Governmental funds reported capital outlay s expenditures. However, Prepaid itema 568
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated Drue from other governments 190,000 190,000
over their estimated useful Tives and reported as depreciation expense. Capital assets, net 2,906,774 3,745,563 6,652,330 1147866
This is the amount by which depreciation (523,33 1,258) exceeded capital outlays : Total nsscts 3,695,126 18450475 22,143,602 5091,374
($12,962,950) in the current period. (19,368,308)
Bond proceeds are reported as finencing sowrces in governmental funds and ”ﬁ: mmd, 55,158 18,677 73,835 226,643
thus contribute to the change in fund balance, In the statement of net assets, Acsounts payable 171,445 269,982 441,427 561,660
however, issuing debt increases loag-term liabilities and does not affect the Aocrued salaries snd benefits 15,433 13433 61.503
statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure Accrucd sales tax ) 2351 876 sg-ﬂ;' ne
in the governmental funds, but reduces the liability in the statement of Unredeemed passenger tickets 50268 26
Defetred evenue 431,884 431,884
Bet assels. . Long-{zmm Kabilitics:
‘Brue within ons year 536,922 536,922 316,880
Repayments: Do in wore thar ane yoar 1,746,083 1,746,083
To bond, certificate, and note holders 1,121,253 Claims and judgments 1,324,000
’ Landfl closurepost-closure care costs 5,145,157 5,145,157
-Some capital additions were financed through capital leases. In governmental funds, Total Eabilities 7l1,108 7,733,130 8:444,236 2,491,205
"2 capital lease arrangement is considered a source of financing, but in the NET ASSETS
statement of net assets, the lease obligation is reported as a lizbilizy. (5,150,000} Invested in capital sesets, et of celated debt 2,506,774 1,483,094 4,349,868 1,147,367
Restristed
Under the modified zcorual basis of accaunting used in the governmental funds, Unrestrioted 77,246 9,234,252 9311498 1452302
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are normally paid with Totul net assets S 2084020, 3 10717346 8 13,701,366 _§ 2600169

expendable available financial resources, In the statement of activities, bowever,
which is presented on the acerual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported
regardless of when financial resources are available.

Compensated absences {743,431)

Internal service fimnds are used by the Cotmty to charge the costs of liability,
malpractice, and worker's compensation insurance to individual funds. The net

tevenug of interal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 449,425
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ £12,1025010!

3 . The accompanying aotes are an integral part of these financial statements,
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements, B 17



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2003

COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipt from customers

Cash paid to employses for services
Internad activities - payments from (1) other funds

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Advances from otber funds

Non-operating tevenues

Net cash used in capital and related

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Service
Transit Landfill Total Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 15,936,134
Transit fares § 314320 § 314320
Landfill fees 5 4531337 4,531,337
Contractor faes 9,000 9.000
Other revenue 238,167 12,949 251,11¢ 6,555
Total operating revenne 552,487 4,553,286 5,105,773 15,942 689
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 86,229 1,093,129 1,179,358
Salaries and employes benefits 434,712 434,712 3,380,503
Service and supplies 8,602,132
Claims end judgements 3,274,535
Operation and maintepance 1,772,320 1,682,705 3,455,225
Contrector fees 1,066,531 1,066,531
Depreciation 333319 103,325 436,644 270,080
Other expenses 539,235
Landfilf closure/post-closure care cost (2,954,460% (2,954,460%
Total operaling expenses 2,192,068 1,425942 3,618,010 16,085,485
Operating income (Joss) (1,639,581) 3,127,344 1,487,763 (143,796)
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Intergovernrmental 1,157,397 1,157,397 46,444
Interest income (expense) 24,831 607,632 632,463 152,096
Other income (expense) 342 18,520 18,852
Grants 190,000
Transfer out {270,080)
Sale of capital asset 511,827 511,827 12,253
Total nonoperating revenue {expense) 1,372,570 1,137,979 2,320,549 {59.287)
Wet income before capital contributions 257,011) 4,265,323 3,808,312 (203,083)
Capital contributions £52,508
Change in net assets (267,011) 4,265,323 3,808,312 449425
Taotal net agsets-beginming of vear 3,251,031 6,452,023 9,703,054 2,150,744
Total net assets-ending of year $ 2,984,020 510,717,346 313,511,366 $ 2,600,169
The acoonspanying notes are an. integral part of these financial statements. 19

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net eash provided by {used in) noncapital

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from capital lease

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {567,378) 772,750

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year $32.914 13,614,263

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financiat statsments,

Gevernmental
Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Service
Transit Landfili Total Funds
§ 295362 $ 3777017 $ 4,072,579 $ 16,699,365
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (L,560,054) {2,267,072) (3,827,136) (11.800,651)
(410,707) {410,707) (3,074,720}
(58964) (399,653) (438,617) (438,775)
6534 10,000 10,634 '
(1,322,832) 709,585 (613,247) 1,385,219
Aid from other govemmental agencies 761,184 470,992 1,232,176 35,120
(604,991)
(1,073,564)
2,332 2,332 8,182
761,184 473,324 1,234,508 (1,635,253)
2,526,539 - 2,526,539
Payments related 1o the acquisition of capital assets {38.168) {3,293,443) (3,293,443)
Principal and iriterest paid on capiral lease (268,461) (268,461)
(38,168) {1,035,365) (1,073,533
32,438 623,206 657,644 143,269
205,372 (106,765)
14,547,177 3,154,380
$§ 365,536 ¥ 14,387,013 $ 14,752,549 $ 3,04?5615
20



COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROFPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
ta Net Cash Provided by (used in)

Operating income (loss)

Adjustiment to reconeile operating income
{1o8s) to het cash provided by (used In)
operating activities:

Depreciation
Changes in assets and [abilities;
(Increase) decrease in:
Agcounts recelvable
Due fram other funds
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other asses
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payablefaccrued sales tax/deferred revenue
Due to other fiands
Acerued salaries and benefits
Compensated absences
Landfill cosure/post-closure cost
Claims and judgments

Net cash provided by (used ir)
operating activities

Governmental
Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Service
Transit Landfill Total Funds
§ (1,639,581 £ 3122344 $ 1,487,763 F (143,790)
333,319 103,325 436,644 270,080
{37,057 280,740 243,683 (46,043)
(54,530) 277,974 223,444 1,485,665
42,480
G
21,367 110,481 131,848 (299,752)
53,650 (255,581) 201,931y 56,876
10,737 16,737 9,982
9,025 9,025 (9,704)
(2,954,460) (2,954,460
20,000
$ (1.322.832) 8§ 709,585 § . (613,247} § 1185219

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finencie! statements.
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COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA - COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS INVESTMENT TRUST FUND
JUNE 30, 2003 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
Additions:
T t A
avestmen gency Contributions to pocled investments $1.044,945,008
Trust Funds . .
Interest and investment income 5.056,174
ASSETS Total additions T1,050,001,182_
Cash and investments $ 193,356,217 $ 22,808,779 -
Imprest cash _ T.671 )
Due from other fimds 1,482,598 357,664 Deducti )
Accounts receivabl J1L5 ecurhions:
Prccc;ul:}' t;ic:el::iv:b]e . b 7.003.547 Distribution from investment pool (1,052,344,252)
* — Total deductions _(1,052,344,252)
Total assets 185,958,003 § 30,264,990 Net decrease (2.343,070)
LIABILITIES inni 196,316,365
Due io otber funds 70556 8 274110 §§I :::fé :ﬁiﬁ“ ff;fafw $ 193,973,295
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,224,391 739 ’ & e
Sales tax accrual . 691
Salaries and benefits payuble 147,966
Notes payable 58,109
Deferred revenue 82,995
Agency funds held for others 27,540,141
Tatal liabilities 1,984,708 $ 30,264,990
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pool participants 193,973,295
Total net assets § 193,973,295
s —————
The accompanying notes are an integeal part of these financial statements, 24 The accompanying notes ere an integral part of these financial statements. 23



COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

A, The Financial Reporting Entity

The County of Butte (the County), which was incorporated as a County in 1850 as one of the
State’s original 27 counties, is a legal subdivision of the State of California charged with
governmental powers. The County’s powers are exercised through a Board of Supervisors
which, as the governing body of the County, is responsible for the legislative and executive
confrol of the County. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these
fnancial staterdents present the government and its component umits, legally separate entities
for which the County is considered to be finarcially accourtable,

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
County’s operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary
government. Each blended component unit has a ume 30, 2003 year-end.

In evaluating how to define the County for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit
in the reporling entity was made by applying the criteriz set forth in Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 “The Financial Reporting Entity,”

The Butte County Air Quality Management District (he District) is a blended component unit
of the County, The District’s Board is composed of seven members, of which five members
are the County’s Board of Supervisors. Financial statcments of the District may be obtained
by contacting the District or the County Auditor-Controller’s Office.

Based on the criteria established by GASB 14, the reporting entity also includes the following

blended component units which are Special Districts under control of the Board of
Supervisors;

County Service Area (CSA) - Lighting

Lindo Manor Durham

Rancho De Thunder ‘Ward Subdivision

East Chico — CSA #14 Peach Tree Place

East Chico — CSA #15 Meadow Estates

West Chico — CSA #16 South Oroville — Las Plumas Park
North Park Stirling City Lighting
Ore — Quincy Road Welnut Woods
Richvale Woodside
Oro-Wyandotte Oak Way Estates

Glen Haven Carriage Manor

Chico Rancheria Rosewoad Subdivision

24

County Servige Area (CSA) — Lighting {continued)

Ramada Street
Olive Glen Estates
Mutbermry Street
Stirling City

CSA — Drainage & Lighting

East and Guynn

Quait Run

Big Chice Creek Estates CSA
#7921 and #7922

Lindo West

Lakeridge Village

Silvertree Subdivision

Stony Brook

Sacramento Avenue Estates

Carriage Estates Subdivision

Hoily Gardens

Meadowlark Acres

Black Oaks Subdivision

El Verano

Walnut Grove Units 1 & 2

Young & Hobart Subdivision

Pearman Subdivision

Pistachio Grove Subdivision

Macintosh Avenue

South Fork Estates

Alamo East Subdivision

Wiltow Bend Subdivision

West Chico Estates

‘Westwood Lane Subdivision

Wildflower Estates Subdivision

Orchard House Estates

Ceres Avenue Subdivision

Baker’s Dozen Subdivision

Featherview Estates

Meorris Subdivision
Almond Grove West
Lassenwood Subdivision

C8A — Drainage

Sierra Del Oro

Keefer Road/Rock Creek
Noith Chico

Pleasant Valley

Chico — Mud Creek
Shasta Union

Copley Acres
Oro Monte Estates

C8A — Sewer

Oukridge

 Stirling City

Mountain Oaks Subdivision
Reorganization Webb Home
Keefer Creek

CSA — Lighting & Majntenance

Vista Del Cerro
Crestwood
Lindo Gardens
Joshua Tree
Joshua Tree #2

25



COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

CSA - Drainage & Lighting
(continued)

Oak Way Park

Daily

Marigold Estates

Shastan, ne,

Forebay Vista Subdivision
Laurelwood Estates
Canyon Ranch Estates

Gther

Valley Oaks Subdivision
Southgate Acres Drainage and

Fire Protection
Thermalito Sewer and Drainage
Sycamore Valley Sewer and Lighting
Gridiey — Biggs Ambulance
Vallombrosa Lighting and Fire Hydrant
Biggs Swimming Pool - Recreation

Pheasant Landing Subdivision Gridley Swimming Pdol — Recreation

County of Butte - Nitrate Study Plan

Walnut Manor

Durham-Dayton Industrial Partners for
Extended Structural Fire Protection

Forrest Young

Biggers Subdivision

ishi Valley Estates

Thorntree Industrial Park

County of Butte — Animal Control

Justin Manor Subdivision

Keefer Creek Estates Lighting, Drainage
and Sewer

Excluded from the Reporting Entity

Local Board Governed Distriets and School Districts: These potential component units have
been excluded from the reporting eatity. They are legally separate primary governmental
units. The financial reporting for these governmental entities, which are independent of the
County, are limited to the total amount for cash and investments znd the related fiduciary
respansibilities of the County for disbursement of these assets. Activities of school districts
and local board governed districts are administered by boards which are separately elected
and which are independent of the County Board of Supervisors. The following local board
governed districts and school districts have been excluded from the County’s financial
statements:

26

Protection to Persons & Property

El Medio Fire District
Maintenance Area #3
Maintenance Area #7
Maintenance Area #13
Maintenance Area #16

Recreation

Chico Area Recreation & Park
Durham Reereation & Park
Feather River Recreation & Park
Paradise Recreation & Park
Richvale Recreztion & Park

Other Districts

Butte County Association of
Governments

School Districts

Butte County Fair

Cepetery

Bangor Cemetery
Gridley-Biggs Cemetery
Kimshew Cemetery
Oroville Cermetery
Paradise Cemetery

Pine Creek Cemetery
Thompson Flat Cemstery
Uphain Cemetery

Drainage

Butte Creck Drainage

Dirainzge District #1

Drainage District #2

Drainage District #100

Drainage Disirict #200
Reclamation District #833

Rock Creek Reclamation District

Health & Sanitation

Butte County Mosquito Abatement

Durham Mosquito Abatement

Oroville Mosquito Abatement

Richvale Sanitary Operating

Rickvale Sanitary — Bond & Interest
Redemption

These entities have separate elected boards and provide servioes to residents, generally within
ihe geographic boundaries of thé County. In addition, these entities are excluded from the
reporting entity because they are not financialty accountable to the County.
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COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

NOTES T0O THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

COUNTY OF BUTTE, CALIFORNIA

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDXED JUNE 30, 2003

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the primary
government (the County) and its blendéd component units, These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activiies. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County.
Governmental sctivities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergoverntnental
Tevenues, are reported separately from business<type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees charged to external parties. .

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the program ¢xpenses of a given
function are offset by program revennes. Program expensss include direct expenses, which
are clearly identifiable with a specific function, and allocated indirect expenses.  [Interest
expense related to long term debt is reported as a direct expense. The total amount of interest
charged to expense for the year ended June 30, 2003 was $461,046. Program revenues
include 1) fees, fines and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the
programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as Program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented instead as general revenues,

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds, including
fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for cach fund category —
govermmental, propriciary and fiduciary — are presented, The emphasis of fund finaneial
statements is on major governmentzl and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental funds are separately aggregated and reported as other
governmental finds,

Proprictary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange

transactiens associated with the principal activity of the find. Exchange transactions are

those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating

revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or

ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmenta] funds:

The General Fund is used to account for all revenues and expendifures necessary to carry
out basic governmental activities of the County that are not accounted for through other
funds. For the County, the General Fund includes such activities ag public protection,

public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, education and
Tecreation services.
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» The Welfare Fund was established to account for the activities of the Butte County
Department of Employment and Social Services. The department administers the
CalWorks program, Adult and Children’s Protection Services and various other State,
Federal and local assistance programs.

» The Road Fund was established to account for the construction and maintenance of the
County’s roads and bridges.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

s The Tramsit Fund was estahlished to account for thé County’s share of costs in providing
transit and transit related services to the citizens of Bulte County in both the
unincorporated and incorporated areas of the County,

*  The Landfill Fund was established to account for the County’s casts of providing landfill
and related waste disposal services to the citizens of Buite County in both the
unincorporated and incorporated areas of the County.

The County reports the following additional fund types:

* Imternal Service Funds are used to account for the financiag of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the County on
2 cost-reimbursement basis.

®  The fnvestment Trust Fund accounts for the assets of legally separate entities that deposit
cash with the County Treasurer in an investment pool, which commingles resources in
the investment portfolic for the benefit of all participants. These entities include school
and community college districts, other special districts governed by local boards, regional
boards and authorities and pass through funds for tax collections for cities,

¢ The dgency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of the results
of operations. Such funds have no equity accounts since all assets are due to invidiuals or
entities at some future time. These funds account for assets held by the County as an
agent for other government units.

Basis of Accounting
The government-wide, proprietary, and investment trust fund financial statements are

reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the acerual basis of
accounting.
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Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recarded at the time liahilities are
incinred, regardless of when the reiated cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in
which the Couniy gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal valhze
in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes
are levied. Revenues from sales tax are recognized when the underlying transactions take
piace. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligible requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental funds are reporied using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available. Property and sales taxes, inlerest, certain state and federal
gtants and charges for services are accrued when their receipt occurs within sixty days after
the end of the accounting period so as to be measurable and availabie. Expenditures are
generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under acerual accounting, However, debt
service expenditutes, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are recorded
only when payment is due. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as
other financial sources, .

‘When both resiricied and unrestricted net assets are available, unrestricted rescuces are used
only after the restricted resources are depleted.

For its proprietary funds, the County has elected under GASB Statement No. 20, Aecounsing
and Financial Reperting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Enfifies that Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, to apply all applicable GASB prenouncements as well as any
applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Accounting
Principles Board or any Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or befors November 30,
1989 unless those pronocuncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The
GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements
(Staternents and Interpretations), are accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows — Proprietary Funds, the County
considers afl highly liquid investments with a maturity of fhree months or less when
purchased, and their equity in the County Treasurer’s investment pool, to be cash equivalents,

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost, which is determined on a first-in, first-out basis, and consist
primarily of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an
expenditure when the items are used, In the governmental funds balance sheet, there is a
reservation of fund balance equzl to the inventory balance as these amounts are not available
for appropriation.
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Payments made for services tha¢ will benefit futire accounting periods are recorded as
prepaid items. In the governmental fund types, thete is a reservation of fund balance equal to
the amount of prepaid items, since these amounts zre not available for appropriation.

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforcesble lien on January 1. Secured taxes are levied on July 1
and are payable i two installments due by December 10 and April 10, All general property
taxes are then allocated by the County Auditor-Controller's Office to the various taxing
entities per the legislation-implementing Proposition 13. The method of sllocation uséd by
the County is subject to review by the State of California.

Alternative Method of Distribution of Tax Levies

The County utilizes the alternative method of property tax distribution, whereby the County,
through the legally required Tax Resource Agency Fund purchases the current secured unpaid
taxes remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the Tax Resource Agency
Fund records & tax receivable and receives the delinquent secured taxes. The Tax Loss
Reserve Agency Fund receives delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing to
delinguent collections related to participating ageneies. The participating agencies, including
the County, the special districts, and the school districts, in tum, receive their full tax
distribution with no liability for wncollected taxes to the Tax Resource Agency Fund.
Therefore, for parlicipating agencies, revenue is measurable and available and is recorded in
the period the payment of curent secured unpaid taxes is received.

The County is required to create a tex loss reserve find (an agency fund) under one of two
alternative methods: 1) one percent of the fotal amount of taxes and assessments levied on
the secured roll for the year or 2} twenty-five percent of the total delinquent secured taxes and
assessiments as caloulated at the end of the fiscal year. The County is using twenty-five
percent of the delinquent secured taxes to establish its tax loss reserve.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable relate to the Housing and Community Development Program funded by
federal and state monies. Loans recejvable are collateralized by deeds of trust. Proceeds
from the collection of the loans receivable and resale of assets held for sale are restricted by
the terms of the grant and, accordingly, are offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates
that they do not constitute available spendable resources. No amount has been provided as an
allowance for doubtful accounts because in the opirion of management zll materjal amounts
are fullty collectible,
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H. Capital Assets

- Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if agtunl historical cost is not available. Contributed fixed assets are vaived at their
estimated fair market value on the date contributed. Capital sssets include public domain
(infrastructure) general fixed assefs consisting of certain improvements including roads,
bridges, watet/sewer, lighting system, drainage systems, and flood control. The County
defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,060 and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital asseis used in operations are depreciated
or amortized (assets ymder copital leases) using the straight-line method over the lesser of the
capital ledse period or their estimaled usefid Hves in the government-wide statements and the
proprictary fimnds.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Infrastructure (except for the maintained

Pavement subsystem) 20 to 50 yeé.rs
Structures and improvements ) 20 to 50 years
Equipment 3 to 25 years

The County has five networks of infrastructure assets — roads, water/sewer, lighting,
drainage, and floed control. The County has the option of phasing in the historical costs
related to it’s infrastructure, Currently, the road network has been included in the County’s
capital assets at historical cost and related depreciation. In future years, the remaining
networks will be added to capital assets, All current year acquisition costs identified for
infrastructure have been included.

Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund
statemenis consists of unpaid, accumulated leave balances, The liability has been calonlated
using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are
eligible to receive termination payments and other employses who are expected to become
eligible in the future to receive such paymenss upon termination are included.
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J. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Interfund transactions are reflected as cither loans, services provided, reimbursements or
transfers. Loans are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to
elimination upen consolidetion and are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (ie.,
the current portien of interfand loans) or “advances to/from other funds” {i.e., the noncurrent
portion of interfind loans), Any residual balances outstanding between the governmentzl
activities and the business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances”. Advances between funds, as reported in the fimd financial
statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in appiicable governmental funds to
indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not available financial resources,

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses.  Reimbursements are when one find incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its telated cost as a reimbursement. All other
interfund transactions are freated as fransfess. Transfers between governmental or proprictary
funds are netled as part of the reconciliation to the povernment-wide presentation.

K. Use of Estimates
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepied in the United Stetes of America requites management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Investinents

Total cash and investments held in the Treasury are pooled for investment purposes. Cash with
fiscal agent is held outside the Treasury and is not pooled with other cash and investments.

Total County deposits and investments are as follows:

Cash and investments 3 301,568,369
Restricted cash with fiscal 2gent 5,974,454
Imprest Cash ) 98.306

3§ 307.641,129

The County maintains a Cash and Investment Pool (Pool) that is available for use by all County
funds and agencies outside of the County reporting entity participate in the Pool. The participation
of these agencies is involuntary, except for the Butte County Fzir, The agencies participating in
the Investment Trust Fund are Superior Court, Butte County Fair, Autonomous Special Districts,
Schools, School Bonds, and the Butte County Association of Governments.
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The fair value of investments in the Pool is determined monthly based upon quoted market prices,
The Pool is subject to regulatory oversight by the Treasury Gversight Commitlee, as required by
the California Government Code Section 27143, The County has not provided nor obtained any
legally binding guarantees during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 to support the values of
shares in the Pool. However, management believes that the invesiments in the Pool are of high
quality and that the risk of participation in the Pool s negligible. At June 30, 2003, the difference
between the cost and fair value of cash and investments was not material and approximates fair
value, Therefore, an adjustment to fair value was not tnade for GASB 31 compliance.

The Pool values participants® shares on an amortized cost basis, Specifically, the Pool distributes
income to participants quarterly based on their relative participation during the month which is
caleulated based on (1) realized investment gains and losses computed on an amortized cost basis,
{2) interest income based on stated rates {both paid and secrued), (3) amortization of discounts and
premiums on a straight-line basis, and (4) investment and administrative expenses. This method
differs from the fair value method used to value investments in these financial statemnents because
the amortized cost method is not designed to distribute to participants all unrealized gains and
losses in the fair valuc of the Pool's investments. Investment income related to investments
reported in certain funds is assigned 1o other finds based upon legal or contractual provisions,

Depogits

All deposits are entirely insured or collaternlized. The California Govemment Code requires
California banks and savings and loan associations to secure 2 County’s depesits by pledging
governmental securities as collateral. The markst value of pledged securities must equal at least
110% of 2 County’s deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure a County’s
deposits by pledging first trust deed mottgage notes having a value of 150% of a County’s total
deposits, The County may waive collateral requirements for deposits, which are fully insured up
t0 $100,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

At June 30, 2003, the carrying amount of the County’s cash deposits in the Treasury (including
amounts in checking snd non-negotizble certificates of deposity was 517,872,363 and the bank
balance was $14,244,407. The difference between varrying amount of the County’s deposits and
the bank balance is a result of transactions in transit including $3,696,270 in outstanding warrants.
Of the bank balances, $200,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and 314,044,407 was
collateralized (i.e., collateralized with securities held by pledging financial institutions at 110% of
the investments, but not in the County’s name),
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Investments

The California Government Code authorizes the County 1o invest in obligations of the 1.8,
Treasury, its agencies and instrumentalities, commercial paper rated A-1 by. Standard. & Poor’s
Corporation or P-1 by Mecody’s Commercial Paper Recorder’s, non-ncgo?lable certificates of
deposit, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, negot.iable- c'emﬁc?tes .of deposit,
obligations of the State of California, obligations of local agencies within California, corporate
notes, mutual funds, financial futures, financial option contracts and thc.StaIe Treasurer’s Local
Agency Investment Fund, The County is also authorized to enter into reverse repurchase
agreements; however, the County did not enter into such agreements during the vear ended

Jume 30, 2003.

Cash and investments with fiacal agent consists of reserve funds in the Generfﬂ Fund and Otl:ler
Government Funds of §5,974,454 for debi service. The funds are held by a third party custodian
in accordance with the terms of debt ot frust agreements.

The poeled treasury’s pro-rata share of investment in the State Treasurer’'s Local Agency
Invesiment Fund (LATF) at June 30, 2003 is $110,770,000. The total amount mvested. by all
public agencies in LAIF is $55.71 billion. Of this amount, .100 percent was invested in non-
derivative financial products, and { percent in derivative financial products. The Local.lnvestmcnt
Advisory Board (Board} has oversight responsibility for LAJF. 'E‘he_Board consists of five
members as designated by state statute. The value of the pool' shares in LATF, 1llvh1ch may be
withdrawn, is determined on an amortized cost basis, which is different than the fair value of the

pocled treasury’s portion in the pool,
it Risk, Carrying Amount, and Fair Values of Investments

Investments of the County are summarized below. The investments that are re!:reseuted by
specific identifiable investment securities are classified as to custodial credit risk by three

categories as follows:

Category 1 - includes investments that are insured or registered, or for which securities are
held by the County or its agent in the County’s name; :

Category 2 — includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securitics are
held by the counterparty trust department or agent in the County’s name;

Category 3 — includes uninsured and unregistered investments for .which the securitics are
held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the County’s name.
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3. Interfund Transactions

Stated
Interest Carrying Interfund Receivables/Payables
Maturity Date Rates Amount

Category | Tnvestments: The composition of interfind balances as of June 30, 2003 are as .ﬁ;)llows:

. B o 7 nce
U.S. Government Agencies  §/18/03 - 6/5/08  3.25% - 7.25% 5 150,530,619 Balances due toffrom other funds:

Corporate and Other Notes 11/13/03 5.625% 3,980,065

Total Investments Subject to Categorization 194,510,684 Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Local Certificates of Deposit 500,000 General Welfare $ 1,117,629
Local Agency Investment Fund 110,770,000 . Road 4,295
Cash in Bank 17,372,363 Other Governmental 98,368
Cash on Hand 37,594 Transit 839
- Landfill 4,989
Total Treasury 323,190,641 Intemnal Service 82,364
Outstanding Werrants (21,690,074) Trust and Agenoy —
Cash Deposits - Qutside Accounts 67,802 —— =
Tetal Cash and Investments $ 301,568,369 Welfare General 122,638
Other Governmental 93,925
The foliowing are condensed statements of net assets and changes in net assets, for the County’s Internal Service 20,059
investinent pool as of and for the year ended Tume 30, 2003: Trust and Agency 13,750
250,432

Statement of Net Assets
. . Road - General 40,966
Net assets held for pool participants $ 301,568,369 Other Governmental 7,821
Internal Service 1,869
Equity of interral pool participants $ 107,595,074 Landfill 13,092
Equity of external pool participants 193,973,295 Trust and Agency 67,556
—er Rl 131,304
Total Equity % 301,568,369

Other Governmenta] General 2,488,667
Staternent of Changes in Net Assets Other Governmental 478
Internal Service 101,905
Net assets at July 1, 2002 § 301,162,700 Trust and Agency 202,192
Net Change in investment by pool participants 405,665 . 2,794,243
Net Assets at Tune 30, 2003 $_ 301,568,369 Transit General 2,245
Internal Service 29
Transit 54,319
Trust and Agency 5200
61,793
37
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Receivable Fund

Payable Fund Amount
Landfill General E3 1,453
Internal Service 112
Trust and Agency 136,737
: 138z302
Internal Service General . 288,094
Welfare 66,736
Road 25,274
Other Governmental 115,003
Landfill 596
Internal Service 15,928
Tiust and Agency 52,168
s
Trust and Agcngy General 4,502
Road 1is
Other Governmental 13
Tniernal Service 4,375
Trust and Agency 1,831,254
: 1,840,262
Total $ 7,974,427
Transfers to/from other funds:
Transfer From Transfer To Amount
General Fund Other Governmental % 5,159,810
Other Governmental Gereral Fund 819,863
General Funclt Welfare Fund 59,649
Internal Service Fund Other Governmental 270,080
Other Governmental Other Governmental 319,568
Total g 6,628,970
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4. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2003 was as follows:

Balance Transfers & Balance
Tuly I, 2002 Additions  Retirements  Adjustments  June 10, 2003
Governmental Activities
Capitzl agsets, not being depreciated;
Land $ 1215258 § 508,221 5 {43,500y § 1,679,979
Construction in progress 8,432,805 4,874,366 {748,031) 12,559,230
Total capital assets, oot heing
depreciated 9,648,153 5,382,587 (791,531) 14,235,209
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 577,125,069 4,361,592 % (4,081,079} 577,405,582
Structures and improvements 44,347,169 23 302,432 44,849,634
Equiprment 32,444,366 3,927,761 (2,460,653) 513,615 34,425,088
Total capital assets, being depreciated 654,116,604 8,289,376 {6,541,732) 816,047 656,680,294
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Infrastructure (250,855,301)  (19,327,500) 4,081,075 {276,101,722) ~
Structures and improvements (12,132,410) (864,516} (12,957,326)
Equipment (22,287,143)  (2,973,170) 1,974,609 49,017 (23,236,688)
Total accumulated depreciation (295,274,854 (23,165,586) _ 6,055,680 45,017 (312,335736)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net ISRBALTS0  (14,876.210) _ (486,044) 865,064 344,344,558
Government activities capital assets, .
net §_3068,480,903 $ (9,493,623) §_ (486,044) $ 73,533 § 358,583,767
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated: i
Land $ 488,133 3 488,133
Construction in progress $_ 632412 632,412
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 488,133 632,412 1,120,545
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Structures and improvements - 796,286 38173 5 (28,004) 006,455
Equipment 3,869,153 2,636,592 (6,005} 6,459,740
Total capital sssets, being depraciated 4,665,435 2,774,765 (34,009} 7,406,195
Less accummlated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements {270488) (79,583) (359,071)
Equiptuent (1,158,269) {357.061) {1,515,330)
Total accumnlated depreciation (1,437,757} (436,644} (1,874,401)
Total capital assets, being
Jepreciated, net 3,237,682 2,338,121 (34,008 5,531,794
Business-Type aclivities capital
assets, net $___3,7158i5 $_2070,533 $_ (34,009) § 3 5,652.339
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Depreciation expetise was dha.ngcd to fanctions as follows:

Governmental Activitles:

General government 8 336,830
‘Public protection 2,232,773
Public ways 19,654,343
Health and sanitation 286,840
Public assistance 441,354
Education 105,455
Recreation 107,991

Total §_23,165586

Business-Type Activities:

Transit $ 333319
Sanitation 103,325

Total 3 436,644

Long-Term Debi

A. Summary of Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2002 Additions Deletions June 30, 2003 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Capital lease obligation § 2098067 § 74886 § 07,158 5 2365795 § 1,346,916
Bonds payable 1,109,309 57,689 1,051,620 67,942
Compeusated absences 8,823,608 79,416 9,615,024 1,248,806
Certificates of participation 4,440,000 5,150,000 245,000 9,345,000 4,195,000
Total Governmental
Activities Long-Term
Liabilitics $__17370984 § 6016302 § 1,009.847 § 22,377,439 % 6,858,664

Business-Type Activities:
Compensated absences s 15,902 3 9,025 b3 24,927
Capital Fease Obligation 2,526,530 % 268,461 2,258,078 $__ 536,922
Total Business-Type
Activities Long-Term
Liabilities 3 15902 § 2535564 5 268,461 3

2283005 § 536,922
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B. Capital Lease Oblgations

The County leases equipment under capitat leases, The following is a summary, by vear, of
futuwre minimum lease payments, together with the present value of the minimum lease

payments, as of June 30, 2003:

Year Ending
June 30,

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008

Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest
Present value of minimum lease payments

Governmentat Business-Type
Activities Activities

£ 1,507,458 & 536,922

384,371 536,822

374,951 536,922

363,094 536,922

268,461

2,629,874 2,416,149
{264,079) (158,071)

$ 2,365,765 § 2,258,078

The following is a schedule of net reamainng property leased under capital leases ai June 30,

2003:

Governmental Activities:
Energy Management Facility
Vehicles
5 Hi-Tech Fire Engines

Business-Type Activities:
Caterpillar Equipment

C. Bounds Payable

Acquisition Accumulated
Value Depreciation
$ 2,555,775 % 306,693
132,450 25,923
1,418,499 217,474
2,526,539 55,744

At June 30, 2003, bonds outstanding consist of the following Butte County Service Area No,

26 bands;

1974 Sewer Bonds

1975 Bewer Bands, Series A
1975 Sewer Bonds, Series B
1975 Sewer Bonds, Series C

Total

5

§

365,000
430,000
210,000

46,620

1,051,620
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The bonds bear interest at the rate of five percent per annum which is peyable semi-annually,

Prim;ipal payments are due January | of each year through 2015. The debt service
requirements over the next five years and thereafter, are as foll oWs.

‘Year Ending
June 30, ' Principal Interest Total

2004 $ 67942 § 50,885 § 118,827
2005 73,089 46,444 119,533
2006 73,244 43,71 116,945
2007 73,406 40,035 113,441
2008 83,576 36,110 119,686
2009-2013 465,749 158,715 624,464
2014-2015 214,614 10,860 225,474

B 1051620 $ 386750 § 1,438,370

Compensated Absences

Upon termination, an employee may be campensated for sick Ieave amounts accrued ovar
240 hours at half the normal pay rafe not to exceed $3,000. Upon i'eti.remmt, County
em_ployees have a one time option of cashing out their accrued sick leave or electing post
retirement health insurance benefits up fo age 65, Ifan employee has 10 years of curmilative
service, the County will pay health itsurance benefits for 12 months plus 1 month for every §
hours in excess of 240 heurs zccrued sick leave {employee coverage only). Vacation is
accrued at varying rates depending on an employee’s years of services. Upon termination, an
en‘}ployec is paid at 100% of the amount acerued, Compensated absences for vacation are
paid out at the employes’s current rate of pay. Administrative leave is accrued by employees
exempt from paid overtime and may be accrued up to a maximam of 352 hours,

Certificates of Participation

The County issued 1993 Certificates of Participation totaling $5,515,000 for the consiruction

of a new justipe facility project. Interest rates range from 3.8% to 5.5% and the certificates

fq.lly matare in 2014. Interest payments began in*July 1995, payments of principal and

interest began in July 1996 and are finded by penalty assessments on court fines, parking

fines and assessments. Shortfalls in assessmen? and fine revenues are funded by the other

?ﬁlmer;lzlggr;d revenues. The balance of the 1993 Certificates of Participation were paid off in
uly o .
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On June 3@, 2003, the County issued $5,150,000 in Cestificates of Participation (COP’s) with
interest rates ranging from of 2.0% to 3.4% to advance refund $4,195,000 of outstanding
1993 COP's and $1,026,882 of cutstanding lease obligations for fire trucks with inierest rates
ranging from 3.8% to 5.5%. The net proceeds of $5,091,245 (after payment of $166,950 in
waderwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) plus an additional $883,208 of 1993
COP’s reserve fund monies were used to purchase U.8. government securities. The 1993
COP’s were pre-called and proceeds were provided for alf future debt service payments on
the 1993 COP’s and fire trucks. Payoff of the 1993 COP's and fire trucks occurred on July I,
2003. As a result, the 1993 COP’s are considered to be defeased but the ligbility for those
bonds will be removed from the general long-term debt account group in the following year.

The County’s advance refunded the 1993 Certificate of Participation to reduce its total debt
service payments over the next 12 years by almost $94,448 and to obtain an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt}
of $335,626.

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2004 $ 4,195000 % 64,115  § 4,259,115
2005 610,000 121,423 731,423
2006 620,000 109,122 729,122
2007 630,000 96,623 726,623
2008 640,000 83,922 723,922
2009-2013 1,835,000 269,357 2,104,357
2014-2015 815,000 27,565 842,565

$_9,345000 $ 772,127  $10,117,127

Landfili Closure and Post-closure Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its Neal Road
Iandfill site when it stops accepling waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for thirty years after closure, Although closure and post-closure care costs
will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports a
portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based

~on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $5,145,157 reported as landfill closure

and post-closure care liability at June 30, 2003, represents the cumulative amount reported to date
based on the use of 29.57 pereent of the estimated capacity of the landfill. The County will
recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $12,295,603 as the
remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform
all closure and postelosure care in 2003, The County expects to close the landfill in the year 2018,
Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.
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The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make anmual contributions to a
separate fund to finance closure and postclosure gere. The County is in compliance with these
requirements, and at June 390, 2003, investments of $5,616,885 are held for these purposes, The
Coun}'y expects the future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on these annual
conh:1butions. However, if interest earnings are inadequate or edditional postclosuze care
requirements are determined {due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations, for
example), thase costs may need to be covered by charaes to fitture lendfill users or from ﬁJturé tax
revente.

Jl%.nnu-ally, the Landﬁll adjusts the estimated closure and postclosure costs duc to changes in
yﬂatmn and capacity. At June 30, 2003, fotal estimated costs for closure and postelosure
mcreasef:l from $17,211,434 at June 30, 2002 to $17,400,760 and the remaining capacity of the
!ITdﬁll ;:mreased from 26.33 percent io 29.57 pervent at Fune 30, 2002 and 2003, respectivety.
es¢ changes resulted in a reduction to the landfill closure and stclosure liabili
52,954,460 at June 30, 2003. 7 oare Jaiy of

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net Assets

The government-wide and business-type activities fund financial stmtements utilize a net assets
presentahm‘l. Net assets are categorized a5 invested capiial assets (net of related debt), restricted
and unrestricted.

. {nvasi‘ed in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debr — This category groups all capital assets
including infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and I‘.h(.:
Putsta.nding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduce the net asset balance.

*  Restricted Ne{ Assets — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grandors, contributors or lJaws or regulations of other govemments and restrictions imposed by
laww through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

. Unres!r_icred Net Assets — This calegory represents net assets of the County, not testricted for
any project or other purpose.

Fund Balances

In the fund financial statcmenis, governmenta] funds teport reserves and designati .

1 » & ) gnations {o segregate
portions of ﬁfnd balance that are either nof available or have been earmarked for specific puil-paies.
The dcmgnatfons are established by actions of the Board and managemetit and can be increased,
reduced or eliminated by similar actions.

The term “reserved” is used to indicate the portion of fund balance that is (1) legelly restricted to a
specific use or (2) not available for appropriation ¢r expenditure. 'The County’s management will
sometimes designate pertions of unreserved (available) fund balance based on tentative future
spending plans.  Designated portions of find balance represent financial resources legally
avaiizble for uses other than those tentatively planned.
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The County has “reserved” fund balances as follows:

¢ Reserve for Encumbrances reflects the outstanding contractua) obligations based on purchase
order and contracts signed by the County but not yet completed as of the close of the fiscal
year.

- % Reserve for Imprest Cash represents the portion of the fund balance that is not available for

cxpenditure because the County mmintains various levels of revolving funds for daily
operations.

*  Reserve for Deposits with Others reflects the portion of the fund balance that is not available
for expenditure because of the restrictions placed on the fund in order to obiain certain

puarantees.

¢ Reserve for Loans Receivable reflects » segrepation of a pertion of fund balance to indicate
that assets equal to the long-term Housing and Commmunity Development loans are mot
available for appropriation.

*  Reserve for Legal Restrictions represents the portion of fund balance. legally restricted to a
narrower use than the fund itself,

¢ Reserve for Debt Service represents cash and investments held by a fiscal agent for the
repayment of long-term capital lease obligations.

*  Reserve for Inventories reflects balances of inventory aceount which reflect resources already
expended, but not consumed,

County Employees Retirement Plan (Defived Benefit Pension Plan)

FPlan Deseription

The County contributes to the California Public Employess Retirement System (CalPERS), an
agent multiple-employar public employee retirement system that acts as 2 commeon investment and
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. CalPERS -
provides retirement and disability benefits, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state ststute and County
ordinance. Copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their exeoutive
office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814,

Fundipg Policy

Employees under the Miscellaneous Plan are required to contribute 7% and emplayees under the
Safety Plan are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary, The County is required
to contribute at an actuariaily determined rate; the current rate is .878% for non-safety employees

and 16.629% for safety employees, of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
plan members and the County are established and may be amended by CaIPERS.
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Annual Pengion Cost

For the year ended June 30, 2003, the Cournty's annual pension cost of $7,557,216 for CalPERS
was equal to the County’s required and actual contributions. The required contributions was
detemmined as part of the June 30, 2002 actuarial valuation using the eniry age actuarial cost
method. This is a projected benefit cost method, which takes into account those benefits that are
expected to be earned in the future as well as those already accrued. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 8.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected anmal
imerit or seniority selary increases that vary by length of service, and (c) no post retirement benefit
increases. Both (2) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.5%. The actuatial value of the
County’s CalPERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effacts of shori-term
volatility in the market value of investrents over a three year period (smoothed market value).
The County’s CalPERS unfunded actuarial mecrued liability is being amortized as a level of
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at
June 30, 2002 was thirty-two years for the Miscellaneous Pian and fourteen years for the Safety
Plan.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage Net
Pension of APC Pension
Fiscal Year Cost (APC) Contribuited Cbligation
6/30/01 § 4973762 100% '3 - 8 -
6/30/02 5,937,479 100% - -
6/30/03 7,557,216 100% - -

Post-Retirement Aealth Beneflts

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 8, the County provides post-retirement health
insurance benefits, in accordance with County ordinance, to employees who retire from the
County before atiaining age 65 with at least 10 yeais of continuous service who have accrued sick
leave in excess of 240 hours and elect the post-retirement insurance benefits rather than the sick
leave payout option. Refer to Note 3, compensated absences, for specific details, The County
peys the filll premium for health and dental coverage incurted by retirees under 65 years of age or
not covered by another governmental or employer-paid health plan.  Expenditures for post-
retireinent health care benefits are recognized 25 retirecs repott premiums paid for reimbursement.
During the fiscal year, expenditures of $596,299 were recognized for post-retirement healih care
covering 102 retirees.

46

10,

Risk Management

The County is exposed to various sk of loss related to torts; thelt of, damage fo, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The County has two risk manegement funds (Internal Service Funds) to consolidate the County’s
insurance programs that are partially self-insured. Fund revenues are primarily premium charges
to other funds and are planned to equal estimated expenses resulting from self-insurance programs,
Liability insurance coverage in excess of the self-insured amount, and operating expenses. The
primary activities of the funds consist of risk management programs related to the following:

General Liability Insurance
Unemployment Insurance

The County maintains a self-insured retention (SIR) of $100,000 per oeeurrence for its _geneml
lisbility program. For general liability claims, the County is a participant in the California State
Association of Counties — Excess Insurance Authority {CSAC) excess liability insurance program.
The County covers the first $100,000 of claims. The purpose of the poel is to spread the adverse
effects of losses among the member agencics. The County pays an annual basic premium for
excess coverage and is assessed an annual risk premium based on an actuarial review that
estimates each of the program’s participant’s ultimate liabilities. Should actual losses among
participants be greater than anticipated, the County will be assessed its pro rata share of that
deficiency. Conversely, if the actual losses are less than anticipated, the County will be rafunded
its pro rata share of the excess, Commercial insurance covers claims between $100,000 and
$20,000,000. Seitled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years.

The County is fully self-insured for its unemployrment insurance program, Quarterly biltings fiom
the State Employment Development Department are sent to the County’s claims reviewers, R.E.
Harrington, Inc. After the claims are reviewed by R.E. Harrington, Inc., they are turned over to the
County for payment.

It is the County’s policy to charge to expense of the Internal Service Fund the estimated liability,
a5 determined with the assistance of independent actuaries, for claims in cases where such
amounts are reasonably determinable and where the likelihood of liability exists.

There were no settled claims that have exceeded insurance coverages during the past three fiscal
years.
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All eperating funds participate in the program and make payments to the insurance funds based on
actuarial estimates of the amounts needed 1o pay prior and current year claims, and to allow
accrual of estimated incurred but not reported claims, These claims Liability estimates are based
on the requirements of GASB Statements No. 10 and 30 and include estimate claims incurred but
not yet reported as of June 30, 2003. The claims liability includes all allocated loss adjustment
expenses. Changes in the insurance funds® claims ligbility amount during the fiseal years ended
June 3, 2002 and 2003 were as feliows:

Current Year
Claims Claims and Claims
Liability Changes in Current Liability
July 1 Estimates Year Claim June 30
- 2062-2003 § 1,304,000 3 130,787 § 130,787 § 1,324,000
20012002 $ 1,341,000 3§ 58,486 3 95,486 % 1,304,000

Contingencies

Crants

The County participates in a number of grant programs funded, in whole ar part; by federal, state
and other sources. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or
their representatives. The audits of these programs for or including the year ended June 30, 2003,
have not yet been conducted. Additionally, certain audits related to prior years have zot besn
finalized. Accordingly, the County’s compliance with applicable grant requirements will be
established at some future date, The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, althougl:, the County expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. .

Litigation
The County is a defendant in various matters of litigation. Of these matters, management and

County’s legal counsel do not anticipate any material effect on the June 30, 2003 financial
statements.
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COUNTY OF KINGS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA INDEPENDENT AUTHTORS' REPORT

The Honorable Board ol Supervisors
County of Kings, California

Wehave audited the accompanying financial statements ot the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the ageresate rentaining fund informarion of County of Kings,
California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, which collectively comprise the County's
basic financial statements as lisied in the table of contents. These financial staternents are the
responsibility of Couniy of Kings, California, management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on cur audit.

We conducied our audit in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicuble to linancial audits coniained in Goverrment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the amndit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amnounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing (he accounting
principles used and significant cstimates made by management, as well as cvaluating the overal!
finanoiel statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

COMPREHENSIVE
In our opinien, the financial slatements refesred to above present lairly, in all material respects, the
AN N UAL F I NAN c I AL RE P 0 RT respeetive financial position of the governmental aetivitiss, the business-type activities, each n{aj or

fupd, and the ageregate remaining fund information of the County of Kings, California, as of
June 30, 2003, and (ke respeciive changes in {inancial position: and cash flows, where epplicable,
For the Fiscal Year Ended thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally aceepted in the

United States of America. .
June 30, 2003

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 26,
2004 on our consideration of the County of Kings, California internal contre] over financiul
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants. Thatreport is an integral part ofan audit pecformed in accordance wilh Government Auditing
Vee-J ay Brann Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.
Director of Finance The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3
through 9 and page 30, arc not a required part of the basic financial siatements but are
supplementary infonmation required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary mformation. However, we did not andit the information and express no opinion on
it

L5340 E. Shuw Avenue, Suite 118 ¢ Fresno, Culifornia 93710+ Phone (5393 2256801+ Fux (3593 223-6951 « Web Site: hiip /v hef-cp com
L .



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
colleclively comprisc the County of Kings, California basic financial stalements. The intreductory
sectien is prescnted for purposces ol addilional analysis and 1s not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The inroduciory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied to the audit of the basic tinancial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Benchondl Conema % Fastfhs

Muy 26, 2004

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of the County of King's (the County's) financial performance provides an
overyiew of the County's financial activities for the fisval year ended June 30, 2003, We cncourage readers to
consider the infurmarien here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
Lransinifial, which cau be found on pages i through vi of this report. All amounts, unless atherwise indicawed, are
expressed in whole dollars.

Financial Highlights

- The assels of the County exceeded ils
Of this amount, $42,661,311 is reswricted for specified purposes and is not available to meet the
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, S42.6A1,311 is invested in capita) ussets (net of
related deb).

ities ut the close of fhe most recent
Uies ut the ¢lose oL oe most gcent

- The government's toial net assets increased by $2,158,290 during the fiscal year, This {5 attributable to a
number of factors, incleding mereases in tevenues, and reductions in expendifures, Expendituras were
reduced due o County departments ot [illing vacant positions. Several departments have also been
reviewing all discretionary cxpenditures, eliminating winecessary items and finding ways to pet the same
benefit more economically.

. As of June 30, 2003, the County's govemmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$39,131,969, Approximalely 545,232,274, of this total amount, iz available for spending at the
government's diseretion (unreserved fund hzlam:e‘l

. AL the close of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for e gencral fund was $11,020,615, or 104
petcent of 10tal peneral find expenditares ot $105,314,546.

Overview of the Financial Stulements

This discussion and analysis are imtended to serve as an introdustion to the Couaty of King's basic finuncial
statements. The County's basic financial stalemente are comprised of dwee components: 1} govenment-wide
financial slatements, 2) fund financigl statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report alea contains
other supplementary information m addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements

The gevernment-wide linanvial statenenty are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Comnly's
finances, in 2 manmer stnslar to private-sector business,

The statement of net assets presents informalion on all of the County's asseis and liabilities, with the difference
belween the two roported ws nel assets. Over Lime, increases or decreases in et asgets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the (inancial position of the County is imptoving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County's net assets changed during the most recent

fiscal year, All changes in nc[ agsets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the tim'mg of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported n this statement for
some itema that will only result in cash tlows in future tisca! periods, such as revenues related to uncollecled taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave.

Both of the govermment-wide slatements distinguish functions of the County of Kings that are puneipally supported
b taxes and intergovernmental revehues (governmeintal activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all of a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-rype aciivities). The povernmental
activities of the County include gencral government, public protection, public ussistance, health and sanitation,



public ways and facilities, recreation and cuttural services, and education. The business-type activities of the County

. . . : - County of Kings®
include the Public Works, Fleet Marapemens, Data Processing, Health and Workers” Compensation Internal Scrvice Ng Asselt:gs s
Funds. June 30, 2003
Fund financial statements Glxch_m_):_ental
clvities

A fund is a grouping of relaed accounts that is used to maintain control over resources It have been segregated for Assets;
specific activities or objectives. The Counly of Kings, like all other state and local governments, uses fund Current and other assets $ 54,485,051
acconnting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Al of the funds of the Capital assets 42.661.311
County can he divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprivlary funds and fiduciary funds. T

Total assets 97,146,372
Gavernmental funds Liabilities:

Long-term liabilities 442,147
Governmental funda arc used to account for essentially the same fimctions reported as govenunental activities in the Other liabilities 7.522.255
government-wide financial statements. These statements, however, focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets Total Tiabiliti =
can readily be converted to available resources and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. otal liabilities 7,964.402
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. Wet assels:

\ . . Invested in capital asscts,

Decause the fecus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial staements, it is v
useful fo compare the information presented for governmentai funds with similar information presented for et _”r velated deb 42,661,311
governmental activities in the government-wide linuncial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the Restricted
long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions, Both the governmental fund balance sheet and Unresticted (delicit) 46,520.658
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to Toual net assets $RE.251.959

facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental aciivities.

The County of Kings malntains several individual funds organized according te their type (special revenue, capital
projects, debt service and general fund). Tnformation, is presented scparately in the, govenmental fund balance sheet
and in the governmental, fund statement of revenues, expenditurcs, and changes in fund balances for the general
fund, properly development special revenne fund, grant revenuc speeial revenue fund, capital projects fund and debt
service fund, all of which are considered major funds. Data from Lhe remaining governmental funds are combined

Analysis of changes in net assets

The County's net assets overall decreased by $12,977 642 during the current fiscal year.

into a single, aggregated presentutivn. Individual find data for each of these non-major governmental funds is County of King's
P T R Changes in Net Asseis
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. B -
June 30, 5]
Govermunental

Government-wide Financial Analysis Aclivities

HRevenues:
This is the first year that the County has presented its financial staiements under the new reporting mudel required Progeam revenucs:
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 (GASR 34), Basic Financial Statemants - and Charzes for servicas $27.155.472
Management's Discussian and Analysis (MD&A) - for State and Local Governments. Because this reporting model & N " o 13547
clenges significamly both the recording and preseatation of financial data, the County has not restated prior fiscal Operating grants and contributions 98,482,884
years for purpeses of providing comparative information for the MD&A. In fumre years when prior-year Grants & Contributions nor restricted 2,736,516
infunnation is available a comparative analysis of government-wide data will be included in this report. General revennes:

Property taxes 26,1
Analysis of nct asgets 12,026,110

Saley 1axes 2382375
As noled earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case Other 1axes 3,097,380
of the County of Kings, assets exceed liabilities by £89,181,969 at Tune 30, 2003. Interest and investment incoeme 1 074,347

. s 3 N Otber
The largest portion of the County's net assets $38,832,013, 43.5 percent is investment in capital assets (e.g. land, ) _ 4.583.268
buildings, equipment and infrastructure}, less any related outstending debt used 1o acquire those assets. The County Total revenues 152,540,661
uses these capital assets to provide services iv cilizens; consequently, these assets are mot availahle for fiture Expenses:
spending, Although the County's mvestments in its capital assets is reported net of refated deb, it should be noted Geeral —
that the resources needed to repay this debt must he provided from other sources, since the capital assers themselves ) Bovernt 21,842,342
cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities. Public safety 43,232,730
5
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Public assistance 53,400,960
Healih and sanitation 20,388,501
Public ways and facilities 20 425,880
Recreation and cultral servizes 571,977
Education 1,191,117
Hiways & Strects 4,464,796
Total expensss 165318303
Inercase/(decrease) in net assets {12,977 ,612}
Net assets-beginning $101.229,611
Net asscts — ending $88.251,969

Governmental activities

Governmental activities decreagedthe County of Kings's net assets by $12,977,642., thereby accounting for all of the
tatal growth in the net assets of the County. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

. Praperty Lax revenucs increased by approximately $1.9 million or 11.4 percent during the yecar. Most of this
increase is attributable to growth in the assessed value of property.
. Charges tor services increased $519.253 in the primary government. Intergovernmental rovenues

decreased by §3,767,876 , in large part due to decreased State welfare fundings. Fines, forfeiturcs and
penalties revenue were up by $79,501.

. Tnterest and investment income declined by approximately $197,272 or 11.4 percent. This was mainly due
Lo a decline in Lhe average vield on pooled investments,

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted eaglier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the County's governmental funds is Lo provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balanges of resources that are available for spending. Such informatien is useful in assessivg the Connty's financing
requirgments. In particular, unreserved fiund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources
available for spending ar the end of the fiscal year. Types of governmental funds reported by the County include the
general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital project funds,

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$45,232,274, a decrease of $%,651,154 in comparison with the prior year. The unreserved amount of $32,894,997 is
available for spending at the County's diseretion.

The remainder of tund balance 15 reserved to indicate that it is not avaiable for new spending because it has already
been commilted, (1) to liguidate exisling contracts and purchase orders ($7,262,682); (2) invesiments; (3) For
Economic uncertainties {$3,831,813); (4) for a variety of other restricted purposes ($16,000].

Revenues for governmental funds overall tolaled spproximalely $132,5 million in the fiseal year ended fune 30,
7003, which represents an decrease of 3.3 percent from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. Expenditures [or
governmental funds, totaling $142.7 miltion, increased by 7 percent aver the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, Tn the
fiscal vear ended June 30, 2003, expenditures of governmental funds exceeded revenues by approximately $10.2
million, ot abeut 7.7 percent.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund
balanee of the general fund was $11,020,619, whilc total fund balance was 513,165,602, As a measurc of the general
fund's liquidity, it may be useful to cowmpare hoth unreserved fund balance and total tund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unreserved fund bzlance ropresents 7.7 percent of total general fund expenditutes of $ 142, 7million,
while total find balanee represents 10.7 pereent of that same amount, The fund balance in the County's general fund
increased by $3,699,429 during ihe fiscal ycar. This was mainly due to continued growih in local revenues,
especially property taxes, other local taxes, and intergovernmental revenuus, particularly state grants and
subventions.

As noted above, the County's general fund property tax collections incroased by approximately 9 percent during the
tiscal year rclated 1o growth in assessed valucs, reduced asscasment appeals, and growlh in supplemental property
tax revenues. In addition, many gencral fund program cxpenses prew morc slowly than projected.

General fund budgetury highlights

fhe County's final budget of the gencral furd differs from the vrigingl badget in that it contains cary-forward
approptiations for varicus programs and projects, and supplemental appropriations approved during the fiscal year.
Dilferences between Lhe griginal budgel and the final aruended budget of $1,586.295 net increase in appropriations
are briefly summarized as follows:

- The public protection departments increased appropriations for services to County departments and cuiside
entities by $1,483.277. The Genera! Government depariments increased appropriations by $1,231,677L

. The Public Assistance departments incresed appropriations by $1,837,969,
. The 1lealth Depariment increased its appropriations averall by $2,791 863,
. Cnly 52.8 million of County’s appropriations for contingencies budget of $5.9 million was used..

Overall, the County's actual zeneral fund revenues were under budgeted in fiscal year 2003 by §2,741,753, or 2.5
percent. Kevenues that had significant variances include the following:

- Approximately $2,566,040 or 4. percent of the budget for state aid was under realized.

. Charges for current services was greater than budget by $476,145, or 5.9%. ¢« Tax revenues exceeded
budgct by §2,059,,308, 17%.

Actual expenditures in the general fund were kess than the adjusted budget by $7,971,026 or 7.5 percent. In peneral,
(lis reflocts consistent savings from all the general government finctions, primarily due to expendinre controls by
departments, slower Gupital acquisitions, and savings in salary costs dug Lo a hiring, freeze, Significant savings came
from the following County funetions:

Capitat assets and debt administration

Capital assets

The County's capital assets for its governmental type activities as of June 30, 2003 amount to $42,661,311 (net of
accumulated depreciation) as shown in the table below. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings



and improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, streets, and bridges. The total increase in the
Connty's capiral assets for the cucrent fiscal year, net of depreciation, was §3,114,179 percent (a 7.3) percent
increase for governmental activities.

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Jume 30, 2003
Land and other asséts not
Being depreciated $2,670 490
Facilities, infrasmucture, and 24,296,025
Equipment 13,694 7196
Total $42.661311

For govemment-wide stalement of net assets presenration, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from
acquisition date to the end of the current fiscal year.

Fund financinl statements record capital assel purchases as expenditures, In fiscal year 2003, engeing infrasttucture
projects are accoyntad for in constructinn o progress.

Debt Administratign

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Connty had long-term cbligations oulstanding, of $1,762,624 in two capital
leases.

Kings County's begal debt limit is $152,540,661, As of June 30, 2003, the County did not have any generul
wubiigativn boruds and therefort had not nsed any of its debt limit

On July of 2002, the Board of Supervisors approved the sate of the Master Settlement Agreement Tobacco revenues
1o be received as a result of the lawsnit against the largest 1. 8. tobacce manufacturers, The proceeds will be used to
partially finance construction of a new detention facility.

Economic factors and next year's budget and rates

. The wnemplayment rate for Kings County was 154 percent in Deccmber 2003, compured to the stale's
average unemployment rate of 7 percent.

. Increased energy costs steming fiom California's energy crisis had a significant impact on the County's
budget, causing the County to budget for higher energy costs.

All of the above factors were considered in preparing the County's budget for fiscal year 2003/01.

‘The County adopted ils fiscul year 2003/04 budget before the Stats of California finalized its own budget. The
State's ecunomis situativn will have fulure negative impacts to the County's hudget for fiscal year 2003/04. The
County has begun (o lake stops to midgate budgetavy problems by restricting departmental spending 1o fiscal year
2003/04

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed 1o provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and inveslors and creditors with a
general overview of the County's finances and to dermonstrate the County's accountability for the money it receives.
Below is the comtact for questions about this report or requests for additional financial information.

Kings County
Department of Finance
1400 W. Lacey Blvd.
Hanford, CA 93230



County of Kings
Statement of Net Assets County of Kings
Juns 30, 2003 Statement of Activitles
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Govemmental
ASSETS Activitles Program Revenues Net (Expense} Ravanue and
Gash and cash equivalents T 544390236 Operating Changes in Net Assets
Investments 1,225,782 Charges for Grants and Governmental
Receivables (n=t of allowance Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities
for uncallectinies) 8,622,659 Frimary government -
Inventories and prepaid expenses 245384 Gaovernmental activities:
Caplial assets (nex of accumulated General government $29,842,342 50,267,657 513,437,957 $913,312.01
depreciation): Public safety 43,232,730 5,674,504 17,253,159 (26,305,067)
Land 2,378,392 Public ways and facilities 20,425,881 10,941,891 381,601 (4,102 389)
Structures and improvements 24,298,025 Highways and streets 4 464 796 475,314 892,414 (3,097,067)
Equipment 15,694,796 Health and sanitation 20,388 501 568,101 18,069,850 {1,830 544)
Constructioh in progress 294,008 Public Assistance 53,400 960 1,448 48,093,259 (5,306.252)
Total assets T g7.146,372 Educetion 119117 42,979 144,202 (1,003.936)
- Gulture and recreaticn 571,977 53,538 160,442 (347.998)
LIABILITIES Total primary government 565,516,303 $27,155,472 $98,482,684 ($39,679,048)
Aecounts payable and other
current liabilities 2,864,352 General revenues:
Due other agencies 152,474 Property Taxes 13,026,110
Nancurrent lizkilities: Sales Taxes 2,382,375
Due within one year: Franchise Taxas 2,900,654
Claims payable 4,310,000 Hotel Taxes 196,735
Capital Leases 95428 Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 2,736,616
Due in more than ong year: Unirestricted investment earnings 1,074,347
Compensated absences 442,147 Gain on sale of capital assets 1,154,789
Total liabiities T 7,964,402 Miscallaneous 3,430,779
- Total general revenues 26,902,305
NET ASSETS Change in net assals (12,977 ,642)
Invested in capital assets, Net assels - beginning 102,189,611
net of relatad dabt 42.8561,311 Net agsets - ending 589,181,969
Unrestricted 46,520,668
Total net assets T $80.181,860 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
e
The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
11
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County of Kings
County of Kings Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Balange Sheet Government Funds

Governmental Funds For thc Year Endad June 30, 2003
June 30, 2003

Total
Othor Tatal Special Capital Governmental
Capital G°":m':e"w G“':'“':e"“' REVENUES General Revenue Projeots Funds
ASSETS ) General Projects unds unas Taxes:
;Freasu;ar |n:estmenls SE.ZZ?:;: 85727614 $6,555,l:§g $20,52§‘3?§ Property 36,143,482 $3.882, 627 $13.028.110
pres) e ‘ : Sales 2,245 858 136,518 2,382,375
:?5“:‘"5 "‘:m otfhers < 296 132 18.350.802 25.000 1?'252’;‘?2:22 Franchise 2,392,033 413,130 95,481 2,900,654
sstments }
. ' e Hote! 196,735 196,735
Accounts reczivable 6,612 346 167,158 1,112,037 7,891 542 Licenses and permils 290752 290,752
Advences ta other funds 806 478 506 478 o et e Enn PP REC 718
: 29 775 29 ??5 Fines alia 171 0,00 ol%, 110 (= 10
?;;r;zn::pe ses 24 ‘754 21 ‘.{,54 Intergovernmental 82,296,138 18,983,217 858 918 100,248,274
il T N N
- Charges for services 8,539,738 67,088 8,506,826
7
Total assets $16,763,488 524,254 575 $7,702,550 548,730,613 Rents and Concessions 516959 516,989
BALANCES Investment sarnings 682,257 169,581 160,132 1,014,871
t}Aﬁ:{.lﬂES AND FUND Cantributions and dohations 10,106 10,106
iabilities: -
Miscellansous 1,018,602 1,591,209 51,380 2,864,192
'éfm'e" e"";“ses payacle 1.445,352 12413 1';:3'383 2'233‘333 Total revenuas 107 456,186 33,667,801 T175.812 132,502,676
aims payable E |
DCua other agencies 152,474 152,474 EXPENDITURES
Total liabllities 1.597 826 12,413 1,888,100 3,498,339 i
Current:
. General government 10,155,009 508,707 10,663,716
Fu;d balances: i 32,428,193 9,901,984 42330157
eserved for: 8 A
Highways and strests 4,464,796 4,464,796
7,262 6B
ET;L;T;&?: = l’ggg‘;;g 5199678 156,088 1‘22;' ‘gé Heatth and sanitaticn 19,690,043 690,000 20,380,048
. : . A ) . 104 2. 1 526 53,314,771
Econemic uncertainties 1,313,543 2,518,270 3,831,813 Public assistance 4214 '545 1.210,5 s ierens
Other pLrpeses 16,000 16,000 Education 133831 1.054.14 87
Un,ese,fed reportad in: ! ' Culture and recreation 803,521 803,521
! : 577 5. 5,577,528
Ganeral fund 11,020,649 14,020619 Capital outlay o 4 :77 5;2 L
Spadial revenue funds 3,122,095 3,122,005 Total expenditures 105,314,545 27,830, 8,577, 722,
} \ e e Excess {deficiency) of revenuea
Capita! projects funds 18,752,283 18,752,283 )
Tital fximii balances 15,165,662 24452162 5814450 E5.232.274 aver (under) expencitures 2,144,620 (3.962,535) (8,401 616) (10.219,532)
Total liabilities and fund balances 515.7634P8 GIAIGALTH $7.702,650 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Tranafers in 531,188 531,188
Transfers cut (631,198) (531,198)
Amaunts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net Sale of capital assets 544,869 23,509 568,877
assete ara different because: Tetal other financing sources and uses 13,67 554,707 568,377
Capital assets used jn gn;fernmental activities are not financial Net ¢hange in fund balances 2,158,290 (3,407.828) (8,401,616) (9,651,154)
resources and, therefore, ara not reparted in the funds. 38,532,012 Fund balanees - beginning 13,067,372 59,222 278 32,853 778 54,883,428
Itema) service fnds ars useo by managsment te chargs the Fund balances - ending $15.165,662 $5574450 24752162 $45,032 274
costs of public works, fleet management, data processing. health . ) 7
self-insurance and workars compensation self-insurance to individual The notes ta the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement.
funds. The agsets and liabiliies of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities In the statemant of net assets. 5,117 §82

$69,181,968
e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemant.
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County of Kings
Recanciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statemant of Activities
For tha Year Ended June 30, 2003

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of activides are
different because:

Met change in fund balancses - total governmental funds (39,861,154}

Gaovernmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

staternent of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense, This is the amount by which

depreciation ($2,149,950) exceeded capital outlays (31,727 148} in

in the current pericd {422 801)

Internal service funds are used by management ta charge the costs of public
works, fleet management, data processing, health self-Insurance and workers
compensation self-insurance to individual funds. The net revenue {axpenses)

of certain activities of service funds is reported with governmental activities (2,803,687)
Change in net assets of governmental activities ($1Z‘§’7,8425

The notes to the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement,
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County of Kings
Statement of Nat Asseis
Pryprietary Funds
June 30, 2003

Internal
Service
ASSETS Funds
Current assets: -
Treasurer invastments $5,175,775
imprest cash 180
Deposit with others 260,000
Accounts receivable 105,872
Inventories 143,883
Prepaid expenses 49.871
Amounts to be provided 18,666
Total current assets 5,754,448
Nencusment assets:
Capital assels:
Land 88,801
Siructures and improvemenis 820,198
Equipment 11,486,050
Less accumulated dapreciation {8,365,642)
Total capital assets {net of
accumulated depregiation) 3,829,297
Total noncurrent assets 3,829,297
Total assets 9,583,745
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accrued expenses payable 308,487
GClams payable 3,620,000
Capital leases pavable 95,429
Total curent liabilities 4023918
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 442,147
Total noncurrent liabilities 442,147
Total liabilities 4,466,083
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital essets, net of related debt 3,829,297
Unrestricted 288,385

Tkl ned acemic ex 417 249
Total nst assel $3,117,582

The netes fo the financial statements are an integral past of this statement.
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County of Kings Gounty of Kings
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

CASH FLOWS FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES

Internal Receipts from interfund senvices provided $18,245,972
. Payments to suppliers {11,278 264)
Service Payments to employscs (5,588, 348)
__F"'K Miscellanecus Receists 80,749
Operating revenues: Net cash provided by operating ach 1,468,112
Charges for services $16,626,909
Miscallaneous 1,222.691 CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFITAL
Total operating revenues 17 849,690 FINANCING ACTIVITIES
P —_— Transfer to other funds (13,740)
i Met cash provided {used) by nancapital
Operating expenses: finanding activitiss (13.740)
Salaries and benefits 5,615,443
Services and supplies 13,586,776 c;:u FLOWS .‘m‘%nr"capéu\lﬁ "r::g
Administration 1,028,879 LATED Fl G ACTY
N 596691 Furchases of capital assais (1,249,918}
Depreciaticn . ——— Frincipal paid on capital debt {80,201}
Total aperating expenses 20,826 590 Interest paid on capital debt (2,027)
Qperating income (expenses) {2,976,898) Proceeds from sales of capital assete 70,518
- Net cash provided (used) by capital
Nonopaerating revenues (expenses): and releted financing activities (1,262,528}

Investment eamings 62,376 GASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
Interest expense {2,927) ACTIVITIES
Net gain on sale of fixed assets 27,503 Interest and dividends received 62,376
Total ncnoperating revenue {expenses) 86,953 Met cash provided {used) by
Income {expenses) befare contributions and transfers  (2,888,947) investing activities 62378
Transfers out {13,740) . . )
. —t Net increasa in cash and cash equivalents 254,218
Change in nat assets (2,903 68T) ! ™
Total net assets - beginning 8,021,368 Cash and cash equivaients - beginning of lhe year 5,181,736
Total net assets - ending $5.117 652
- Cash and cash gquivalents - ent of the year 35,436,855

The notes to the financial staiements are an integral part of this statement. . :
Reconciliation of operating Income ta

net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating inoame P {2976,509)
Adiustments to reconcile operating

income to net cash provided {used)

by operating activities:

Depreciation expanse 596,691
{increase} decrease in accounts receivabie {61,786)
(Increase) decrease in advances receivable 548,710
(Increase) decreage In inventaries (21,743)
{Increase) decrease in prepaid items. {49.871)
{Increase) decrease in amounts o be provided (5,891)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses payable 3.433,011
Increese {decrease) in compensated absences payable: 5,890
Total adjuatments 4,445,011

Net cash previded by aperating activities $ 1488112

The notes ta the financial statemants are an integral part of this statement.
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County of Kings
Statement of Fiduciary Nat Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2003

Agency Funds

ASSETS
Treasurer nvestments $127,591,733
Agccounts receivable 4,236,735
Deposits with others 2,814,900
Total assets 134,643,368
LIABILITIES
Due sther agencies 134,843,368
Total llabilites 134,643,368
NET ASSETS -

The notes to the ﬁnanciél staterments are an integral part of this statement. [THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



County of Kings
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

‘I'he financial statements of the County of Kings have been preparad in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Th_e U_n'ued States of America (QAAP}
as applicable Lo government. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body [or establishing governmental ascounting and

finuncial reporting principles.

These financial statements present primary government. There are ho hlended or discretely presenled component units .included il! tl1€sf: finuncial staterments. The criteria
used in determining what accounting entities, agencies, commissions, board and authorities are part of the County of Kings operations inzlude how th‘e budget i adopted,
whether debt is secured by general obligation of the Caunty. the County’s dhity to caver any doficits that may oceur, and supervisivn over the a.:EantLpg ﬁmct_luns. There
are na other agencies, organizations or activities meeting any of the above criteriu that are excluded from the County reporting enfity. The following scctions further
describe the significant accounting polickes of the County of Kings.

Reportine Entity

The County of Kings was incorporated in 1397 under laws of the Stas of Califormia. The legislative body is a five-member Board of S_upenisors, elecmd. by district. A
County Admiristrative Officer, uppointed by the Beard of Supervisurs, administers County affairs. Other clected Conmty officials include Assessor/Clerk-Recorder,
Auditor-Controller, District Atomey, Sheriff-Coroner-Public Administrater, Treasurer-Tax Cellector, and Superimendent of Schools.

The County provides vatious sevvices including health and welfare, police, fire fighting and prevention force, road mainienance fn_rce, a parl§ apd recreationll system, a
Tibrary and the necessary support to thess service providers. Allare responsible Lo the Citizens of County of Kings, and are therefore included within the reporting entity.

a Basis of Presentation — The government-wide financial statcment of net assets and the statcment of activities disp]aylf infum'm_li}m abc}lt Fl1e Primary government
and i1s compaonent units. These stalements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. El]mmz!n_oys have hcm} made
Lo oiinimize the double-counting of inlernal activities. These statements distinguish between the govermmental and busmes-;s typz acltmtms of lh‘? .(,_nunty.
Governmentat-type activities are generally fnanced through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange tansactions. Business tvpe activities are
financad in whole or in part by fees charged 1o external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparisun between direct expenses and program revenues for the djffemnt b.usincss-rype actmues_of the County and {or
each fimction of the County’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are thosc that are specifically associated with a program or function and, llle‘l‘Cfﬂ}'Ef are
clearly identifiable to a particular fumction. Indirect expenss allocations thal have been m?de in the funds have been reversed for the statement ‘or acm.nn-es.
Prograrn revenues inchude fees, fines and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offerzd by the programs and gramts and cm?mbuu_ons that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particullar program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes,
are presanted as general revenues

The fmancial statements of the County have been prepared in cenformity with accounting prinviples gcne:ra]ly accepted m the United SLZT.E'S of Ametica ag
applied to governmental units, The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the accepted slandard setting body for povernmental accounting and 1'1.r1a.ncmcl1
reporting principles. [n 2003, the County adopted new accounting standards in order to canfarm te .GASE. MNos. 34, 37 and 38 and these statements are presents
according to those requirements. The more significant of the County’s accounting pelicies are described below.
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The County reports the following major zovaromental fund:
General Fund. This is the Coonty’s primary operaling fund. 1t accounts for all financial resources of the genera! gavernmens, except hose required 1o be
accounted for in another fund

Capital Outlay Fund, These fans account for financial resoutces to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed
by proprievy and trust funds.

The County Reports the fullowing fund types:
Taternal Service Funds. These funds aceount for program costy relating te rads, building maintenance, surveyor and other reimbursable projects, motor pool and

heavy equipment repairs and rentals, data processing, health and workers’ compensation sell-insurance coverages to other departments on g cost-reimbyrsement
basis.

Agency Funds. These funds eccount $pr monies hefd on behall of schoot districts and speeial districts that use the County as & dapository, and property taxes
collected on behalf of otker governments.

b. Measuremem Focus, Basis of accounting

Goverment-wide, Propriatory, and Fiduciary Find Financig) Statenents, The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary (und financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measarernent focus. The governument-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reportad using accrual basis of accounting,
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities arc ncutred, regardless of when the relawd cash flows tuke place.
Wenexchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) valae withaut directly receiving (o7 giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes,
grants, entitlements, and donadions. On ap accrual basis, revens from properly faxes is recognized in the fiseal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue
Ffrom grants, entitlements, and donations is ecognized in the fisea) year in which atl eligibility requircments have been satisiied

Governmental Fund Finangial Smements. Governmeanmtal fundy ars reported using the current Bnanciad resources measwement focus and modified acerual basis
of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and gvailable. The Coumy considers ali revenuss roported in the governmental
funds o be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after vear-end. Propery taxes, sales taxes, franchise laxes, licsnses, and inferest are
considered to e susceptible 1o acorual. Expendimres are recorded when the related fund liability is incwrred, except for priveipal snd interest on general Jong-
term debt, claims and judgments, and compensaied absences, which are recognizes as expenditores to the extent they are matwred, {(reneral capital usset
acquisitions are reported as expenditares in povernmental funds. Proceeds from long-term debt and acquisitions under capital keases are ceportad as other
finanging scurces.

Under the terms of prant agreements, the County funds certain programs by contribution of specitic cosl-reimbursement grants, catcgorical blotk grants, and
general reverues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both resricted and unrestricled net assts available to (inance program.

All govemmental and business-iype activities of the County follow FASB Stalements and interpretarions issued on or before 1989, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions, and Acconpting Reszarch Bullstins, unless those pronouncenients conflict with GASB pronouncements.

<. Capital Asgets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historieal cogt. Dionated fined assets are recorded af their estimated fair value at the date
of donation. The cost of normal maintenanee and repairs that de 1ot add to the value of asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciaed using the straight-line method over the following sstimated uscful lives:
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Asset Class Uscful Lives
Infrastructure 30
Buildings 30
Building Iprovements 20
Vehicles 2-15
Oflice Equipment 315
Computer Equipment 3-15
d. Wacaiion and Siek Leave - Expenditures ot vacation and vested sick leave bonefits are recognized when earncd. Employses are vested w 20 percent althei sick

leave balance after 3 years of service. At Jung 30, 2003, the vested portion of sick leave benefits and the acerued vacation towded $3,672,306. The portion
relating to the proprictary funds is $442,147 at June 30, 2003, The benefit amounty relating 1o governmental funds that will be paid from [uture resources are
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Accoont Group.

e Treasurer Investments - Under the County's cash management program, cash in excess of operating requirziments is d ited in demand . savings
accounts cr invested pursuant o the Treasurcr's Statement of Tnvestment Policy, Cash and vash equivalents are displaysd as Treasurer lovesiments in all funds.

For purposes of the accompanying combined staterment of cash flows, the Enterprisc and Internal Service funds consider all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three meonths or less when purchased, and their equity in the County Treasurer’s investment pool, Lo be cash oquivalents.

The Cotty's cash balance al year-and was camposed of (1) Coin and currency held in the vanlt and used for daily operations, (2) cask aud cherls prepared for
deposit o the bank, and (3) a demand deposit account beld in the County's name of which $100,000 was covered by federal depasgitary insurauce with the balance
collateralized by securities beld by the Counly's enstodial bank in the County's name. The Public Guardian eash in bank is covered by federal depository
insurance, up 10 $100,000.

f. Investments - Staiwes authorize the County w invest in obligarions of the U.S. Treasury, apencies, and municipalities, ennmercial paper rated A-1 by Srandard &
Poor's Corperation or P-1 by Maody's Commercial Paper Record, banker's accsptances, certificates of deposit, medium term corporate notes, shares of
Government money markel funds, repurchase agreements, and the state treasurer's invesiment pocl.  The County Is also authorized to enter into reverse
repurchase agreements. Lnvestments are stated at marker and are included in cash, investments, impressed cash, and deposits with others in the accompanying
Financial stalcments, Interest inceme is allocated to the various funds quarterly based an their average daily balances.

£ Fair Valuc of Investments — Accounting pronouncement GASB 31 generally applies to investments in external ivestment pools (State of Califosnia LAIF and
other government sponsored investments pools), investments purchased with maturities grearer than one year, muwal funds and certain investment agreements.
Generally, gavernmental entities necd o report the “fair marlket value” changes for these investments at year-end and if significant, records those gains or loyses
on their inceme statement, The County does not present realized and unreslized gains or losses o separate items vn the face of is financial statements or in i
note diselozures.

h. Methods and Assumptions used to Estimate Fair Yalue — The Counly presents its records at cost which approximates “fair value' at fiscal year end. The County’s
investment custodian provides matket valuzs on each investment mstrument on a monthly basis. The investments held by the County ane widely raded and trading
values are teadily available from nmmerous published sources.

The Counly's cash and investments are categorized below to give an indication of the lovel of risk assumed by the entity at year-end. Categery | includes
amounts that are insured or regjstered or for which the deposits arc beld by the County or 1ts agent in the County's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered amounts for which the deposits are held by the banks, brokers or dealar's trust department or agent in the County's name. Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered amouns for which the deposits are held by the bank, broker or dealer, or by its wust department or agent but not in the Connty's rame.
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Categoty Bank/Market Carrying
1 2 3 Walue Value

Categorizing Treasurer Invesiments

Government Agency Coupon Sccuritics $58,507,504 £58,507,504 $58,324,577
Covarnment Agency Disc. —At Cost 2,987,447 2,987,447 2,987,261
Bankers Acceptances —At Cost 3,716,354 3,716,334 3,716,049
Commergial Paper Disc.-At Cost 4,981,245 4,981,243 4,08:,172
LAIF — Lacal Agency Investmenl Pool 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
MMA Black Rock T-Fund 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,600,000
MMA Nations Treasury Reserve 1,053,425 1,053,425 1,053,425
Medium Term Notes 36,502,814 36,502,814 36,508,389
Total £151.748,767 $151,748,767 $151,570,873
Cash and Aecrued Interest

Passbook/Checking 261.812 261,812 261,812
Ending Accrued Interest 910,502 910,902 910,902
Subtotal $L,172,714 $1,172,714 1,172,714
Total Cash and Investments Yalue $152.621,481 $152,743,587

In Apri! of 1938, the Board of Supervisors atthorized the purchase of Farmers’ Home Administration bonds putstanding on local sewer and water assessment
bands in the amoeunt of $2,335,000. The investment is amorlized over 35 years and retums are all being transferred 10 the Creneral Fund. At June 30, 2003
The County's remaining unamortized balance is §1,226,782.

i Total Columns on Fund Financial - Overview
Total columns on the Combined Statements - Overview are captioned Memorandum only ta indicate that they arc presented only to facilitate financial unalysis.
Dita in these columns do not present financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting pr inciples. Neither
is such data comparable te a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

i Budgeting Principles - The County is required by state statute to adopt ammual budgets for goveramental and proprietary funds of the County. The budget is
Adopted by Augmst 30th of each year. The County Board of Supervisors may amend the budget by transferring budgeted amounts from one object or purpose
To another within the same tund.

RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivable in the general fund consists mainly of amounts to be received from the State of California for their share of the cost af 2002-2003 Mental Health
program $421,126, Welfare Administration $1,204,863, Welfarc Incentives Program $1.135.971, Office of Criminal Justice Flanning grants $303.626, Health programs
$1,345,273, Watcr Purchases $154,589, Child Abuse Prevention 560,269, Hazardous Waste Taxes 5333493, Grher $41,774, Prison Cost Reimbursement $282,526,
Victim Witness $82,209, School Probation Officer $47,567, Coniract Law Exforcement $168,722. Proporty taxes receivable, in the amount of $3,263,300 is shown in
Agancy Funds
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PROPERTY TAX -

The County is responsible for the assessment, collection and apportionment of property taxes for all mxing jurisdictions including the schoods and spevial districts within
the County. Proparty taxes, [or which the Jicn date is lanuary 1. and levy date is October 7, are payable in equal installments, Noveraber | and February 1 and are
teceivable when levied. They become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, rospectively. Praparty taxes are accounted for in the Property Tax Collection tund, (an
Agency [und), until apportionment and disbursement 1o taxing jurisdictions. Property tax revenuss are recognized when collecied. Property taxes on the wasecuscd roll
are dug on the March 1 lien datc and beenme delinquent, if unpaid, on August 31. Assessment of supplemental taxes is kept elurent.

The County is permitted by Article XA of the State of California Congtitution (known &s Proposition 13) o levy a maximons tax of $1.00 per §100 of fiull cash vatue for
all taxing agencies.

RETIREMENT PLAN -

PERS. The Coutaty of Kings contributes 1o the Californis Public Employees' Retiremen( Svstem (PERS), an agent Multiple-employer public retirement systein that acts as
common investment and adminiswalive agent for participating public enilies within the State of Califormia. The County's payroll for employees covered by the PERS
plan for the year ended June 30, 2003 was approximately 544,996 973(ro1al payroll was approximately $47.143,169). The majority of employees of the County, with the
exception of wmporary comployses are required to conlribote to the PERS,

All full-time County employees are eligibls % participate in the PERS plan. Benefits vest fully after 5 years of service. County employees who refire at or after age 60
(55 tor "Lucal Safery Members") with 3 vears of credited service are cntitled te an annual rotirement benefit, payabic monthly for life, in an amount equal to thair highest
salary i any 12 months during the their emplovment, end all other requirements are established by stainte.

The County confribates 100% of the amounts required to fund the PERS plan using the actuarial basis speeifizd by statute.

Fungitg Statns_and Progress. "Pension benefits obligation” is a standardized diselosure measure of the presem value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of
projected salary increases and any step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable iz the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure Js intended to help users
assess the funding stafus of (he PERS plan on a going-concern basis, asscss propress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when dug, and make
cotnparisons among, emplovers. The measure is called the “actuarial present vahue of the credited projected benefits” and is independent of the funding method used to
determine contributions & the PERS plan.

The pension benefits obligation wes computed as part of an actuarizl valuation performed as of June 30, 2002 (the latest annual report availabls for PERS). Significant
actuacial assumptions used in the valuations includs (a} a rate of refurn on the investment of present and fiturs assets of 8.25 percent a year compounded annually; (b) the
salary scake used assumss salary increases that vary by lengsh of service. The total increase in any firture year includes an assumed 3.5% inflation rate, a 3.75% acrwss the
board increass and merit increases that vary by length of servive, (¢) Mo past-retirement benefit increases.
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The total unfunded pension benefit oblipation applicable to the Counity's emplayees was approximalely $(38,950,052) ar June 30, 2002, (The dats of the latest aninal
PERS report), a5 follows:

Irescnl Value of Benefiis $ 293,266,253
Present Value of Future Emplayer Normal Costs 44,770,320
Present Value of Fumirs Ermployee Contributions 35229319
Cntry Age Normal Accrucd Liability 213,260,614
Actuarial Vatue of Asscts 213,070,568
Unfunded Accrued Liability{Excess Asseis) 01,805,954
Changes in the pension benefit ebligation since last year due to:

Changes in benefit paviment MiA
Changes in actuarial methods and assumptions NrA

Acwarially Determingd Contribution Requirements and Contribution Made, The FERS plan's funding poliey provides for actuarially determined periodic coniributions at
rates thai, for individnal employees, increase graduafly over time so thet sufficient assets will be available to pay benefits when due. ‘The rate for the County's employee
graup as a whole has lended to remain level as a percentage of annual covered payrolls. The contribution rafe for normal cost is determined using the credited projected
bonefits actuarial funding method with proration based om service. The PERS plan uses the level pearcemtage of payroll method to amortize the infunded liability awet a
period not 1o exceed thirky years.

“The sigificant aciuarial assusmptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirement are the same as those used to compire pension benefits eamed
as described under funding staius and progress, above.

The Connty's contribution of $6,359,799 for 2003 was made in accordance with actuarialty determined requirements compured through an actuarial valuation performuied
as of Jung 30, 1996. The employer contribution for 2003 was 13.49 percent of carrent covered payroll.

Tundcd Starus of Plan The table below displays a short history of the Entry Age Normal Accrocd Liability, the Actuarial Valuz of Assets, and the Unfunded Liability (vr
Fxeows Assels), Funded Statas {1z, the tatio of the Actuarial Valus of Assets to Buiry Age Normal Accred Liabitity), the estimated annmat covered pavroll and the
Unfinded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UUAAL) as a percentage of thal covered payroll

Unfunded

Liability/ Annual UAAL
Valuation Tniry Age Normal  Actuarial Velue  Excess Funded  Coversd Asa¥of

Date Accrued Liability = _of Assets _ Assels) Staws, Pavioll Pavroll

6/30/99 £ 147,187,099 $202,181,959  $(54.994,860) 1537.4% S37,769,946  (145.605%)
6/30/00 168,422,358 21,140,E32 (32.717,774) 131.3% 40,919,950  (128.831%)
6/30/01 191,024,871 220974923 (38950,052)  §204% 44454073 (87.619%)
/30402 213,289,399 214995563 (L705764)  100.0% 49044721  (03.477%)



5. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Courity does not provide administrative nor investrent adviee (or the Plan, therefoce, the Coanty is not required Lo report Plan assets and has excluded them from
their {inancial statements,

6. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROLIP:

The following schedule summarizes (e changes in general lang-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2005

Compensaned Capital Leasss
Absences Pavable Payable Total
Beginning balance $ 3,745,904 $ 1,892,320 55,638,290
Increase or (Decrease) {73.638) 129902} {203.360)
ENDING BALANCE $2,672,306 $ 1,762,624 5 5,434,930
Payment Schedule — Capital Leases:
Year Payment

2004 212,278

005 212,278

2006 212,278

2007 212278

2008 232,278

Thereafter 1.061,391

Total Payiments 2,124,781

Interest Portion (360,137

Net Present Value 4.762.624

BQUITY RESERVATIONS AND CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTHED CAPITAL:

w1

The County's Combined Balance Sheet reports a ninber of reserves, which are roainarined for specilic purposes. The nature and purpose of these reserves ar explai
below.

TFupd Balance Reserves; The Reserve for Inventory, Reserve for Deposit Wikh Others, Reserve for Propaid Expenses, and Resarve for Fquipment Replacement reflect
portions of fund balance represemed by siores inventory, deposit with ofhers, prepaid postage and supplies, and prict depreciation, respactively, fund hafance is i
reserved for gencral Yiahility ond carthquake coverage. These amounls are not available for appropriations and expenditure al the balance sheet.

Retined Exnines/iund Balonye Unavailable: This mcludes Investments, Cartificate of Participation Bond Reserve, designations of Library, Flre, and Off Highway M
Vehicle, a Oeneral Reserve in the Special Reverme Funds, and Workers” Compensation and Heatth Insurance in the tnternal Service Funds.

Reserve for Encumbrances: The encumbrances ourstanding at June 36, 2003, reprasent the estimated amount of expenditures ultimately to reaclt if caperformed conh
in process at year-end are completed, This Lesorve earmarks resources for specific future uses and legalty sepregates o portion of fund balance.
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Capital Assels
Capital asset activity for the year ended Jone 30, 2003, was as follows:
Governmental activities:
Balmce Ralance

June 30, 2002 Additions _Deletions June 30, 2003
Land $2,746,776 (8370,384) $2,376,392
Construction In Progress 264098 294,098
Total Capital Assews, Mot Being Depreciated 2,746,776 204,098 {370,384) $2.670,490

Capital assets, Being Depreciated:

Structures and Improvements Land 49,038,608 242,063 (22,343) 49,258,326
Equipment 23,875,291 6,048,069 {1,95,04T) 27,528,313
Total Capital Assets 3eing Depreciated 12,013,899 6,290,133 {370.384) 77186639
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Structurca and Improvements Land {23,271,222} {1,691.029) (24,962,301)
Equipment (10,970,389} (1,779,022 515,894 (12,233,517)
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated (342 1 {3,470,054) 315,894 (37,155,818}
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated Net 38,672,238 2,820,081 (1.501,498) 36,999,521
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 419,014 $3,114,179 $(1,871,882) $42,661,311

Depreciation expenss was charged to functions/programs for governmental activities as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General Government $1,110,432
Public Safety 373,509
Public Ways and Facilities 1,971,829
Highways and Streets ]
Health and Sanitation 11,803
Public Assistance 97414
Education 4,957

Grand Total $3470.051
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11.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County has a risk management fund (Internal Service Fund) to consolidate the County’s Workers® Compensation insurance programs that are partially self-insured.
Fund revenues are primarily premiwm charges to other funds and are planned to equal estimated payments resulting fFom self-insurance programs, liakiliry insurance
coverage in excess of the salf-insured amownt, and operating expenses.

The County maintains a sclf-insured retention (SIR) of $300,000 per occurrence for its Workers” Compensation Program. Losses, which excead the 8IR, are covered by an
exvess insurance policy purchased through the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority.

The actuarially determined outstanding elaims liabllity and claims including incurred but not reperted claims, adjustment expense Liability (at 75% confidence level, after
recognition of anticipated investment income) as of June 20, 2002 were as follows:

Workers’ compensation $3,620,000
General Liability 090,000

It iz the County’s policy Lo charge to the cxpense of the Internal Service Fund the estimated liability for outstanding elaims, as determined with the assistance of
independant actuaries. The liability for self insurance coverage Teported in the Intémal Service Fund is based on the requirements of GASB No. §0, which requires that a
Tiability For claims be reported if information prior to isswance of the financial stulvments indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can e reasenably estimated. The estimated liabjlity determined by independent actuaries is subjeut to change based on
case stady reviews.

UNPAID CLAIMS LIABILITIES

The County of Kings establishes claims Tiabilitics based on estimates of the ullimate cosis of the claims that have hoen reported but not seitled, and of claims that have
been incurred, bet not reported {IBNR). The length of time for which such costs must be estimared varies depending on the type of insurance involved. Estimated amounts
of salvage and reinsurance recoverable are cansidered in developing the estunarss. Because actual elaims costs depend on many complex factors, the process used in
computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. In estimating the liability, reliance is placed on bath actual lusterical data and on ether factors
that arz consideted to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjusiments o claims Liabilities are charged or credited o expense in the periods in which they are
made.
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CONTINGENCIES

a. Litigarion — The County is 2 defendant in other various claims, The County is vigorously contesling all these claims and in the cpinion of management and legad
council, the pokential Jasses are deemed immaterial to the financial siatements.

b.  Program Compliance Reguirements - The County participates in various federal and stale assisted grant programs, These programs are subject to program
comipliance audits by the grantors or their representatives who may be coversd by e Stngle Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133.
The amount, il any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting apencies cannot be determined at this time although the County expects
amounts, if any, 1o be immazerial.

¢ C.S.AL Bxcess Insurance Auhority - Kinps County, with filty-two other comties, is a member of C.8.A C. Excess Insurance Authorty (the “Authority™). The
Autharity is & Joint Powers Agency organized in aecordance wirth Article |, Chapter S, Division 7, Title 1 of California Gevernment Code.  The
purpuse of the entity is to develop and fimd cxcess insurance programs for member counties. The Authority operates public entity risk pools for
workers® compensation, comprehensive liabilily, property, medical malpractice; and pool purchases, excess insurance and services for members, The
County participates in the medica! sadpractics and comprehensive lizhility programs,
The: relationship hetween the County and the Authority is such that the Authority is nota component unit of the Connty for fnancial reporling purposes.
The Awthorily is under the control and direction of the baard of directars consisting of representatives of the fifty-twa, micmber countiss. For purposes
ol control and daily management, the Authority munually elects an executive committee. The exccurive committee controls the eperations ol she
Authority, including budgets, independent of any influence by the member oounties heyond their representation on the excoutive comimities.

Each member county pays a pramium commensurate with the Jevel of coverape requested amd shares surpluses and deficits proportionately to their
participation in the Authority. The lower coverage limis vary with each eimtity from $100,000 in the smaller counties ta $1 million in the larger
countics with a maximum limit of $10 million, Kings County’s coverage range is $500,000 to $10 million.

Kings Courny's ¢ost sharing ratio is 2.9% and s such hios a maximum debt service lizbikity for the agencies workiug capital debt of $34 million, to be
paid through its basic premium which is not 1 exceed $179,207 annually until tie debt is paid off in the year 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON THE
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
City Council of the City of Daly City, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the povernmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Daly City as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003 as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City*s management. Cur responsihility is to
express an opinion on these basic tinancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audil in accordance with generally aceepled auditing standards in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are
fiee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a fest basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonahle basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly in all material respects the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major [und, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Daly City at June 30, 2003 and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary fund types, and the respective budgetary comparisans Tisted as part of the basic linancial statements for the year
then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

The basic financial statements referred to above follow the requirements of the Govetnment Accounting Standards Board's
Statement Ne. 34, Basic Financial Statemenis-and Management'’s Discussion and Analysisfor State and Local
Gaversments, Wo. 36, Recipient Reporting for Certain Novexchange Revenues, an Amendment of GASE Statement No. 33,
No. 37, Busic Financial Statements-and Manogement's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments;
Omnitus, and No. 38, Certain Financial Starement Note Disclosures, as discussed mn Note 1 to the basic [inancial
slatements.

Management's Discussion and Analysis is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, but is not part of the
basic financial stalements, Wc have applicd certain limited procedures to this mformarion, principally inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of this information, but we did not audit this
information and we express no opinion on it.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole, The
Supplemental Information listed in the rable of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements of the City. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the busic (inancial statements and m our opinion is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

The Statistical Section lisied in the table of coments was not audited by us and, accordingly, we dir not express an opinicn on
this information.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fiscal 2003 is the first year the City is required to issue its financial statements in the format prescribed
by the provisions of Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Starement 34 (GASB 34). which requires
the City to provide this overview of its financial activities for the fiscal year.

This discussion and analysis of the City of Daly City’s financial results provides an overview of the
City’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2003, The following information, especially the
information presented about government-wide financial status and results include many new concepts
introduced with the advent of GASE 34,

With these changes, greal care must be taken when comparing the 2003 financial statements with those of
prior years. The inclusion of infrastructure ussels, as well as adding their annual depreciation costs to
governmental activities show a different picture of costs and make comparisons to previous reports
challenging.

FISCAL 2003 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

# The City's total net assets increased $13.9 million during Fiscal 2003, Al June 30, 2003, net ussets
totaled $221 million.

* Total City revenues, including program and general revenues, were $101 million, while Lotal
expenses were $87 million in fiscal 2003, Total capital assets increased $10.2 million,

e Net assets in governmentul funds were $140.4 million, while net assets in business activities were $81
millien.

*  Governmental program revenucs were $27.2 million compared with $26.9 million in fiscal 2002,

¢ Governmental general revenues of $44.4 million represent an increase of $2.9 million over the prior
year,

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is in three sections:
1) Introductory Scction, containing the Transmittal Letter and miscellaneous other information

2) Financial Section, containing the Independent Auditors® Report, Management’s EYscussion
and Analysis (this part}, the Basic Financial Statements, which include the Government-wide
andd the Fund Financial Staterents, along with the Notes o these financial statements, Required
Supplemental Information, and Combining Statements for Nonmajor Governinental Funds and
Fiduciary Funds

3) Statistical Scetion containing financial trend data, insurance information and general statistical
inforrmation about the City

'The Basic Financial Statements

The Busic Financial Staternents are comprised of the City-wide Financial Statements and the Fund
Finaneial Statements, including the Notes thereto.  These two sets of financial statements provide two
different views of the City's financial activities and financial position.

The Clovernment-wide Financial Statements provide a longer-term view of the Cily’s aclivitics as a
whale, and arc comprised of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activides. The Statement
of Nct Assets provides information about the financial position of the City as a whole, including all its
capital assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to thal used by private

corporations, The Slatement of Activitics provides information ubout all the City's revenues and all its
cxpenses, also on the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues or expenses of each
of the City's programs. The Statement of Activities explains in detail the change in net assets for the
year.

All of the Cily’s activities are grouped into governmental activitics and business-type activities, as
explained below. All the amounts in the Statement of Net Asscts and the Stalerment of Activities are
scparated into governmental activitics and business-type activitics in order to provide a surnmary of these
two types of activities of the City as a whole.

The Fund Financial Statements eport the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
staternents and focus primarily on the short-term activities of the City’s General Fuid and other major
funds. The Pund Financial Statements measure only cument revenues snd expenditures and fund
balances; they exclude capital assets, long-term debt and other long-term amounts.

Major funds account for the major tinancial activities of the City and are presented individually, while the
activities of nonmajor funds are presented in summary, with subordinate schedules presenting the detail
for each of these other funds.

The fiduciary statcments provide finuncial information ubout the assets for which the City acts solely as
custodian, including assessment districts and where the City acts as a fiscal agent.

The Government-wide Finencial Statements
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities present mformation abour the following:

+ (ovemnmental activities—aAll of the City’s basic services are considered to be governmental
activities, including gencral government, public safety, public works, streets and infraswructure,
culture and recrcation, and economic and community development. These services are supported by
general Cily revenues such as taxcs, and by specific program revenes. The Cily's governmental
uctivities include the activities of a separate legal entity, the Traly City Redevelopment Agency,
hecause the Clity is tfinancially accountable for the Agency

+ Business-type activities—All the City’s enterprise activities are reporled here, including walcr, scwer,
and solid waste transport. Unlike governmental services, these services are supported by charges paid
by users based oo the amount of the service they use.

Government-wide financial staterments are prepared on the accrual basis, which means they measure the
flow of all economic resources of the City as a wholc.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about each of the City’s most significant
funds, called major funds. The concept of major funds, and the determination of which arc major funds,
was established hy GASH 34 and replaces the concept of comhining funds by fund type and presenting
them in total. Instead, each major fund is presented individually, with all nonmajor funds summarized
and presented only in a single column. Subordinate schedules present the detail of these nonmajor funds.
Major funds present the major activities of the City for the year, and may change from year to year as a
result of changes in the pattern of the City’s activities.

Governmental fund financial statements are prepared on the modificd accrual basis, which means they
measure only current financial resources and uses. Capital assets and other long-lived assets, along with
long-term liabilities, are not presented in the goverumental fund financial statements,

Enterprise fund financial statements are prepared on the full accrual basis, and include all their assets and
liabilities, both current and long-term.

Since the City's internal service funds provide goods and services only to the City's governmental and
business-{ype activities, their activities are reported only in total at the fund level. Internal service funds
can not be major funds because their revenues are derived from other City funds. These revenues are
eliminated in the City-wide financial statements and any related profits or losses are refuned to the



activities which created them, along with any residual net assets of the internal service funds.
Comparisons of budget and aclwal financial infonnation are presented only for the General Fund and
other major funds that are special revenue funds.

Fiduciary Statements

The City is the agent for certaln assessment districls and several small local agencies. ‘The City's
fiduciary aclivities are reported in the scparale Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. These activities are
excluded from the City’s other financial statements because (he Cily cunnot use these assets to finance its
own operations.

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

This analysis focuses on the net assets and changes in net assets of the City’s Governmental Aclivitics
and Business-Type Activities (Tables 1, 2 and 3) presented in the City-wide Statement of Net Assets and
Statement of Activities that foliow.

Table 1
Net Assets at June 30
(in thousands)

Gaovernmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2003 2002 2003 2042 2003 2002
Cash and investments $ 62834 5 54929 S 11804 § 0 19511 $ 80,638 % 74440
Other assets 18,615 21,904 4,146 4,348 22761 26,252
Capital asscts 75,983 £9,818 72524 53,482 148,507 138,300
Total assets 157,432 146,431 94,474 92,341 251,906 238,992
Long-term labilitics 9.961 8,762 9994 11,04¢ 19,955 19,802
Qther liabilities 7036 8,635 3480 3,115 10,536 11,750
Total liabilities 17.017 17,397 13,474 14,155 30,491 31,552
Net assets:
Tnvested in capital assets,
Net of related debt 74,818 68,778 72,524 68,482 147,442 137,260
Restricted 7.226 1,048 8,274 -
Unrestricted _seen 60,476 7.428 9,704 63,699 70,180
Total net assets $ 140415 $ 129254 § _BlOOUE 78186 5. 2214158 207440
Governmental Activities

The City’s net assets trom governmental activities increased $11.2 million {9%) to $140.4 million in 2003
from $129.2 million in 2002. This increase is the Change in Nel Assets reflected in the Statement of
Activitics, as shown in Tahle 2, and is explained below.

¢ Cash and investments increased 87.9 million principally as a result of increases of $3.4 million in
the Gas Tax Special Revenuve Fund reflecting grants received and funds accurmulated for future
roadway capital projects, an increase of $4.2 million in major capital project cash reserves Lo fund
specific capital projects of City-wide benefit, an increase of $1.4 million in the Redevelopment

Agency resulting from significant increases in property tax revenue, an increase of $1 million in
the General Fund as a result of repayment of Redevelopment Agency advances, an increase in the
Self Insurance Fund cash balance of $0.6 million as a result of disaster claims reimbursements,
and a decrease in federal grant advances of $3.5 million as a result of spending those grunt funds.

»  Other assets decreased $3.5 million primarily as a result of a decrease in grants and other
advances receivable, and partially reflected in the increase in cash noted above.

¢ Net assets invested in capital assets net of related debt increased $6.1 million primarily due to the
City's continued investment in infrastructure, including streets and roadways and major capital
improvements.

+ Restricted net assets have ne comparable amount for 2002, as this is the first year of GASB 34
implementation.

*  Unrestricted net assets is the part of net assels that can be used o finance day-to-day operations
without constraints established by debt covenants or other legal requirements. Unrestricted net
assets of $58.2 million are available to finance day-to-day operations and other expenditures
approved by City Counwil,

Husiness-type Activities

The net assets of business-type activities increased $2.8 million in fiscal 2003, to a total of $81 million.
primarily as the result of applying cash reserves to fund capital projects. There were ne significant
changes in funding sources or expenses during Lthe fiscal year.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Table 2 shows that total revenues increased $5.5 million in fiscal 2003, as a result of increases in capital
grants in the form of federal road grants, Redevelopment Agency property taxes, and charges for services
in the proprietary funds. Other individual increases and decreases are not considered material. Expenses
for fiscal 2002 for governmental activities are not available for comparative purposes as fiscal 2003 is the
first year of implementation of GASB 34. Business-type activity expenses increased $1 million or 4.7
percent, conunensurate with labor cost increases.



Revenues:
P[Dgram revenues:
Charpes for services

Operating prants & contributions

Capital grants & contributions
Total program revenues

General revenues:
Property tax
Sales tax
Motor vehicle in-lien
Other taxes
lovestments carnings
Other
T'otal general revenues

Total revenucs

Expcnses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Streets & infrastructure
Culture & recreation
Economic & community dev,
Nondepartmental
Tnterest on long-term debt
Waler utility
Sewer
Civic center
Transter station

Total expenses

Inciease{decrease) in nel assets
before transfers

Translers
Increase in net asscts
Net assets, July 1, 2002

Mg asscts, June 30, 20073

Table 2
Changes in Net Assels
For the Years Ended June 30
(in thousands)
Governmettal Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 002
S 12210 § 12409 $ 25778 % 25.193 £ 38,008 § 37,602
12,014 13,260 385 281 12,399 13,541
2097 1,243 1431 - 4428 1,243
27.241 26,912 27,594 25.474 54.835 _ 52,386
15,426 13,002 939 926 16,365 13,928
8,950 §.409 &,930 8,409
6,092 5.849 6092 5.849
G455 9,319 G455 9,319
3,504 2,963 706 835 4,210 31,798
941 1.816 231 46 1192 1.862
44368 _ 41418 1.896 1,807 46264 43225
71,609 68,330 29,490 27.281 101.099 95611
3861 N/A 1,861 N/A
29,896 29,896
3,820 5,820
1,908 1,909
11,472 11,472
10,273 10,273
408 408
1032 1,032
8,440 7,652 8,440
12,115 11,771 12,115
027 T 627
1.271 1242 1.271
64,671 N/A 22.453 21,435 87,124 N/A
6938 7037 5,846 13,975
4,223 (4.223) (4,692}
11161 2,814 1,154 13975
120254 N/A 78,186 _ 77032 207,440 __ N/A

§ 140415 § 120054

5 81000 $ 78186

§221.415 $207.440

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Table 3 presents the net cost of cach of the City’s major governmental programs. Net cost is defined as
totel program cost less the revenues generated by thosc specific activilics, and corresponds to the
Statement of Activitics umounts. In generu] terms, the net cost illustrates the financial burden placed on
the Clity’s general taxpayers to fund these essential City services. Comparative amounts are unavailable as
fiseal 2003 is the first year of GASB 34 implementation.

Table 3
Governmental Activilies
For the Year Ended June 30, 2063
{in thousands)

Net Revenue

Revenues Expenscs {Expense}
Governmental Activities
General government $ 556 % 3,861 $ (3,309
Public safety 4,301 29,800 {25,593)
Public works 2,024 5,820 (3.196)
Streets & infrastructure 1,179 1,909 (730)
Culture & recreation 6321 11,472 (5,151
Economic & community dev. 8,084 10,273 (1,589)
All other 3.576 14480 2,136
Total governmental uctivities 5 27241 § 64,671 & (37.430)

THE CITY’S FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Governmental Funds

At June 30, 2003, the City’s major governmenlal [unds consisted of the General Fund, Gas Tux,
Redevelopment Agency, and Capital Projects funds. The focus of the governmental funds is to provide
mformation on near-term inflows, outllows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is
useful in assessing the City’'s financial status.

The General Fund's unreserved fund balance increased slightly, from $11.4 million at June 30, 2002 w
$11.7 million at June 30, 2003, or 2.7 percent. This increase is primarily due to the normal fluctuations in
balance sheet receivable and payvable accounts, as well as a minor adjustment as a result of GASB 34
implementation. Unreserved fund balance represents 21 percent of General Fund total expenditures for
fiscal 2003. Rcvenues and expenditures in the General Fund have not scen significant change from the
prior year, reflecting only very modest growth in total revenues and total expenditures.

The Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund had $1.8 million of unreserved fund balance as of June 30, 2003, an
increase of 85 million. This wide swing resulted primarily from a $4.7 million receivable present at
Tune30, 2002 that was collected during the year. The $1.8 million of unreserved fund balance represents
uncommitted funds that are legally required to be spent on local roadway projects,

Redevelopment Agency unreserved Tund deficit of $29 million is due to the long-term advances payable
to the City’s General Fund, These advances are expecled to be repaid from future property tax increment
revenues.



The City’s Capital Projects Fund had $17.5 million in unreserved fund balance; all designated for spacitic
capital projects that will benefit the community a5 a whole, Most significant of these projects are the new
Bayshure Copununity Center and the replacement of the War Memarial Community Center.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Baly City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information tound in the government-
wide linancial slatements, only In morc detail.

Water Utility revenues grew at approximately one percent over the previous year. This growth includes a
3.3 percent rate increase, showing a decrease in water usage even in a nondrought period. At the same
time, expenses increased 8.3 percent, mostly from purchascd water. A nine percent rate increass has been
adopted for fiscal 2004.

Sanitaticn District revenues grew 3.3 percent over the prior year, and expenses grew 3.6 percent. Because
scwer scrvice charges are billed based on the previous yvear's winter water usage, a 5.75 percent rate
increase was adopted for fiscal 2004,

General Fund Bodgetary Llighlights

The City of Draly City uses a biennial budgeting process, and tiscal 2003 represents the first year of a two-
year budget. Two individual budget years are proposed to the City Council at the same time, with
midbudgcet adjustments at the end of the first of the two years. This process provides more opportunity
for long-term planning, but docs require adjustment hased on changing economic conditions, including on
occasion adjustrments to the first year. Afler midbudget adjustments, both revenues and expenditures
were in line with expectations, with some savings in expenditures realized from holding the line on
services and supplies and other charges. These savings were realized consistently over all operating
departments.

CAPITAL ASSETS
Al the end of [iscal 2003 the City had $148.5 million, net of accumulated depreciation, invested in a

broad range of capital assets, as shown in Table 4 below (further detail may be found in Note 4 to the
financial statements):

Tahle 4
Capital Assets at June 30
{in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activitics Activities Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Land $21,044  $20,715 $ 2863 % 2,848 $ 23907 § 23,563
Buildings & improvements 13996 15,032 4,981 5173 18,977 1,205
Streers & infrastructure 24,087 19,886 24,087 19,886
Wells & pump stations 3,229 3,278 3,229 3,278
Waler reservoirs 4,816 5,010 4,816 5,010
Water mains 9114 3,498 9,114 8,498
Sanitation subsutface lines 12,637 10,214 12,637 10,214
Sewage facilities 22,742 23,830 22,7142 23,830
Equiprent 6,067 6,096 3,078 3,383 9,145 9,479
Fumniture & fixtures 73 222 19 24 92 246
Construction in progress 10,716 7.867 5,045 6,224 19.761 14,091

Total net capital assets $75.083 $09,818 $72.524 §68.482 $148.507  $13%.300
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As of June 30, 2003, the Bayshore Community Center was under construction, with a total budget of $8.9
million. This project will provide a much needed community facility for recreation programs, as well as a
new library facility, and is located in the Bayshore neighborhood, With a total budget of $12 million, (he
War Memorial replacement project is the single most significant project in the entire major capital plan,
This facility will also include a new library facility along with recreation space and community rooms.

Laocal roadway projects of various types were in the design phase or under construction, with a total
available budget for the coming 2004 fiscal year of $6.5 million.

Various water master plan projects were completed as part of the Water Utility énterprse fund’s $2.5
million investment in additional infrastructure, repair, and replacement in 2003. The Sanitation District
contributed an additional $6.1 million to add to the City’s enterprise fund inftastructurc rtepairs,
replacements, and additions. Most significant for the District will be the wertiary water treatment system
project. begun in fiscal 2003, with a total budget of $6.9 million.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Bach of the City’s debt issues is discussed in detail in Note 5 to the financial statements. In 2003 the City
refinanced the outstanding Sanitation District certificates of participation (COP’s), reducing inlercst rales
from 5.0 to 5.375 percent to 2.0 ta 2.5 percent. At June 30, the City's debt comprised:

Tabhle 5§
Outstanding Debt
(in thousands)
2003 200z
Governmental activities
2002 Capital Lease ~ Energy Efficiency Project
4.69%, due 2011 $945 S1,041
Line of Credil ~ Busincss Center
5.7%, due 2006 120 120
Total 31,065 $l,161
Business-type Activities -
2002 Wastewater COP’s
29%-2.5%, due serially to 2009 $9.375 50
1992 Wastewater COP’s
5%-5.375%, refunded 0 10,870
Total $9,375  $10,87G

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The Consumer Price Index-All Urban Consumers was 1.6 percent for the San Francisco-Oakland region,
compared to 2.1 percent for the U.S. City Average, as of June 2003. This is up slightly frem the prior
period, when the index was 1.2 percent locally and 1.1 percent naticnally.



The Daly City annual average unemployment rate was 6.5 percent in December 2002, up from 3.6 percent CITY OF DALY CITY

in 2001 and 2.1 percent in 2000. This compares with 5.0, 2.8, and 1.6 percent, respectively, for San STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Matea County as a whole. Califonia, and especially Northern California, remained in an economic JUUNE 30, 2003
downturn duging fiscal 2003,

Fiscal 2004 continues with the selective hiring freeze to aid in halancing the General Fund budget this
year, and in anticipation of the second year of significant increases in retirement costs. Cash

contributions, previously zero for four years, will be .17 percent and 3. 108 percent of covered payroll for Governmental Business-1ype

the Miscellanecus and Public Safety employee groups, respectively, in fiscal 2004. Beginning in fiscal Activities Activities Total

2005 rates will increase to 17.828 percent and 23.201 percent of covered payroll, as estimated hy ]

CalPHERS.  Assuming the resumption of previous average revenue growth, no other steps should be ASSETS

needed to maintain a balanced budget. Cash end investments (Note 1F) $62.834,081 $16,756,328 §79,590,409

The centinuing State of California budget shortfall, now estimated at $14 billion annually, has the Cash with fiscai agent (Wote 1F) 1,047,654 L047,654

potential to upset this delicate balance. Should the State cheose, as it has done in the past, to take local Acteunts receivable, net : £179.792 2,459,150 6,738,942

goverament revenues (o balance the Stale budget, more significant changes to City operaticns would be Inveatories 4612 1,611,678 1,886,290

nccessary. Prepaids 358,519 71,617 433,136
} Notes receivable [Note 13) 1,109,774 1,109,774

Property held for development {Mote 1C) 12,592,159 12,392 159
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION Capital assets, net {Note 41 75,482,569 72,523,846 148,506,435

This Comprehensive Annual Financiul Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and Total Assels 157,431,526 94.473273 251,804,799

creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions about this Report should be directed

to the Department of Finance and Administrative Services, 333 — $0% Strect, Daly City California 94015, LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 2,794,887 3265410 6,060,297
Accrued payroll 1,033,335 123,577 1,157,112
Acerued liabilities 733,759 753,759
Deposits payahble 936,519 32,230 UKE.749
Defarred revenue 946,646 946,646
Compensaled sbsences (Note 1) 4,981,704 657,446 7.639,150
Accrued claims payable (Note 10) 2,505,100 2,505,100

Long-1trm debi {Nete 5):
Due within enc year 100,023 1,635,000 1,735,023
Dt in more than one yzar 964,483 7. 740,000 8,704,483
Total Iiabilities 17,016,636 13.473,663 30,490,319

NEL' ASSETS (Note 11)

Invested in capilal assets, net of related debl 74,918,083 71,690,579 146,608,662

Restricted for:
Debt service 1,047,654 1,047,654
Redevelopment projects 728,663 728,663
Special revenus projects 6,496,742 6,496,747
Total Restricted Met Assets 7,225,405 1,047,654 §,273,059
Unrestricted 58,271,382 5,261,377 66,332,759
Total Net Assets §140.414.870 $80,999,610 $221,414,480

Sce accompanying notes to financial salements



Functions/Programs Expenses

Governmental Activities
{iencral government
Publc safery
Publiz works
Streels und Inlrasiructure
Culture and recreation
Lconomis and community development
Nandeparimental
Interest on long term debt

Total Governmental Activitics

Busimess-lype Activilies:
Water Utility
Civic Center
Transfer Station
Sanitation District

Total Dusincss-type Activitics
Total

Gengral revenues:
Taxes:
Property tax
Sales tax
Uittty wsers tax
Franchise fees
Ohes Laxes
Motar vehicle in lieu
Investmenl eamings
Giain {053} from disposal of capital asscts
Miscellaneous
Transfers (Note 7}

Totul generad revenues and (rans(ers
Chunge in Nel Assers

Met Assets-Beginning

MNel Assets-Ending

CITY OF DALY CITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Program Kevenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Mel Assels

Opeating Capitsl
Charges for Grants and Grants and  Guvernmental  Business-iype
Services Contrihulions L ion Adctivities Activities Total

13,861,142 §376 564 176,614 $3,000 ($3.304 974) (53,304,574
25,590,315 3,658 836 642303 (25,395 066) {25,585,066)
5,819,840 2,044,763 333,748 245 389 {3.195,940) (3,195,940}
1,909,043 1179774 {72¢.2559) (729,26%)
11.471,728 2,466,170 1,358,847 2,495,883 (5,151,128) {5,151,128)
14,272,554 2213532 6,468,033 {1,588.619) {1,588.619)
407,667 2188268 3.034.49% 252,922 3,168,021 3168021
1,033,337 (1,032.337) £1,032,337)
G4.670.626 12,230,257 12613 825 2407 194 (37,429.312) {37,429.312)
¥4 424 10,202,528 385,293 $2,147,397 1,147.397
£26,682 £69,306 242614 242,824
1,270,705 1,590 840 321,135 321,133
12,115,172 13,114,187 1,430,442 2429407 2,429,467
32,451,983 25777871 385,293 1,430,443 5,140,621 5,140,623
$87.123,609 338,008, 168 $12,399,116 54427 836 {37429 312) 5,140,623 (32,284.680)
15,426,462 939,013 16,365,475

4,949,909 8,949,909

5,246,566 3,246,566

2,281,204 2281204

1,927,177 1,927,177

6,091,701 6.091.761

3,503,897 706,251 4.2§0,148

4019 575 (117,770} 291.B05

331,538 168,542 900,077

4,222,495 (4,222,495}

48590581 (23263459) 46264122

11,161,269 2314164 13,5975433

125,253,601 T8.185,446 207430047

3144414 870 FEOG59 610 §221.414.4580)

Sec accompanying noles to finuncial statements
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ARBETS

Cash and investmenis (tvote 1F)
Accounts reecivable, not

Invenlaries

Prepuids

Notes receivable {Note 13)

Long-term interfund receivables (Nate 7}
Property keld for develppmient {Note 1)

Total Assels

LIABILITICS

Accounts pavable

Acerued puycoll

Accrued liabilitics

Deposits payable

Deferred revenus

Compensated absences {Note 11)

Long-term interfund payables (Nate 7)

Totnl Liabilities

FUND BALANCES

Fund Balance (Naiz 1M)
Reserved for
Encumbrances
Inventories
Prepaids
Nates recgivable
Long-term interfund receivabies
Property held for development
Capital projects
Restricted purnases
Imprest sash funds
Unrescrved:
Designated for
Capital projects
Operating sapital
Undcaignated, reported in:
General Fuad
Spegial Revenue Funds

Totat Fund Ralances {Defieits)

Totat Liakilivies and Fund Ralances

CiTY OF DALY CITY
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEEY
JUNE 30, 2003

Other Total
Redevelopment Capital Governmental  Governmental
General Gas Tax Agency Projocts Funds Funds

$12,906.306 £5,324,073 54,921,258 $23 300,714 $2,225 732 51,178,078
2,399,708 524,799 3,373 417,137 ¥75,093 4,220,090
111 483 151 483
280,927 123 281,152
203,531 405,943 1,109,774
32,933,176 32833 176
12,592,159 12,392,159

$48.855,431 55,848,872 §17,516,790 $26.217.827 34,006,993 $102 245913
359,401 $142.250 $44.176 1,216,206 35831 484 52,385,729
£09.594 5822 50,312 35,730
732,120 15741 747,861
759,212 175,850 ¥35.762
131026715 230,200 1,852,585 15,126,524
580,073 590,073
32,933,176 37.433,176

16,608.032 192 360 33,159,024 1,216,206 2,502,126 35877855
39491 132,772 52,899 7,499 558 985294 8,710,014
131,483 31,483
280,927 223 281,152
200,831 203 431
19.504,441 12506441
12,592,159 12,592,158

3,521,349 RTIZIT 4394 646

718,653 bt k3% 1,389,302

5580 250 6,630
1,500,000 17,502,063 19002063
5,000,006 $.006,000
5,179,53¢ 5,179,539
1,602,261 (29,615855) (1,015,758} (28,229,422}

32,347,382 5,436,412 £15,642.234) 25,001 621 1,504,867 48,568,058
S48 B53 431 55,848 72 317,516,790 §26,217,827 §4.0006,993 31024455913

See accompanying iiates to financial slatements



CITY OF DALY CITY
Reconciliation of the
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BALANCE SHEET
with the
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2003

Tatal fund batarces reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities i the Slalement of Wel Assels
are dilferent from these roported in the Govemmental Funds above because of the following

CAPITAL ASSETS
Cupital asseis used in Governmezntal Activitics are not currcrt assets or financial resources and
therefors are not reported in the Governmental Funds.

ALLOCATION OF INTERMAL SERVICE FIIND NET ASSETS
Intemal serviece [unds are not governmental funds However, they are used by management to
charge 1he cosls of certain activities, such 23 insurance and central services and maintenance
1o individusl governmental funds. The net currsnt assets of the intemal service funds are (lerefore
in¢luded in Governmental Activitics in the fodlowing ling ilems in the Statement of Net Assels
Cash andl investments
Accaunts seceivable
Frepaids
Inventeriss
Capilal asses
Apcaunts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued labilities
Depasits payable
Arcrued cluims payable
<:umipensaled absences

ACCRUAL OF NOWCLURERENT REVENUES AND CXPENSES
Revoaues which are deferred on the Fund Balance Sheets because they are nal avatilible currencly
a-€ taken into revernue in the Statenerl of Activities

LONG TERM ARSETS AKD LIABILITIES
The assets and liabiliies below are not duz ard pavable in the cumrent peried and therefors are not
repored in the funds:
Long-term dehi

Non-turrent portion of compensated absences
WNET ASSETS OF GOVERMNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See necompanying notes 1o financial statements

$48,568,058

62,911,434

11,656,002
59,702
77,367

143,129

E071.15%
(202,158
(77.808)
15.898)
(757)
(2,505,100
(583.29%)

14,182,878

(1.064,506)
(5.808,333)

$140,414,870

CITY OF DALY CITY
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CITANGES IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES
Property tix
Gas 1ax
Sales tax
Utility users tax
Franchise fees
CHher taxes
Licznges and pennits
Fines and forfeilures
Rens and intcrest
Federal programs and grants
feceipts from other agenciss
Charges and fees
Miscellaneous

Tatal Revenuss

EXFENDITURES
Current:
General gevernment
Public safety
Tublic works
Culwre and recreslion
Ecenomic and camununity development
Capital projects
Debr service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditurcs

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USFS)
Sale of propeny
Transfers in (Mote 7)
Transfers aut {Note 7)
Total Other Finanting Sources [Uses)

NET CILANGE IN FUND BALANCES

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES
Asz originally reported

GASB 34 implernentation adjustment fNota 11}
As adjustad

ENDING FUNT BALANCES (DFFICITS)

TFOR T1IC YEAR ENDED JUNE 306, 2003

Other Total
Redevelopment Capital Governmental Governmental
Gengral Gas Tax Agency Projects Funds Funds
$10,577,813 54,348,649 §15.426.462
$2,220,372 2226372
8275996 1,144,050 9,420,048
5,246,566 5,216,566
22R1204 2281204
8018918 8018938
1,710,137 1,710,137
2468478 2468498
3263672 13Z,435 149018 3945 432 S161,270 4,655,827
18,367 4,481,374 103,500 2248014 6,651,255,
TB7.985 423,344 2043779 5317300 8,577 408
5572983 18,000 452,222 1279612 7323517
434,198 21,644 6,285 806,288 548,646 LE18,067
44,656,357 #,447.224 5.003,452 1,353,422 Y,355,842 76,019 207
3,698,450 3068450
29,119.872 165,950 29 289.B62
5327270 16,112 5343382
9125064 1,774 420 10 E95 484
2318738 818,961 6,868,270 10.205,%69
2,8t4,591 7,446 370 10,260,263
%3542 5,542
6,534 976,719 48,784 1032337
45,762,228 2,814,553 1,795,680 7390 #96 8,828,792 70,701 085
(1.i05,571) 5,612,631 3.208,272 (3,234 774} 727,050 5227308
714,194 TT,194
5400352 7,238,176 760,225 13,508,763
(4,981,091) (1,655,520 (306,452) (39,4573 2,583,853) (9,566,170)
1,39 465 (1,655,520} (306,452) 7,198,723 1,823,438} 4,806,773
287,504 3,977,111 2,901 R0 3963 040 (1,096.388) 10,034,086
32071432 1472301 15,791,849 21,037,672 2,601,255 73,081,509
211,630 (34,335,203} (34,547,537)
31,458,794 1470301 (14,544,054} 21,037,672 2,601.25% 38,511,972
512 247,362 35,136,412 (315.642,234) 325.001621 $1.504 B&7 $48,568,058

Ser accompanying netes o financial sttements



CITY CF DALY CITY . CITY OF DALY CITY

Recongiliation of the s - GENERAL FUND
! TATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE [N FUND BAL!\NCI?S - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AND CHANGES IN FUND B ALANCES
with the HUIGET AND ACTUAL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED SIRNE 30, 2003

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Varinnce with

Budgeted Auounty Final Budgel
i et Changes in Puad B b 17 o
The schedule beloyﬂ reconciles the Net Changes in Faa allanccs reparied on the Gm@mmema unds Statement of Original Finat Actual Amounts (Ngative)
Revenues, Expendinres and Changes in Fund Belance, which messures only changes im current assets and curtent
ligbilities on the modified accrual basis. with the Change in Net Asscts of Gevernmental Activites reported in the REVEMUES
Statement of Activitics, which is prepared on the full accrual besis Property iz FI0.559.545 FLOBE0 55 F:0875 81 (3281.732)
Sales ti 2,365,950 8315550 275,49 {43,554
Uil nsrs tax 5415300 5,415,350 5,246,568 [TE
Franchiss faas 2331098 3,331.088 2280, 204 [SPELD)
NET CILANGE TN FUND RALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 10,034,088 Cirher fmxes 2071645 B,01E,938 (sz.707)
Licznzes and permins 1583802 L 710,137 132245
N . . Fines and forfaitres 2356059 2,468,498 12438
e the 1z ELLE 468
Amo!mrs reported ior govemmcm.f_ﬂ achivities i the Statement of Activ Feents and inberest 1236477 J263672 97931
are different because of the following: Federal programs ard grants 11180 18,367 2.9
Receipts Irom other sgencies 542634 787,985 {35,561
CAPITAL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS Charges ans fzes 6,072,082 6295847 557298 (632.364]
Miscellancois 116138 304,235 434,194 123,463
Governmental Funds repoart capital outlays as cxpenditures, However, Tria! Revenucs 46936552 4B TN 4R 636,357 {142546)
in the Stxtement of Activities the cost of those assats is capitalized and allocated over
their estimated nsefu! lives and reported as depreciation expense. EXPENDITURES:
The capital cutlay expenditures arc therefore added back to fund balance 8.981,16) Corfent Gpermions
Genera Governnent
L . Lagislative
Depreciation expense is deducted from fund balance Personnel services 103,092 114.592 114,202 150
(Depreciation expense is net of intemal service fund depreciation Other services ST.R3I 58581 SBAZ6 153
of $1,241,574 which has alieady heen alfncated to serviced Tunds) £2.282,070) Crher chages 12,400 3,900 E.299 01
; . 5
Retirements of capital assets (372.15%) Tok! eglotive 17332} 13207 18L 177 u4e
Legal
LOING TERM DERT PROCEEDS ANIY PAYMENTS Fersannel services e e 287,360 &
) Cker szrvzes 123,731 293,731 243,369 362
Other cha 1,365 1,885 1730 135

Band proceeds provide gomenl finyneial resources to povernmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Asscls Tutal eyl REFELE) $35.045 834,463 380
Repayment of bond principal is an cxpenditure in the governmental funds, but
in the Sterement of Net Asgets the repayment red uces long-term habilities.

mstiabive

Pzl services 715512 1,274,057 1221156 0!
Crther szrv ces 1135475 [ALTRIP) 1,610,236 71470
Repayment of debt principal is added back o fund balance 95,542 Capita! oulley 800 84800 88,312 2488
Crther charges MERFY) 113240 EITNELS 12086
ACCRUAL OF MONCURRENT ITEMS Tate* Administralee 2,334,815 2738811 2652858 B
. e ) A Tate! Ganeral Gaverament 3,290,484 3756520 3,568,450 BEATY
The amaunts below included in the Starement of Activities do not provide or {require) the use of o enera e e B e, s, —————
corrent linantial resources and therefore ere not reporied &3 revenuc or expenditures in Public Safety
governmental funds: Police:
Delerred revenue. (5,220.657) Parsgnne} services 14,124,494 13,725,408 443
N Ouher seevices 2,202,118 2,235,501 D144
Comipensatid absences (370.286) Capital utiay 14515 12316 45,366
) Dther chares JB3616 R31, 740 256
ALLOCATION OF INTERMAL SERVICE FUND ACTIVITY
Tetal Palize: 43 17,020,864 16,941,655 55.209
Intcrmal service funds are used to charge the costs of centain activitics, Firer
such as equipment acquisition, Maintenance, and insurence to individual funds, Personnel services £072671 9,675.821 9,674,586 B35
“The portion of the nel revenue (expense ) of these infemal service funds arising out Cther services B5e 584 597.514 897365 599
of their tiansactions wilh povernmemal furds is reported with govemmental activities, Capital pulay z1.R0C 22600 21,589 U1
. i Other charges 60,773 67,934 67,580 i
because they service these activitics, =
Change in ret assets of all incernal service funds 295,652 Tatal Fure 9.010428 10,664,354 10,441,950 2,444
CHANGE (N NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $i1,161,269 Public Sefety Communications
—_————— Persunnel secvices 1,043 384 1,063 389 1,160 548 36
Other sermus 333,004 330556 150,013 623
See apcompunying noles (o financial statements Caprial oytlay 1560 1,580 1,369 198
Uther charges 3741 4541 4.7 524
Teial Public Safety Commurncttions 1,431,755 1,518,141 §3.6,267 207
Total Public Safety 27,563.110 2821259 20119872 92,727
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CITY OF DALY CITY
GEMNERAL FUND
STATEMENT UF REVENUES, EXPENDITURLS

AN CHAMNGES IN FLUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Public Works
Persannel services
Uthe: services
Cafital autlay
Clther charges

“Total Public Works
Culure and Reoreation
Librany
Fersonnel services
(Mber seTvaccs
Other chacges
Totel Lihrary
Perks and Recreation
Paisonnel seroices
Onher senvices
Capils: culay
Otlier charges
13ts: Farks and Recreation
Totar Cultyre and Reercatinn
Economic and Community Developmen:
PerEonmel serwces
Crher services
Caprtal outlay
Ui charges

Tokal Econommne and Lomnty Development

Ticht Sepace
Itescsl wnd el shargas

Total Expendinures

EXCESS (DEFICIERC ¥) OF REVENUEY
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHFR FINANCING SOLIRCFS (LISES)
Sale of propecty
Teansfess in
Transfers oo
Total Ohther Finaneing Sturees (Lises)

NET CHANGE IN FURD BALANCER

BEGINMING FUND BALANCES
Ag original-y ceported

GASE 34 implomentaton adjustment (Mot 111
As adjustes

ENDING FUWD BALANCES

Varignge with

Sice aceamanying nfes lo finasenl satemeats

817,747,191

Budgetzd Amounis Final Budge1
Pasitive
Original Final Actual Amounts  (Negative)
ERSERET 4083254 ERTRC 25
1264 i L4868 122,259 24238
Rl ot 1
71,066 14,065 20,837 225
& 3ma019 3,354,019 52780 26,199
1577610 1,692,610 1,699,305 203
754,604 751,087 751 434 201
6719 6,201 5105 1012
24318911 2,457 498 2,455,078 1,530
4400737 4,082,333 4,081,578
279494 2,799, 60 2,556,534
184 EAH 1038
26958 20,95 15,345
6410583 516,39 5,665,085 251,312
935056 227389 5,021,264 25,832
1.500,08% 1,793 660 1,793,085 6
354,195 76,037 98,704 49,243
828 LAz 657 1171
35033 37,433 28331 9,202
2430,153 2,778,958 PRICREL] 60,220
2,250 7130 a4 296
42,045,934 52,283,531 15,762,208 $2:.30%
11105402 (1484,228) (1A05.871} 378,357
£,5000 173,193 EEENES 1
5571433 5647 080 £ 61,162 (47,018)
(5,096,225 (5,456,287) (4,991 091) 575,196
531,708 BES 586 1,353,465 337,879
(8577,694% 15518,642) 287,50 $906,236
12,171,432
(211,634)
31,555,798
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CITY OF DALY CITY

GAS TAX SPECIAL REVENUFE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2063

REVENLUES:
as tax
Sales tax
Interest
Federal programs and grants
Receipts fram other agencies
Charges and fees
Miscellaneous

Tatal Revenues

EXPLNDITURES:
Capital projects

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SGURCES (USES)
Transfers opt

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
BEGINNING FUND DALANCES

ENDING FUND BALANCES

Variance with

Budpeted Amounts Final Budpet
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Megative)

$2.020,266 §2.020.266 32,226,172 $206,106
1,238,779 1,238,779 1,144,050 {94,729
124,000 120,000 132,435 12,415
2,099,840 2,099,840 4,481,374 2,381,524
501,591 501,591 423,144 {88,247
504,000 518,000 18,000 (500,000
14,50 21 645 3,140

6,490,476 6,512,976 8,447,224 1,924 248
7,313,027 7345527 2,314,593 4,530,934
(822,551) (822,551} 5,632,631 6455,182
(1,702,83%) (1,702,836 (1,645,520) 47,313
(82,525,389) (82,525,389} 3577111 $6,502,500

1472301

See accompanying notes to financial statements

56,412



CITY OF DALY CITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CIIANGES IN FIIND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

CITY OF DALY CITY
PROFRIETARY FIUNDS
STATEMENT O NET ASSLETS
FOR TBE YEAR ENDED JUNF 30, 2003

Varlance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Criginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Property tax $2.433,.503 $4.813.878 34,848 649 534771
Renrs and interest 83,500 118,500 149,018 30,508
Miscellancaus 200 900 6,283 5,383
Tatal Revenues 2,517,903 4,933,278 5,003,952 70674
EXPENDITURES
Ecanomic and Community Developmen
Salaries and benefits 256,748 259248 255730 3518
Services and supplies 283,862 281,142 96,417 184,725
LERAT shift 54,373 54,375
Otlser charges 324,988 467,708 375,489 B221%
Capital gutlay 1,120,115 1,120,113 34,950 1,083,165
Tutal Eeoomruie and Cammunity Development 1,985,713 2,482,588 B18,961 1,363 627
Iebt Service
Inrerest and fiscal charges 1671512 1,671,512 @16, 71Y 494,791
Taotal Expenditures 3657225 3.854,100 1.793 680 2,058,420
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY ) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPCNDITURLS 11,139,323 1,079,178 3,208,272 2,129,094
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Sale of moperty 1,00 i 10043 [ (1,000,000
Iransters oot (306,432} (106,452)
Proveeds fiam long-tenn debt 567,343 367,381 (567,383)
Total other financing sources {uses} 1,567,383 1,260,931 (306,432} (1,567,383}
NET CHANGE TN FUND BALANCES $428,061 $2,340.100 2,901,820 $561,711
BEGINNING FUND BALANCES
As onginally reparted 15,791,842

GA3D 24 implementation adjustment (Note 11>
As adjusted

ENDING FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

See accompanying notes la Bnancial stalements

{18,544 D54)

ASSETS

Current Asscls:
Cash and myesiments
Cash with fiscal apent
Accounts recervable, net
[nventories
Frepaids

Total Current Asscis

Lang-Term Assets
Advances to othets
Long-term interfund receivahle

Total Long-Term Assets

Capita) Asscrs:
Land
Buikdings
Sewage facilites
Wells and pump stations
Water reservoics
Mains & subsurface lines
Erquipment
Furniture and fixtures
Construction in progress

Tirtal Capilal Assets
Less secumulaled depietiation
Nel Capitul Assels

Total Assets

Curren Lisbilitics:
Acepunts pavable
Retentions payable
Avvrued habilitics
Acerucd payroli
Compensuled sbsences
Deposits payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liahilities:
Compensated absences (Now 1}
Accrued claims payahle (Moce 107
Long-term interfund payable
Long term deht {Note 5}

Lrue within ong yeer
Tiue in marc than anc ycar

Tenal Long-Term Liabilities

Totl Liahilities

NET ASSETS

Invzsted in capitel assets,
net of related debt

Restricted for debt serviee

Unrestricled (Note 1M1

Total Met Asscls

Busingss-1ype Activities-Enterprise Funds Governmental
Cther Activilies-
Water Sanitation Enterprise Internal Service
Utility L}istict Funds Tolals Funds
4,077,854 St1,398,406 §1.280.028 $16.756.328 513,656,002
1,047,654 1047654
1,488,583 HO,.E45 185125 2414381 50,702
456,325 1,155,353 1611678 143,129
74617 M,617 77347
6,022,802 F4.416.875 1,463.153 21,904,530 11,936,200
44,587 44,597
813,267 833,267
833267 44,597 877,854
235,856 233,547 1,785,145 2,362 349 333,343
02661 09,419 6,753,005 7,465,086 194,434
45125607 45,125,607
5019.529 5.019,539
7308 227 TI08,8:7
10,381,684 15,773,723 26,155.407
2,452,083 1,703 627 676,168 1831 878 14,046,431
15,070 53,240 GR310 16,633
565,849 5070218 2045067
27 485,559 71,178,341 5218320 107,482 260 14,590,501
6.3596.273 26,175,611 2,588,330 15358414 £,519,746
20,889 284 45,002,770 6,631,790 71,523 816 6,071,155
26,512,088 40,252,912 141,540 95,306,540 18,007,355
85,087 IRCIMEES 412,340 3038271 208158
24,059 202 540 227039
3898
42 (155 81522 123,577 77 EDS
6,410 32,2060 15616
52230 52,230 757
+ 009,881 2,057,812 412,140 3,479,833 293,518
174,372 444,458 418830 S83,29%
2,305,100
833257 §33,267
1,635,000 1,635,000
7,740,000 7,740,000
174,373 2419458 $33.267 10,827,097 3,086,398
1,184,253 11.877.270 1,245,407 14,206,930 3,382,016
20,889 286 45,002,770 5,796,523 71,690,579 6071655
1,047 654 1.047 654
4,838,540 2325218 1,047 410 8,201,377 8,554,184
$25,727.835 548,375 542 36896173 §EB0,399.610 £14,625.339

See accompanying noles to finaneial siatethents



OPCRATING REVENUES
Waler sales
Sewer srvice charges
Connectisn charges
Renlal income
Lense revenue
Recycling revenue
Charges ta City departments
Cther revenues

Total Operating Revenues

COPERATING EXPENSES
Salarics and henefits
Services and supphes
Waler purchases
Iransler statien charges
Liilitics
Insurance
Claims ¢ settlements
Dicpreciation
Other charges

Total Operating Expenses
Operating ncorne (Luss)

NONOBERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property taxes
Gain (lnss) on sale of capital assets
Loss on refunding (Mote 5)
Grant reimbursemeny
Storm damage repair expenses
Interest incame
Interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

income Before Transfers

Transfers in (Mote 7)
Transfers out {Nele 7)

Met ransters
Change in net assets
BEGINIING NET ANSETS

ENDRNG HET ASSETS

CITY OF DALY CITY
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR. THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Business-type Activitics-Enterprive Funds Governmental
Other Activities-
Water Sanitation Enterprise Internal Service
Utility Digirict Funds Totals Funds
$10.202, 528 $10,202,528
§12,541,647 12,541,647
572,550 572550
$869,305 869,306
375.000 375,000
1,216,840 1,216,840
$8,901,332
547,780 1,474.47] 162,026 2,184,277 371,175
10,750,308 14,588 668 2,623,172 27.962,148 9,472,514
1,773,434 3,827366 5,600,800 3.558,662
1,061,566 3,014.765 167.730 5144061 2,027,980
2,427,702 2427792
1,216,840 1,216,840
1,150,252 778,985 120,563 2,044 800 389,627
95,978 231,532 13,812 341,322 1,136,312
2,300,036
850,591 1,618,627 312,054 27B1,272 1,241,574
1,080,811 972,30 20,500 2.073,632 191,309
8,440,424 11,343 596 1,851,499 21,635519 10,846,400
2 300 8R4 3,245,072 77167 6,126.629 (1,373,886)
939,013 939013
26,3215 (91,3793 (117,770 {5.614)
{616,046) (616,040}
1,153,091
(99.204)
176,404 Sl1L718 18,129 706,251 431,354
(155,530) (45,488) {201,418}
150,013 587,776 (27.754) 710,030 1,479,627
2450897 3,832,343 743,414 7,036,659 105,741
941,738 941,738 334,237
(2.563,999) (1,892,758) (707.476) (5,164,233) (144,326)
(2,563,000 (951,020 (707,476) (4,222.495) 189,911
(104,102} 2851828 36,438 2814164 295,652
25,531,937 45,491,814 6,859,695 78,185,446 14,326,687
25,727,835 $48,175,642 $6,896,133 $80,999.610 $14,625,339

See accempanying noles lo linancial statements
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CITY OF DALY CITY

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT (OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Business-iyps Astivities-Enterprise Funds

Governmentsl

Other Activities-
Sanitation Enterprise Intgrnal Secvive
Vrater Utility Disfrict Funds Tatals Furds
CASH FLOWS FROM OMERATING ACTIVITIES
Recerpts From custamers £10,729 AR 314,674,906 £3.649 374 £25,053, 764 59454335
Payments ta supplicrs (5292017 (5,534,720 (1577228} (12 403 967%) 14182 555)
Paymeals to employees {1,TelA5) (3,764,530 {5,525 9B} {3.479,448)
Claims paid (1,189.722)
Cash Flows froon Operating Activities 3676013 5,375,656 1,072,148 10,123 817 402510
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITA]L
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
intgrfund receipts 15,701 115,701
laterfand payments. {115,762) £115.702}
Interest paid {45,K8R) (45,878}
Praperty Iax 939013 939013
Grant reimiwrseinent 1153081
Storm damage repair expenses {95,041
Lransfers in Ya1.738 541.738 334237
Iransfers aut £2,563,999} (1.852,758] {707,476} 15.164.233) (1443261
Cath Flows from Moncapital Financing Activities (2,563,995} t03,694 (860,066) (3,329.171) 1.741,798
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ANTY RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assats 1,689,033} (5.251,722) (6,940.757) (1,116,452}
Proceeds (rom sale of capilal assats 31,158
Issuanes gast paid (23B,084) [233.084}
Proceeds from long term deb! 19,475,000 10,475 500
Paymenl L refunded debl escrow ageat (11,247,962) (11,247,962}
Frincipal payments en ¢apital dept (1,100,500) (1,100,000)
Interest paid (155,510 (1555303
Cash Flows from Capital and Relaled Financing Activities (1,689,035} (7.31E,29%) (9,207,333 (1,085,254
CASH FLOWS FRGM INVESTNG ACTIVITIES
Interast 176,404 S11,708 15,128 €25 431,384
Net Cash Flows (4006173 {1.527.230} 7. {1,706,636) 092,408
Cash and inveshnents at beginning of periad 4478311 13,973,290 1,058,817 19,510,618 10,663,594
Cash andl invesonents at ead of periad 34,077,494 £12 446,060 11,280,028 317803082 511,650,002
Recnnzliarion of Operating Income {Luss} to Cash Fluws
from Operating Aclivilies
Operating income (joss) 52,309,884 $3,245072 STTL6TY $6, 126,629 (81371886
Adjusiments ta reconzile operating incoms o cash flows
from pperating atlivilies:
Depreciation EEA 1,618,627 12054 2781272 1241574
(hangs in assets and fiabititics:
Receivables, net {20524} 86,228 26,202 H1016 (18.179)
Iavenlory {18438} {41,84%} {60,286}
Crlier assets 171,097 171077 (27,7363
Accounts and other payables 542 820 111 654 (37.781) 738,693 (309,084
Accrued ¢laios payable Bl1.214
Accrued payrall and cem pensated absenges 11,080 62836 4815 79,214
Cash Flows from Operating, Activirias 33,676,013 $3,375,4356 $1,072.148 510,123,817 $402.518

See accompanying notss to Rnancial stakements



CITY OF DALY CITY

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2003
Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments (Note 1F) $2,003,235
Receivables 668,524
Tolal Assels $3,571,759
LIABILTTIES
Accounts payable £934 842
Due to bondholders 1,209,355
[3eposits payable 1.422,362
Total Liabilites $3.571,750

See yccompanving notes to financial statements
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CITY OF DALY CITY

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2003

Note 1.
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Daly City (City) was incorporated on March 22, 1911, and operates under a council-manager
form of government. Daly City is a general law city, and provides the following services: public safety
{police and fire}, highways and streets, watcr, sanitary sewer, social services, library, recreation, public
improverments, planning and zening, and general administrative services.

The Basic Financial Statements include financial information for eatities which are directly or indirectly
governed by the City Council. The entities included arc the City, the Daly City Redevelopment Agency,
the North San Mateo County Sanitation District, and the Daly City Public Facilitics Financing
Corporation (see Note 2).

The accounting policies of the City conform with penerally accepted accounting principles as they apply
to povernments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The City’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles gencrally
accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the
acknowledged standard sctting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards
followed by governmental entities in the 1.8, A.

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the basis set forth in Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statemenls No. 34, Busic Financial Statements—and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments (GASB 34), No. 36, Recipient Reporting
for Ceriain Nonexchange Revenues, an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 33, No, 37, Basic
Fingnoial  Stutements—and  Muanagement’s  Discussion and  Apalysis—jor  State and  Local
Governments; Omnibus, and No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

These Statements reguire that the financial statements described below be presented.

27
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Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display
information about the primary government (the City} and its component units. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall City povernment, excepl for fiduclary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fces charged 1o external parties.

The Statement of Activitics presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the City’s governmenlal activities and for each segment of the business-type activities
of the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, arc clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational needs of a particular program and fees, grants and contributions that are
restricred to financing the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's
funds, including fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separatc stalements for ¢ach fund
category—governmental, proprietary, and fiducigry—-are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
stalements i3 on major individual povernmental and enlerprise funds, each of which is displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental and entcrprise funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Preprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund, Exchange ransactions are those in which ¢ach party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nowoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

Jid MAJOR FUNDS

GASB 34 defines major funds and requircs that the City’s major governmental and business-type
funds be identified and presented separately in the fund financial statements. All other funds, called
nonmajor funds, are combined and reported in a single column, regardless of their fund-type.

Major funds are defined as funds that have cither assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses
equal to ten percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. The General Fund is
always a major fund. The City may aiso select other funds it believes should be presented as major
funds.



The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements:

GENERAL FUND is the general operating fund of the City. Tt is used to account for all financial
resaurces traditionally associated with governments which are not required to be accounted for in a
separate fund.

GAS TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND is used to account for gas tax monies allocated by the State to
the City for the streets and roads program.

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND is used to account for monics
restricted for the purpose of eliminating blight in designated redevelopment project areas. The
Redevelopment Agency was established in 1971 for the purpose of redeveloping certain portions of the
City's older business areas. While the Redevelopment Agency is technically an administrative arm of the
State, cxercising Stale powers, it is governed and effectively controlled by the City Council.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND is used to account for financial resources 1o be used for the acquisition
or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprictary funds.

The City reported the following enlcrprise {unds as major funds in the accompanying financial
statements;

WATER UTILITY FUND is used to sccount for activity related to providing residents with water
service and billing for garbage collection service provided by Browning-Ferris Industries of California.

SANITATION DISTRICT FUND is used lo account for activity related to providing residents with
sanitary sewer Services.

The City zlso reports the following fund types:

Tnternal Service Funds. The funds account for motor vehicles, central services, telephone, building
maintenance, information services and sel-insurance; all of which are provided to other departments
on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds. Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, and other governments, The financial activities of these funds are
excluded from the entity-wide financial statements, but are presented in separate fiduciary fund
financial statements.
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. PROPERYY HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Property held for development is staled at the lower of historical cost or net realizable value (equal to
agreed upon sales price if a disposition and development agreement has been reached with a developer),

b, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual hasis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses arc recorded at the time liabilities are incurred regardless of
when the related cash flows take place.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resouwrces measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurabie
and available. The City considers all revenucs reported in the governmental funds to be available if the
revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. Expenditurcs are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are rccognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. Governmental capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in goveramental funds.
Proceeds of governmental long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

Property tax and salcs tax are considered measurable and available when in the hands of intermediary
collecting governments and are recognized as revenue at that time. The primary revenue sources which
are susccplible to accrual include taxcs, rents, licenses, interest, grants and contributions. Fines and
penalties and other revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally
not measirable until actually received.

The City may fund programs with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants,
and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricled net assets may be available to finance
program expenditures. The City’s policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs,
followed by gencral revenues if necessary.

Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual functions and activities.

Proprietary funds arc accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized
when they are eamed, and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred. The City follows
Financial Accounting Standard Board statements issued on or before November 30, 1989 which do not
conflict with Governmental Accounting Standards Board staternents.

Nonexchange transaciions, in which the City gives or receives value withowl directly receiving or
giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, cnlitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue [rom taxes is recognized in (he fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requircments have
been satisfied.



k. BUDGETS, BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING AND ENCUMBRANCES

The City adopts an anvual budget before June 30, for all tunds and component units other than the
Agency Funds. Budgets are subject to public hearing before they are adopted by the City Council.
Budgels are prepared on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP basis).

The City is not legally required to prepare budgets for any of its funds, bt does so as a matter of
managerial policy, Budgets submitied to the City Councll include both proposed appropriations and the
means of finaneing them, The City Council approves total appropriations on a fund by (und basis.

The City Manager is authorized and directed to make any changes or transfers of appropriations within
any Department of the City and from one Depariment 1o another as he deems necessary or feasihle, as
leng as the total appropriations of the funds are not exceeded.  Additional appropriations not included in
the original budget resolutions require approval by the City Council. Budgeted amounts shown arc as
adopted and amended by the City Council. Individual amendments were not material in refation to the
ofiginal appropristions. Budgets for the City's proprietary funds are considered as memorandum budgets
used for the purpose of management control. These nonappropriated budgets are not included in the
Basic financial statements.

The City uses an encumbrance system as an extension of normal budgetary accounting, Under this
system purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded 1w
reserve that portion of applicable appropriations. Encumbrances cutstanding at year-end are recorded as
reservations of fund equity since they do nol constitute expenditures or liabilities, Outstanding
encumbrances at ycar end are autcmatically reappropriated the following year. Unencumbered and
unexpended appropriations lor other than capital cutlay lapse at year-end. Howcver, the Capital Projects
Fund is not budgeted on a project-length basis. Only the budget estimated to be spent in the current fiscal
year is appropriated, even if the project will continue into future fiscat years. The City prepares a five year
capital plan, and cach project year budget (GAAL Basis) is appropriated separatcly on an on-going basis.

F. CASIHT AND INVESTMENTS

At June 30, 2003, the carrying amount of the City's deposits and certificates of deposit was $3,043,89¢
and the bank balance was $5.492,412. OF the bank balance $1,644,128 was insured by federal depository
insurance or covered by collateral held by the Cily's agent in the City's name, and 3,848,284 was
covered by collateral held in the pledging financial institutions' trust department or agent in the City's
name, in accordance with Section 53652 of the California Goverument Code. )

The Cily's investments of $77,851,438 at June 30, 2003 (excluding certificates of deposit and mertgage-
backed securities) consist of funds on deposit with the Local Agency Investment Fund (State Treasurer's
Pool) and the San Mateo County Investment Pool. The investment pools are not subject o risk
categorization because they are not evidenced by securities that cxist in physical or book entry form.
Neither pool reflects the participant’s deposits in the form of shares, therefore the fair value of the City™s
position in the pools is the same as the City’s deposit balance.
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The City has invested in moryrage-backed securities issued by the Government National Mortgage
Assoclation which are evidenced by specific identifiable securitics instruments. The City calegorizes
securitics instruments in ascending order to reflect the relative risk of loss on these instruments. This risk
is called Credit Risk. The lower the number, the lower the risk, Of the three levels of risk prescribed by
generally accepted accounting principles, the Cily’s securities instruments are considered Category 1,
because the City has possession of these securities instruments and they are in the City’s name. The fair
value of these securities instruments at Jume 30,2003 was $1,598,307. Five of these securities
instruments have original maturity terms greater than five years. During tiscal 2002, the City Council
adopted a resolution which included authorization for the City Treasurer to invest up to $4 million in
investments which, at the time of investment, have terms remaining to maturity in excess of 5 ycars.

The City's cash with fiscal agent of $1,047.654 at June 30, 2003 consists of $154 in mutual funds
invested in United States Treaswry securities and $1,047,500 in an investment agreement.

‘The City's cash with fiscal agent, as well as cash and investments recorded in the City's agency funds, are
required to be expended for the payment of certificates of participation or assessment bonds. The
cxpenditure of such cash and investments is governed by indenture agreements and other agency
agreements. The California Government Code requires these monies to be invested in accordance with
any applicable City ordinance, resolution or bond indenture, unless there are specific State statutes
govemning their investment., All these funds have been invested only as permitted by either the above
Code or applicable City ordinance,

The proprietary funds' portion of the City’s pooled investments is reported on the accompanying financial
staternents as Cash and Investments, similar to a demand deposit account, and is considered a cash
equivalent used in the preparation of the statement of cash flows,



investments are carried at fair value and were categorized as follows at June 30:

Category 1t
U.S. Government Agency Securities (Governument
National Mortgage Association) §1,598,507
Non-categorized investments:
Locat Agency Investment Fund 25,674,162
County of San Mateo Investmeant Pool 52,177,276
L).8. Treasury securities mutual fund 154
Investment agresment 1,047,500
Total Investments 80,497,399
Cash Deposits with Banks 1,548,869
Certificates of Deposit 1,438,000
Cash on hand 7,030

Total Cash and Investments 583,541,298

Financial Statement Presentation:
City Cash and Investments:

Cash and investments $79.590,409

Investments with fiscal agent 1,047,654

Total City Cash and Investments 80,638,063
Fiduciary Funds:

Cash and investments 2,903,235

Total Cash and Invesiments $83,341,298

The City of Daly City operates its investment activities under the pradent investor rule (Civil Code See.
2261, et seq.). This affords the City a broad spectrum of investment opportunities as long as the
investment is deemed prudent and is aflowable under current statutes of the State of California
{Government Code Sec. 53600, et seq.).
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Investments are allowed in the following media:

[ Collateralized Certificates of Deposit

. United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills or certificates of indebtedness

. Registered state warrants or freasury notes or bonds of the State of California

. Bonds. notes, warrants or other evidences of indebtedness of any local agency within the
State of California, including those of the City or of any agency or authority of the City

. Obligations issued by banks amnd guaranteed by a federal agency or United States
government-sponsored enterprise

. Banker’s acceptances

. Commercial paper

. Negotiable certificates of deposit or time deposits placed with commercial banks and/or
savings and loan companies

. Mutual Funds

Local Agency Investment Fund (State Treasurer's Pool)
Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements

San Mateo County Treasurer’s Pool

Passbook Savings Accounts

The City’s investment policy states that the “financial institution musi have an office in California and
that office must perform the transactions with the City”. As of June 30, 2003, the City had $297,000 in
a Certificate of Deposit with the First National Bank of Marin. The bank previously had an office in
San Rafael, Marin County that closed and moved to Las Vegas, Nevada, The City intends to
discontinuc the deposit with the bank when the certificate of deposit matures in January 2004.

The City’s investments are camied at fair value, as required by gencrally accepted accounting
principles. The Cily adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each
fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year.

The Cily voluntarily invests in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The City reperts its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF. The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAI['s investment portfolio are collateralized
mortgage obligations, morigage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain stale
funds, and floating rate securitics issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and
corporations.



G. INVENTORY

Inventory is valued at cost, using the first-in, first-out method. For the General Fund, inventories consist
of consumable supplies held. for conswmption, and do nol constitute "available spendable resources”,
even though they are a component of net current assets. Such amounts are equally offset by a reservation
of fund balance. For proprietary funds, inventories represent materials and supplies for operations. The
consumption method of accounting is applied o inventories.

H WATER UTILITY ACCQOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Cily bills usage to water utility customers on a bimonthly basis. Each day's meter readings are
usually billed on the next business day. At any given time, an average of one month's usage is unread and
unbilled. ‘These unbilled estimated usages have been recognized as revenue and reccivables in the
financial statements of the enterprise funds.

L ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS AND AGENCIES

In governmental funds, noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loans receivable (reported in
“advances to" asset accounts)} are equally offset by a reservation of fund balance which indicates that they
do not constitute available spendable resources since they are not a component of net current assets.
These advances accumulate interest annually and because interest revenue is not expected to be collected
within the next vear, the accumulated interest has been reflected as deferred revenue in the General Fund.
Current portions of long-term interfund loans receivable (reported in "due from™ asset accounts) are
considered available spendable resources.

rs ACCUMULATED UNPAID VACATION, COMPENSATORY AND SICK LEAVE
Accumulated unpaid employee benefits are accrued at year-end, [f vacation or compensatory leave is not
taken by employees during their employment, the City is obligated to make cash payments to them on
termination or retirement at the salary rates then in effect. City employees receive from thirleen 1o
twenty-eight days vacation each year.

Full-time City employees receive one working day of sick leave for each month of employment.
Emplovees who terminate for reasons other than death, retirement or abolishment of position lose all
accumulated sick leave. Upon death, retirement afier the age of 50 and 5 years of service or abolishment
of position the City is obligated to pay 50% of unused sick leave, up to 8G{0 hours, at the salary rate then
ineffect. The value of vested sick leave liability for all employees qualified for retirement on June 30 of
each year is accrued.

The City’s liability for compensated absences is recorded in various governmental funds or proprietary
funds as appropriate.  The liability for compensated absences is determined annually. For all
governmental funds, amounts expected to be paid out of current financial resources are recorded as
fund liabilities; the long term portion is recorded in the Statement of Net Assets.
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The changes in liability for compensated absences were as follows:

Governmental — Business Type

Activities Activities ‘Total
Balance July 1, 2402 $6,252,685 $613,088 $6,865.773
Additions 5,142,951 612,952 3,755,503
Payments (4,413,532) (568,594) (4,982,126)
Balance June 30, 2003 $6,981.704 $657,446 $7,639,150
Current portion $390,073 $38,616 $628,689

Compensated absences are liquidated by the fund that has recorded (he liability. The long-term portion
of governmental activities compensated absences is liquidated primarily by the General Fund.

y. 8 CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

The City has recognizcd a liability for workers' compensation and general liability claims in the
Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund. This liability reflects the costs of ¢laims determined 1o be probable
of assertion and measurable in amount.

L PROPERTY TAX LEVY, COLLECTION, MAXIMUM RATES

Article 13 of the California State Constitunion provides for a maximum gencral property tax rate
statewide of $1.00 per $100 of assessed value, and may be adjusted by no more than two percent per year
unless the property 1s sold or wransferred, in which case it is then assessed at sales price. Assessed value
is calculated at 100% of sales price as defined by the above referenced Article 13,

The State Legislature has determined the method of distribution of receipts from the $1.00 tax levy
among the county, cities, school districts and other disfricls, Counties, cities and school districts may
levy such additional tax rate as is necessary to provide for voter-approved debt service. San Mateo
County assesses properties, bills for, and collects property taxes on the following schedule.

SECURED UNSECURED
Valuation dates March 1 March 1
Lien/levy dates January 1 January 1
Due Dates 50% on November | July 1

50% on February |
Delmguent as of December 10 August 31

April 10



The term "Unsecured" refers to taxes on property not secured by liens on real property, Property taxes
levied are recorded as revenue and receivables, net of estimated uncollectible amounts, in the fiscal vear
of levy, Property taxes which cannot be recorded as current year revenues, in accordance with the
maodified acerual basis of accounting, have been recorded as deferred revenues.

M. RESERVATTONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUND EQUITY

The term "reserve” is nsed to indicate that a portion of reported fund equity is legally restricted to a
specific use or not available for appropriation or expenditure. The City Council or the City Manager will
sometimes designate portions of unreserved fund cquity based on tentative future spending plans. Such
plans are subject to change, have not been legally authorized and may not result in expenditures.
Unreserved undesignated portions of fund equity represent financial rescurces legally available for uses
other than these tentatively planned.

The City has reserved and designared fund equity as follows:

Reserved for Encumbrances - {o reflect outstanding contractual obligations for which goods and
services have not been received.

Reserved for Prepaids, [nventories, Notes Receivable, Long-term Interfund Receivables and
P'roperty Held for Development - to reflect that prepaid expenditures, inventories, long-term notes
receivable and land held for investment do not constilute available spendable resources in the
governmental funds.

Reserved for Capital Projects - to account for developer In-lien fees and other monies restricted by
statute to he development and mainenance of City capital projects.

Reserved for Restricted Purposes - the City receives grants and other revenues legally restricted for
cerlain funclions.

Reserved for Imprest Cash Funds - these amounts represent revolving petty cash funds maintained
in various City departments to facilitate small, nonroutine, purchases of goods.

Designated for Equipment Replacement - these menies are set aside according with the
depreciation schedule for a specific plece of equipment. The reserve for equipment replacement
increases generally in the same amount as depreciation charged in each of the internal serviec and
enterprise funds and decreases when monies are used to buy replacement equipment.

Designated for Fire Apparatus - these monies are set aside for expenditures specifically for the
replacement of fire equipment. Because fire cquipment is a very expensive capital item, the City
has chosen to designate the amount generally determined by the depreciation schedule for fire
equipment for future needs.
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Designated for Recycling - these monics arc sel aside for expenditurces to reduce the amount of
refuse by encouraging recycling of reusable materials

Designated for Possible Future Claims - the City has a self-insurance fund that is explained in Note
10. Monies have been sel aside in this reserve in the event that the City will be found liable for
future ¢laims for personal injury or accident or other significant damage within the City.

Designated for Capital Projects - these funds represent amounts anticipated to be expended in the
upcoming fiscal year for capital projects.

Designated for Operating Capital - these amounts represent estimates of the cash required for
expenditures in various funds which are necessary to bridge the time period between year-end and
the receipt of major revenues, such as property taxes and sewer service fees billed with property
taxes.

At June 30, 2003, the following Enterprise Funds had fund cquity designations:

Water Sanitaticn Civic Transfer
Utility District Cenler Statien
Unrestricted, designated for:
Equipment replacerment $579,237 $2,325.218 $561,200 $513,504
Recycling 22,906
Capital projacts 2,594,413
Unwestricted, undesignated 1,264,897

Toital urrestricted nel assels 54,838,549 §2,325218 $561,200 5536410

At June 30, 2003, the following Intemal Service Funds had fund equity designations:

Motor Central Information Self-
Vehicles Services PBX Services Insurance

Unrestricted, designated for: )

Equipment replacement $2,167,282 $122,938 $354,118 $1.824,6%0

Fire apparatus 130,604

Possible future claims $4.065,225
Unrestricted, undesignated 47,280 18,665

Total unrestricted net assets §2,345,166 $141,603 5354,118 $1,824,690 $4,065,225
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Nate 2,
REPORTING ENTITY

The City's Basic Financial Statements include the financial activities of the City, the Daly City
Redevelopment Agency (Redevelopment Agency), the North San Matec County Sanitation Disirict, and
the Dalv City Public Facilities Financing Corporation. These entities are contrelled by governing boards
consisting of members of the City Council. Council members are financially acccuntable for these
entities” operations and approve fees, debt issues and adopr budgets, Component unit reperts for the
Redevelopment Agency can be obtained from the City of Daly City, 333 - 90th Street, Daly City,
California 94015-1895.

The Redevelopment Agency was established in 1971 for the purpose of developing certain portions of the
City's older husiness areas, and is overseen by and dependent upon the City. While the Redevelopment
Agency is a separate legal entity and fechnically an administrative arm of the State, exercising State
powers, it is governed and effectively controlled by the City Council. The activities of the
Redevelopment Agency are included with the Special Revenue Funds.

Effective July 1, 1985, the North San Mateo County Sanitation District became a subsidiary district of the
City. The City set up an enterprise fund te account for the District's operations.

The activity of the Daly City Public Facilities Financing Corporation (the Corporation) is included in the
Basic financial statements within the North San Mateo County Sanitation District Enterprise Fund
because the City Council sits as the Board for this entity. The City established the Corporatien to
facilitate the issuance of Certificates of Participation to complete an expansion project for the North San
Mateo County Sanitation District. 1he Corporation acts as a conduit for the leasing of the facilities of the
Sanitation DHstrict (See Note 5).

Note 3,
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At June 30, 2003, the City had made commitments of approximately $13.9 million for construction
work. legal and consulting fees, and purchases of supplics and equipment.

Note 4.
CAPITAL ASSETS

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed.

3%
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All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed.  The City’s policy is to capitalizc all assets with costs exceeding $25,000 for
infrastructure, §1,000 for all other classes of capital assets, and with uscful lives exceeding two years.

With the implementation of GASB 34, the City has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) capital
assets, which include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and
lighting systems.

The City depreciates capital assets over their estimated useful lives. The purpose of depreciation is to
spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of these assets. The amount
charged 1o depreciation expense each year represents that vear’s pro rata share of the cost of capital
assets.

- Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method, which means the cost of the asset is divided by

its expeeled useful life in years and the result is charged to cxpense cach year until the asset is fully
depreciated. The City has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital asscts:

Buildings 20-50 years Saniation Subsurlace Lines 50 years
Equipment, Furniture & Fixtures 3-20 years Water Mains 50 years
Streets and Infrastructure 28-60 years Sewage Collection Facilities 7-20 years
Wells and Pump Stations 40-30 years Sewage Treatment Facilities 10-41 years
Water Reservoirs 40-99 years Sewage Disposal Facilities 15-50 years

The City capitalizes major asset purchases and improvements which increase the useful life of the related
assets. Minor purchascs and routine repair and maintenance costs are charged directly to expense.

Major cutlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase is reflécted in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of
interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.



A. CAPITAL ASSET ADDITIONS AND RETIREMENTS Dalance Balance

Tune 30, 2002 Additions Retiremenis Transfers June 30, 2003
Capital assets at June 30 comprise: Business-iype activities:
Lapital assets not being depreciated:
Balance Balanse Land 52,848,208 $14,341 52,862,549
June 30, 2002 Additions Retirements “Transfers June 30 2003 L .
Govermmental astivitios Construction in progress 6,223,535 5,284,953 (§2,463,421) 9,045,067
Capital assats not bring depreciated Total capital assets not being depreciuted 9,071,743 5,299,294 (2,463,421) 11,907,616
Laond §20,715,325 B637,549 ($364,619) $55.846 $21.044 101
Construction in progress 7.867.136 6,546,041 (3.697,174) 10,716,003 Capital assets heing depreciated:
Total capita] assets not being depreciated 24 582,161 7,183,590 (364,619)  (3,641,328) 31,760,104 Buildings 7,384,060 §1,026 7,465,086
Sewape facilities 43,800,136 121,951 (§796,480) 45,125,607
Capita] assets heing depreciated: Wells & pump stations 5,003,427 121,700 (105,398) 5.019,529
Buildings & improvements 26,909,303 (110,440) (107,474) 26,691,389 Water reservoirs 7334927 (26,100} 7,308,827
Strects & nfrastrocture 50,054,902 1,581,264 3.697,174 55,333,340 Mains & subsurface lines 22,484,354 1,246,382 2,424,671 26,155,407
Vehicles, cquipaent, furniture and fixtures 16,678,762 1,305,259 (1,167,671) 51,628 16,868,974 Equipmisnt 6,209,744 151,433 (1,487,073} (42,276) 4831 878
Pork sructures snd improvements 971 499 27,500 008 599 Furniture and Fixtores 107.471 BRI 68310
9 i i i 3,64 5 . .
Total capital assets being depreciated 94,615 466 2,514,023 (1,278,111) 641,328 59,892 706 Tatal capital assels being depreciated 94,324 114 1,641,466 {2,451,362) 2,463,421 95,074 644
Less accumulated deprecistion far .
- Less aceumulated depreciation for
Buildings & improvoments 12,604,613 919,216 (106.341) 13,417,488 \
- 3 2
Sweets & infrasiructure 30,168,923 1,077,445 31,246,368 Bulldings ‘ 2137 18310 e 244,063
Vehicles, aquipment, furaiture and fixtures 10362741 1,493 683 11,127,419 10,729 005 Sewage facilities 21,969,813 1,122,876 (709,323) 72,383,366
Fark structures and impiovements 244060 33,300 277,360 Wells & pump stations 1,723,698 163,412 {98,968) 1,790,142
Water reservoirs 2,325.018 181,928 (14,57%) 2492373
Totat accumulaied depreciation 53,380,337 3,523,644 (1.233,76(0 55,670,221 Mains & subsurface lines 3771.997 632,838 4,404,835
Met depreciable asssts 41,235,129 (509,621) [44351) 3641328 44222485 Fauipment 2.826,744 436507 (1474615) (34.378) 1754258
Furniture wnd Fixtures 83,087 5,401 (39,1113 4,377
Governmental aclivity capital assets, not 569,817,590 $6,573,969 ($408,970) $75,982 589
“Total accumnulated depreciation 34,613,732 2,781,272 {2,336,500) 35.358,414
Net depreciahle assets 59,410,387 (1,139,806} (117,712) 2,463,421 60,616,230
Business-rype aclivity capital assets, net £68,482.130 $4,159, 488 (8117,772) 572,523,846

B CAPITAL ASSET CONTRIBUTIONS
Some capital assets may be acquired using federal und State grant funds, or they may be contributed by

developers or other govemments. These contributions are accounted for as revenues at the lime the
capital assets are contributed. ’
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C.

DEPRECIATION ALLOCATION

Depreciation expense is charged to functions and programs based on the usage of the related assets.
The amounty allocated to each function or program are as follows:

{zovernmental Activities

General government

Public safely

Public works

Cultura and recreation

Economic and community development

Streets and infrastructure

Nondepartmental

Capital assets held by the City's internal service
funds charged to the various funclions based on
their usage of the assets

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Warer Utility

Civic Center

Transfer Station
Sanitation District

Total Business-Type Activities

515,879
273,521
22,257
467,850
15,703
1,083,265
403,595

1,241,574

3,044

$850,591
238,319
43,705

1,618,627
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Note 5
LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Debt for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, are as [ollows:

Balance Dalance Current
June 34, 2002 Additions Retirements June 30, 2003 Partion
Governmental Activity Debt
2002 Capital Leuse
4.69%, due 2011 $1,040,151 §95,542 5944,600 $100,023
Line of Credit
5.7%, due 2006 119,897 119,897
Total Governmental Activity 1,160,048 95,542 1,064,506 100,023
Busintess-Type Activity Debt
1992 Refunding Certificates of Participatinn
59%5.375%, refunded 2002 10,870,000 10,870,000
2002 Certilicates of Participation
264-2.5%, due serially o 2009 516,475,000 1,100,000 9,375,000 1,635,000
Total Rusiness-Type Activity 10,870,060 10475000 11570,000 9,375,000 1,635,000
Totul City Long-Term Ohbligations $12,030,048 $10,475,000 512,065,542 $10,439,506 $1,735,023

On August 13, 2001, the City entered into a capital leasc agreement totaling 51,184,477 to fund the Civic
Center Energy Management Project to improve the lighting, heating and ventilation of the building.
Principal and interest payments are due annually on August 13 until 2011. Debt service is repayable from

Capital Project Fund resources,

As of Junc 30, 2003 the City had 2 bank line of credit bearing interest at 5.70 percent. Monthly interest
payments vary and a final payment will be duc on October 3, 2005, The initial $164,000 draw-down on
the line was used to finance improvements to office space used in the City’s Small Business Incubator
Program. Under this Program, the City assisis start-up companies by providing office space and
sceretarial and administrative services for a fee. Debt service is pavable from rents collected from small

businesses participating in the Program.



On Septemnber 24, 2002, the City issued, through a financing intermediary called the Daly City Public
Facilitics Financing Corporation, $10,475,000 of 2002 Certificates of Participation bearing interest al 2
percent to 2.5 percent to retire $10,870,000 of outstanding 1992 Refunding Certificates of Participation
bearing interest at 5 percent to 5.375 percent. Principal is due annually on June 1. Interest is due
semiannually on each June ! and December 1, until june 1, 200%. Debt service is repayable from

Sanitation [istrict Enterprise Fund operating revenues. As a result, the 1952 Refunding Certificates of

Participation arc considered legally defeased and, as of September 24, 2G02, were no longer an obligation

of the City. 'the refunding resulted in an cconomic gain of $659,093, representing the present value of

the §2,025,04! reduction in future debt service payments.

Annual debt service requirements are shown below for all long-term debt with specified repayment

terms:

Governmental Aclivilles

Business-Type Activities

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2004 $100,023 $44,303 %1,635,000 $200,625

20035 104,714 315612 1,670,009 167,925

2006 229,522 34,701 1,705,000 134,525

2007 114,767 25,559 1,740,000 100,425

2008 120,150 24,176 1,770,000 65625
2009-2011 395,330 37.649 855,000 21,375
51,064,306 $210,000 $9,375,000 $690,500

During fiscal 2003 the City anthorized a $4,500,000 note payable, guaranteed under the Department of
Housing and Development's (HUD) Section 108 Loan (Guarantee Program, Proceeds from the note
will be used fo finance the design and construction of the Bayshore Community Cenfer. As of June 30,
2003, the City had not drawn down any of the funds available under the loan agreement.

Note 6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE I'UNDS

‘The City’s nonmajor enterprise funds include the following segiments:

CIVIC CENTER is used to account for rental activity of real property owned by the City in the Civic

Center arca,
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Fiscal 2003 segment information is as follows:

Condensad Statement of Net Assets

Condensad Statement of Cash Flows

‘Noncapital financing ectivities
Met cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities
Capigd financing activities
Investing aclivities

Net increas: (deslease)
Deginning cash and cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivelents

Civic
Center
Assels.
Current zssets $585.645
Advances to others
Capital assets 5,899,173
Total assets- 6,484,819
Liabikities:
Cumrent |izbilities 24,446
Longtenm interfund payabls 833,267
Total liabilities 857,712
et assets;
Invested in capital assets, net of relatsd debt 55817
Unrestricted {272,067
Total iet asseds 85627106
Condansed of , Exp and
Changes in Net Assets
Clvig
Cortar
Charges for services $869,506
Ceher reverue 176,170
Depreciation experse {268,349}
Oxber cperaing avpenes )
Cperating income 354,688
Montperating mvenucs (experses):
interest income 18,129
Interest expense {45,888}
Transfers out 301,595
Churys: in et assets 5,334
Begiming net assets L SSELTR
Cnding het assets _ SSETI08

Civic.
Carnker
(301,595)

$393,065
(161,550)
18,129
148,009
361,575
59,584



Note 7.
INTERFUND BALANCES

The Sanitation Enterprise Fund loaned $1.2 million, ($833,267 at June 30, 2003, 1o the Civic Center
Enterprise Fund 1o finance construction of Civie Center North remodeling costs,  This long-term
interfund advance bears interest at 5.119 percent and is due in monthly installments including
interest, with a final payment due on June 30, 2009. The payments are being made from Civic Center
operaling revenues,

Loans payable from the Redevelopment Agency to the General Fund have no scheduled repayment
date. Management has prepared a cash flow projection of redevelopment activities through fiscal
2024, This projcetion indicates that funds should be available to repay the above loans, including
interest, prior to the expiration of the project areas. J.oans currently bear interest at 2.891 percent and
this rate is adjusted annually based on the LAIF rate as defined in the agreement between the Agency
and the City. The fiscal 2003 additions to loans payable amounting to $976,719 represent interest, as
the terms of the agreement stipulate that any unpaid interest shall be added to the principal. During
fiscal 2003, the Agency repaid the Ciiy $1,671,512. At June 30, 2003, the total amount of loans
payable from the Agency to the General Fund was $32,933,176.

a7
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INTERFUND TRANSFERS

‘I'ransfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 were as follows:

Fund Making Transfer

Fund Regeiving Transfer

General Fund:

Special Revenue:
Gas Tax
AR 1600 Public Facility Fees
Peninsula Partnership Fund
Federal Gramts Fund

Redevelupment Agency
Capital Prejecis:

Capeial Projects Fund

Enterprise Fund:
Water Ldlity

Civic Center

Transfer Station
Samitation District

Internal Service Fund:
Building Maintenance.

The purpose of the majority of transfers is to reimburse a fund that has made an expenditure on behalf of
another fund. General Fund transfers out typically represent an operating subsidy or in the case of grants,

a match of another funds’ expenditures.

Dclger Seninr Center Special Revenue Fund
Peninsula Partnership Special Revenue Fund
Federal Grants Special Revenue Funil
Capital Projects Fund

Matar Yehickes Internal Service Fund
Central Services Inlemal Service Fund
Information Services Internal Service Fond

General Fund

Capital Projects Fund

Information Services Intemal Service Fund
General Fund

Motor Vehicles Infemal Service Fund
Information Services lotemal Service Fund
Federal Crants Speeial Revenue Fund

General Fund
Information Services Internal Service Fund

Ceneral Fund

Sanitation District Enterprise Fund

Mulor Vehicles Internal Service Fund
Central Services Internal Service Fund
Capital Projects Funil

Building Mairntenance Internal Service Fund
Cieneral Fund

reneral Fund

Information Services Internal Service Fund
Central Services Internal Serviee Fund

Cupital Projects Fund

Amount

Transferred

$324,729
69,614
59430
4417971
45,125
54,084
1138

1,655,520
2,425,879
16,576
66,862
15,207
56139
306,452

9,385
30,068

1,575,032
941,738
45,762
1,467
250,000
51,585
405,881
1,887,682
3,609
1467

144,326
$14.874,738



INTERNAL BALANCES

Internal balances are presentzd in the entity-wide financial statements only. They represent the net
interfund receivables and payables remaining afler the climination of all such balances within
governmental and business-type activities.

Note 8.
RETIREMENT PLAN

CALPERS Safety and Miscellaneous Employegs Plang

Substantially all City employees are elipible to participate in pension plans offered by the California
Public Employees Retirement System (CALPERS), #n agent multiple employer defined benefit pension
plan that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers.
CALPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death
berefits 1o plan members who must be public employees, and heneficiarics. The Cily’s employees
participate in the separate Safety (police and fire) and Miscellaneous (all ather} employee plans. Benefit
provisions under all plans are established by State stasute and City resolution. Benefits are based on years
of credited service, cqual to ong vear of full-time employment and final compensation as defined in cach
plan. Benefits for Safety Plan members may not exceed 90% of final compensation.  Funding
contributions for these plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CALPERS;
the City must contribute these amounts,

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect al June 30, 2063, arc summarized below:

Redevelopment
Agency
Safety Miscellancous Miscellancous
Benelil vesting schedule 3 years service 3 years service 3 years service
Benefit payoents monthly for life monthly for life monthly for ife
Retirement age 50 50 50
Benefits, as a % of annual salary
for cach credited service year 24%3.0% 1.426% - 2.418% 1092% - 2.418%
Required cmployee contribution rates 944 % To%%
Required employer contribution rates 5.108% 0% 0%
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CALPERS determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Normal Methed.
Under this method, the City’s total normal benefit cost for each employee from date of hire to date of
retirement is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost. Normal benefit ¢ost winder
this Method is the level amount the employer must pay annually to fund an employee’s projected
retirement benefit. This level percentage of payroll method is used to amortize any unlunded actuarial
liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are also used to
compute the actuarial acerued liability. The City does not have a net pension obligation sinee it pays
these zetuarially required contributions monthly.

CAILPERS uses the market related value method of valuing the Plan’s assets. An investment rate of
return of 8.25% is assumed, including inflation at 3.50%. Annual salary increases are assumed to vary by
duration of service. Changes In liability due to plan amendments, changes in actuarial assumptions, or
changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over twenty
years. Investment gains and losses are accumulated as they are realized and ten percent of the net balance
is amortized annually.

The net assets of the City’s Plans are commingled with the net assets of all CALPERS plans for
investment purposes. The fair value of the net assets in the Plans changed as follows during the year
ended June 30, 2002:

Redevelopment
Apency
Safety Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Reginning Balance JTune 30, 2001 $134,302,277 $100,749.759 5447338
Contributions received . 1,388,545 1,589,338
Benefits, Refunds und Miscellaneous Adjustments (4,631,394) (2,628,445) (603)
Expected Investment Earnings Creditcd 10,948,821 8,269.84] 36,922
Expected Actuarial Value of Assets
as of June 30, 2002 $142,008,247 $107,980,453 5484,158
Fair Value of Assets as of Jung 30, 2002 $111,456,355 $84,739,487 $354,122

Actuarial Value of Assels as of June 30, 2002 $122,601,881 $93,213,436 $433,534

Annual pension costs, represeniing the payment of contributions required by CALPERS, for the three
fiscal years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 amount to $3.268,107, $2,886,827 and $2,566,241
respectively, The City made these contributions as required, together with certain immaterial amounts
required as the result of the payment of other additicnal employee compensation.



The Plans’ actuarial value (which differs from fair value) and funding progress over the most recent three

vears available is set forth below at their actuarial valuation date of June 3(:

Safety Plan:
Unfimded
Entry Ape Unfunded Annual {Overfunded)
Valuation Accrued Value of (Overfunded) Funded Coverad Liability as %
Date Liahility Assets Liability Ratio Payroll of Payroll
2000 $105,607,735 $125,211,395 ($19,603 660} 118.6%  $12,539,105 €156.3%)
2001 116,436,374 134,302,277 (17,862,903) 115.3% 13,460,996 {132.7%)
2002 129,247,025 122,601,881 6,645,144 94.9% 14,734,682 45.1%
Miscelleneous Plan;
Unfunded
Eniry Age Unfunded Annual (Overfunded)
Valuation Accrued Value of {Overfunded) Funded Covered Liability as %
Date Liability Assets Liability Ratio Payroll of Payrell
2000 364,649,749 £93,130,122 (528,480,373) 144.1% $1R8,329,765 {155.4%)
2001 76,853,616 100,749,759 (23,896,143) 131.1% 19,873,926 {120.2%)
2002 100,554,045 93,213,436 7,340,609 92.7% 23,149,084 317%
Miscellaneous Redevelopment Agency Plan:
Unfunded
Cntry Age Unfunded Annual (Overfunded)
Valuation Accrucd Value of (Overfunded) Funded Caovered Liability as %
Date Liability Assets Liability Ratio PPayroll of Payroll
2000 $103,186 5426,022 {$322,836) 412.9% - N/Aa
29001 195,780 447,839 (342,059 423.4% - NA
2002 140,312 433,534 (293,222) 308.0% - NA

Audited annual financial statements and ten year trend information are available from CALPERS at P.O.
Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709.
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Note 9,
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

City employees may defer a portion of their compensation under a City sponsored deferred compensation
plan created in accordance with Intenal Revenue Code Section 457. Under this plan, participants are not
taxed on the delerred portion of their compensation unti! distributed to them; distributions may be made
only at termination, retirement, death or in an emergency as defined by the Internal Revenue Service.

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a trust for the
exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries, Since the assets held under these plans are
not the City’s property and are not subject to City contrel, they have been exeluded from these financial
statements.

Note 10.
SELF-INSURANCE

The Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund was established as of January 1, 1979, lo provide for payment
of workers' compensation claims. At July 1, 1979, the Fund was expanded to consolidate essentially all
of the City's risk management programs. Fund revenues consist of interest carnings, reimbursements of
claims paid by the fund and charges 1o other funds. The latter is intended to match the charges for
insurance premiums fot ¢coverage in excess of self-insurcd amounts, estimated payments resulting from
self-insurance programs, operatng expenses and the provision of reserves for pending and possible (uturc
claims.

The Ciiy has a self-insured retention for the first $250,000 for general and automobile liability claims and
maintains a $10,000 deductible for property losses, Losses in excess of the retention up to $19,750,000
on general and automobilc hability are covered by purchased excess insurance, The City purchases
combined property, boiler and machinery and automobile comprehensive insurance covering all but the
deductible on the full value of City property. Settlements have never exceeded insurance coverage, The
City charges to expense the incurred liabilities for claims in cases where such amounts arc reasonably
determinable and where the likelihood of liability exists. Included are estimates for incurred but net
reported claims, which are calculated based on claims experience. In addition, the City has reserved
remaining net assets (which provision is not charged to expense) for possible futurc claims.



In February 2043, the City joined the California Public Entity Insurance Authority (CPEIA), a joint
power authority which provides excess workers’ compensation liability claims coverage above the
City's sclf-insured retention of $350,00¢ per oceurrence, Losses abouve the sclf-insured retention are
pooled with excess reinsurance purchased to a $50,000,000 limit. CPEIA was established for the
purpose of creating a risk managemenl pool for all California public entities. CPEIA is governcd by a
Board of Directors consisting of representatives of its member public entities. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2003, the City coninbuted $57,478 (o CPEIA for cumrent year coverage. Audited
financial statements for CPETA arc available from CSAC-Uxcess Insurance Authority at 3017 Gold
Canal Drive, Suite 300, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

The City’s liability for uninsured claims including a provision for claims incusred but not reporied was
computed as follows bascd on claims experience for the years ended June 3¢, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
Beginning balance of claims payable $1,653,880 $1,300.931
Increase in estirmated claims liabiliey 2,300,934 2,117,922
Clauns paid (1,489,722} {1,724,967)
Fnding balance of claimns pavable $2,505,100 $1,693,886
Note 11,
MET ASSETS

GASB 34 adds the concept of Net Assets, which is measured on the full accrual basis, to the concept of
Fund Balance, which is measured on the modificd accrual basis.

Net Assets is the excess ol all the City’s assets over all its liabilities, regardless of fund, Net Assets are
divided into three caplions under GASE 34. These caplions apply enly to Net Assets, which is
determined only at the Government-wide level, and are described below:

Invesied in Capital Assets, net of related debt describes (he portion of Net Assets which is represented by
the current net book value of the Cily’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued to
finance these assets.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Assets which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions of
agreements with ouiside partics, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the Cily
cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include developer foes received for use on capital projects,
debt service requirements, and redevelopiment funds restricted to low and moderate income purposes.

Unvrestricted describes the portion of Net Assets which is not restricted as (o use.
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GASB 34 IMPLEMENTATION

Pursuant to the requirements of GASB 34, ay of July 1, 2002, the City removed an advance of
$33,627,969 recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group and recorded it in the
Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund. The effect of this change was to eliminate liabilities
of $33,a27,969 in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group, and record the liability and a
reduction of fund balance in the Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue Fund. In addition the City
also reduced investment in property held for redevelopment and beginning fund balance by $707,933.

As of July 1, 2002, the City recategorized $82,096 of deposits in the Special Deposit Agency Fund to
the General Fund.

As of July 1, 2002, the City changed its method of measuring the current portion of compensated
absences to conform to GASB 34 requirements. This change resulted in an increase of the General
Fund compensated absences liability and a reduction of fund balances by $211,634.

Also, as required by GASB 34, as of July 1, 2002, the City closed contributed capital in the amount of
$76,962 and $10,647.401 to beginning net assets recorded in Inlemal Service and Enterprise Funds,
respectively.

Note 12.
CARTER/MARTIN SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

In fiscal 1985 the City authorized assessments for improvements of streets and water facilitics, forming
the Caricr/Martin Special Assessments District (Carter/Martin), Carter/Martin issued $4,365,000
principal amount special assessment bonds in July 19835, and subsequently performed refinancing and
reassessments of Carter/Martin in July 1987 and again in December 1993, Principal amount of the
December 1993 refunding improvement bonds, issued under the 1915 Improvement Act, was 1,245,000
at June 30, 2003,

The City is not obligated in any manner for the special assessment debt, in that the bonds arc not the
general obligafions of the Cily, nor is the credit or taxing power of the City pledged for payment of the
bonds, and the City is under no obligation o advarce funds in the event of default by a property owner.
Therefore, the bonds are not included in the financial statements of the City. The Cily acts only as an
agent {or Carter/Martin, receiving special assessments collected by the County and forwarding the funds
to the Carter/Martin bond paying agent, and this fiduciary responsibility is recorded in the City's Agency
Fund.



Nole 13,
LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Cily administers a housing rehabilitation program using Housing and Community Development
Block Grant funds that is accounted for in the Community Block Grant Special Revenue Fund. Under
this program, individuals with incomes below a certain level are eligible to reccive low interest loans,
secured by deeds of trust, for construction work on their homes. Although these loans and notes are
expected to be repaid in full, their balance has been offset by deferred revenue as they are not expected 1o
be repaid during the next fiscal year.

During the year ended June 30, 2003, the City made loans 1o six participants under this program and
shows the following activity:

Beginning Balance 51,216,581

New loans 30,169
Loan repayments (340,807)
Ending Balance 5005,943

The City has a note receivable of $203,831 at June 30, 2003, due from the San Mateo Pre-Hospital
Emergency Services Providers Group, a joinly governed organization established to provide
paramedic services to constituents of member jurisdictions. The Group used proceeds of ihe loan 1o
finance the acguisilion and installation of communications equipment and has agreed to repay the
nate in monthly installments over a six-year term with the last installment due January 1, 2005. The
balance outstanding on the note bears interest at the rate earned on the City’s investments in the
Local Agency Investment Fund for the prior year, plus cne-half of one percent (4.052 percent at June
30, 2003}, The interest rate is adjusted each July 1 based on the prior year LAIF rate. ‘Lhe Group
has pledged all assets purchased with proceeds of the note as security.
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Note 14,
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

‘The Agency has a Disposition and Development Agreement with a developer under which the developer
has constructed the first two phases ol a four phase, $200 million project. Phases I and Il consist of an
cightl-story office building with ground floor retail space, restaurants and shops surrounding a central
event plaza, a three-story theater complex, and two parking structures. The Developer has obtained a
$350,000 wrrevocable letter of credit in favor of the Agency to act as the performance depasit required
under the Agreement.

As of June 30, 2003, the remaining Hote! Phase parcels and Phase [II parcels were still owned by the
Agency. ‘Lhese parcels are Lo be sold to the Developer and used for future improvements required
under the agreement including a hotel, a second olfice building with ground floor retail, additional
parking, landscaping, and an elevated pedestrian bridge.

Note 15.
FUND DEFICIT

The Redevelopment Fund had a deficit amounting to $15,642,234 and the Building Maintenance Internal
Service Fund had a deficit amounting to $164,828 at June 30, 2003. The deficits will be eliminated with
future revenues.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” RETORT

To the Honorable Mayoer and Members of the City Council
of the City of Mercad
Merced, California

We have audited the accompaunying financial statements of governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Merced, California
{City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gowvernment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supperting the amounts and disclosures in the basic
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evsluating the overall basic financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In cur opinion, such basic financial statemenls referred to above present fairly, in all matcrial respects, the
financial pesition of the governmental activities, the business-type activiies, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaming fund information of the City as of June 30, 2003, and the respcclive changes in
financial positien and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

As described in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the Cily adopted statements of the Governmerttal
Accounting Standards Board No. 34, Basic Financiul Statements-ond Management's Discussion and Analysis-for
State and Local Governments; No. 37, Basic Financial Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for
State and Local Governments: Ommnibus; and No. 38, Cerfain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

Crur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial staterents that coliectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplemental information is presented
for purpose of additional analysis and is net a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supplementary information has been subjected o the auditing proccdures applied in the audit of the basic

~ financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic

financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and stafistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly,
Wwe express TIo opinion on them.

Toll Free Pha(877) $62-2200 Toll Free Fux: (B60) 4300427
Oakiand Orange County Sacrameata San Ticgo
T80 Crand dve., Suite 1369 3TB&D Alreyay Avenue 777 Campus Commaons Rd., Suite 200 00 "B Strect, Suite LR

Ouakfand, Cafifornla 94612 Costa Mesa, Callfornia 92626 Sacranients, Californiz 93825 San Diego, Califprnia $2101



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Merced
Merced, Californie

In accordarnce with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 12,
2003, on our consideration of the City's internal contro! over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions, law, regulatians, contracts, and granls.

The accompanying Required Supplementary Information, such as management’s discussion and analysis,
budgetary comparison information and other information as listed in the table cf contents are not a
required pari of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principaily of inquires of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the

Required Supplementary Information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
an it,

Qakland, California
September 12, 2003

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAT.YSIS

As management of the City of Merced (City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the finandal activiies of the Cify for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2003. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information: that is furnished in the jetter of transmittal, which can
be found in the introductory section of this report, and the City’s Financial Staterents, which
follows this discussion. The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement 34 Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for State and Local Governmenis for the first time this year.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The City’s net asscts as shown on the Statement of Net Assets increased by $3.7 million.
The governmental net assets decreased by $1.9 million and the business-type net assets
increased by $5.6 million.

¥ As shown on the Statement of Net Assets, the assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at
the closc of the fiscal year by $356 miltion.

% Al the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance for the general fund
was $8 mullion, or 55% percent of the General Fund fund balance.

¥ 'The net increase to debt was $11.7 million. New debt issued during the year was $9
million in Tax Allocation bonds for the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Merced
Project Area #2 activities and a $4 million HUD Section 108 lean for 204 multi-family
housing units.

OVERVIEW OF TIIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Merced's basic
financial statements. The City of Merced's basic financial statements are comprised of three
comporents: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the basic financial staterneats. This report also contains other required supplementary
riformation and other supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Statements-Government-wide Financial Statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Merced's finances, in a manner similar
to a private-sector business.

The focus is on both the City as a whole and the fund financial statements, including the major
individual funds of the governmental and business-lype categories, as well as the fiduciary
funds, (by fund type) and the component units. Both the government-wide and fund financial
statements (within the basic financial statements) categorize primary activities as either
governmental or business type. In the government-wide statement of net assets, both the
governmental and business-type activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis by
column, and are reflected, on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-
term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. Each presentation
prevides valuable information that can be analyzed and compared (between years and between
governuments) to enhance the usefulness of the information.
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The Staternent of Net Assets presents information on all of the Cily’s assets and labilifies, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving
or deteriorating,.

The Statemeni of Activities presents information showing how the government's nct assets
changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets arc reparted as soon as the underlying
event giving ise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal pericds {e.g. uncollected taxes and compensated absence).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovermnmental revenues {govermunents! activities) from
other functions that are ntended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include
general government, public safety, parks, and capital outlay. The business-type activities of the
City include an airport, water, waslewater and refuse services.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself {(known as the
primary government), but also a legally separate Redevelopment Agency (Agency} and a
fegally scparate Public Financing Autherity (Authority) for which the City is financially
accountable. The financial information for these component units is blended with the City and
reperted in the governmental activilies of the Government-wide Financial Staterwents and the
Fund Financial Statements.

Fond Financial Statements-A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control ovet resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives, The City,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounfing to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds-Governmental funds are used to account for egssentially the same
futwtions reported as governmental activities in the goverrrment-wide financial statements,
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at (he end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-terne financing requirements.

Because the focus of povernmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financia! statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmenta! fund statement of revenues, expenditires, and changes in fund balances provide
a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities,

The City maintains thirty eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in tha Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement
of Revermes, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund,
Redevelopment Agency Debt Service Furd and the Redevelopment Agency Capital Project
Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other six governmental funds are
combined intc a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-
major governmental fiunds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its funds. A budgetary comparison has
been provided for the General Fund in the Required Supplementary Information to
demenstrate compliance with the budget.

Proprietary Funds-The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds, Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City maintains nine individual enterprise funds.
Information is presenled separately in the Proprietary Statement of Nat Assets and the
Propriety Statement of Revenues, Expense and Changes in Fund Net Assets for the Wastewater
System, Wastewater Improvement, Restricted Water-Wells, Water System and Refuse
Collection Funds, which are considered major funds. Data from the other four funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual (und data for each of these non-
major proprietary funds is provided m the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City’s various functions, The City uses internal service funds to account
for its Worker's Compensation, Liability Insurance, Unemployment, Empleyee Benefils, Fleet
Management and Replacernent, Facility Maintenance, Support Services and Personal Computer
Maintenance funds. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
Government-wide Financial Statements. Individual fund dats for the internal service furds is
provided in the form of combining statemerits.

Fiduciary Funds-Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government Fiduciary funds are not reflected i the government-wide
financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available & support the City's
own programs, The accounling used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary
funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements-The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Other Information- In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress
in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees and budgetary
comparison schedules for the General Fund.
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The combining statements referred to eaclier in connection with non-major funds and internal
service funds are presented following the Required Supplementary Information. Alse included
are budget comparisons for governmental funds cther than the General Fund.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Since this is the City of Merced's first year reporting under Government Accounting Standards
Board Statement (GASB) #34, the City is presenting data based on key information presented in
the basic financial statements. This method is prescribed in GASB #34. The City will present
comparative government-wide data for fiscal year ending fune 30, 2004,

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a uscful indicator of a governments’
financial position, In the case of the City, assets excecded Labilities by $356 million at the close
of the most recent fiscal year.

City of Merced
Summary of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2003
Govemnmental Business-type Total
Activities __Aclivities Government

Current and other asseis § 89,912,633 $ 36,095,751 - $126,008,384
Capital assets 270,890,232 38,038,366 __ 308,728 598

Total assets ___ 360602865 74134117 434,736,982
Long-term kabilities 38,839,061 5,452,542 44,291,603
Othar habitites . 28267050 642,120 33,908,170

Total iabilities 67,108,111 11,084 662 ?8,200,773
Net assets:
Invested int capital assets, net of debt 235,052,801 32,503,366 267,556,167
Rastricted 35,314,733 400,189 35,723.922
Unrastricted . 23128,220 30,126,900 53,256,120

Total net assels $ 293,496,754 § 63,039,455 $356,536,200

The largest porlion of the City's net assets (75%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land and improvements, construction in progress, buildings and structures, machinery and
equipment and improvements other than buildings, steuctures and land improvements), less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these
capital assels to provide services lo citizens; consequently, these asscts are not available for
futire spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed Lo repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Fifieen percent of the City's net assets represent resources that are subject to external
Testrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $53 million is the anrestricted
net assets that may be used to meet the govermnment's ongeing obligations fo citizens and
creditors,

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities.

Analysis of the City’s Operations-The following table provides a summary of the City's
operations for the year ended June 30, 2003. As noted eatlier, in the first year GASB #34 is
implemented, the City is not required to present comparative data for the prior year.

City of Merced
Changes in Net Agsets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Governmental Business-type Total
__ Activities Agtivities _ Government
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 15,537,208 $ 23,277,800 § 38815006
Opesaling grants and contriputions 7,533,162 - 7.533,162
Capital grants and contributions 194,735 - 181,735
General revenues and transfers:
Property taxes 8,834,315 - 8,834 315
Sales taxes 9,799,975 - 9,799,975
Other taxes 3.739.270 3,738,270
Transfers (553,224} 531,449 (21,775)
Other 7,257,342 3172483 10429825
Total revenues 52339781 26,981,732 _ 76,321.513
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General governmernt 15,221,012 - 15,221,012
Public Safety 17,863,142 - 17,863,142
Public Works 3752108 - 3,752,106
Parks 3,407,203 - 3,407,203
Other 14,060,614 - 14,060,614
Business-type aclivilies:
Wastewater system - 7,094 722 ' 7,094,722
Wastewater improvement - 280,677 280,877
Restricted water-wells - 154,132 154,132
Water system - 5,588,089 5,588,089
Rafuse collectian - 7,650,498 7,650,496
Other proprietary funds _ - 559,054 559,054
Taotal expenses 54,304,077 _ 21,327,370 75631447
fncrease in net assets 3 (1.864.298) $ 5654,362 $ 3,650,086




Goverrunental Activities- Governmental Activities decreased the City’s net assets by $1.5
million. Revenues and transfers from governmental activities totaled $52.7 million. Taxes
provided 42% of the revenue and charges for services provided 29% of the revenue received
during the year.

The following table shows the cost of each of the Cily’s major programs and the net cost of the
programs. Net cost is the tofal cost less fees and other direct revenoe gencrated by the
activities. The net cost reflects the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by
each of the programs.

City of Merced
Het Cost of Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Total Cost Net Cost
__ of Services of Services
General Government & 15221,012 $ 2,008,368
Pubiic Safety 17.863,142 15,121,145
Public Works 3,752,106 1,640,533
Parks 3,407,203 1,722,332
Other 14,060,614 __ 10,548,806
Total $ 54,304,077 3 21.041,974

The vosts for all governmental activities during the year were $54.2 million, which is 72% of
total expenses. The City's taxpayers paid for $31 million of these costs. TFecs, grants and
contributions funded the balance of the cost.

Business-type Activities-Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $5.6 million.
This increase consists of fees collected for future capital projects. The revenues and transfers
from the business-type activities total $26.9 million. Frogram revenues of the Cily's business-
type activities totaled $23.2 million. Expenses of business-type activities were $21.3 million.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting, to ensure and demonstrale compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds-The focus of the City"s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such informalion is useful in
agsessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, the unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

The Cily's governimental funds reported a combined fund balance at June 30, 2003 of §53.3
million, an increase of $10 milion.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City., At the end of the current fiscal year,
the fund balance of the General Fund was $14.8 million and the unreserved, undesignated fund
balance was 38 million. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total expenditures. The
unreserved fund balance represents 35% of total General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by 51 million during the fiscal year. The
increase in the General Fund is attributable to growth related revenue such as property taxes,
sales tax and CRIS fees and the City's unspent appropriations. The increase in the General
Fund will be used to cover shortfalls that may occur due to the State’s budget crisis.

Other changes in fund balances include the following:

Redevelopment Agency Debt Service fund-

» This major fund increased by $677,094 million. The increase is due to tax increment
revenue reccived. This revenue will be wsed in future years to make the debt service
payments.

Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects fund-

+ This major fund increased by $3.3 million. At year end there wers unspent debt
proceeds received from a tax allocation bond which will be spent on Redevelopment
projects in the near future.

Public Facilities Impact Fees Special Revenue fund-

*  This fund is used to account for the facilities fees collected for the project categories of
roadways, bridges and railroad crossings. traffic signals, fire, police; and parks,
recreation and bikeways. This non-mafor fund increased by $1.5 million and will be
used for future public facilities.

Proprictary Funds-The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the Government-wide Financial Staterments, but in more detail.

The unresiricted net assets of the Governmental Activities Internal Service Funds was $10.3
million. The unrestricted nct assets of all the other proprietary funds-was $30.1 million. The
total change in net assets for the Governmental Activities Internal Service Funds and all the
other proprietary funds was $21 million and $5.6, respectively. Other factors concerning the
finances of the Proprietary funds have been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-
type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGIITS

During the fiscal year the City Council approved budgetary revisions for supplemental
appropriations, which increased appropriations in individual funds and transfers between
funds,

The difference between the original budget and the final budget was an increase of $22.4
million. 95% of this increase is attributable to capital projects. Inaddition, the increase includes
interfund transactions. The majority of the capital projects were in the Redevelopment Agency
and were funded by debt proceeds, grants and transfers in. In addition, the following revenue
sources were higher than anticipated; properly tax, sales tax and other taxes collecled; and
development related revenues,



CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets-The City of Merced's investment in capital assets for ils governmental and
business type activities as of June 30, 2003, amounted to $308.7 million. This investment in
capital assets includes land and improvements, construction in progress, buildings and
structures, machinery and equipment, improvements other than buildings, structures, and land
improvement.

City of Merced
Capital Assets
June 30, 2003
Government  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Non-depreciable Assots:
Land and improvemerniis % 60,806,061 $ 56914 % eUB6297D
Construction in process 10,437,258 17,761,172 28,198,430
Total nendepreciable assels 71,243,319 17,818,086 82,061,405
Depreciable Asscts:
Buildings and struchures 4,969,412 2,444 434 7413846
Machinery and equipment 24,036,835 3,851,933 27,888,768
Improvements ather than buildings,
structures, and land improvemer 45,768,489 36,186,949 81,955,438
Infrastructure 298,239,752 248,239,752
373,014,488 42,483,316 415,497,804
Less accundated depreciation (173.567,575) (22,263,056} (195,830,611}
Total depreciable assels, net 199,446,913 20,220,280 219,667,193
Total capital assets $ 270,090,232 % 38,038366 % 308,728,598

The sigrificant change 1o capitai assets during the current fiscal year included the following:

o Phase 11! of the Wastowater Treatment Plant renovation project with over $7 miblion in
construction costy.

o The purchase and construction of Well Site 10B for approximately $500,000.

o The development of Paulson School Park site with costs of $500,000.

o The purchase and renovation of the historic Merced Theatre for $750,000.

Long-term debt-At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had $46.% million in outstanding
debt consisting of tax allacation bonds, revenue bonds, improvement bonds, participation and
development agreements, loans payable, loan guarantees payable and compensated absences.
All of the debt was secured by specific revenue sources.

City of Merced
Outstanding Debt
June 30, 2003

Governmental Business-type

Acfivities Aclivities Total
. 2003 2003 2003
Tax allocation bonds payable $31,612825 § - § 312825
Participation and development agreements 725,060 - 725,000
Loan payable 5,753,208 - 5,753,298
Loan guarantee €68,228 - 668,228
Revenue bonds payable - 2,410,000 2,410,000
Improverment bonds pavable - 3,125,000 3,125,000
Compensated absences 2,226,854 447,542 2,674,396
Total 340,986,205 5 5,082,542 § 46,968,747

The City's total debt increased by %$11.7 million or 31% during the current fiscal year. The
increase was due to the issuance of $9 million in Tax Allocation bonds for the Redevelopment
Agency and a $4 million HUD Section 108 loar.

ECONOMIC FACTORS ANDY NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET
The key assumptions in the revenue forecast for fiscal year 2003-04 arc as follows:

*  The City must be prepared for the impact of the State’s budget dcficit.

= All revenues due to the City of Merced from all sources will be received during the {iscal
year 2003-2004.

= All current core services will continue {e be delivered during the {iscal year 2003-2004.

= Conservative revenue projections were used o avold presenting an unrcalistic
expectation of available funding.

" The City Council's priorities were idenlified as the General Plan update, water,
wastewater and storm dramage, the University of California Merced, annexations,
infrastructure and revenue protection and enhancement. These priorities were guides in
preparation of the budget for the fiscal year 2003-2004.

= Water and wastewater rates will increase on January 1, 2004 and again cvery January
until 2007.

" Refuse rates will be reviewed for reconunendation of an increase in January based on
tha change in the CPL



REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financiel report is designed to provide a general overview ¢f the City of Merced's finances
for those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the
information pravided in this report o requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Finance Officer, City of Merced, 678 West 18t Street, Merced, CA, 95340.

BASTIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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City of Merced
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2003
Govemmentst Business-Type
Artivities Activities Tols!
ASSETS
Qurrent assets:
Ciash, cash cquivalants and investments 52,748,582 E 34,183,270 B5,981.852
Cash held Yy fiscal agen: 2596400 402,182 3,005,989
Accounts receivable 5,430,182 5,450,152
Interest tacaivable 598,155 atzam1 910,256
Service charges seceivabie 2345355 2345,335
Dre fom gther gavernments 2114188 Waa19 3414123
Irderfund batances 2148783 {1,500,000) 43,783
Prepaid items B2267 2,267
Tnwentory B7,491 100,241 187,732
Tokl augrent s 65,876,784 35744755 102,621 533
Mancurrenl assets:
Land held for resale 1,677,969 . 1577,959
Nutes megivable 1,333,149 B4.286 NADGS
Interfund balances {175,309) 101,395 #3914
Treferred chatges 150215 160,215
Subtotal noncusmnt assets 23,035,849 350,99 23,386, H5
Capital assets:
Nendepreciable
Taod and improvements 60,806 061 56,914 S0,862.975
Construction in progress 10,437,258 17,761,172 28,195,430
Dieprecinble:
Buildings and struglures 4965412 244440 7413840
Machinety aw equipment 24,036,835 34501,933 27.888,768
Improvements other than buddings,
structares and land improvemenis 45.768,489 36,186,549 1,955,438
Infrasirectre 298,239,752 295,199,752
Uross capital assets 454,257,897 60,301,402 504,555,209
Tess aocumulated depreciabion (174,567 575) 2L 263138) {195,830,611)
Total capital asssts, net 273,680,232 38,038,366 308,725,598
Tetal noncuerent wiscets 293,726,081 38380362 33233543
“Tonal assats 26,602,865 4T 434,736,982
LIAVILITIES
Currend Liabilivies,
Accounts payuble 602432 1330596 2,541,824
Cither payabics 245377 446,377
Dupusin Rt 286739 427.897
Tioterred revenus 21,603,737 1531950 23,235,687
Accrued interest payable 155,354 504,632 764,587
Long-term debl, dus within cne vear 2,147,148 530,001 2677131
Other Ligbililies IS 112,262 3,415,350
Total current linbilities 28,267,050 5,642,520 WA
Nonzyent Habilities:
Tex allocation borwds payalle 30352825 30,152,825
Taricipation amd development agreements 575,000 575,000
Loas payable 5,386,705 5,356,705
Loan guamantee 607,280 607,480
Revenus bonds payabie 212,000 2,125,000
Iwprovement bonds payable LEH,000 2,580,000
Cumpensated ahsenacs 1,807,051 447,507 2,354,393
Tuti] nomcumrent Liabili 38.339,061 5453542 44,291,603
Tuta} liabilities 67106111 1662 7B.200,773
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assety, net of Telated dubt 0052801 32503365 267,556,367
Restricted for:
Crebt service 1,832,565 AL 1242157
Capllal prujects 20870676 WNAT0.E76
Sipecial projects and programs 12,620,685 12,630,889
Total restricted 35314,733 403,189 3572390
Ungestricted 23,729,20 H).136, 900 53,256,120
Total net asvets 293496550 § £3,830,455 356,536,200

Ser Aczompanying Noles 40 Basit Financist Statements,




City of Merced
Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2003

Program Revenucs

Net (Expense] Revenue

Cperating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
Functions/ Programs Fxpenses for Services Canlributions Contribitions Tatal
Governmental activites:

General gavernment 15,271,012 ¥ 6,890,337 § 6,244,737 ¥ 77370 % 13,212,644
Public safety 17,863,142 2,171,599 525,643 43361 2,741,997
Public works 3,752,106 1,932,135 108,434 7100 211,573
Parks 3407203 1,031,523 653,348 1684871
Adrmini ive shared , ditizre: 1,046,432 3,511,018 3,511,618
Unallocated depreciation 11,602,630
Tnterest on long-term deht 1,411,552

Total governmental activities 54,304,077 15,537,206 7.533,162 143,735 23,262,103

Business-Eype activities:

Wastewater system. 794,722 5,776,215 5,776,215
Wastcwater impravement 280,877 1,415,620 1,415,626
Restricted water-wells 154,132 2,313,074 2343074
Waler system 5,388,089 5,680,757 5,680,757
Retuse collection 7,65(,456 6,894,351 6,894 531
{ther proprietary funds 559,054 1,167.597 1,167,557

Tofal businesstype activities 21,337,370 22,277,800 23,277,800

Tatal government 75,631,447 § 38,815,006 % 7,533,162 3 191,735 5 46,539,905

Bee avcompanying Neotes to Basic Financial Statements.

General revenues and transfers:

Taxes:

Property

Sales

Other

Total taxes

Interest and investment earnings
Miscellanecus
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
‘Transfers

Tetal general revenoes and transfers

Changes in net assets

Net Asscts:

Bepireung of year, as restated

End of year

and Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Husiness-type
Activities Activities “Total

$ (2008368) § (2,008,368}
{15,121,145) (15,121,145)
(1,640,533} (1,640,523}
(1.722.332) L.722332)
2,464 586 2464586
(11,602,630 (11,602,630)
(1,411.552) (1,411,552)
(31,041,974) (31,041,974)
11.318,507) (1,118,507}

1,134,749 1,134,749

2,188,942 2,183,042

92,658 92668

(755,965) 1735,965)

608,543 605,543

1,950,420 1,850,420

(31,041,974) 1,550,430 (22,091,544)
8,834,215 8,334215
9,740,375 9,790,575
3,739.270 3,739,270
22,373,560 22,373,560
679413 1,215,959 1,895,602
5,745,008 1,956,494 7,701,562
832,661 822,661
(553,224) 531,449 (21,775}
20,077,678 3,703,932 32,751,610
(1,964, 236) 3654362 3,690,065
245,461,054 57,385,095 352,846,143

$ 262,495,754 S 63032455 356,536,209
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City of Merced

City of Merced

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2003

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2003
Major Funds
Redevclopment  Redevelopment Cither
Agency Agency Caovernmental
Creneral Debt Service Capital Prajects Fends Total
ASSFTS
Cash, cash squivalents and investments $ 03B 87 0§ 1738928 $  13,659.094 5 1563219 41,356,026
Cash beld by fiscal agent 2554482 42318 2,596,800
Acraunts receivable 97,528 5,313,987 5,411,815
Tnterest receivable 393332 8436 524 76,963 505,560
Due from other goverrunents 1,365,874 458,242 1,290,807 3115917
Due from othet funds 2,149,898 117,583 2,267 481
Notes receivable 97,249 4,500,000 2178321 15,057,619 21,333,189
Inventary 17.850 17,890
Land held for resale 1323251 554,718 1,877,96%
Advances ta other fznds 1,293 813 15,932 1.314.795
Tatal assees § 1574769 S B760086 B 17228208 BH.061857 79,747,842
LIABULITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabillties:
Accounts payable b3 L1537 % 5 106830 % 136,062 454,019
Other payables 416,609 25,718 446,377
Depusits 9,158 30,000 3,158
Deferred revenue 301,206 400,000 17,302,521 21,603,737
Due to other funds 01,648 32050 123,698
Advances from other Auds 2453619 177,940 3,631,559
Gther liabilities 1,756 OB.457 100,213
Tatal labilities 930,758 7.545.267 115,988 17.806.748 25,398,761
Fund Balances:
Fund balances 14,814,933 1214814 17,112,220 20,255,109 53,399,081
Total liabjlities and fund balanevs $ 15747891 $ 8760086  § 17028208 § 38,061,857 79,797 842

See accompanying Notes tn Basic Financia) Stateiments,

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmentzl Funds

Amombs reported for governmental achivities in the Statement of Met Asscls are different
because:

Capital assels nsed in governmental aclivites are not current financial respurces and
therefors are not reported in Govesnmental Funds Balance Sheet,

MNon-depreciable $ FUMTE.938
Diepreciable 356,879,379
Less accumulated depreciation (161,240,939)

jLomg-term Tahilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefare are not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet,

Tax allocation bonds payable, net {A1.612,825)
Participation and development agreements {725,000)
Toan payable (5,753,258)
Loan guarantes {668,228)
Compensated absences (1,990,148)

Interest payable on long: teym debt does not require carent financial resources. Therefore,
interest payable i not reported as a liahility in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Internal service funds are used by managerment Lo charge the costs of certain aclivities to
individual fnds. The 2yscts and Liabilites of the intermal servica funds that ace reported
with governmental activities.

Net Assels of Sovernmental Achivities

See aecompanying Notes to Basic Firancial Statements
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53,399,081

266,517,378

{40,749,499)

{155,354)

11,455 148

293,406,754




City of Merced

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2003

City of Merced

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenaes, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2003

REVEMUES:

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmerital

Scrvice charges

Fines, forfeitures and penalides
Qther

Total revenucs

EXTENDITURES:
Current operating:
General government
Fublic safety
Fublic works
Tarks
Administrative shared expenditures

Total cerrent cperating

Capital outlay

Dbt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures
REVENUES GVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Proceads from debt
Proceeds from sale of land
Transfers in

Transfers out

Tstal other (inancing sources (uses)
MNet change in fund balanecs

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

Prior period adjusiment
Beginyung of vear, as restated

End of year

See accompanying Notes fo Basw Finoancial Statements

Major Funds
Redevelopment  Redevelopment Other
Apency Agency Governmenta]
General Debt Service Capital Projects Funds Total
$ 17,299,802 $ 4,991,156 $ $ 82602 22373560
46.741 46,741
4,257,938 T3 7,600,598 11,965,905
3,500,546 597,063 7356,975 11,434,584
41,542 917486 959,229
1,236,205 127,327 191,548 3, M7.487 4,902,565
26,412,773 5,715,546 268,918 19,305,348 51,702 585
3,083,093 784,453 671,915 6,684,404 11,223,86%
17717518 481,681 18,199,199
2,651,120 3,651,120
1,601,708 1860523 2,462.241
1,046,432 1,046,432
22402319 784,453 671,915 13,724,170 37,582,857
506,612 11,006,194 3,234,334 14,751,194
1,240,748 1,654,000 2,930,748
1,339,285 41507 1,380,795
22,908,931 3,364,480 11,678,104 18,694,065 56,645,594
3,503,842 2,351,057 (23,409,191} 611,284 (4,943,009
295,745 12,712,080 1,620,000 14.627 825
1000 810,990 811,990
792,744 163,852 2,763,618 8,742,706 12,467,921
(3,287,015} (2,333,561} {765,225) (6,949,935} 113,135,736)
(2,494,271} (1,675,963) 14,716,473 4,223,761 14, 772000
1,609,571 677,054 3,307,282 4.835,044 9.828,991
13,807,362 4,134,125 13,729,933 15,272,868 47,044,293
(3,59 ,400) 73,000 4797 (5.474,202)
13,807,362 537,725 13,804,938 15,420,065 43,570,090
$ 14816933 5 1,214,819 $ 1722 § 20285109 52,599,081
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Net Change In Fund Balances - Total Gaverrunenta! Funds
Amotints seported for governmental activities in the Stalement of Activitics are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expendituzes. However, in the Govermnment-wide
Statement of Activities, Hue cost of those assets is allocaled over their estimated vseful lives as

depreciation expense.

Depreciation expense on capital assets was reported in the Government-Widr Statemert of
Activities, but it did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreation
expetiac was 110t reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Bond procends provide current financial mesources to governmental finds, but issuing debt
increases long-terin liabilitics in the stalement of net assets. Repayment uf bond principal is an
expendibare in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-taxm Hahilities in the
statement of net asscts. This is (he amaunt by which proceeds excecded repayments,

Long-term debt proceeds $ (14,627.825)
Principal payinent 230,748

Interest expense on Jong-tern debt is reparted in the Government-Wide Stalement of Activites,
but they do not raquite the wse of eurrent financial resources. Therafore, interest expriwse is not
reported as expenditures in Governmental Fands. The following amount represens the change
in arcrued interest from prior year,

Internal service fiuds are used by management to charge the costs of certain achvities to
individual funds. The net (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental
acHvites.

" Change in Net Ausets of Governmental Activities

See avompanFing Motes 1 Basi: Financial Statements.

% 982899

9357474

(1L,602,630)

(14,697,077)

130,738}

2,179,702

$ (1964,295)



City of Merced
Statemertt of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2003
Business-type Activities
Enlerprise Funds
w L d ' ‘Water Refuse
System Lmprovement Water-Welis System Collection
ASGETS
Crurent assets:
Cash, casi pquivalents and investments 5 4287470 § 11,512,902 $ £.837.046 E3 4,201,912 3 3334040
Cash Reld by Facel agent 406,154
Ascounts receivable
Int:rest raceivable 2,670 55485 190,026 20,258 15917
Service charges reccivable 717,597 256,650 9an 586972 403,760
Peapald items
Due from ofber guvernments 70,741
Inventory 2,611 97630
‘Tatal current assets 5,508,278 11,825,087 9,346,383 916,772 3,754,112
Moncwrent assets:
Mustes Tecaivable-private paries 15,374 26,269 28552 4055
Advances ta other funds 27,838 B4,520 4,381,573 3313
Deferred charges 160,215
Subioisl acacurment assex 2mAa2n 110,895 4,403,911 7399 -
Capital assets:
Land and improvements 28,821 10,295
Constrestion in progress 4,136,981 7712380 13150 4,966,221 L5853
Bulidinngs and struckunzs 180624 1,428,231 4N, 717 15693
tachinery and equipmient 1,185,797 b 1871,734
Improvements other than buildings.
structures, and land inprovements 14.702,647 1,262,516 1,319,505 9,019,292 7089751
Less accursulated depreciation {10,499,429) (#3,196) (1,496,991 (1,335,744) 3,879,152)
Total capital assets 9,235,441 ESTLEM 1182246 11491778 333,009
Total noncurrent assets 948,866 5,023,772 5.592,157 11,099,177 5,322,009
Tatal assets 14,947,181 2ALB4E 816 14,958,540 16,015,549 086,121
LIAEILITIES
Current kabilities:
Accounts payable 116,675 1,627,542 193,402 169,526
Dposits 16,325 329,698 28,505
Deleyred revenue 636,958 6,419 587,112 304,453
[hue to other funds 1.500,u00
Accrued interest payable 425,309 147420 Fo,504
Long-term debt, due within oneg year S30,000
Crher liabiliges 73,874 22,346 32008
Total current Mabilities 370,190 1733 1,132,778 661,456
Noncurrent tabilikizs:
Advances frem ofher Funds 2,457,000 1,835,000
Revenue bands payable 2,125,000
Improvement bonds payable 2,880,000
Composated absenzes payable 2153 g8 129,537
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,226,534 ZASY 0 92,048 1,956,957
Total labiliries 8927724 4,238,381 1224826 2,617,993
MET ASSETS
Invested in copital assets, nel of related debt 3,700,441 &212.880 L1826 11.991,77% 5,332,009
Restricted 409,189
Unrestricted 1975 7697555 13,736,204 3,699,343 1,336,119
Tata) net assets $ 6019420 $ 16610435 5 14935540 § 14790123 B 468,128
See Naies o Rasic £ - Y

Cer Governmental
Non Major “Fotal Activilies
Business-type Business-type laternal
Funds Funds Service Funds
3 2000500 34183270 §  1L442556
409,189
38367
9,710 12061 5225
51,065 2,345,355
82,267
koo 294,629 3,567
104,241 69,601
224,172 37,644,755 11,728,593
15,066 83,386
4240 450,329 2141455
160,215
19,295 4,750,950 2,141,455
17,798 36,904
555726 17,761,172 244,301
179,750 2444431 0,170
22405 3,851,935 15,994,976
2391838 26,186,949 09,963
(1487514) (22,263,006) {32.326,6301
2,284,002 38,1133, 3
203,308 42,789,756 6,314,301
4,597,481 B0AZLUTT 15,042,902
33,431 2338355 148,473
14,211 288,730
7008 1,631,850
1,500,000
64,633
530,000
12,165 1424562 3.172,573
265315 721 3.321,048
108,93 4,399,034
2123060
2,880,000
11,428 447,542 236,706
120,357 9,852,476 226,704
383,672 17,354,546 3,557,754
2,284,017 32,303.366 4172854
409,189
1,927,797 30,126,300 106,312.294
4211, 800 5  &3,09045% § 14,485,145

27



City of Merced

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2003

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

Total operating revennes

QOPERATING EXPENSES:

Pargonnel services

Materials, supplies and vther services

Depreciation

Aduministrative shared expenses

Costs applied-labor, materials,
supplies and services

Total eperating expenses
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)

NONQPERATING
REVENUES {FEXPENSES):

Gain (Joss) an sale of equipment
Interest arud Investment eamings
Interest and related expenses
Othor

“Total nonoperating

revenues {expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPFRATING TRANSFERS
OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Transkers fo
Transfers out

Taotal operating iransfers
Change in net assels

NET ASSETS:

Beginning af year
End of year

Sex accompanving Motes Lo Basic Financal Statements.

Business-type Ackivities

Enterprise Funds
Waslewater Wastewater Resiricted Water Krfuse
System Improvement Water-Wells Systam Cellecion
$ 5,776,215 § 1415626 E3 2343074 5 5,680,757 $ 5,594,531
5,776,215 1415626 2343,074 5,680,737 5,834,531
1711418 1,150,523 1,565,205
2528760 0,261 2,859,3% 4,889,763
1,155,136 63,196 154,132 591,197 384,188
380,360 529,371 341,329
581143 657,603 435,107
6,357,429 133,437 154,132 5,588,089 7.613.592
(581,208) 1,282,169 2,188,542 02,668 (719,061
119,942 354,753 493699 109,944 83,210
(737,296 (147,420) (36,904)
997,718 958,258 2118
380,361 217,373 438,699 1,068,207 48,424
{200,847} 1439542 2,687,641 1.160,875 {670,637)
233)
(223)

(200,847} 1,499,542 2,687,641 1,160,542 {670,637)
5,220,267 15,110,893 12,251,899 13,630,581 7,138,765

§ 6,018,420 $ 16,610,435 $ 14933540 F 14791123 $ 5,468,128
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Other Governmental
Mon Major Total Activities
Business-type Busmess-type Internial

Funds Funds Service Funds
% 1,167,597 5 23,277,500 $ 14068545
1,167,597 23,277,800 14,068,545
173,154 4,500,200 2001,22%
177,253 10,525,438 3,200,196
177,847 252569 1,426,932
28,624 1,080,284 411,186
1,671,853 5087344
554,878 20,403,571 12,517,886
510,719 2874205 1,550,659
20,671
39,386 1,215,429 357,758

(2.176) (923 704)
{1,600) 1,956,494 136,023
33,620 2,242 684 514,452
646,339 5122913 2065111
631,782 631,782 161,062
{100,600) {100233) #5.471)
531,762 531,449 114,591
1.178,121 5,654,362 2,173,702
2,053,688 57,385,092 12.305,446
$ 4,211,802 $ 63,039,455 5 14,485,148
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City of Merced

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2003

Business-type Activites
Enterprise Funds D‘hw. Guvernmental
Waslowater Wastewater Restricted Water Refuse No-rn Major . Totat Activities
System Improvement Waltey-Wells System Cotlacion Business-type Business-type Internal
Funds Funds Service Funds
CASIH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIER:
Cash received from customers, including cash deposits % 5716660 § 1149890 % 240782 % 5769762 % 6,933,080 "
Cash pald to supplicrs {2.500,588) 1,557,281 (6,435) (2.945,544) (4,977,619 3 9‘;5,9z $ 21.312.1:; 14030459
Cash paid to employees (L711,418) (1150523 (1,565,205 25 (7,320,445) (2,204,755}
Cash paid related to quasi-external bransactions (962,103) {986,974} (774,336) (173,133 (4,600,?@ (2,091,220}
Cash receipts (payeaents) other 49,363 6,831 13,284 (28,624 {7‘75;‘;'? ‘S‘Z\;}z‘i g’
Net cash provided (uscd) by operating ackivities 591,914 2,707,171 2,017,325 £393,152 (370,896} - 0‘ 2
27313 6,410,28. 3,268,632
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Advances from other funds 834,000 .
Advarnices to other funds 10,575 21,868 337132 1004 (31,745} 802,250
Transfers from other funds 1.828 378,407 {757,650}
Transfers to other funds (333 ;;f;) :’;'l);;’i; 1(22[;;
Oher Y9718 954,258 2118 ) g
. = (1600 1,956,494 136,023
Nel cash provided {used) by noncapital
financing activities 1,003,294 21,868 37132 961,929 236,118 500,765 4 655,60 (507,
26! E 605 38}
CASH FLUWS FROM CAFITAL AND
RELATED FINANCUING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds on sale of fixed asseis
Acquisition and construction of fieed assers (967,275) 754417) 10025 0.00,53%) (418451 . ;e
Prior pericd adjustment 3,018,59¢ 1467,784) (14;:2: ,7-1.1) 1,434,151)
Principal papments of long-term debt (505,000) 3,218,568
Interest payments {311,590 N (503,000}
Bond issuance costs 29,917 (2178) (314,166)
Compensated absences 37,520 12,448 10,948 - :?’:i 2509
Net cash provided (used) by capital and = -
related financing activities (1.716,932) (7564,117) {110,071} (1,021,084) {255,365} 1465.208) (1L136.777) (1A11471)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
(ovestment eammings 126,920 396,044 364,488 111928 87,253 36,844 173 3
Noius to private parties 1441 2471 2674 381 1-92 il ;,223 328,966
927 ]
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 128,261 398,515 167,162 112302 87,259 P o reoe
. 11322 326,96
Met increase {decrease) in cash and cosh equivadents 11,638 {4,436,562) 2611601 746,306 297116 507141 72,237
23 1777191
Cazh and cash equivalents at beginning of year, inchuding
$405,187 in cash heid by fiscal agents 4,685,023 15,945,965 6,725,445 3,455,406 3,007,324 1.167,359 14.590,22 665,36
67, 20, 9,663,363
Cash and cash equivalents avend of year, including
540,796 in cash holi by fiscal agens § 469,059 $ 11512902 §  LEV046 S AWLI? B 3334440 6 2609500 3 459245 S 11442555

See accompanying Notes w Hasie Financial Stutementis.
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City of Merced

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprictary Funds, Continued
For the year ended fune 30, 2003

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funels Other Governmenta?
Restricted MNon Major Total Activities
Wasteveater Wastewater Water Water Refuse Business-type  Busincss-type Internal
System Impiovement Wells Systen Collection Funds Punds Service Funds
RECONCILIATTON OF OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) T¢t NET CASH PROVIDED
{USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ (581,208) % 1282168 % 2,188,942 & 9668 S (F12,051) 5 610,712 $ 287429 % 1550659
Adjustments W reconcile oparating incomne (luss) ta net
cash provided (used) by operating aciivites
Depreciation 1,135,136 63,19 154,152 591,197 334,188 177,847 2,525,696 1